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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition
12-050
ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT RECEIVED

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

] JUN 15 2012
This Section must be completed for all projects.
: HEALTH FACILITIES &
Facility/Pro|ect Identification : SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Facility Name: RA/ Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heighis*

Street Address: 124 Regency Park Drive

City and Zip Code: Q' Falion, 62269 ..

County: St. Clair Health Service Area 11 Health Planning Area:

*Facility will be renamed Fresenius Medical Care Regency Park after relocation.

Applicant ldentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: RA! Care Centers of lifinois 1,LLC d/b/a RAI Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heights

Address: 820 Winter Street, Waltham, MA 02451

Name of Registered Agent: CT Systems

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Rice Powell

CEO Address: 920 Winter Street, Waltham, MA 02451

Telephone Number: 800-662-1237

Type of Ownership of Applicant

] Non-profit Corporation d Partnership
| For-profit Corporation O Governmental
Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. . e .
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Co-Applicant ldentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, inc.

Address: 920 Winter Streef, Waitham. MA 02451

Name of Registered Agent: CT Systems

Name of Chief Executive Officer. Rice Powell

CEO Address: 920 Winter Street, Waltham, MA 02451

Telephone Number: 800-662-1237

Type of Ownership of Co-Applicant

] Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
For-profit Corporation O] Governmental
| Limited Liability Company (1 Sole Proprietorship OJ Other

o Corporations and limited fiability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited pariner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 [N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. R

Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Lori Wright

Title: Senior CON Specialist

Company Name: Fresenius Medical Care

Address: One Westbrook Corporate Center, Tower One, Suite 1000, Westchester, IL 60154

Telephone Number: 708-498-9721

E-mail Address: for.wright@fmc-na.com

Fax Number: 708-498-9334

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Richard Alderson

Title: Regional Vice President

Company Name: Fresenius Medical Care

Address: One Cilypiace Drive, Suite 160, St. Louis, MO 63141

Telephone Number: 314-872-1714 Ext. 11

E-mail Address: richard.alderson@fmc-na.com

Fax Number: 374-872-7012
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Post Permit Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 IL.CS 3960
Name: Lori Wright

Title: Senior CON Specialist

Company Name: Fresenius Medical Care
Address: One Westbrook Corporate Center, Tower One, Suite 1000, Westchester, IL 60154
Telephone Number: 708-498-9121

E-mail Address: lori.wright@fmc-na.com

Fax Number: 708-498-9334

[y

Additional Contact

Persan who is also authorized to discuss the application for permif]
Name: Clare Ranalli

Title: Attorney

Company Name: Holland & Knight, LLP

Address: 131 8. Dearborn, 30" Floor, Chicago, IL 60603
Telephone Number: 312-578-6567

E-mail Address: clare.ranalii@hklaw.com

Fax Number: 312-578-6666

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Savvi investment, inc.
Address of Site Qwner: 2020 Formosa Drive, Troy, IL 62294

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: 124 Regency Park Drive, O'Falion, IL 62269
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attestmg o ownershnp, an option to Iease, a Ieﬂer of intent to lease or a Iease

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. e R

Operating Identity/Licensee

[Provide this information for gach applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Leqal Name: RA! Care Centers of llinois {, LLC d/b/a RAl Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heights*
Address: 820 Winter Street, Waltham, MA 02451

* Facility will be renamed Fresenius Medical Care Regency Park after relocation

] Non-profit Corporation £ Partnership
1 For-profit Corporation W Governmental
Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an tllinois Certificate of Good Standing.
o Parnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.
o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownership.
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL OFIDEFI AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE -
" APPLICATION FORM. . — - o

Organizational Relationships
Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
tinancial contribution.
"APPEND DOGUMENTATION AS A T‘I’ACHMENT-4, N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. - N
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.] NOT APPLICABLE - PROJECT IS NOT NEW CONSTRUCTION

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of llinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floedplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.qov or www.lllinoisfleodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5 {http://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov).

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-6, LN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. ) -

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b}]

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
Part 1110 Classification: [Check one only.}
Substantive [ Part 1120 Not Applicable
[ Category A Project
O Non-substantive E Category B Project
DHS or DVA Project
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal
description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project’s classification as substantive gr non-substantive.

RAI Care Centers of Hllinois I, LLC proposes to discontinue its 20-station ESRD facility located at
821 Lincoin Highway, Fairview Heights, IL. In conjunction with this discontinuation we will
establish a replacement 20-station ESRD facility at 124 Regency Park Drive, O'Fallon, which is
2 miles or 5 minutes away from the current site. The new facility will be in leased space with the
interior to be built out by the applicant. This facility will be called Fresenius Medical Care
Regency Park after relocation.

Both locations are in HSA 11. As of the May 2012 station inventory update, there is a
determined need for 5 more stations in HSA 11. This project will have no impact on the
inventory since it involves only a refocation.

This project is “substantive” under Planning Board rufe 1110.10(b) as it entails the
discontinuation and establishment (relocation} of a health care facility that will provide in-center
chronic renal dialysis services.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by fease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. [f the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Preplanning Costs NfA N/A N/A
Site Survey and Soil Investigation N/A N/A N/A
Site Preparation N/A N/A N/A
Off Site Work N/A NiA N/A
Mew Construction Contracts N/A N/A N/A
Modernization Contracts 1,341,616 NiA 1,341,616
Contingencies 147,483 N/A 147,483
Architectural/Engineering Fees 145,000 N/A 145,000
Consulting and Other Fees N/A N/A N/A
{l\;:%\;?abétes )or Other Equipment (not in construction 450,000 N/A 450.000
Bond Issuance Expense (project related) N/A N/A NfA
l:a?; tI gct’?rest Expense During Construction {project N/A N/A N/A
Fair Market Value of Leased Space 1,088,032 N/A
or Equipment 302,550 1,390,528 1,390,528
Other Costs To Be Capitalized N/A N/A N/A
f;icg;isiﬁon of Building or Other Property (excluding N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 3,474,627 N/A 3,474,627
SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities 2,084,099 N/A 2,084,099
Pledges N/A N/A N/A
Gifts and Bequests N/A NfA N/A
Bond Issues (project related) N/A NfA N/A
Mortgages N/A N/A N/A
Leases (fair market value) 1,380,528 N/A 1,390,528
Governmental Appropriations N/A N/A NfA
Grants N/A N/A N/A
Other Funds and Sources N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL SOU RCES OF FUNDS 3,474,627 N,FA 3,474,627

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMEH'F—? iN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER

THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

e
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES ARD SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project (dyes [ No
Purchase Price: $
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
Bl Yes [JNo

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the targe
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit costis $ _125,409 .

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

[J None or not applicable ] Preliminary

| Schematics [] Final Working
Anticipated project completion date {refer to Part 1130.140}: 09/30/2014

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

(] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

l Pro;ect ob!rggtlon will oceur after permit |ssuance

i | APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS TTACHMENT:Q, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL OHDEH AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
 APPLICATION FORM, ) =

L — , i —

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
[ Cancer Registry
] APORS
(] Al formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted

. All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being

deemed incomplete.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Cost Space Requirements

APPLICATICN FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department's or area’s portion of the surrounding

circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square
Feet That Is:

Dept. / Area

Cost

Existing | Proposed

New
Const.

Modernized

Asls

Vacated
Space

REVIEWABLE

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited fiability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the soie general pariner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or
more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of _RA{! Care Centers of lilinois [ LLC *

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned alse certifies that the permit application fee required
lication is_sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

SIGNATURE &%NATURE

P’éﬁm Mello
PRINTED NAMFark Fawcett PRINTEDN

i Treasurer
Vice President & Treasure- Assistan

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarizatipi: Notarization:

Subsgrifed and sworn to before me Subscribed and swomn to before me
this day of 2012 this E day of cl.lgg 2012

)SWMUC@-ML

Signature of Notary Signature of Natary i

SUSAN H. CONSOLE
Notary Publlc
GOUMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
My Commisston Explres
Fobruary 1, 2013

Seal Seal

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
mianger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a parthership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general pariners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries {or the sole beneficiary when twe or
more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

*

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of _Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc..
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the llinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief, The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required

fort(h(z'hcatlon is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

SIGNA'Iél_JR{E , _ (S/GNATURE i
: ello
Mark Fawcett Bryan M
PRINTEmwa‘Eldem & Asst, Treasurer PN e | reasurcr
P
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization: :
Subscribed apdswom io before me Subscribed and swom to before me
this Ay of 2012 this_ ¥ dayof _Yune 2012
; Ju-oam b Covoots
Signature of Notary o Signature of Notary
Seal Seal SUSANH. CONSOLE
Notary Public
COMMONWEALTH OF mssacHuserrsq
*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant MY C°’“'“‘53'°“ Expires p

" ..rw-..--w.—-_r-
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION IIl. DISCONTINUATION

This Section is applicable to any project that invelves discontinuation of a health care facility or a category
of service. NOTE: If the project is solely for discontinuation and if there is no project cest, the remaining
Seclions of the application are not applicable.

Criterion 1110.130 - Discontinuation

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following informaticn:

GENERAL INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS
1. Identify the categories of service and the number of beds, if any that is to be discentinued.
2. l|dentify all of the other clinical services that are to be discontinued.
3. Provide the anticipated date of discontinuation for each identified service or for the entire facility.
4. Provide the anticipated use of the physical plant and equipment after the discontinuation occurs.

5. Provide the anticipated disposition and location of all medical recerds pertaining to the services
being discontinued, and the length of time the records will be maintained.

6. For applications involving the discontinuation of an entire facility, certification by an authorized
representative that all questionnaires and data required by HFSRB or DPH (e.g., annual
questionnaires, capital expenditures surveys, etc.) will be provided through the date of
discontinuation, and that the reguired information will be submitted no later than 60 days following
the date of discontinuation.

REASONS FOR DISCONTINUATION

The applicant shall state the reasons for discontinuation and provide data that verifies the need for the
proposed action. See criterion 1110.130(b) for examples.

IMPACT ON ACCESS

1. Document that the discontinuation of each service or of the entire facility will not have an
adverse effect upon access to care for residents of the facility's market area.

2. Document that a written request for an impact statement was received by all existing or
approved health care facilittes (that provide the same services as those being discontinued)
located within 45 minutes travel time of the applicant facility.

3. Provide copies of impact statements received from other resources or health care facilities
located within 45 minutes travel time, that indicate the extent to which the applicant's workload
will be absorbed without conditions, limitations or discrimination.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-10, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION Il - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
Ccosis.

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification
if applicable.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the applicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, whean applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorlzation shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. W, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the infarmation has been previcusly provided,
cite the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care ar well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. [See 1110.230(b} for examples of documentation.]

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modemization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included In the State Agency Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.
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ALTERNATIVES

1

Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:

Alternative options must include:

2}

3}

A) Proposing a project of greater or Jesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture ar similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project’s intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion
of the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financiat
benefits in both the short term {within one to three years after project completion) and
long term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE
IDENTIFIED THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE
ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved quaiity of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATICON AS ATTACHMENT-13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. DBocument that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and nat
excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or
operational needs, as supported by published data or siudies;

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/IDGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER_AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.
YEAR 1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE.
APPLICATICN FORNM. ) o
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: NOT APPLICABLE - THERE 1S NO UNFINISHED SHELLSPACE

Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage of the proposed shell space;

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF {ot be allocated to each
department, area or functicn;

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year pericd for which data are
available; and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of
future utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be
placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. a

ASSURANCES: NOT APPLICABLE — THERE IS NO UNFINISHED SHELL SPACE

Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categoaries of service
involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the
subject shell space) will be submitied; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed inte operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORIDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. ’ o h
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

G. Criterion 1110.1430 - In-Center Hemodialysis

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edltlon

1. Applicants preposing to establish, expand andfor modemize In-Center Hemeodialysis

must submit the following information:

2. Indicate station capacity changes by Service:
action(s):

Category of Service

# Existing
Stations

Indicate # of stations changed by

# Proposed
Stations

B 'n-Center Hemodialysis 20
a READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110.1430(b){1} - Planning Area Need - 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100
{formula calculation) X
1110.1430(b)2) - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area
Residents X X
1110.1430(b)(3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand -
Establishment of Category of Service X
1110.1430(b)(4) - Ptanning Area Need - Service Demand -
Expansion of Existing Category of Service N/A X
1110.1430(b)(5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility
X
1110.1430(c){1) - Unnecessary Duplication of Services
X
1110.1430(c)(2) - Maldistribution
X
1110.1430(c)(3) - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers
X
1110.1430(d)(1) - Deteriorated Facilities
N/A X
1110.1430(d){(2) - Documentation
N/A X
1110.1430{d}3} - Documentation Related to Cited Problems
N/A X
1110.1430(e) -  Staffing Availability
X X
1110.1430(f} - Support Services
X X X
1110.1430(g) -  Minimum Number of Stations
X
1110.1430(h) -  Continuity of Care
X
1110.1430(} - Assurances
X

4. Projects for relocation of a facility from one location in a planning area to another in the
same planning area must address the requirements listed in subsection (a)(1) for the
“Establishment of Services or Facilities”, as well as the requirements in Section 1110.130 -

“Discontinuation” and subsection 1110.1430(i) -

“Relocation of Facilities”.
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The foliowing Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

+ Section 1120.120 Availabitity of Funds — Review Criteria

* Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria

= Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection (a)

Vill. - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds
The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated tatal

project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following

sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a) Cash and Securities - statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
institutions, board resolutions) as to:

2,084,099

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the preject, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and
2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on any
asset from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;
b} Pledges ~ for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraising
N/A expenses, and & discussion of past fundraising experience.
c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dellar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and
N/A the estimated time table of receipts;
d) Debt ~ a statement of the estimated terms and conditions {including the debt time period,
1.380.528 variatle or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated repayment
~ schedule) for any interim and for the permanent financing propoesed to fund the project, including:
1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum

or evidence that the governmental unit has the autherity to issue the bonds
and evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting
anticipated;

2) For revence bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount
and interest rate;

3) For monigages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting {o the
expectation of making the tean in the amount and time indicated, including
the anticipated interest rate and any conditions assaciated with the
mortgage, such as, but not imited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon
payments, etc.;

4} For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property
and provision of capital equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and
conditions.
e) Governmental Appropriations - a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
N/A statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are to be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental

unit attesting 1o this intent;

Grants - a fetter frem the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and

N/A Rme of receipt;

Q) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
NEA used for the project.
3,474 B27 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

I APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-39," IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE ™
APPLICATION FORM. _ .

o gmsnggr, v ~
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IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viabilitg Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. All of the projects capital expendltures are completely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equilvalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for inforration to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-40, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATICN FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the
applicant's facility does not have facility specific financia! statements and the facility is a member of a health care
system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the
health care system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance
with the applicable hospital standards.

Provide Data for Projects Classified .| ‘Category A or Category B (last three years) Category B
as: ; BICCRRGA AT (Projected)
Enter Historical and/or Projected
Years:
Cusrent Ratio APPLICANT MEETS THE FINANCIAL VIABILITY WAVER
) CRITERIA IN THAT ALL OF THE PROJECTS CAPITAL
Net Margin Percentage EXPENDITURES ARE COMPLETELY FUNDED THROUGH
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization ‘;’:gggg‘g’b SOURCES, THEREFORE NO RATIOS ARE

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodolagy and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable ling item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance NOT APPLICABLE

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the
applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 41, N NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF
THE APPLICATION FORM. B S
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X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120,

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an autherized representative that attests to one of the following:

1

2)

That the total estimated project costs and refated costs will be funded in totat with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part
by borrowing because:

A} A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance
sheet asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for alt other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This critericn is applicable only to projects that invotve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notanzed
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1)

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;

That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, butis
more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with feasing a facility or equipment are fess costly than
constructing a new fagility or purchasing new equipment,

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the propoesed project and provide a
cost and square footage allocation for new construction andfor modernization using
the following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H
Department Total
{list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross S5q. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Canst. $ Mod. § Cost
New Mod. New Circ.” | Mod. Circ.™ {(AxC) {BxE} (G+H)
ESRD
Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation
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D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaties, benefits and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The appticant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs {(in current dollars per equivalent
patient day?} for the first full fiscal year at target ufilization but ng more than twe years following project
comptetion.

AFPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -42, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Xl Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the exient that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net senvices, if reasonably
¥nown to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also inctude all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the appficant. The
amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the
liincis Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methodology specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years pricr to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaidpatients. Hospital and
non-haspital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with the information reported each year to the
(linois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and "Inpatient and OQutpatient
Net Revenue by Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in tha following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patlents) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Dutpatient
Total
Charity {¢cost In dellars)
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Totad
MEDICAID
Medicaid {# of patlents) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
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Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Medicaid {revenug)
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total

- H

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-43, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM.

XIl. Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amaunt of charity care for the latest three gudited fiscal years, the
cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost te net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates ¢ne or more facilities, the reporting shall ke for each individual facility located in lllincis.
If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of
charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the
altocation of charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is nat an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment
from the patient or a third-party payer. {20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE
2008 2009 2010
Net Patient Revenue $5,971,539 $4,980,651 $4,144,704
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $9,155 $5.693 80
Cost of Charity Care $7,308 $5,278 $0

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-44, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTER%bHDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.
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After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the
attachments included as part of the project's application for permit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant/Co-applicant ldentification including Cenificate of Good
Standing 23
2 | Site Ownership 24-53
3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be
identified with the % of ownership. 54
4 | Qrganizational Relationships (Organizational Chart} Certificate of
Good Standing Etc. 55
5 | Flood Plain Requirements 56
6 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements 57
7 | Project and Sourges of Funds Itemization 58-59
8 | Obligation Document if required 60
9 | Cost Space Requirements 61
10 | Discontinuation 62-76
11 | Background of the Applicant 77-82
12 | Purpose of the Project 83
13 | Alternatives to the Project 84-85
14 | Size of the Project 86
15 | Project Service Utilization 87

16 | Unfinished or Shell Space

17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space
18 | Master Design Project

19 | Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions ]

Service Specific: i
20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU
21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation

22 | Acute Mental lliness

23 | Neonatal Intensive Care

24 | Open Heart Surgery

25 | Cardiac Catheterization

26 | In-Center Hemodialysis 88-117
27 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery
28 | General Long Term Care

29 | Specialized Long Term Care

30 | Selected Grgan Transplantation

31 | Kidney Transplantation

32 | Subacute Care Hospital Model

33 | Post Surgical Recovery Care Center

34 | Children's Community-Based Health Care Center

35 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
36 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital

37 | Clinicat Service Areas Other than Categories of Service
38 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services

Financial and Economtic Feasibility:

39 | Availability of Funds 118-154

40 | Financial Waiver 155-212

41 | Financial Viability i

42 | Economic Feasibility 213-217

43 | Safety Net Impact Statement 218-219

44 | Charity Care Information 220-227
Appendix 1 | MapQuest Travel Times 228-239
Appendix 2 | Physician Referral Letters & Patient Referrals 240-244
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File Number 0163269-8

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

RAI CARE CENTERS OF ILLINOIS I, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
HAVING OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON
SEPTEMBER 22, 2005, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN

GOOD STANDING AS A FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this  31ST

day of MAY AD. 2012

Authentication #: 1215201416 M

Authenticate at: http:/fwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
Certificate of Good Standing
;2 3 ATTACHMENT - 1




Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]
Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Sawvi Investment, inc.
Address of Site Owner; 2020 Formosa Drive, Troy, Il 62294

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: 124 Regenicy Park Drive, Q'Falion, IL 62269

Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership are
property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation attesting to
ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease or a lease.

Site Owner
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~ EXECUTION VERSION

LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT made and entered mto as of the date on which this Lease
is signed by the last of the parties hereto” (the “Effective’ Date™); by and bétween SAVVI
INVESTMENT, INC., an Dlinois corporation (hereinafiér called “Lessor”), and RAI.CARE
CENTERS OF ILLINOIS I, LLC, a Delaware hrmted hablllty comipany (hereinafter called
“Lessee”).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the sald Lessor desnres to dermse Iease and rent tinto the Lessee, and the
said Lessee desires to rent and lease from Lessor that approxmately 9,448 rentable square foot
space in the building (the “Building”) located on that certain’ parcel - -of 1and located at 124
Regency Park Drive, O’Fallon; Illinois 62269, ds more particularly described.as Tract A on the
Site Plan (the “Slte Plan") attached hereto as Exhiblt A (the “Land™), and all related.
improvements, including parking areas, drive lanes and curb cuts, with all appurtenant rights
thereto {collectively, the “Premiges™), pursuant to the terms of thm Lease. .

NOW, THEREFORE, for and. i in eonmderatlon of the mutual covenants, promises and
agreements herein contained, the Lessor does hereby demise, lease and rent unto the said Lessee
and the Lessee does hereby rent and: lease from the Lessor the Premises, under ‘and pursuant to
the following terms and condmons SR " e

1. Denuse.

Lessor hereby leases to Lesses, and ‘Lessee hereby leases from Lessor;' the Premises for
the term and upon the rental and the: covenants and agreements of the respective parties herein
set forth, _ , .

Lessee shall have the right in common with 'other tenants in the Bu1ld1ng to use any .
parking areas, driveways, sidewalks and other site improvements on the Land. - Lessee shall
always have sufficient access to the Prefises.and Lessor represents and warrants that 1 ingtoss and
egress to the Premises shall be provided by Regency Park Drive, a public road, as outlined on the
Site Plan. Lessor acknowledges and agrees that the. Preimses shall- include (i) not less than
thirty-seven (37) parking spaces for Lessee’s exclusive use as shown on the Site Plan, with, at
Lessee’s election (a) signage installed-by Lessee at its sole expense designating such exclusive
parking and (b) “RAI” stenciled in white paint by Lessor at its sole expense de51gnat1ng such
exclusive parking, (ii) all parking spaces not designated for Lessee’s exclusive use (not less than
ten (10) parking spaces) for Léssec’s non-exclusive use, as shown on thé Site Plan and- (iii) a
demgnated drop-off and pick-up area for patients in the location shown on the Site Plan, with -
signage installed by Lessee at its sole. expense. demgnatmg stch- area. Notw:thstandmg the
foregoing, in the event Tract B on the' Site Plan is developed to mclude addltlonal parking .
spaces, Lessee’s exclusive parking ared shall be increased (but iri no event decreased) to include
not less than two (2) parking spaces for each d:alysw Station located within the. Premlses ina

Site Owner - Lease for Space ;
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location mutually agreeable to Lessor and Lessee, with signage and stenciling as provided above.
Lessor represents and warrants that (i) there exists adequate ingress and egress to the Premises
supporting deliveries to the Premises by trucks up to fifty-three feet (53°) and (1i) the Building -
can support a covered entryway attached to the Buﬂdmg, to be constructed by Lessee, as outlined
on the Site Plan, - : , .

Lessor hereby acknowledges and agrees that it has provided to Lessee prior to the date
hereof (a) a title search, (b) true and correct copies of all declarations, restrictive covenants,
master deeds and all other encumbrances and matiers of record affecting the Land (each an
“Encumbrance”) In no event shall Lessor agree to any amendment or modification to any
present or future existing Encumbrance, or consent to any matter under any present or future
existing Encumbrance, that could adversely affect the rights, or increase the obligations, of
Lessee hereunder, including, without limitation, any action that (i) grants any easement that
could interfere with the operations of Lessee, or (ii) grants any access easements or other rights
of ingress or egress to third parties onto or through the Land. Lessor shall not alter or modify
any portion of the Land or Building, the parking area or the common areas associated with the
Building, or construct any improvements thereon, if such alteration, modification or
improvement could adversely affect Lessee's parking rights, use of or access to the Premises, or
visibility of the Premises from the public rights-of-way.

Notwithstanding anything 10 the contrary set forth herein, Lessee shall have the right to
cause the Premises to be re-measured using the exterior face of the exterior walls and the center
line of demising walls, but otherwise in accordance with the definition of “rentable area” in the
BOMA Standard Method for Measuring Floor Area in Office Buildings, ANSI/BOMA Z65.1-
1996 (the “BOMA Standard”). Such right shall be exercised, if at all, upon written notice by
Lessee to the Lessor given within sixty (60) days following the Lease Commencement Date, and
such re-measurement shall occur within sixty (60) days of the Lease Commencement Date (as
defined in Section 2(a) hereof. Following such re-measurement, the new number of rentable
square feet in the Premises shall become the rentable area of the Premises for all purposes
hereunder, Effective as of the date of such notice, Lessor and Lessee shall execute an agreement
confirming the same, and the amounts of Base Rent and any Additional Rent or other amounts
due hereunder that are based on the square footage or leasable area of the Premises shall be
established or revised accordingly subject to the following sentence. Notwithstanding anything
to the contrary in the foregoing, all rent, charges and allowances shall be reduced if the Premises
is measured smaller but not increased if the Premises is ineasured larger.

2, Lease Commggcemgm.

(a) . The “Lease Commencement Date” shall mean the date on which all of the
following occurs or has occurred: (i) Lessor delivers exclusive possession of the Premises to
Lessee with Lessor’s Work (defined below) complete and in broom clean condition, free of
debris, with keys to the Premises and with all building systems in good working order (the
“Delivery Date”); (ii) Lessor delivers final “as built” plans of the Premises with dimensions in
PDF, and CAD files for the Premises; (iii} Lessor has delivered a signed, recorded SNDA as
required by Section 22 hereof, and (iv) Lessee has received all necessary certificate of need
approvals from the applicable governmental entity or entities to operate a dialysis clinic in the
Premises. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, in the event the Delivery

Site Owner - Lease for Space 1
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Date has not occurred on or before the date that is One Hundred Twenty (120) days after the
Effective Date, Lessee shall have the right to terminate this Lease and Lessor shall immediately
refund the Prepaid Rent (defined below). Contemporaneously with the execution of this Lease,
Lessee shall deposit with Lessor the amount of $10,000 as prepaid rent (the “Prepaid Rent™), -
which amount shall be credited against the initial payments of Base Rent (defiried below) due
hereunder until such time as the Prepaid Rent is exhansted, provided that upon any default by.
Lessor in its obligations under this Lease prior to the Rent Commencement Date, the Prepaid
Rent shall be immediately refunded to Lessee. In the event Lessee exercises its right to
terminate this Lease due to Lessee’s failure to obtain any Consent (defined below) as provided
herein, and so long as Lessor is not otherwise in default of its obligations under this Lease,
Lessor shall be entitled to retain the Prepaid Rent.

(b)  Lessor shall complete, at its sole cost and expense, certain exterior and interior
alterations and improvements to the Building and the Premises in accordamce with the
specifications set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto (the “Lessox’s Work”).

{(b)  Lessee’s acceptance of the Premises upon the Lease Commencement Date shall
constitute Lessee’s acknowledgment that the Premises are in the cotidition required by this Lease
and that the Premises are accepted by Lessee in AS-IS, WHERE-IS condition, subject only to
latent defects and punch-list items and subject to the representations and warranties of Lessor
contained in this Lease,

3. Lessee’s Work.,

(a)  Promptly after delivery of -the Premises on the Lease Commencement Date,
Lessee shall proceed with diligence to construct and install the “Tenant Improvements” in the
Premises (“Lessee’s Work”™) at its expense, in accordance with the plans and specifications
prepared by Lessee’s architect (“Lessee’s Plans™). Lessee’s Plans shall be submitted for
Lessor’s approval within a reasonable time following the Lease Commencement: Date, which
approval by Lessor shall be provided within ten (10) days and shall not be unreasonebly
withheld; conditioned or delayed. If Lessor fails to provide approval within such ten (10) day
period, then Lessee’s Plans shall be deemed approved by Lessor. No material deviation from
such approved Lessee’s Plans shall be made by Lessee without Lessor’s prior written consent,
which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; provided, however that such
consent shall not be required for changes (i) required by any governmental authority or utility,
(ii) that do not adversely affect Lessor, or adversely affect the structural integrity of the Building,
the roof of the Building or any Building systems, or (iii) which merely substifute materials,
equipment, cabinets, fixtures, appliances, and/or floor coverings with items of similar or greater
quality, -utilify, value, and/or color. Lessor acknowledges and agrees that Lessee will have
complete discretion in finishing details. If Lessor shall fail fo respond to Lessee’s request for
approval to the changes in the plans for Lessee’s Work within five (5) business days following
I.essor’s receipt thereof, said changes shall be deemed approved by Lessor.

(b)  Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining all applicable permits required for the
Lessee’s Work. Throughout the process-of obtaining the necessary governmental permits and
approvals, Lessor shell act diligently and in good faith and shall cooperate with Lessee and with
governmental agencies in whatever manner may be reasonsbly required. The Lessee’s Work.

3
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shall be constructed in compliance with all applicable Laws in effect as of the date of
construction of the Lessee’s Work, and with the terms and conditions of the permits by which
construction is authorized. If Lessor reasonably determines that the Lessee’s Work is not in full
compliance with appliceble Laws and that remediation should occur as a result thereof, Lessee
shall use reasonable efforts to complete such remediation in a timely manner or as otherwise
required by applicable Law related thereto wh1ch remedlatlon shall be at Lessee’s sole cost and

expense.
4, Te_rm.

(a)  The initial term of this Lease (the “Initial Term’) shall commence on the Lease
Commencement Date and shall expire ten (10) years afier the Lease Commencement Date,
unless extended pursuant to Section 4(b) below by Lessee (the “Expiration Date”). Should the
Lease Commencement Date occur on a date other than the first day of the month, then the Term
shall be extended by the partial month and the Lease shall terminate on the last day of the month
following the Expiration Date. Rach twelve (12) .month period beginning on the Lease
Commencement Date or any anniversary thereof shall hereinafter be calléd a “Lease Year.”

(b)  Lessee shall have the right and option to renew the Initial Term of this Lease for
three (3) additional periods of five (5) years each (each a “Renewal Term”), next immediately
ensuing after the expiration of the Initial Term and the subsequent Renewal Term by notifying
Lessor in writing not less than one himndred eighty (180) days before the expiration of the
1mmed1ate1y preceding Initial Term or Renewal Term, as applicable, of the Lessee’s intention to
exercise its option to renew. In the event that Lessee so elects to extend this Lease, then, for
such Renewal Term, all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease shall continue to be,
and shall be, in full force and effect during such Renewal Term, except for the Base Rent, which
shall be paid as set forth below. As used herein, ‘.‘Term” shall mean the Initial Term and any
Renewal Term(s).

5. Base Rent.

(a)  Beginning on the date that is the earlier of (i} the date Lessee has compieted
Lessee’s Work and received all occupancy and use permits necessary to operate a dialysis clinic
in the Premises or (if) the date Lessee opens for business to the public in the Premises (the “Rent
Commencement Date”) and continuing for each month during each Lease Year thereafier,
Lessee shall pay monthly base rent (“Base Rent"’) as follows:

(i) Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 5(a)ii} below, monthly Base Rent
shall be Eight Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Three and 83/100 Dollars

($8,463.83) ($10.75 per square foot); and

(ii) - At the commencement of the fifth (5th) Lease Year of the Initial Term, and on the
first day of each five (5) year period of the Term thereafter, annual Base Rent for-
the next succeeding five (5) year period shall be increased by ten percent (10%) of
the prior five {5) year period’s Base Rent,

(b) Al payments of Base Rent shall be paid in advance by no later than the tenth |
(10th) day of each calendar month, such monthly installment to be prorated for any partial

4
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calendar month in which the Rent Commencement Date or Termination Date shall occur. All
amounts (unless otherwise provided herein), other than the Base Rent referred to above, owed by
Lessee to Lessor hereunder shall be deemed “Additional Rent”. As used herein, “Rent” shall
mean Base Rent and all Additional Rent. Within five (5) days after Lessor’s or Lessee's wriften
request fo do so, Lessor and Lessee shall execute & written Rent Commencement Date
Agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto 'as Exhibit C to memorialize the Rent
Commencement Date.

(c) Except as otherwise provided in this Lease, it is the intention of the parties that
the Lessor shall receive the Base Rent and Additional Rent in accordance with the terms of this
Lease without demand or setoff and free of all sales tax on rent, which sales taxes shall ‘oe paid
by Lessee if and when due under applicable law.

6. Use of Premises; Restricted Area. Lessee may occupy and use the Premises
during the Term for purposes of the operation of a dialysis facility and related heelthcare uses
and any other legal use, including, without limitation, administrative offices (the “Permitted
Use”). Lessor represents and warrants to Lessee that there are no covenants or restrictions
(public or private, including any zoning resfrictions or any matter of record) which will prevent
Lessee from the use and enjoyment of the Premises for the Permitted Use, and that the Premises
are in compliance with all applicable laws. Lessor at any time during the Term of this Lease
shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist Lessee in obtaining any zoning variances,
conditional use permits or other governmental approvals reasonably necessary for Lessee’s use
of the Premises for the Permitted Use. Lessee may operate during such days and hours as Lessee
may determine, without the imposition of minimum or maximum hours of operation by Lessor
and, subject to a Force Majeure Everit, Lessee ‘shall have access to the Premises, and may
operate, up to twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week, three hundred sixty-five
(365) days per year. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Lessee shall not be
obligated to conduct and carry on Lessee’s business in the Premises and shall not be obligated to
keep the Premises open for business or cause Lessee’s business to be conducted therein;
provided that, at the request of Lessor, Lessee shall keep the front extenor lights on at mghts,
weekends, and holidays.

Lessor agrees that neither Lessor nor any entity owned, operated, managed or
controlied by Lessor (a “Lessor Affiliate”), directly or indirectly, will own the realty or any
improvements thereon, or lease or permit the leasing, subleasing or occupancy of any premises
owned or controlled by Lessor or a Lessor Affiliate for the operation of a renal dialysis facility to
any party or entity or to-any party or entity whose priimary business is the provision of renal
dialysis services, within a radius of five (5) miles of the Premises. This covenant shall run with
the Land and shall be binding upon Lessor and its Affiliates, and their respective successors,
assigns and the successors in title to the Building. As used herein, “prithary business is the
provision of renal dialysis services” means that the gross revenue generated by dialysis services
exceeds eighty percent (80%) of the gross revenue for such entzty

7. Assignment/Subletting.- (s) Except as otherwise prov1ded below, Lessee shall not
assign this Lease, or sublet the Premises, or any part thereof (a “Transfer”), without Lessor’s
prior written consent which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.
Prior to any proposed Transfer requiring consent, Lessee shall first request Lessor’s consent in
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writing of its proposed Transfer at least t]nrty (30) days prior to the date of the proposed
Trensfer. Lessor shall respond to Lessee!s request for approval or disapproval of the Transfer
within ten (10} days after Lessor receives the request. Lessor’s failure to respond timely shall be
deemed an approval of the proposed Transfer.. Any assignment or subletting shall not release
Lessee of its liability under this Lease nor permit any subsequent asmgmnent, sublettmg orF other
prohibited act, unless speclﬁcally prowded in such consent . :

(b) Not\mthstandmg the foregomg, 1o consent of Lessor is reql.ured for Lessee to
assign or otherwise transfer (by operation of law or otherwise) this Léase or-any of its rights
hereunder, or sublease the Premises or any part thereof: (A) to any person, Corporation,
partnership or other entity which acquires all or substantially all .of the business or assets of *
Lessee or membership interests in Lessee, or (B) to any person, corporation, partnership or other
entity which controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Lessee or any parent of
Lessee; or (C) to any affiliate (within the meaning of such term as set forth in Rule 501 of
Regulation D under the Federal Securitics Act of 1933) of Lessee. Lessee and Lessee’s
transferee or assignee shall provide notice of any transfer or assignment descnbed in (A), (B), or
(C) of this subsection (b) (together with evidence. that such transfer meets the above
requirements) within ten-(10) days after the effective ‘date of siich transfer or assignment; No - -
such assignment or other transfer, in whole-or in part, of dny Lesses’s rights or obligations urider
this Lease shall be or operate as a release of Lessee hereunder and Lessee shall remain
responsible for performing Lessee’s obhgatlons hereunder Notmthstandmg the anything
contained herein to the contrary, Lessee may sublesse a portion of the Premises to a physician
for use for a medical practice or r any other healthcare use w1thout Lessor 8 consent.

-8. Operating Bxp_egses and UtlhtleS

(a) As used herein, “Operatlng Expenses mclude teasonable. costs incurred by
Lessor in connection with the operation,” maintenance and ~sepait. of the Building and Land,
including Insuranice Premiums (as defined below), -costs “of landscapmg, utilities, pamtmg,
striping, taxes, and lighting and a managément fee not o exceed 2% of gross revenues for the
Building. Beginning on the Lease Commencement Date, Lessee shall pay.its proportionate share
(based on square footage of the Premises compared to the ‘square footage of the Building) of
Operating Expenses and Taxes (as defined below). Lessee ghall pay suich portion of Operating
Expenses and Taxes in equal monthly installments at the time of the payment of Base Rent,
based on Lessor’s estimate of Taxes and -excess Operating Expenses for the calendar year.in
question. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Operating Expenses shall not exceed $18,896.00
($2.00 per square foot) durmg the 2013 calendar year (the "Operating Expenses Cap”), and
thereafter Operating Expenses for each year shall not exceed the Operating Bxpenses Cap, as.
increased by 3%- annuslly on a non-cumulative basis. - As used. herein, “Taxes” means all real
property taxes and assessments which are levied against the Land and Building; ‘provided that
Taxes shall not include any miunicipal, county, state or federal income tax, or any inheritance,
estate, succession, transfer, franchise, corporat:on, net income ot profit tax or. capntal levy
imposed upon Lessor. As used herein, “Insurance Premiums” means the cost of Lessor’s
commercial general liability and property msursnoe premiums for the Building that Lesgor is
required to maintain hereunder. . .
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(b)  Within ninety (90) days after the end of each calendar year, Lessor shall provide
Lessee with a statement of such actual Taxes and Operating Expenses for such calendar year,
which statement shall include all reasorniable supporting documentation, and Lessee, within thirty
(30) days, shall pay to Lessor any deficiency, which obligation shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Lease for two (2) years. If such statement shows an overpayment by Lessee,
then any surplus pald by Lessee shall be paid by Lessor to Lessee w1th1n thirty (30) days
following the date of such statement.

Except as otherwise speciﬁcally proyided in this Lease, the following items shall not be
included in Operating Expenses and Taxes; as applicable: (i) any expenses which under
generally accepted accounting principles would not be considered 2 maintenance, repair and/or
operating expense for a commercial office facility, (ii) costs associated with the operation of the
business of the entity which constitutes the “Landlord”, including, but not limited to, the legal
and accounting costs associated with the leasing, selling, syndicating, financing, mortgaging, or
hypothecating of any of Lessor’s interest in the Premises, (ili) costs of disputes between Lessor
and its employees, tenants or contractors, (iv) depreciation and/or amortization of the Premises,
(v) the cost of repairs or other work incurred by reason of fire, windstorm or other casualty paid
under insurance contiacts, (vi) Lessor's gross receipts taxes, personal and corporate taxes,
inheritance and estate taxes, franchise, gift or transfer taxes (vii) fines, penalties and. other
government imposed charges inclusive of interest and attorney fées incurred solely as a resuit of
Lessor’s failure to comply with legal or reguldtory requirements, (viii) costs relating to the
assessed valuation of the Premises including attorneys’ fees, except for any costs or expenses.
incurred by Lessor in challenging tax assessments at the request of Lessee; (ix) capital
expenditures except to the extent such expenditures reduce other Operating Expenses (but only
to the extent of the reduction of Operating Bxpenses) or are required as a result of changes in
applicable governmental requirements enacted after the Lease Commencement Date, in either
which case such capital expenditure costs shall be amortized by Lessor on a straight line basis
over the useful life of the expendltures and freated as Operating Expenses hereunder,
(x) construction defects or repairs due to the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Lessor or
its agents or others under its control, (xi) advertising or other promotional costs concerning the
Premises, (xii) ground lease payments, payments on mortgages or other debt obligations,
(xiii) any expense which is reimbursed by insurance, warranties or third parties; (xiv) wages,
salaries, or other compensation paid to any exccutive above the grade of building manager; (xv)
expenditures for compliance with any federal, state or local law, rule, ordinance or requirement
regarding the environment or hazardous waste and materials the violation of which existed at or
prior to the Lease Commencement Date hereof for which Lessee is not legally responsible; (xvi)
expenses of Lessor in curing defaults or performing work expressly provided in this Lease to be
borne at Lessor's expense, (xvii) Lessor's general corporate overhead and administrative
expenses; (xiii) penalties for late payment, including, without limitation, penalties for late
payment of taxes, equipment leases, and other amounts owing by Lessor; (xix) wages, salaries,
benefits and expenses attributable to off-site personnel; (xx) except for emergencies, rentals and
other related expenses, if any, incurred in leasing air conditioning systems, elevators or other
equipment ordinarily considered to be of a capital nature except equipnient the costs of would
have been included in Operating Expenses had Lessor purchased such equipment, but not any
amounts in excess of the Operating Expenses that Lessor would have incurred had Lessor
purchased such equipment, (xxi) initial costs of constructing the Building, the other
improvements, the Tenant Improvements and the parking lots, driveways, sidewalks,
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landscaping, courtyard and any other improvements on the Premises; (xxii} the costs of any
initial “tap fees” or one time lump sum sewer or water connection fees for the Premises; (xxiii)
costs or fees relating to the defense of Lessor’s title to or interest in the Premises, or any part
thereof; or any costs or expenses associated with-any sale or finance transaction; (xxiv) expenses
and costs of encapsulation, removal, or abatement of substances located on the Premises prior to
the Lease Commencement Date; (xxv) costs or expenses, including judgments, incurred in
commection with tort claims against Lessor (including the cost of investigating, defending, or
settling the same}, (xxvi} payments to subsidiaries or affiliates of Lessor for goods or services
which as a result of a non-competitive selection process materially exceed the cost of such goods
or services if obtained by parties unaffiliated with Lessor; and (xxvit) costs for the acquisition of
sculpture, paintings or other objects of art unless Lessee expressly consents in writing, (xxiv) any
costs for insurance that are not considered Insurance Preminms, and (xxv}) any charges otherwise
_payable by Lessee under another provision of this Lease (i.e. no duplicative charges). '

Notwithstanding any terms of this Lease to the contrary, othing contained in this Section
8 or elsewhere in this Lease shall obligate Lessee to pay (i) any income, profit, franchise, excise,
capital levy or similar taxes that may be imposed upon or assessed against Lessor with respect to
the Premises, the Rent or income derived from this Lease, under-gny law now in force or
hereafier enacted, or (ii) to pay any inheritance, estate, succession, gift or any form of property
transfer tax or indebtedness tax which may be assessed or levied against Lessor or any
mortgagee of Lessor (excluding any real estate assessments based on value after a transfer to a

third ‘party).

(¢c)  Utilities. Prior to the Lease Commencement Date, Lessor shall make available all
utilities necessary for operating the Premises for the Permitted Use, including gas, water and
electricity, which shall be seperately metéred to the Premises. - The Lessee shall pay for all
separatoly metered ut_111t1es, including, but not limited to, electric, gas, sewer and water (to the
extent such services are not Lessor's obligation hereunder) directly to the utility or other service
provider, including, but not limited to, costs related to security for the Premises. In the event
that at any time during the Term any utility or service becomes unavailable due to act or
omission of Lessor and causes closing of the Premises to the public, all rent and additional rent
shall abate during the continuance thereof,

(d)  Permitted Contests/Audit Right. The Lessee may contest the amount or validity
of any imposition described in this Section and paid by Lessee as an Operating Bxpense or Tax
by appropriate proceedings. The Lessor, at the Lessee’s sole expense, shall join in any such
contestation proceedings if any Law (as defined in Section 21 below) shall so require or as
reasonably requested by Lessee and execute or join in the execution of any instruments or
documents necessary in connection with such contest or proceedings. Within two (2) years of
the issuance of any statement under this Section, Lessee or its authorized representatives may, at
any reasonable time, upon seven (7) days prior written notice to Lessor, have the right to audit
Lessor’s business records relating to such statement for the period covered by the statement. In
the event the audit discloses an over-billing, Lessor shall pay such amount to Lessee. In addition,
if the audit discloses an over-billing of more than five percent (5%), Lessor shall reimburse
Lessee for the cost of the audit. Lessee’s right to audit shall be restricted to one (1) time per
calendar year and shall be completed within ninety (90) days after its notice to Lessor..
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(e) Payment In case any person to whom any sum is directly payable by the Lessee

under any of the provisions of this Lease shall refuse to accept payment of such sum from the

Lessee, the Lessee shall thereupon give written notice of such fact to the Lessor and shall pay
such sum directly to the Lessor, who shall thereupon pay such sum to such person,

9, Alterations/Signage. (a) Except for the Lessee’s Work, Lessee shall not make
any material alterations, or additions or leasehold improvements to the Premises (“Alterations™)
without Lessor’s prior written consent, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed, Notwithstanding the {brcgomg, Legsee shall have the right to make
Alterations to the Premises which do not exceed in cost Fifty Thousand Dotlars ($50,000.00)
without Lessor’s consent as long as such Alterations comply. with applicable laws, and do not
adversely affect the structural integrity of the Building or building systems installed by Lessor.
Lessee shall be entitled to remove from the Premises during the Term all Alterations, tenant
improvements constructed or installed by Lessee and any. and all furniture, removable trade
fixtures, specialized utilities installed by Lessee, equipment and personal property (“Fixtures”)
installed or located on or in the Premises provided that the Lessee substantially repair any and all
damage caused by the removal of the Fixtures, Lessee must remove all of Lessee’s furniture,
removable trade fixtures, equipmenit and personal property upon surrender of the Premises.
Subject to Section 27 herein, all Alferations and Fixtures that Lessee does not remove within ten
(10) days of the expiration of the Term shall be surrendered with the Premises at the termination
of this Lease. Nothing contained in the Lease or this Section 9 shall obligate Lessee in any way
to remove its Tenant Improvements or Alteratlons from the Pnermses after the expiration of the
Term. :

(b)  Lessee shall have the right to affix its standard signage, including a gign on the
exterior of the Building and/or a monument sign on the Land and any other signage permitted by
applicable law. In addition, Lessee shall have the right to install replacement signage on the
Building or anywhere on the Land. Lessor shall maintain all signage on the Bu:ldmg and Land
in good condition and repair.. All such signs shall comply with all apphcable zomng laws and.
shall be subject to City and/or County permits, if any.

10.  Lessec’s Property. To the maximum extent permitted by apphca‘ole laws, Lessor
hereby waives any rights which Lessor may have as to any of Lessee’s fumiture, fixtures,
equipment, signs and other porsonal property, and Lessee’s Work and any Alterations in the
nature of a Lessor’s lien, security interest or otherwise and further waives the right to enforce
any such lien or security interest. All such property shall remain the property of Lessee,

11.  Environmental. (a) Lessee, its agents, employees, contractors, invitees or’
licensees (collectively, “Lessee Parties”) shell not cause or permit any hazardous or toxic
substances, materials or waste; including, without limitation, asbestos (“Hazardous
Substances™) to be used, generated,: stored or disposed of in, on or under, or transported to or
from the Premises except in quantities similar to those quantities usually kept on similar
premises by others in the same business or profession as Lessee’s and in accordance with the
Permitted Use; provided, however, Lessee shall at all times and in all material respects comply
with all local, state, and federal laws, ordinances, rules, regulatlons and orders, whether now in
existence or hereafter adopted relating to Hazardous Substances or otherwise pertaining to the
environment (the “Environmental Laws”) and further provided that, in the event any .
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Enforcement Agency requires removal of any Hazardous Substance used, generated stored or -
disposed of in, on or under, or transpcrted to or from the-Premises by Lessee or Lessec Partles,
then Lessee shall cause to be removed from" the Premises -such ‘Hazardos- Substances in
accordance with good business practices -and Envirorimental Laws; such removal to be
performed by persons or entities duly qualified to handle and dispose of Hazardous Substances.

Without limiting the generslity of the foregding, Lessor acknowledges that the following
Hazardous Substances, among others, are required for Lessee’s business operations and agrees
that Lessee shall be permitted to store; use and dispose of the same in accordance with applicable
law: bleach, cidex, hibiclena, metroe1de, ‘hydrogen perox1de, and- formaldéhyde. Lessee shall
indemnify, defend, protect, and hold Lessor. harmless’ from ‘and- against any and 4ll claims,
liabilities, penalties, fines, Judgment, forfeitures;. losses, costs’ (including: clean-up costs) or
expenses {including reasonable attorneys’ fees, consultant’s fees and expert's fees) arising out of
Lessee's or Lessee’s Parties’ breach of its obligations under this Section or with tespect to any
Hazardous Substances located on or about the Premises by. Lessee. The foregomg indemnity
shall survive the explratlon ot earlier termination of this Lease for a period of twenty-four (24)
months.

®- Lessee sha]l promptly delwer to Lesser coptes of all notlces made by Lessee fo,or- .
-‘reeelved by Leesee ﬁ'oin: anifi state,» county, rﬁumclpal ‘or--other. agency’ Havitg Aathority: to 4 :"'ii.t?.»ﬁlié'i}f;ié
enforce any environmeéntal law or from'the Umted States Oeeupatlonal Safety and ‘Health - o
Administration (each “&n- “Enforcement Agency ") congeming - envifonmental matters or
Hazardous Substances. at the Premises. - Lessor shall promptly deliver to Lessee. copies of all
notices received by Lessor from any Enforcement Agency concemmg envnronmental matters or '

Hazardous Substances at the Prermses

(c) - Lessor represents and wan-ants to Lessee that, fo the best of Lessor 8 knowledge, _
after due i mqmry, there are no Hazardous Substances | on, in or about the Land or the Premises as
of the Effective Date. Lessor shall indemnify, defend, protect, and hold Lessee harriiless from’
and against any and all clalms “liabilities, penalttes, ﬁnes, Judgment forfeitures, losses, costs
(including clean-up costs) or expenses (including Yéasonable’ attorneys’ fees, consultant’s fees-
and expert’s fees) arising out of any violation of an. anromnental Law or the presence ¢ of any
Hazardous Substances omn, in or ahout the Land or. Premlses, unless cdused by Lessee or Lessee .
Parties. The foregoing mdemmty shall survwe the expu'atlon or earller termination of this Lease.

t"
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12.  Damage to Building by Fire or Casualty. In the event the Building shall be
damaged by fire or other casualty during the Term, wheteby the same shall be rendered

untenantable, then

(a)  if the damage to the Building is so substantial (“Substantial Damage”) that
either: (1) the repair, restoration or rehabilitation of the Building (excluding the Lessee’s Work)
cannot reasonably be expected to be substantlally completed within one hundred eighty (180)
days from the date of such Substantial Damage, or (2) so much of the Building is destroyed or
rendered untenantable by such fire or other casvalty ag to make use of the Premises as a dialysis
facility operating at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the certified dialysis stations operating
prior to the fire or casualty impracticable for a period of one hundred twenty (120) days, then
Lessee may elect to terminate this Lease by giving written notice to the other party within thirty
(30) days after the expiration of such one hundred twenty (120) day period, or

(b)  if not so terminated, subject to and to the extent of receipt and availability of
insurance proceeds, Lessor shall proceed with all due diligence to repair, restoré or rehabilitate
the Premises (except for the Lessee’s Work), at Lessor’s expense and Lessee shall proceed with
all due diligence to restore the Lessee’s Work, at Lessee’s expense, in each case to substantially
its former condition immediately prior to such daimage or destruction, in which event this Lease
shall not tenminate; provided, however, if insurance proceeds are not sufficient to restore the
Building (except the Lessee’s Work) to their prior condition and Lessor does not contribute the
deficiency, then Lessee may terminate this Leage by written notice to Lessor. .

If the Building is rendered wholly or partially untenantable by fire or other casualty, there
shall be an equitable abatement of Rent due the Lessor by the Lessee during the period (the
“Abatement Period”) from the date of fire or other casualty until the date that is the earlier of (i)
the date on which the Building is fully téstored, or (if) ninety (90) days after Lessor completes
restoration of the Building (except the Lessee s Work) such that Lessee 8 restoration work can
commence. _ f ‘

In the event that the Building is partially damaged by fite or casualty, but such damage is
not Substantial Dainage, then Lessor, subject to and to the extent of receipt and availability of
insurance proceeds, shall immediately proceed with all due diligence to repair and restore the
Building (except the Lessee’s Work) and Rent shall abate in proportion to the untenantability of
the Premises during the Abatement Period; provided, however, if insurance proceeds are not
sufficient to restore the Building (except the Lessee’s Work) to its prior condition and Lessor
does not contribute the deﬁmency, then Lessee may terminate tlns Lease by written notice to
Lessor.

Lessee’s insurance proceeds related to any tenant 1mj)mvejnents (mcludmg the Lessee’s
Work or other items shall be used by Lessee solely to restore such tenant mprovements or other
1tems

13. - Eminent Domain. If the entire Premises shall be taken or condemned for any
public or quasi-public use or purpose, the Term shall end upon, and not before, the date of the
taking of possession by the condemning authority, and without apportionment of the award.
Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor, Lessee’s interest in such award, if any. Lessee shall be entitled

1n
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to pursue a separate award whrch compensates ‘Lessee for the unamornzed cost of the Lessee s'
improvements and refocation - expenses. Rent shall be apportroned 85 of the date of such
termination, Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, Lessee shall have no right to share i in .
the condemnation award or in afty judgment for damages caused by such takmg or the change or .
restriction of access, If there is a taking ot ‘condemntion of a Substantial Part of the Building
(as defined below) or permanent lack of access to the Premises, then Lessor or Lessee shall have
the right to terminate this Lease by giving the other party not less than thirty (30) days written
notice prior to the date of cancellation desrgnated in the notice but in any event not later than
sixty (60) days after the date such party is notified of such taking or condemnatron or permanent .
lack of access, in which.event Rent shall be. apportioned as of the date of such termination. A°
taking or condemnation of a “Substantial Part” ‘of the Burldmg is| ‘defined as such a taking or
condemnation as renders rmpractlcahle ‘the use of, the Bulldmg as 4 dialysis faclhty operating at
least seventy-five percent (75%) of the cerfified dlslysrs stations operatmg prior fo such tak:mg or
condemnation. No money or-other consideration shall be payable by Lessor to Lessee 0t Lessee
to Lessor for the nght of cancellation, In the-event.of any takmg or condemnatlon involving the
Building or lack of access to or from the Premises which does not result in the termination of this
Lease, Lessor shall, subject to and t6 the extent 6f receipt and avmlabrlrty of the condemnation
award, restore the Premises to- substantlally the condition prior to such taking with all due
diligence and Rent shall abate in proportion:to the untenantability of the Premises during the
period of restoration and, to. the extent: ‘appropriate, for the remainder ‘of the Term; provided,
however, if condemnation- proceeds-are not “suffiGient to restore -the Premlses t0- their prior
condition and Lessor does, not contnhute to the deﬁcrency, then Lessee may termmate thrs Lease '
bywnttennotlceto Lessor L AR L Sl

Rrght of Ent_rx bx Lesso The Lessor, or any of 1ts agents shall ha‘ve the nght fo
enter sald Pretmses upon reasonable and at least twenty-four {24) hours priot notice (except in -
cases of emergency, in- which case any reasonable notice is sufﬁclent) to examine. same and
perform any maintenance and repairs a$ reqiiired herein or deemed necessary by Lessor, and -
upon reasonable and at least tiventy-four (24) Hours prior notice to, exhibit said Premises, and to '
put or keep upon the doors or windows thereof a notice “FOR REN’I"’ at any time within one
hundred eighty (180) days before. the explratlon of this’ Lease, and ‘Léssor agrees to use -
commercially reasonable efforts to mmmuze mterference wrth Lessee 8 use of the Prermses

Any work done by Lessor to the Premrsu sha]] be performed durmg hours that Lessee is.
not open for business {except in emergencles) unless Lessee, ird the exercise of its reasonable -
discretion, otherwise agrees. Any restoration work ‘or alteration work at the Premises which is
necessitated by or results from Lessor 8 entry shall be performed by Lessor at its expense

Noftwithstanding any of” Lessor 8 nghts to enter the Premrses pursuant to the terms of this
Lease, Lessor shall not cause Lessee to in any way: vrolate any laws, regilations or ordinances .
intended to protect the rights and privacy ‘of Lesse’s patients, including those relating to any and
all patient records, which at sy fime, Lessee shall be able to seeure m Iocked storage umts of
remove from the Premrses ' c - : : .

'15.  Indefnni gg Lessee hereby agrees to mdemmfy and hold Lessor harmless from and
against any cost, damage, clarm, hablhty or expense: (mcludmg attorneys’- fees) incurred by or
elalmed against Lessor a§ a resilt of any breach of thls Lease or neghgent act of the Lessee inor
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on the Premises. Lessor hereby agrees to mdemmfy and hold Lesses hsnnless from and against
any cost, damage, claim, liability or expense (including attorneys fees) incurred by or claimed
against Lessee as a result of any bredch of this Lease or neghgent act of the Lessor or its agents
or representatives in or on-thé Premises. The indemnity set fonh in this Seetlon shell survive.the
expiration of the Term for a perrod of twelve (12) months T -

16,  Defanlt and Remedre .

(a) Lesses Default 'I‘he followmg shall be events of default (a “Default”) by the_
Lessee: - . . _ '

(1)  Lessee fails to pay Rent hereunder when due and. such Rent remains due and
unpaid for ten (10) days followmg Lessee s reeerpt of written notice of such
default from Lessor to Lessee, o S

(i)  Lessee defaults m the performenee of any other prOVlSlOn of t}us Tease and such
'default is riot. cured. within thirty (30) days. followmg Lessee S reeerpt of written
netice frori Léssor Specrfymg -such. default: (unless suchi default is not reasonably -
capable of heing cured within such thlrty (39). day penod and Lessee is dlllgently
- proseeutmg such:i cure 1o compleuon), 2 ,_.j,w , o _

(iii)  should Lesseo be adJudged banlcrupt or should the Lessee make an assxgnment
for the benefit of its eredrtors, or should a receiver be appointed for the said
Lessee -and such reeewer ls not drsnnssed wrthm srxty (60) deys of his
appointment. cr

(b) Lessor 8 Remedres In the event of Lessee 8 Default, Lessor may take any or all _
of the followmg aenons ceoe , e : '

(i) petform on behalf of and at the expense of Lessee any obhgetron of Lessee under. :
this' Lease which Lessee ‘has failed to perform, without prior hotice to Lessee, the °
total cost of which, together with interest thereon at. the rate of interest equal to
the prime rate. of interest as published by The Wall Street Journal from time to
time, plus four percent (4%) pei ahnum, with each change in such prime rate
being effective on the date such change is published (the | “Default Rate”) from

 the date of such expendlture, shall be deemed Addltlonal Rent s.nd shall be
payable by Lessee to Lessor upon demand R o

s -

(i) with or W1thout termmatmg thrs Lease and the tenancy created hereby, re-enter
the Premises. upon court, action of summary. proceedmgs, femove Lessee and all - -
- other persons dnd pr0perty from ‘the Premisés; and store any such property. in a
publre warehouse or elsewhere at the costs of and for the account of Lessee, all
without resort to legal process and without Lessor being deemed guilty of trespass
or beeommg hable for any loss or damsge oecasroned thereby,

(iii)  with or wrthout termmatmg this Lease, relet the Premrses o ‘any part thereof upon |
such term of. terms (whlch may be for'a term extendmg beyond the term of this {

e
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Lease) at such rental or rentals and upon such other terms and conditions as
Lessor in its reasonable discretion may deem advigable;

(iv)  enforce any provision of this Lease or any other agreement between the parties by
injunction, temporary restraining order or other similar equitable remedy, to
which Lessee hereby expressly consents and agrees; and/or

(v)  exercise any other legal or equitable right or remedy whlch it tﬁ&y have by law.

No reentry or takmg possesmon of the- Pren'nses by Lessor shall be construed as an
election on its part to terminate this Lease unless a written fiotice of such intention be given to
Lessee or unless the termination thereof be decreed by a court of competent jurisdiction. All of
Lessee’s obligations hereunder to pay Base Rent and/or Additional Rent shall survive any such
termination. Notwithstanding that the Lessor may have re-leased the Premises without
termination, Lessor may at anytime thereafter elect fo terminate this Lease for any previous
Default. If the Premises or any part thereof ig re-leased, Lessor shall not be liable for, nor shail
Lessee’s obligations hereunder be diminished by reason of; any failure by Lessor to relet the
Premises or any failure by Lessor to collect afy Rent due upon such reletting. No action taken
by Lessor under the provisions of this Section shall operate as a waiver of any right which Lessor
would otherwise have against Lessee for the, Rent hereby reserved or otherwise, and Lessee shall
at ell times remain responsible to Lessor for-any loss and/or damage suffeted by Lessor by
reason of any Default Lessor shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate its damages due to a
Default,

() Damages. Upon any Default, Lesses shall remain lisble to Lessor for the
following amounts: (1) any Rent of any kind-whatsoever which may have become due with
respect to the period ini the Term which has ‘already expired; (ii). all Rent which becomes due
during the remainder of the Term, less any rents obtained by Léssor as a result of Lessor’s re-
letting the Premises; and (iii) all costs; fees and expenses incuired by Lessor in pursuit of its
remedies hereunder; including but not limited to reasonable aftorneys’ fees and court costs. All
such amounts shall be due and payable immediately upon demand by Lessor (and as to
subsection (ii) above, as such Rent becomes due) arid shall bear interest at the Default Rate until
paid. Lessor shall affirmatively list the Premises with its broker as available for leage (to the
extent Lessor’s contract with such broker-does not already apply to all vacant space at the
Building), and Lessee shall receive a reduction and reimbursement of all such amounts which is
equal to the amount of any rent actually received from others to whom. the Premises may be
rented during the remainder of the original Term, but in no event shall Lessee be entitled to
amounts collected by Lessor in excess of the amounts due under this Lease.- :

(d)  Lessor Defanlt and Lessee Remedies. Subject to the terms and provisions herein
below, and in addition to any other remedy expressly available to Lesses pursuant to this Lease -
or at law or in equity, should Lessor fail to perform any term or covenant under this Lease (each
and any such failure being herein sometimes referred to as a “Lessor Default”) and if any such
Lessor Default shall not be cured and shall accordingly be continuing ten (10) days following
written notice by Lessee to Lessor of such Lessor Default (in the event that such Lessor Default
consists of a breach or failure by Lessor to'pay any monetary amount due and payable by Lessor
to Lessee) or thirty (30) days following written notice by Léssee to Lessor of such Lessor Defaylt
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(in the event such default consists of a breach or failure by Lessor to comply with any obligation
of Lessor other than one involving the payment of a monetary amount payable by Lessor to
Lessee hereunder), then, in either such event, Lessec shall have the option of reasonably
remedying such Lessor Default and, in connection therewith, incurring reasonable expenses for
the account of Lessor, and any and all such sums expended or obligations incurred by Lessee in
connection therewith shall be peud by Lessor to Lessee within thirty (30) days following receipt
of invoice from Lessee with copies of fully paid receipts; provided, that if the non-monetary
Lessor Default in question i$ not reasonably capable of being cured within the thirty (30) day
period set forth above, such thirty (30) day period shall be extended for an additional pericd not
to exceed a total of sixty (60) days as long as Lessor continues to use diligent and commercially
reasonable efforts to cure such Lessor Default.

17.  Insurance. (a) Lessee's Insurance. Lessee shall keep its personal property,
equipment, trade fixtures and the Tenant Improvements insured for full replacement value
against loss by fire and casualty, under an ail risk policy with extended coverage endorsements,
In addition thereto, Lessoe shall-obtain and keep in: force ‘with respect to ‘the Premises -
commercial general liability insurance in a minimum -amount of One Million Dollars -
($1 000,000) per claim and Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) in the aggregate for both Hodily
injury and property damage. Lessee may carry any insurance required by this Lease under a
blanket policy as long as such blanket policy prowdes for covérage of not less than $50,000,000 .
in the aggregate. :

Each liability insurance policy described above (except employer’s liability policies)
. shall name Lessor as an. addmonal insured. All such policies shall (i) be issued by insurers
licensed to do business in the state in which the Premises is located; and (ii) be writtén on an -
occurrence (and not claims-made) basis. Upon Lessor’s request, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor
certificates of insurance reasonably satxsfaetory to Lessor for each such po]lcy tequxred gbove.
Within fifteen (15) days prior to the date any such policy expires, Lessée shall deliver to Lessor a
certificate of renewal evidencing replacement of the policy. The limits of insurance required by
this Lease or as otherwise carried by Lessee shall not limit the liability of Lessee or relieve
Lessee of any obhganons under this Lease, except to the extent provided in any waiver of
subrogation contained in this Lease. Lessee shall have sole responsibility for payment of all
deductibles, except where the insured event is caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of
Lessor or Lessor’s agents or representatlves :

(b)  Lessor's Insurance 'Lessor-covenants-and agrees to keep the Building, including
the Premises, insured against loss by fire and casualty, under a special form property insurance
policy for full replacemént value. In addition thereto, Lessor shall obtain and keep in force with
respect to the Building, including the Premises, commercial general liability insurance in a
minimum amount of One Miltion Dollars ($1,000,000) per claim and Three Mﬂl:on Dollars
{$3,000,000) in the aggregate for both bodily injury and property damage.

Each liability insurance pohcy described dbove (except employer’s llabnhty policies)
shall name Lessee as additional insured, All such policies shall (i) be issued by insurers licénsed
to do business in the state in which the Prermses is located; (i) be written on an occurrence (and
not claims-made) basis and (iii) be at compstitive rates. Upon Léssee’s request, Lessor shall
deliver to Lessee certificates of insurance reesonably satlsfactory to Lessee for each such policy

15
Site Owner - Lease for Space

39 - ATTACHMENT - 2




required above. Within fifteen (15) days prior to the date any such policy expires, Lessor shall
deliver to Lessee a certificate of renewal evidencing replacement of the policy. The limits of
insurance required by this Lease or as otherwise carried by Lessor shall not limit the liability of
Lessor or relieve Lessor of any obligations under’ this Leass, except to the extent otherwise
provided herein.

18.  Subrogation. Each of the parties hereto hereby releases the other and the other’s
partners, agents' and employees, to the extent of each party’s insurance coverage required
hereunder, from any and all liability for any loss or damage which may be inflicted upon the
property of such party even if such loss.or damage shall be brought about by the fault or
negligence of the other party, its partners, agents or employees; provided, however, that this
release shall be effective only with respect to loss or damage oceurring during such time as the
appropriate policy of insutance shall contain a clause to the effect that this release shall not affect
said policy or the right of the insured to recover thereunder. If any policy does not permit such a
waiver, and if the party to benefit therefrom requests that such & waiver be obtained, the other
party agrees to obtain an endorsement to its insurance policies permitting such waiver of
subrogation if it 1s cormnerclally available and if such policies do not provide therefor, If an
additional prennum is charged for such waiver, the party benefiting therefrom, if it desires to
have the waiver, agrees to pay to the other the amount of such addmonal premivm promptly
upon being billed therefor

19.  Repairs and Maintenance. Lessor, at its sole cost and expense, shall maintain and
keep in good order and repair and make any necessary replacements to the parking areas,
landscaping and any irrigation system(s) related to the Premises, and also all structural elements,
including, without limitation, the roof, roof membrane, roof covering, concrete siab, footings,
imbedded utility lines (including electrical wiring and plumbing) of the Building, windows,
exterior doors, exterior walls of the Building, foundation end structural components of the
Building, the sprinkler system in the Building, and all electrical, gas, water, HVAC and ali other
plumbmg and mechanical equipment servicing the Building and any appliances furnished by
Lessor in the Building and all common areas on the Land

In the event Lessor fails to promptly make or commence and dihgent]y prosecute any
repairs or replacements or maintenance required to be made by Lessor undeér this Lease, Lessee
at its option, afler Léssor’s failure to cure such default on or before thirty (30) days a;&er notice
to Lessor or, if such default cannot be cured within such thirty (30) day period, Lessor-shall fail -
to commence to cure such default with all due diligence before the expxrat:on of such thirty (30)
days and diligently pursue the same to completion, may make the repairs or replacements and
perform the maintenance for and on'behalf of Lessor, and may offset the cost thiereof against
Base Rent coming due. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if an emergency exists, Lessee may take
reasonable steps to protect its property, and make the repairs and replacements and perform the
maintenance for and on behalf of Lessor without notice to Lessor.

Except for Lessor’s obligations set forth above, Lessee agrees to maintain and repair all’
interior portions of the Premises (iiicluding interior doors and interior plate glass. and any
specialized utilities installed by Lessee) in good and clean condition, order and- repair, as
reasonably determined by Leésee, exceptirig only reasonable wear and tear arising from the use
thereof and damage by fire or other casualty; provided, that Lessor shall be re'sponsible for
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repairing and replacing. any damage to- the Prem1ses caused by the wxllful acts or neghgence of
Lessor or its agents subject to the provrsrons of Sectron 18 ahove

Lessee shall (a) use connnerclally reasonable efforts to bond .or have released any
mechanics’, materialman’s or other lien filed or claimed against any or all of the Land or the .
Premises or any other property owned. or: leased by ‘Lessor: by ‘reason-of labor or materials
provided for Lessee or any of its contractors or. subcontractors, or otherwise. afising ‘out of
Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises; and (b) defend; indemnify and hold harmless Léssor
against-and from any and all liability or expense (mcludmg but not hmrted to attomeys fees)
mcurred by Lessor on account of any such hen or c]arm - : :

In the event Lessee fails to.use conunerclally reasonable eﬁbrts to make or commence
and diligently prosecute any repairs or replacements, or perfonn any alteration or maintenance
required to be made by Lessee under this Leage, Lessor at its option and at Lessee’s expense,
except as otherwise provnded herein, after Lessee’s failure to cure such default on or before thirty
- (30) days after notice to Lesseg or, if such default cannot’ be. cured: within such thirty (30) day.
period, Lessee shall fail to’ comimence. to, cure such’ default with all due drhgence before the
expiration of such thirty (30) days.and. drhgently putsue the same:to completron, may mgke the’
repairs or replacemenis and perform the migintenance for and on behalf of Lédsee, and Lessee
shall, on or before ten {10) days after receipt of. nottce, pay.to Léssor: all teasonable cost and
expense. incurred by Lessor:in making ' such’ _repairs, and replacements and - performmg such
maintenance. Notmthstandlng the foregomg, if an emergericy exists, Lessor may make the
repairs and replacements and perform the rnamtenance for and on behalf of Lessee wnthout. ,
notice to Lessee, . . ;

-~ 20.  Brokers. Lessor and Lessee each represent to the other that it has had no dcalmgs
with any real estate broker of agent-in connection with the negonatron of this Lease ‘other than
OGA Realty, LLC, as Lessee '8 representatlve (“Lessee 5. Broker") “and BARBER/Murphy.
Group Inc., as Lessor’s represcntahvc (“Lessor’s ‘Broker”). . Afiy and. all payments due to
Lessee’s Broker and Lessor’s Broker in connéction: with the negottanon and execution. of this
Lease shall be ‘paid in.full by Leéssor in accordénce with a separate agreement between the
parties. Each party hereto. shall mdemmfy the other agamst any maccuracy in such. party 8
representation contamed in thls Sectlon _

21. Comphance wrth Law . Lessee hereby agrees fo comply W1th all applicable
federal, state and lacal laws, ordma.nces ‘rules and-regulations (“Laws”) with respect to Lessee’s
manner of use of the Premises throughout the Term; provided, liowever, that Lessee shall onily-be
responsible for the cost arid expense of such compliance to°the extent it relates to the interior of
the Premises, and in all ‘events, ‘Lesses shall not be respons1b1e for. eomphance that requires -
structural changes, which are the respon31b111ty of Lessor e 'E- - o :

Lessor shall cauge the: Prermses to’ comply wrth all apphcable Laws, mcludmg the
Americans with Disabilities Act: (the “ADA”) Lessor represents and warrants to Léssee that (i)
the Base Rent was determined in arms’ length negotiations.and is “within fair market value; (if)
the terms and -conditions of this Lease are on commercially reasonable térms; -and _(iii) .to
Lessor’s knowledge, the Land is in. comphance with all apphcable Laws, including the ADA, as
of the Effective Date Notwrthstandmg that the foregomg representatton is ltrmted to I_essor s
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knowledge, if after the Effective Date, Lessee reasonably detérmines that the Land is:not in
compliance with applicable Laws and that remediation of the Land should occur as a result
thereof, Lessor shall use reasonable efforts to complete such remediation in a timely manner or
as otherwise required by appliceble Law related thereto, which remediation shall be at Legsor’s -
sole cost and expense, .

22, §ubordmat10n, Leasehold Mo;tgag This Lease shall be subject and subordinate
to the lien, oper&txon and effect of each mortgage, deed of trust, ground lease and/or other similar
instrument covering any or all of the Premises or the Land, and each renewal, modification or
extension thereof (each of which referred to as & “Mortgage”), all automatically and without the
necessity of any further action by either party hereto, provided, however, that Lessor delivers to
Lessee a customary Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement in the form -
attached hereto as Exhibit D (“SNDA™), executed by Lessor and the beneficiary under any such
Mortgage (referred to as a “Mortgagee”). In the event the Mortgegee or a purchaser at
foreclosure succeeds to the interest of Lessor hereunder through foreclosure or otherwise, such
Mortgagee or a purchaser shalt honor this Lease and not disturb Lessee in its possession of the
Premises except upon Lessee’s Defailt and such Mortgagee or purchaser and Lessee shall enter
into an agreement consistent with the foregoing, in substance reasonably acceptable to Lessee.
Without limitation, Lessor shall deliver to Lessee. a SNDA in.the form attached hereto from
National Bank, as Lessor’s lender. In addition, Lessee shall attorn to any such Mortgagee and
agrees that such Mortgagee shall not be liable to Lessee for any defauits by Lessor under this
Lease or for any otlier event occurring prior to such Mortgagee’s succeeding to the interest of
Lessor hereunder. Lessee shall, within ten (10) days after request by Lessor of any Mortgages,
execute, acknowledge and deliver such further instrument as is reasonably requested by Lessor
or any Mortgagee and is acceptable to Lessee, to acknowledge the rights of the parties described
in this Section and providing such other information and certifications as is reasonably requested,
Any Mortgagee may at ahy time subordinate the lien of its Mortgage to the operation and effect
of this Lease without obtaining Lessec s consent thereto, in which event this Lease shall be.
deemed to be senior to such Mortgage without regard to their respéctive dates of executlon, '
delivery and/or recordation among the land records. of théjurisdiction in which the Property is
located, Lessor hereby represents that the only mortgage currently encumbering the Building or
the Land is in favor of Natlonal Bank and that the Land is not- currently subject to any ground
lease.

Lessor consents to the grant by Lessee of a m'ortgage or deed of trust, or other proper
instrument (a “Leasehold Mortgage”), as security for any debt, in favor of an unaffiliated third
party lender, on Lessee’s interest in this Lease, and Lessee’s interést in any unprovements or
equipment located on the Premises. Any transfer of the Lease or the Lessee’s interest in the
Premises to the leasehold mortgagee or its nominee through exercise of the power of sale or -
similar remedy under the Leaseliold Morigage shall be deemed to be consented to by Lessor.
Lessor shall accept performance by such leasehold mortgagee of this Lease with the same force
and effect as though timely performed by Lessee. Upon Lessee’s request, Lessor shall-execute
an agreement in favor of such leasehold mortgagee consenting to a leasehold mortgage, provided
that such consent is in a form reasonably satisfactory to Lessor.

23.  Quiet Enjoyment. Lés‘szae, upon paying the Rent and performing all of the terms
and covenants of this Lease on Lessee’s part to be kept, observed, and performed, shall quietly
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have and enjoy the Premises during the Term, and Lessee’s-use and enjoyment of the Premises
shall not be disturbed by any Morigagee as provided for in Section 22 above.

24.  Memorandum .of Lease. At Lessee’s request, Lessor shall enter into a
memorandum or notice of this Lease in customary form and substance and in recordable form
and reasonably satisfactory to Lessor and Lessee, and Lessor shall be responsible for the
preparation thereof and the cost and obhgatlon of recording the same.’

25.  Notices. All notices, demands and requests wlnch may be or are required to be
given by either party t party to the other shall be in writing and shall be either (a} sent by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or {b) deliveréd, by hand, or (c} sent by
overnight courier such as Federal Express.. All notices to Lessor should be addressed to Lessor
at Savvi Investment, Inc., 2020 Formosa Drive, Troy, Illinois 62294, or at such other place as’
Lessor may from time to time designate in written notice to- Lessee. All notices to Lessee shall
be addressed to Lessee at /o Renal Advantage, Inc,, 1550 W. McEwen Drive, Suite 500,
Franklin, Tennessee 37067, Attn Jon Sundock, with a copy to Bass, Berry & Sims PLC, 150
Third Avenue South, Suite 2800, Nashville, Tennessee, 37201, Attn: John 8. Seehorn, or to any
such other place as Lessee may from time to time designate in written notice to Lessor. All
notices, demands and requests which shall be served upon Lessor and Lessee in the manner
aforesaid shall be deemed sufficiently served or given for all pm-poses hereunder.

26. Estopgel Certificate. Lessor and Lessee shall from time to time; but in'no ) event
more than twice in any twelve (12) month period, withiin ten (10) business days after request by .
the other party or any mortgagee or either party, exccute, acknowledge and deliver to the
_ requesting party (or, at request, to any ex1st1ng or prospective purchaser,. assigree or mortgagee)
a written certification (a) that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or, if there
has been any modification, stating the nature of. such. modification); (b) as to the dates to which
the Base Rent and any Additional Rent have been paid; (c) as to the amount of any prepaid Rent
or any credit due to Lessee hereunder;- -(d)-that-Lessee hds accepted possession of the Premises
and all improvements thereto. are as_required hereunder, and the date on which the Term
commenced; and (e) as to whether, to the best lcnowledge information and belief of such party,
Lessor or Lessee is then in-default in performing any of its obligations hereunder (and, if so,
specifying the nature of each such default). ‘Any such certificate may be relied upon by Lesser or
Lessee, as applicable, and any such other party to whom the eemﬁcate is dn'eeted

27.  Holding Over, Netw:thstandmg anythmg contained herem to the contrary, Lessee
shall have the right to remain in possession of the Premises for up to three (3) months after the
Expiration Date upon the same terms and conditions of the Lease and without the occurrence of
an Event of Default. In the event Lessee remains in possession of the Premises for more than
three (3) months after the expiration of the Term without the written consent of Lessor, Lessee
shall then be a tenant on a month to month bésis and shall be cbligated to pay Base Rent at one
hundred twenty-five percent (125%).of the then current rate (including ll adjustments) dnd all
other sums then payable hereunder prorated ona daﬂy basis for each day that Lessor is kept out
of possession of the Premises.” :
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28,  Binding Bffect All covenants agreements sttpulatlons, provxslons, condltlons
and obligations herein expressed and et forth shall extend 'to;bind and invre 1o the benefit of, as
the case may require, the successors and assrgns .of Lassor and Lessee rcspectWely, as fully as if
such words were written wherever reference to Lessor or Lessee occurs in this Lease :

29.  Se gverability. If any term, covenant or cbndmon of thrs Lease or the apphcatron
thereof to any person or circumstance shiall, to any extent be 1nva11d or unenforceable, -the.
remainder of this Lease, or the apphcatlon ofsuch: term, coyenait or condition. to -persons of
circurhstances other than those as to which it is held invalid , or unenforceable ‘shall. not be-
affected thereby and each term, covenant 0F’ condltlon of thls Lease shall be valtd and be-
enforced to the fullest extent permttted by law ' S IR : .

30. Aouhcgble Law. The laws of the State of Ilhnols shall -govern the vahdtty, '
performance and enforcement of thls Lease, w1thout regard to. such State’s conﬂrct—of-law'

principles.

31.  Force Mmgu;g If cither pa:ty hereto shall be delayed or- hmdered in or prevented
from the performance of any obligation required hereunder by reason of sfrikes; fock-outs, labor . - .
troubles, indbility to procure. matenals, failure. of. pOWer, rest:nchve govemmental laws or .
regulations, riots, insurrection, war .acts of terronsm mlhtary or usurped’ power, sabOtage, =
unusually severe weather,: fire or. other casualty or. othér, reason (but excluding: madequacy of - .
insurance proceeds, financial mabrlity or the lack of suritdble financing).of a like'nature. beyond

the reasonable control of the party delayed i performmg its obligations uhder this Ledse (“Force
Majeure Event”), the time for performance of such obllgatton shsll be extended for the penod -
of the delay : Pl N , : ,

32. Amendment Th.'ls Lease and the exhrbrts attached hereto and formmg a part
hereof set forth all the covenants, profriises; egt'eelnents, condrttons and understandmgs between
Lessor, and Lessee concerning-the; Premlses, and. there- afe-no covenants, promises,” agreements, .
conditions or understandmgs, either-ofal ¢ or Wwritten, betweéh. them ottier then are hérein set forth. - -
No subsegquent alteration,’ amendment, change or addltton to’this Lease shall be bmdmg upon' .
Lessor or Lessee unless reduced to wntmg and si gned by both of them SO

33, Lessor 8 Transfe_rg Lessor shall have the unrestncted nght to assrgn of transfer
itg interest in this Léase to purchasers of the Land and/or the Premrses, toa Mortgegee, or to any
other party, other. than to a’ person’ or entity whtch dlrectly or ‘indirectly, will or, does own,
operate or manage dialysis centers, in which event such transferee shall assume all. of Lessor’s
obligations hereunder ‘and Lessor shall.be released ﬁ'om all dutles, obhgatlons and liabilities
arising hereunder after the assignment or tranisfer becomes effectlve, including but not limited-to
the transfer of any security. déposit hereunder Lessor must obtain the prior written consent of
Lessee with respect to any pr0posed transfer 10 4 person dr entity which, drrectly or mdlrectly, '
that owns, operates or manages dialysis centers; prowded that | no consent ‘stiallbe required-as to
any transfer to a real estate investor that merely owns land and 1mprovements in which a dialysis -
center is located :and does not drrectl)r or indirectly, through itself or. an affiliate thereof, own,
operate or managé such dialysis center;: prowded however, the foregoing does niot relleve the’
transferee of the restnctlons contamed in mon above : : :
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34. 1ab1htx lertatro Nerther Lessor nor any trustee, drreetor, ofﬁcer, employee,
representative, asset manager, investrnent advisor or agent of Lessor, not any of their respective .
successors and assigns, shall be personally liable in connection with this Lease, and Lessee shall
resort solely to the Lessor’s interest in the Land and the Premrses, and rents and income
therefrom or proceeds from the sale thereof for’ the payment to Lessee of any elarm or for any
performance by Lessor hereunder S EP _

35. Not an Of‘fer SubmrSsron of t]ns Lease to Lessee is not an offer or agreement by‘ :
Lessor to reserve the Premises. - Lessor shall not bound by the terms hereof untrl Lessee and
Lessorhave executed ﬂns Lease BT G - T \ .

36; & ong{ Each pany represents and warrants to the other party hereto that the
execution, delivery and perfonnance of this' Lease have been duly authorized by ail required
corporate, partnership or other action.on the part of such patty, and this Lease constitutes the
valid and binding obhgatron of each party enforoeab]e agarnst such party in accordance wrth its
terms. . ' o T R .

'.J\ A
- o8 eh -..: .

.\.\A'

37, Waiver of Jurz Trral rAII partres hereto horehy release and warve any and al}
rights provided by law'to a trial by ] juryin any court’ or othet legal proceedmg mmated to enforce
the terms of this Lease, mvoIvmg any such.parties, or: conneeted in any -other manner-with this
Lease. Lessee shall not 1nterpose any ¢ counterclarm of any kmd in- any -gction or proceedmg by
Lessor to recover possessron of the Premises based on non-payment of Rent. “In the evént of a
dispute between Lessor and Lessee, Lessee shall pay Rent 1nto the regrstry of the court having
jurisdiction over such drspute

. 38. Wawer Nerther party shall be deemed o have walved the exercise of any nght\ '
which it holds hereunder unless such: waiver is made expressly and in wntmg, and 116’ -delay or
omission by a party in exercising, any such nght shall ‘be-detmed to'be a. waiver.of its future -
exercise. No such waiver ds to any. instance mvolvmg the exarcrse ‘of any. such right shaIl be
deemed a waiver as to any other such’ instance or any other such nght ‘No payment by Lesseeor - -
receipt-by Léssor of a lésser’ aniount than .the monthly Rent st:pu]ated in this Lease shall be
deemed to be other than on account of the earlrest sﬁpulated Rent, nor shall any endorsement of -
any check be an acknowledge and satrsfactron el SR :

_ 39, - Tnne of_gence Trme shall be of the essence of ﬂns Lease

40. H eadin g The headmgs Cof the artrcles subsectrons paragraphs and
subparagraphs hereof are- prowded herem on]y for convemence of reference and shall not be _
' consrdered in construmg therr eontents «_f-. L e e '.‘-” S o

41, Executron in Counterparts Thrs Lease may be executed sunultaneously m one of -

more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an: orlgrnal "but. alI of thch together shall
constitute one and the same mstrument. :

42, tingency. Lessor and Léssee acknowledge that due to the nature of Lessee' 8
operations, certarn eonsents régulatory licenses, perrits and/or approvals may be necéssary in
order for Lessee to-commence and maintaiti its busrness operahons at-the Premises for. thie - .
Permitted Use, mcludmg, wrthout lumtahon, thlrd party consents (mcludmg, wrthout lmutatron

- L‘ g e T ‘Site Owner - Lease for Space
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necessary architect’s certificates) and fedéral, state and local govérimehtal and regulatory _
licenses, certificates of occupancy, permits and approvals needed by Lessee in its sole reasonable
discretion for the operation of the Premises for the Pérmitted Use (collectively, “Consents™). - - -
Lessor agrees to cooperate with Lessee iri obtaining such.Consents. Notwithstanding anythingto -
the contrary heréin, Lessee shall have the right o terminate this Lease if Lessee has not réceived .

all such Consents at any time after the execiition of this Leas? by.providing writtén notice to - ' o
Lessor. ' L TR e : :

43, RoofRights. Lessec shali hiave the right to install; at its sole cost and expense and
using the contractor of its choice, communications equipmerit on the roof of the Building at no
additional fee. Lessee shiall obtain Lessor’s. prior-written approval, which' approval shall not be
unreasonably -withheld, conditioned, or delayed, -prior fo any pehetrations to the roof. ' Lessee -
shall be solely résponsible for the repair of any and all damages caused by installation, removal, -
or the presence of, or in any -way connected with mich equipmeént.- Upon expiration or earlier -
termination of this Lease, Lesses shail remove such équipment.and shall repair and restore the.
roof to the condition existing at the Lease Commiencement Date-of this Lease, normal wear ‘and.
tear and casualty excepted. © T TR

. 44, Right of Pirst Refusal. Lesseé shall have a continuing first refusal (“Right of
Refusal”) to lease any space in the Building:adjacent to the Premises as hereinafter set forth, If .
at any time during the Term, Lessor shall receive a-bona ‘fide offer from an unaffiliated third -
party to lease space adjacent:to-the Premises (the “Offer”), which Offer Lessor shall desire to
accept, Lessor. shall promptly deliver/to” Lesses’a-copy ‘of the :Offer, dnd Lessee may, within -
thirty (30) days thereaficr, eléct to loase such apace on the stme terins as those sét forth in the -
Offer; provided that if Lessor does not execiite a lease-with Such third pafty on the same terms as -
the Offer (or terms léss favorable o guch thind party) Within three, (3) months after fitst
delivering a copy of such Offér to Lessee, Lessor misst again present such Offer to Lessee.

L -[#f,gﬁﬁtl'ﬁife pagé follows] .

SN
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IN TESTIMONY WI-IEREOF the Lessor and Lessee have caused thls Lease to be
executed as & sealed mslrwnent as of the Effectwe Date

'Its JD!D,' fﬁr& Pﬂm PO
| /z s’//?.. |

--'LESSEE' - |
C :RAI CARE CENTERS oF
- ILLINOISL,LLC

"\':'1 -

_C’-Q-@ _
"'”f".:*nate //3’// hsL

: b\j ' B S - Usite Owner - Lease for Space
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S '[ussfs wo';k] Sulf
On or before the Lease Commenoement Date, Lessor shall dehver the Premlses in broom- -
clean condition with interior walls in good condition and’ répair and all. bmldmg and meehsmoal

systéms in good working order.- Lessor's Work shall be don€ina good and-workmanlike manner
and in comphance with all apphcable laws Lessor‘s Work shall melude the followmg “ :

, R

(i)  Lessor understands that Lessee s water supply lme‘requlrement isa dedleated 2

*- inch water supply line with a minimurm of 40 psi- operatmg pressute. However; since Lessorhasa
2 inch water supply line currently supplying. witer to-the entire bmldmg, and as long as Lessor .

and Lessee are in compliance with local codes, and as long.as Léssee’s éngineers indicate that a
water supply line for the Lessee’s space.connected to-the mais 2 irich water supply line will be
sufficient for the Lessee, Lessee will allow the current water supply lme configuration to satisfy
this requirement. However, Lessee will requiré-written' assurance from Legsor that if the water
demands of the other Lesse¢ in the bulldmg (ehlropractor or any another tenant in the future)
were to increase, that Léssce would get: ‘dedicated ‘access'to the. 2, mch water line ‘and the other’
tenant- would then have to be put on another water lme (5/8 or. a; 1 moh) -at the Lessor s sole
expense e o RO LR

(n) Lessor understands that Lessee 8 seWer lme requrrement is: for Lessor to supply a
dedicated 4 inch sewer line for Lesséé’s space. HOWeVer, since Lessor has a 6 inch sewer line -
currently serving the entire buﬂdmg, and s long as Lessor ahd Lessee are in compliance with
local codes, and as long as Lessee § enginéers md:cate that a4 inch sewer line for the Lessee’s
space connected to the main 6'inch sewer lirié will be suﬁicrent for. the Lessee, Lessee will allow
the current sewer configuration to satisfy £this fequirement, ‘Accordingly, Lesseewill: connect into
* the existing 6 inch service that currently i is located within:5-0"-of the penmetaer of Lessee’s
space. However, if Lessee § engincers ‘and Tocal codes determme thrs oonﬂguratron is insufficient .

due to codes, regulations, capacity/,. ﬂow ‘constraints. or- other operatlonal constrairits, then the. .

Lessor will bring a- dedlcated 4 moh sewer dram lme to wrthm 5‘-0" of Lessee 5 space at, Lessor §
sole expense . A e .

“(iii)  Gas service w1ll be rated to have 6 meh water column pressure and shall supply at
least 800, 000 BTUs ) : -
_ (iv) HVAC umts shall bc irf plece, operetronal in. good workmg order and be able to
provide a normal range of heatmg and eoolmg for a: medlcal use New RTUs are aIready m-
place. - L R I :

. ‘ IL:-:# A

(v)  Three-phase 1,000A/208¥ electric seivics, ¢ -

Hq DR __Slitelowrier-LeaseforSpace_
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(vi) Provide drywall Isufﬁeient.in quantlty -to"cover ell exisn‘_ng perimeter _wails. . -
(i) - Ensure the exlstmg extenor walls have at least R-19 msulatton in place
(viii) Dechcated entrances on the bu1ld1ng m the locatlons mdlcated on the Slte Plan

(ix) Clty approved trash enclosure with vandal proof blohazard waste séction and
appropriate concrete approach area., The trash area to accomrnodate a minimum of two 4 yard
containers {one trash, one recycle), exeluswely for Lessee use In addmon, a metal roof shall be
 installed over the blohazard sec’uon . - :

(x) Full eomphanoe thh ADA and all Iocai ]unsdlcuon 8 handlcap requlrements
Lessor shall coniply with all ADA regulauons affectmg the Bmldmg mcludmg, but not limited -
to, exterior and interiot doors, concrete curb cuts, famps ¢ and -walk-approachés to / from the
parking lot, parking lot striping.for 5ix (6) dedweted handicep stalls (4 directly-in front of -

.......

building (including one van stall), and 2 68 opposnte sxde of drive e}sle) inclusive of pavement

-markings and stall’ sxgns with cm'rent IOcaI prowsmns for handleap parkmg stalls, dehvery areas
and walkways, - L e g . :

(i) Inspectlon of roof system and 1f needed repalr ‘of any deﬁc1encles Roof system
is to include all gutters, fasclas downspouts and ice control measures ST .

(xii) - Inspeotlon of parlung lot and repalr of any dramage 1ssues and holes

(xiu) Lessor shall reunburse Lessee for the cos 0 -eonctete matenals towards
completion of concrete slab flgor. along beck of mterlor Space promptly upon dehvery of mvmces _'
from Lessee to Lessor for such work TN e I '

SRR R : . 'Sitebwhef;LeaseforSpace
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. EXEBIC

'RENT COMMENCEMENT DATE AGREEMENT

[

--I,Re:.-:!,i ..-Lease Agreement (the “Lease ’) dated W ¢
. -beétween : Savvi- Investment, Inc (“Lessor”), and RAI Care Centers of ,
, Illmoml LLC (“ ess ”) O A

'_'1\._-

-‘i-

Lessor and Lessee agree as folioWs; N

1..  Defined Terms Capztahzed terms used herem but not deﬁned shall be glven the
meanings ass:gned to them in the Lease ' _ , N

: 2. Cond:tlon of Prermses« Lessee has aceeptedxpossessron of the Premlses pursuant PR
to the Lease. . All of the condition of the Premrses is satrsfaetory to Le.ssee in all respects subject :

to the completron of any punch-hst 1tems _'_ ', .

fencen ent Date 'I'he -Lease'Commencemant Date of the Lease i$ '

»‘;.\ -

4. w *“The - Initial *“Termn' of the 'Léasg_wiu ekpire _on
‘ L ?'finf“mlwgiﬂf* . |

5. Rent Commencement Dgt TheRent Commencement Dafe" of _the-jI_.',ease is .
201 e o G ;__. ;, a : A
6. Rentable Area. The measured Rentable Area of the Prermses 1s
rentablesquarefeet Tl R I R

7. ,&ahﬁcaho Lessor and Lessee further conﬁrm that as of the date hereof (a) the
Lease in good standing dnd in full force-and-effect; and (b) neither. ‘of them has. any known
claims, counterclamls, set-offs or defenses agamst the other party ansmg out of the Lease.

e

’ ‘\.‘4- ;‘-_&‘ z.._-.",?..:' e . S -‘_‘I o -‘.,‘:'_-_,‘5; - . : ’. .. - ‘ o ’
N N can T Tee L Bite Owner - Lease for Space
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. -+ : - . '5‘
: 8.. Bmdmg Effect GoY ng Laﬂ Bxcept as modxﬁed hereby, the Lease shall _
remain in full effect and this letter shall-be bmdmg upon Lessor and Lessee ‘and their respectwe '
successors and assigns.” If any mconsmtency exists of, arises between the terms of this letter arid
the terms of the Lease, the terms of this’ letter shall prevml Thts letter shall be govemed by the
laws of the state in Wthh the Premnses are located i e Ty g \ 3

0. Counterparts. . This- letter may be executed in eounterparts each of which shall
constitute and ongmel and whlch together shall eonst1tute one and the sdmie, mstrument '

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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Executed by Lessor and Lessee on the dates set forth below to be effective as of the Rent

Commencement Date set forth above.

Witness:

Witness:

Witness:

Witness:

LESSOR:

SAVVI INVESTMENT, INC.

By:

Date:

LESSEE:

RAI CARE CENTERS OF
YLLINOIS I, LLC

By

Date:

Site Owner - Lease for Space
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Operating ldentity/Licensee

[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]
Exact Legal Name:RA! Care Centers of iffinois I, LLC d/b/a RA! Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heights

Address: 920 Winter Street, Waltham, MA 02451

] Non-profit Corporation I Partnership
O For-profit Corporation L] Governmental
Limited Liability Company ] Scle Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of each

partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.
o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownership.

Certificate of Good Standing at Attachment — 1.

Operating ldentity/Licensee
5 L{ ATTACHMENT - 3




Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc.

National Medical Care, Inc.

Bio-Medical Applications Management
Company, inc,

Liberty Dialysis Holdings, Inc

Liberty Dialysis Intermediate
Holdings N, Inc.

51%

Renal Advantage Pariners, LLC

RA Acquisition Co;, LLC

Renal Advantage Holdings, Inc.

Renal Advantaga Inc.

RAl Care Centers

RAl Care Centers

Holdings |, LLC Heldings (I, LLC
RAl Care Centers RAl Care Centers
of lingis [, LLC of (llinois II, LLC
Paln o + - Phln 4 *+ -

f 1 f RAI H h !
| -Lincoln Highway, | | ~ Wat :mac &=
| Faidiew Heights : I RAaI ge?\?re West :
! (Fresenius Fairview I-RA
| . | | Springfield 1
| Heights) I 1 (Fresenius I
| - Nerh Main Breese | | Springfietd) i
\ [Fresenius Breese) \ pring /

49%

Organizational Chart
ATTACHMENT - 4




The project is not new construction and is a build out of the interior of
existing leased space, therefore this criterion is not applicable.

Flood Plain Requirements
5l ATTACHMENT - 5




Hlinois Historic
=== Preservation Agency

. FPAX {217) 782-8161
12" 1 Oid State Capitol Plaza + Springfieid, tllinois 62701-1512 + www.illinois-history.gov
8t. Clair County
C'Fallon

CON - Relocation of Pairview Heights Dialysis Clinic
124 Regency Park Dr.
IHPA Log #011053012

June 11, 2012

Lori Wright

Fresenius Medical Services

One Westbrook Corporate Center, Suite 1000
Waestchester, IL 60154

Dear Ms. Wright:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced project.

Qur review of the records indicates that no historic, architectural or
archaeological sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illincis State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
seg.}. This clearance remains in effect for two years from date of issuance. It
does not pertain te any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinois Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440} .

If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5027.

Sincerely,

Anne E. Haaker
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

5 —) Historical Determination
A toletypowriter for the speechiheaning impared sabvad\ble at 217-524-7128. 1tis not a voice or fax i T TACHMENT - 6




SUMMARY OF PROJECT COSTS

Modernization Contracts

General Conditions 67,000
Temp Facilities, Controls, Cleaning, Waste Management 3,316
Concrete 17,100
Masonry 20,200
Metal Fabrications 10,000
Carpentry 118,000
Thermal, Moisture & Fire Protection 24,000
Doors, Frames, Hardware, Glass & Glazing 82,0a0
Walls, Ceilings, Floors, Painting 217,000
Specialities 17,000
Casework, Fl Mats & Window Treatments 8,000
Piping, Sanitary Waste, HVAC, Ductwark, Root
Penetrations 429,000
Wiring, Fire Alarm System, Lighting 259,000
Miscelleanous Construction Costs 60,000

Total | 1,341,616

Contingencies
Contingencies $147,483
Architectural/Engineering
Architecture/Engineering Fees $145,000

58
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Movable or Other Equipment

Dialysis Chairs 35,000
Misc. Clinical Equipment 27,000
Clinical Furniture & Equipment 32,000
Office Equipment & Other
Furniture 45,000
Water Treatment 150,000
TVs & Accessories 76,000
Telephones 18,000
Generator 45,000
Facility Automation 18,000
Other miscellaneous 4,000
Total 450,000

Fair Market Value | eased Space & Equipment

FMV Leased Space (9,448 GSF) $1,088,032
FMV Leased Dialysis Machines 295,350
FMV Leased Computers 7,200

Total $1,390,528

The cost per station, based on construction, contingencies, movable and other
equipment and A & E fees is $104,204 per station. This excludes the lease costs.
All individual line items fall within the Board guidelines. Actual final costs will likely
be lower due to built in contingency costs.

ATTACHMENT -7

59




Project obligation will occur after permit issuance.

Project Status

(O ATTACHMENT - 8




Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the department/area GSF and cost. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department's or area's portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet Amount of Proposed Tolal. Gross Square Feet
That ls:
New . Vacated
Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Asls Space
REVIEWABLE
In-Center
Hemodialysis 3,474,627 9,448 9,448
Total Clinical 3,474,627 9,448 0,448
NON
REVIEWABLE
Administrative
Parking
Gift Shop
Total Non-clinical
TOTAL 3,474,627 _ 9,448 _ 9,448 _
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT.g, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM,

Cost Space Requirements
(O , ATTACHMENT -9




1110.130 — DISCONTINUATION

General Information Requirements

RAI Care Centers of lllinois I, LLC proposes to discontinue its 20-station ESRD facility
located at 821 Lincoln Highway, Fairview Heights, currently operating at 74% utilization
data with 89 patients. This is simply a relocation of the existing facility. In conjunction
with this discontinuation we will establish a 20-station replacement ESRD facility at 124
Regency Park Drive in O’'Fallon. Both locations are in HSA 11. All patients are expected
to transfer to the new facility and therefore all medical records will be transferred to the
new site as well.

The discontinuation is expected to occur simultaneously with the opening of the new
facility. This is expected to occur by September 30, 2014. There will be no break in
service 10 the patients involved. The evacuated building at 821 Lincoln Highway is
leased space so will be released back to the landlord.

Reasons for Discontinuation

Accessing the current Fairview Heights location by car is difficuit and often hazardous
because of the traffic pattern of the streets immediately next to the clinic. This creates
physical access issues for patients and/or families and for the transportation companies.
The current leased space for the RAI Fairview Heights facility has inadequate space.
The tobby does not allow enough room for patients/families during shift changeover
especially considering many patients are in wheelchairs. The cramped space makes it
extremely difficult to navigate. There is currently no space for a conference room for
monthly quality improvement meetings as well as other staff meetings or training
programs. There is no outside covered drop-off area for patients which makes
accessing the building difficult in inclerment weather. The building also has significant
problems with the HVAC units and would need extensive repair. Since the condition of
the building itself is not optimal and is too small, RAI feels it is more cost effective and in
the patient’s best interest to relocate. The lease is expiring 8/31/2012 and we are
currently seeking a 9-month extension to allow time to move through the CON process
and modernize the interior of the site in O’Fallon. There is also limited space at the
current site to grow the home dialysis program effectively.

Impact On Access

It is determined that since this is a simple “relocation” of the Fairview Heights facility to a
site 5 minutes away in O’Fallon and not a true discontinuation, it will not have any
impact on any area ESRD providers. All facilities within 45 minutes travel time were
sent a written request for an impact statement with the exception of those that are
Fresenius owned facilities. There was no response.

Discontinuation

b L ATTACHMENT - 10




IMPACT ON ACCESS STATEMENT PER PART 1110.130

The proposed discontinuation of the RAI Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heights 20-station end
stage renal disease (ESRD) facility will not have an adverse effect upon access to care for the
residents of the heaithcare market in the Fairview Heights and St. Clair County area. Along with
this discontinuation, a replacement 20-station ESRD facility will be established at 124 Regency
Park Drive, O’Fallon,

The Fairview Heights facility is essentially being relocated two miles (5 minutes) away to
O’Fallon which is also in HSA 11. All current patients are expected to transfer to the
replacement facility. There will be no break in service to these patients.

There will be no adverse impact to any facilities within a 45-minute travel time. A written
request for an impact statement was sent to each and no response was received. Attached is
documentation that the request was sent.

Jora Wik, Am

Tara Walker, Area Manager

Date: Q“/Z-/Z

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO

BEFORE ME THIS |2+~ DAY
OF Lind ,2012.

PQWWUQLM/

NOTARY PUBLIC

) SHARILEXA
) Notary Public - Notary Seal
) STATE OF MISSOURI |
) Jefterson County )
4 My Commission Expires: May 1, 2014 X
3 Commission # 10870608 :

Discontinuation
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May 30, 2012 esenius Medical Care

Cindy Emley

Regional Operations Director
2930 S. Montvale Drive, Suite A
Springfield, IL. 62704

Re:  DaVita Shiloh Dialysis
1095 N. Green Mount Road
Shiloh, 1L 62269

Dear Ms. Emley:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that Fresenius Mcdical Care — North America is in the
process of compiling a Certificatc of Need application to be submitted to the Illinois Health
Facilities & Services Review Board to discontinue our 20-station Fairview Heights Dialysis
Center located at 821 Lincoln Highway, Fairview Heights, IL.  In conjunction with this
discontinuation we will be establishing a replacement 20-station dialysis facility within the same
service area.

The estimated date that this discontinuation/establishment will occur is September 30, 2013.
Over the past two ycars the Fairview Heights dialysis facility has provided 24,569 dialysis
treatments to 211 end stage renal diseasc (ESRD) patients. While this is a substantial amount we
do not foresee any break in service to the ESRD patients in this market area during the closure of
the current facility and subsequent opening of the replacement facility. All current patients are
expected to transfer to the new location. We do not expect that there will be any adverse impact
to care for patients in this market area, nor do we expect there (0 be any burden of care placed on
other area dialysis providers.

In keeping with the rulcs of the Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board, I am asking
for a response from your [acility in the form of an impact statement in regards Lo our proposcd
project within 15 days of reccipt of this letter. Per the rulcs you are not required to respond,
however note that no response will constitute a non-rebuttable assumption that the
discontinuation will not have an adverse impact for your facitity.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. If you have any questions or concerns,
please feel free to contact me at 708-498-9121.

Sincerely,

f "
Lo (gl
Lori Wright

) il
Senior CON Specialist Fresenius Medical Services ¢ North Division
Request for Impact Letter

One Westbrook Corporate Center, Suite 1000 Westchester, Esscg?ggua_}lgg-gaax ACHMENT -10
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Fresenius Medical Care

May 30, 2012

Facility Manager

DaVita Metro East Dialysis
5105 W. Main Street
Belleville, IL 62226

Dear Facility Manager:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that Fresenius Mcdical Care — North America is in the
process of compiling a Certificate of Need application to be submitted to the Illinois Health
Facilitics & Services Review Board to discontinue our 20-station Fairview Hcights Dialysis
Center located at 821 Lincoln Highway, Fairview Heights, IL.  In conjunction with this
discontinuation we will be establishing a replacement 20-station dialysis facility within the same
scrvice ared.

The estimated date that this discontinuation/establishment will occur is September 30, 2013.
Over the past two years the Fairview Heights dialysis facility has provided 24,569 dialysis
treatments to 211 end stage renal disease (ESRD) paticnis. While this is a substantial amount we
do not foresee any break in service to the ESRD patients in this market area during the closure of
the current facility and subsequent opening of the replacement facility. All current patients are
expected to transfer to the new location. We do not expect that there will be any adverse impact
to care for patients in this market area, nor do we expect there to be any burden of care placed on
other area dialysis providers.

In keeping with the rules of the Ilinois Health Facilitics & Services Review Board, I am asking
for a response from your facility in the form of an impact statement in regards to our proposed
project within 15 days of receipt of this letter. Per the rules you are not required fo respond,
however note that no response will constitute a non-rebuttable assumption that the
discontinuation will not have an adverse impact for your facility.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. If you have any questions or concerns,
please feel free to contact me at 708-498-9121.

Sincerely,

Lori Wright

Senior CON Specialist

Fresenius Medical Services ¢ North Division
Discontinuation — Request for Impact Letter

One Westbrook Corporate Center, Suite 1%;0 Westchester, iL 60154 708'56&19?AbHM ENT - 10
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Fresenius Medical Care

May 30, 2012

Facility Manager
DaVita Sauget Dialysis
2061 Goose Lake Road
Sauget, IL 62206

Dear Facility Manager:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that Fresenius Medical Care — North America is in the
process of compiling a Certificate of Need application to be submitted to the Tllinois Health
Facilities & Services Review Board 1o discontinue our 20-station Fairview Heights Dialysis
Center localed at 821 Lincoln Highway, Fairview Heights, IL. In conjunction with this
discontinuation we will be establishing a replacement 20-station dialysis facility within the same
service area.

The estimated dale that this discontinuation/establishment will occur is September 30, 2013.
Over the past two years the Fairview Heights dialysis facility has provided 24,569 dialysis
treatments to 211 end stage renal disease (ESRD) patients. While this is a substantial amount we
do not foresee any break in service to the ESRD patients in this market area during the closure of
the current facility and subsequent opening of the replacement facility. All current patients are
expected to transfer to the new location. We do not expect that there will be any adverse impact
to care for patients in this market area, nor do we expect there to be any burden of care placed on
other area dialysis providers.

In keeping with the rules of the Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board, | am asking
for a response from your facility in the form of an impact statement in regards to our proposed
project within 15 days of receipt of this letter. Per the rules you are not required 1o respond,
however nole thal no response will constitutc a non-rcbuitable assumption that the
discontinuation will not have an adversc impact for your facility.

Thank you for your time and attention to this malter. If you have any questions or concerns,
please feel free to contact me at 708-498-9121.

Sincerely,

Lori Wright
Senior CON Specialist

Fresenius Medical Services ¢ North Division or | Lot
One Westbrook Corporate Center, Suite (;0@0 Westchester, ?ﬂsgﬁqtg‘f a%%%@gwibogﬁ Eﬁ-tr ?163
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Fresenius Medical Care
May 30, 2012

Facility Manager

DaVita Maryville Dialysis
2130 Vadalabene Drive
Maryville, IL 62062

Dear Facility Manager:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that Fresenius Medical Care — North America is in the
process of compiling a Certificate of Need application to be submiited to the Illinois Health
Facilitics & Services Review Board to discontinue our 20-station Fairvicw Heights Dialysis
Center located at 821 Lincoln Highway, Fairview Heights, IL.  In conjunclion with this
discontinuation we will be establishing a replaccment 20-station dialysis facility within the same
service area.

The estimated date that this discontinuation/establishment will occur is September 30, 2013,
Over the past two years the Fairview Heights dialysis facility has provided 24,569 dialysis
treatments to 211 end stage renal disease (ESRD) patients. While this is a substantial amount we
do not foresee any break in service to the ESRD patients in this market area during the closure of
the current facility and subsequent opening of the replacement facility. All current patients are
expected to transfer to the new location. We do not expect that there will be any adverse impact
to care for patients in this market area, nor do we expect there to be any burden of care ptaced on
other area dialysis providers.

In keeping with the rules of the Tllinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board, I am asking
for a response from your facility in the form of an impact statement in regards to our proposed
project within 15 days of receipt of this letter. Per the rules you are not required to respond,
however note that no response will constitute a non-rebuttable assumption that the
discontinuation will not have an adverse impact for your facility.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. If you havc any questions or concerns,
please feel free to contact me at 708-498-9121.

Sincerely,
[/au U)/m?f)d

Lori Wright
Scnior CON Specialist

Fresenius Medical Services ¢ North Di\[:)i_sionr ion - R Cor Lot
is nuation — Request for Impact Letter
One Westbrook Corpaorate Center, Suite 1000 Westchester, IL ‘%31”5'4 708-56 %FACHMENT -10
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Fresenius Medical Care
May 30, 2012

Facility Manager

DaVila Granite City Dialysis
9 American Village

Granite City, 1L 62040

Dear Facilily Manager:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that Fresenius Medical Care — North America is in the
process of compiling a Certificate of Need application to be submitted to the Illinois Health
Facilitics & Services Review Board to discontinue our 20-station Fairview Heights Dialysis
Center located at 821 Lincoln Highway, Fairview Heights, IL.  In conjunction with this
discontinuation we will be establishing a replacement 20-station dialysis facility within the same
service arca.

The estimated date that this discontinuation/establishment will occur is September 30, 2013,
Over the past two years the Fairview Heights dialysis facility has provided 24,569 dialysis
treatments to 211 end stage renal disease (ESRD) patients. While this is a substantial amount we
do not foresee any break in service to the ESRD patients in this market area during the closure of
the current facility and subsequent opening of the replacement facility. All current patients are
expected to transfer to the new location. We do not expect that there will be any adverse impact
to care for patients in this market area, nor do we expect therc to be any burden of care placed on
other arca dialysis providers.

In keeping with the rules of the Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board, 1 am asking
for a response from your facility in the form of an impact statement in regards to our proposed
project within 15 days of receipt of this letter. Per the rules you are not required to respond,
however note that no response will constitutc a non-rebuttable assumption that the
discontinuation will not have an adverse impact for your facility.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. If you have any questions or concerns,
please feel free to contact me at 708-498-9121.

Sincerely,
o Wy

Lori Wright
Senior CON Specialist

Fresenius Medical Services ¢ North Division o ]
One Westbrook Corporate Center, Suite 1000 Westchester, ﬂlsﬁﬂq%a%?sﬁgﬂﬁ.ﬁﬁé’;l &Eﬁ%. :et;%
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Fresenius Medical Care

May 30, 2012

Facility Manager

DaVita Granite City Dialysis
235 § Buchanan St
Edwardsville, IL 62025

Dear Facility Manager:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that Fresenius Medical Care — North America is in the
process of compiling a Certificate of Need application to be submitted to the Illinois Health
Facilities & Services Review Board to discontinue our 20-station Fairview Heights Dialysis
Center located at 821 Lincoln Highway, Fairview Heights, IL.  In conjunction with this
discontinuation we will be establishing a replacement 20-station dialysis facility within the same
service area.

The estimated date that this discontinuation/establishment will occur is September 30, 2013.
Over the past two years the Fairview Heights dialysis facility has provided 24,569 dialysis
treatments to 211 end stage renal discase (ESRD) patients. While this is a substantial amount we
do not foresee any break in service to the ESRD patients in this market area during the closure of
the current facility and subsequent opening of the replacement facility. All current patients are
expecled to transfer 1o the new location. We do not expect that there will be any adverse impact
to care for patients in this market area, nor do we expect there to be any burden of care placed on
other area dialysis providers.

In keeping with the rules of the Illinois Health Facilitics & Services Review Board, 1 am asking
for a response from your facility in the form of an impact statement in regards to our proposcd
project within 15 days of reccipt of this lettcr. Per the rules you are not required to respond,
however note that no responsc will conslitute a non-rebuttable assumption that the
discontinuation will not have an adversc impact for your facility.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. If you have any questions or concerns,
please feel free to contact me at 708-498-9121.

Sincerely,

LBU L)M?M
Lori Wright
Senior CON Specialist

Fresenius Medical Services ¢ North Division
Discontinuation — t for Impact Letter

One Westbrook Corporate Center, Suite 1000 Westchester, IL 60154 708- 562 CHMENT - 10
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Fresenius Medical Care
May 30, 2012

Facility Manager
DaVita Alton Dialysis
3511 College Avenue
Alton, 11. 62002

Dear Facility Manager:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you that Fresenius Medical Care — North America is in the
process of compiling a Certificate of Need application to be submitted to the Illinois Health
Facilitics & Services Review Board to discontinue our 20-station Fairview Heights Dialysis
Center located at 821 Lincoln Highway, Fairview Heights, IL.  In conjunction with this
discontinuation we will be establishing a replacement 20-station dialysis facility within the same
service area.

The cstimated dale thatl this discontinuation/establishment will occur is September 30, 2013.
Over the past two years the Fairview Heights dialysis facility has provided 24,569 dialysis
treatments 1o 211 end stage renal disease (ESRD) patients. While this is a substantial amount we
do not foresee any break in service (o the ESRD patients in this market area during the closure of
the current facility and subsequent opening of the replacement facility. All current patients are
expected to transfer to the new location. We do not expect that therc will be any adverse impact
to care for patients in this market area, nor do we expect there to be any burden of care placed on
other area dialysis providers.

In keeping with the rules of the [llinois Health Facilitics & Services Review Board, | am asking
for a response from your facility in the form of an impact statement in regards to our proposed
project within 15 days of rcceipt of this letter. Per the rules you are not required 1o respond,
however note that no response will constitute a non-rebuttable assumption that the
discontinuation will not have an adverse impact for your facility.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. If you have any questions or concerns,
please feel free to contact me at 708-498-9121.

Sincerely,
Lori Wright
Senior CON Specialist

Fresenius Medical Services ¢ North Division or | © Let
j tj ion — or act Letter
One Westbrook Corporate Center, Suite 1008 Westchester,[ﬂ_s%%q E‘AJ a%béaquﬁﬁ Hh:lngNT 10
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Fresenius Medical Care

Dialysis Services
One Westbrook Corporate Center
Suite 1000
Westchester, IL 60154
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Dialysis Services
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SENDER: COMPLETE THIS SECTION

N Complete items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete
itern 4 if Restricted Delivery is desired.

B Print your name and address on the reverse
so that we can return the card to you.

W Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece,
or on the front if space permits.

COMPLETE THIS SECTION ON DELIVERY

A. Signature
O Agent
X [ Addressee

B. Flecewedﬂ { Printed Nar[la) QP_J C. Datjof elivery
o(:g / f2

D. Is delivery ag‘uress different from item 12 C1 Yes

1. Article Addressed to: |

Facility Manager
DaVita Granite City Dialysis
9 American Village
Granite City, 1L 62040

if YES, enter delivery address below: T No

3. Servips Type
Certified Mail [ Express Mail
[ Registersd 1 Return ‘Receipt for Merchandise
[ Insured Mail [dc.oB.

4, Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee) O Yes
2. Article Number ~ sppg 1 3531 2273
{Transfer from service fabel} 7004 15 Bﬁ oo
PS Form 3811, February 2004 Domestic Return Receipt 102595-02-M-1540°
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W Attach this card to the back of the mailpiecs,

or on the front if space permits.
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ent
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C. Date ivery
SN
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Facility Manager
DaVita Sauget Dialysis
2061 Goose Lake Road
Sauget, IL 62206
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If YES, enter delivery address below:
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Certified Mail [ Express Mail
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or on the front if space permits.
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O Agent
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2. Article Number . 7009 1kL80 0O0L 3531 2334 _
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Fresenius Medical Care

Fresenius Medical Care is the leading provider of dialysis products and services in the
world and as such has a long-standing commitment to adhere to quality standards that
are higher than required by regulatory bodies, to provide compassionate patient
centered care, educate patients to become in charge of their health decisions,
implement programs to improve clinical outcomes while reducing mortality &
hospitalizations and to stay on the cutting edge of technology in development of dialysis
related products.

The size of the company and range of services provides healthcare partners/employees
and patients with an expansive range of resources from which to draw experience,
knowledge and best practices.

Quality Measures - Fresenius Medical Care continually tracks five quality measures on
all patients. These are:

eKdrt/V — tells us if the patient is getting an adequate treatment
Hemoglobin — monitors patients for anemia

Albumin — monitors the patient’s nutrition intake

Phosphorus — monitors patient’s bone health and mineral metabolism
Catheters — tracks patients access for treatment, the goal is no catheters
which leads to better outcomes

0000

The above measures as well as other clinic operations are discussed each month with
the Medical Directors, Clinic Managers, Social Workers, Dietitians, Area Managers and
referring nephrologists at each clinic’s Quality Assessment Performance improvement
(QAIl) meeting to ensure the provision of high quality care, patient safety, and regulatory
compliance.

Some of the initiatives that Fresenius has implemented to bring about better outcomes
and increase the patient's quality of life are the TOPS program, Right Start Program and
The Catheter Reduction Program.

TOPs Program (Treatment Options) — This is a company-wide program designed to
reach the pre-ESRD patient (also known as CKD — Chronic Kidney Disease) to educate
them about available treatment options when they enter end stage renal disease. TOPs
programs are held routinely at local hospitals and physician offices. Treatment options
include transplantation, in-center hemodialysis, home hemodialysis, peritoneal dialysis
and nocturnal dialysis.

Right Start Program — This is an intensive 90-day intervention program for the new
dialysis patient centering on education, anemia management, adequate dialysis dose,
nutrition, reduction of catheter use, review of medications and logistical and
psychosocial support. The Right Start Program results in improved morbidity and
mortality in the long term but also notably in the first 80 days of the start of dialysis.

Catheter Reduction Program — This is a key strategic clinical initiative to support
nephrologists and clinical staff with increasing the number of patients dialyzed with a
permanent access, preferably a venous fistula (AVF) versus a central venous catheter
(CVC) venous fistula). Starting dialysis with or converting patients to an AVF can
significantly lower serious complications, hospitalizations and mortality rates. Overall

adequacy of dialysis treatment also increases with the use of the AVF.
Background
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FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE CASE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

Wins National Award

Fresenius Medical Care’s Renal Inpatient Care Management
(RICM) program received the 2012 Case In Point Platinum
award for the best provider-based case management program
in Washington D.C. on May 9th. The Case in Point Platinum
Awards program recognizes the most successful case
management and care coordination programs and
individuals working to make the healthcare delivery

system safer, more productive and more cost-effective,

Entry criteria for this award required submission of how
the program demonstrated stellar achicvements over the
past year in the areas of creativity, innovation, leadership,
behavioral change, cost containment and patient education,
empowerment and engagement. Also required was
measurable data and supporting materials, such as
outcomes and statistical evidence.

FMCNA's RICM program partners with acute care hospitals
to improve patient outcomes and reduce length of stay while
optimizing care coordination and providing a smooth
transition from inpatient to outpatient care. Through the

RICM program, the Company provides the services of a e ——— ‘ 3, ]
dedicated Renal Inpatient Care Manager, who is a registered  Renal Inpatient Care Management is one of the Case Management programs
nurse with significant dialysis experience, to acute care overseen by VP of UttraCare Customer Connection Fern Patlier (left), and

hospitals to heip ensure a comprehensive plan of care for managed by Director of Hospita! Case Management Debra Marshall {right)

renal patients. The scope of
services includes patient
assessment, care coordination,
patient education services,
discharge planning and
continuous quality
improvement. This program
has achieved some tremendous
outcemes due to the
collaborative case management
inlerventions. Fern Marlier

and her Case Management
Department would like to
acknowledge all Fresenius
Medical Care employees

who have contributed to this

- - program’s development and
i % "

_ . _ _ TS - S TS | . - c success. @
{From left) Teresa Bottoms, Debra Marshall, Fern Parlier, Donna Garcia, Barbara Williams and Patrick Henry Background
were on hand to accept the Case in Point Platinum Award. - ATTACHMENT - 11
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Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc¢. In-¢center Clinics in lllinois

Fac >10%
Clinic Provider # Address City Zip | Medicaid Treatments*

Alsip 14-2630 (12250 S. Cicero Ave Ste. #105 Alsip 60803

Antioch 14-2673 |[311 Depot 5t., Ste. H Antioch 80002 10.2%
Aurora 14-2515 |455 Mercy Lane Aurora 60506

Austin Community 14-2653 4800 W. Chicago Ave., 2nd FI. Chicago 60651 26.5%
Berwyn 14-2533 |2601 S. Harlem Avenue, 1st FI, Berwyn 60402 16.7%
Blue Island 14-2539 [12200 8. Western Avenue Blue Island 80406 11.6%
Bolingbrook 14-2605 |538 E. Boughton Road Boilingbrook 60440

Breese 160 N. Main Street Breese 62230

Bridgeport 14-2524 |825 W. 35th Street Chicago 60609 30.4%
Burbank 14-2641 |4811 W. 77th Street Burbank 60459 13.3%
Carbondale 14-2514 |725 South Lewis Lane Carbondale 62901

Champaign 14-2588 |1405 W. Park Street Champaign 61801

Chatham 333 W. 87th Street Chicago 60620

Chicago Dialysis 14-2506 |820 West Jackson Bhed. Chicago 60607 45.2%
Chicago Westside 14-2681 |1340 5. Damen Chicago 60608 45.1%
Cicero 3030 S. Cicero Chicago 60804

Congress Parkway -14-2631 |3410 W. Van Buren Street Chicago 60624 29.9%
Crestwood 14-2538 |4861W. Cal Sag Road Crestwood 60445

Decatur East 14-2503 1830 S. 44th St. Decatur 62521

Deerfield 14-2710 |405 Lake Cook Road Deefield 80015

Des Plaines 1625 Qakton Place Des Plaines 60018

Downers Grove 14-2503 |3825 Highland Ave., Ste, 102 Downers Grove |[60515

DuPage West 14-2509 |450 E. Roosevelt Rd., Ste. 101 West Chicago (60185 17.4%
DuQuoin 14-2595 |#4 West Main Street DuQugin 62832

East Peoria 14-2562 |3300 North Main Street East Peoria 51611

Elgin 14-2726 |2130 Point Boulevard Elgin 60123

Elk Grove 14-2507 |801 Biesterfield Road, Ste. 400 Eik Grove 60007 10.4%
Elmhurst 14-2612 |133 E. Brush Hill Road, Suite 4 Elmhurst 60126

Evanston 14-2621 |2953 Central Street, 1st Floor Evanston 60201 16.4%
Evergreen Park 14-2545 |9730 5. Western Avenue Evergreen Park |60805

Fairview Heights 821 Lincoin Highway Fairview Heights |62208

Garfield 14-2655 |5401 S. Wentworth Ave, Chicago 60609 20.8%
Glendale Heights 14-2617 520 E. North Avenue Glendale Heights [60139 17.6%
Glenview 14-2551 |4248 Commercial Way Glenview 60025

Greenwood 14-2601 |[1111 East 87th St., Ste. 700 Chicago 60619 16.7%
Gurnee 14-2549 |101 Greenleaf Gumee 60031 20.9%
Hazel Crest 14-2607 17524 E, Carriageway Dr. Hazel Crest 60429

Hoffman Esiates 14-2547 |3150 W. Higgins, Ste, 190 Hoffman Estates [60155 18.8%
Jackson Park 14-2516 |7531 South Stony Island Ave. Chicago 60649 29.8%
Joliet 721 E. Jackson Street Joliet 60432

Kewanee 14-2578 230 W. South Strest Kewanee 61443

Lake Bluff 14-2669 |101 Waukegan Rd., Ste. 700 Lake Bluff 60044 11.6%
Lakeview 14-2679 4008 N. Broadway, St. 1200 Chicago 60613 22.0%
Lincolnland 1112 Centre West Drive Springfietd 62704

Logan Square 2734 N, Milwaukee Avenug Chicago 60647

Lombard 14.2722 |1940 Springer Drive Lombard 60148

Macomb 14-2591 |523 E. Grant Street Macomb 61455

Marquette Park 14-2566 |6515 5. Western Chicago 60636 18.1%
McHenry 14-2672 |4312W. Elm St. McHenry 60050

McLean Co 14-2563 |1505 Eastland Medical Flaza Bloomington 61704

Melrose Park 14-2554 |1111 Supericr St., Ste. 204 Melrose Park 60160 16.7%
Merrionette Park 14-2667 |11630 S. Kedzie Ave. Merricnette Park | 60803

Metropolis 14-2705 |20 Hospital Drive Metropolis 62060

Midway 14-2713 6201 W. 63rd Street Chicago 60638

Mokena 14-2689 |8910 W. 192nd Street Mokena 60448

Morris 14.2596 |1401 Lakewood Dr., Ste. B Morris 60450

Mundelgin 14-2731 |1400 Townline Road Mundelein 60060

Naperbirook 2451 8 Washington Naperville 60565

Naperville 14-2543 |100 Spalding Drive Ste. 108 Naperville 60566

Naperville North 14-2678 |516 W. 5th Ave. Naperville 60563

Niles 14-2500 |7332 N. Milwaukee Avs Niles 60714 10.8%
Norridge 14-2521 4701 N. Cumberland Norridge 60656 11,2%.,.

7
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North Avenue 14-2602 (911 W. North Avenue Melrase Park 60160
North Kilpatrick 14-2501 |4800 N. Kilpatrick Chicago 60630 20.8%
Northcenter 14-2531 |2620 W. Addison Chicago 60618 19.6%
Nonhfield 480 Central Avenue Northfield 60093
Northwestern University | 14-2597 (710 N. Fairbanks Court Chicago 60611 11.6%
Qak Park 14-2604 |773 W. Madison Street Dak Park 60302
Orland Park 14-2550 9160 W. 159th St. Orland Park 60462
Oswego 14-2677 |1051 Station Drive Oswego 60543
Ottawa 14-2576 |1601 Mercury Circle Drive, Ste, 3 Qttawa 61350
Palatine 14-2723 1691 E. Dundee Road Palatine 60074
Pekin 14-2571 |600 S. 13th Street Pekin 61554
Peocria Downtown 14-2574 1410 W Romeo B. Garrett Ave. Peoria 61605
Peoria North 14-2613 |10405 N. Juliet Court Peoria 61615
Plainfield 14-2707 {2320 Michas Drive Plainfield 80544
Polk 14-2502 [557 W. Polk St. Chicago 60607 19.9%
Pantiac 14-2611 [804 W. Madison St. Pontiac 61764
Prairie 14-2569 1717 S. Wabash Chicago 60616 13.1%
Randolph County 14-2589 |102 Memorial Drive Chester 62233
River Forest 103 Forest Avenue River Forest 60305
Rogers Park 14-2522 |2277 W. Howard St. GChicago 60645 19.2%
Rolling Meadows 14-2525 |4180 Winnetka Avenue Rolling Meadows | 60008 11.3%
Roseland 14-2690 |135 W. 111th Street Chicago 60628 19.1%
Ross-Englewood 14-2670 |6333 S. Green Street Chicago 60621 17.6%
Round Lake 14-2616 |401 Nippersink Round Lake 60073 16.8%
Saline County 14-2573 |275 Small Street, Ste. 200 Harrisburg 62946
Sandwich 14-2700 1310 Main Street Sandwich 60548
Skokie 14-2618 9801 Wood Dr. Skokie 60077
South Chicago 14-2519 (9200 S. Chicago Ave. Chicago 60617 20.4%
South Deering 10559 §. Torrence Ave, Chicago 60617
South Holland 14-2542 17225 S, Paxton South Holland 60473 12.2%
South Shore 14-2572 2420 E. 79th Strest Chicago 60649 16.8%
South Side 14-2508 |3134 W. 76th 5t. Chicago 60652 21.8%
South Suburban 14-2517 |2609 W. Lincoln Highway Olympia Fields 60461
Southwestern lllinois 14-2535 |lllinois Rts 3&143, #7 Eastgate Plz.  [East Alton 62024
Spoon River 14-2565 |210 W. Walnut Street Canton 61520
Spring Valley 14-2564 |12 Wolfer Industrial Drive Spring Valley 61362
Steger 14-2725 (219 E. 34th Street Steger 60475
Streator 14-2695 |2356 N. Bloomingten Street Streator 61364
Uptown 14-2692 4720 N. Marine Dr. Chicago 60640 16.9%
Waukegan Harbor 14-2727 1101 North West Street Waukegan 60085
West Batavia 14-2729 |2580 W. Fabyan Parkway Batavia 60510
West Belmont 14-2523 14943 W. Belmont Chicago 60641 42.3%
West Chicago 14-2702 11859 N. Neltnor West Chicago  [60185 13.1%
West Metro 14-2536 |1044 North Mozart Street Chicago 60622 24.6%
West Suburban 14-2530 |518 N. Austin Blvd., 5th Floor Oak Park 60302 15.6%
West Willow 14-2730 |1444 W, Willow Chicago 60620
Westchester 14-2520 |2400 Wolf Road, Ste. 101A Westchester 60154
Williamson County 14-2627 |900 Skyline Drive, Ste. 200 Marion £2959
Willowbrook 14-2632 16300 S. Kingery Hwy, Ste. 408 Willowbrook 60527

*Medicaid percentages are reflected in treatments, not patients. Any patient can have more than one type of coverage in any
given year, therefore treatment numbers reflects more accurately the clinic's % of coverage.

are reported here to show those facilities with significant Medicaid numbers.

Only clinics above 10% Medicaid

All lllinois Clinics are Medicare certified, and do not discriminate against patients based on their ability to pay or payor source.

All clinics are open to all physicians who meet credentialing requirements.

Facility List
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Certification & Authorization

RAI Care Centers of lllinois I, LLC

In accordance with Section 111, A (2) of the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board
Application for Certificate of Need; I do hereby certify that no adverse actions have been
taken against RAI Care Centers of Illinois I, LLC by either Medicare or Medicaid, or any
State or Federal regulatory authority during the 3 years prior {0 the filing of the
Application with the Illinois Heaith Facilities Planning Board; and

In regards to section i1, A (3) of the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board Application
for Certificate of Need; I do hereby authorize the State Board and Agency access 10
information in order to verify any documentation or information submitted in response to
the requirements of this subsection or to obtain any documentation or information that the
Statc Board or Agency finds pertinent to this subsection.

ITS: S: Bryan Meilo
—Mark Faweett——
Assistant Treasurer

Vice President & Treasur™

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me

this day of , 2012 this_ ¥ dayof June 2012
M B Goroot

Signature of Notary Signature of Notary _

SUSAN H. CONSOLE
Notary Public

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
My Commission Expires
February 1, 2013

e n s e b b T e L B

Secal Seal
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Certification & Authorization
Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc.

In accordance with Section I1I, A (2} of the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board
Application for Certificate of Need; I do hereby certify that no adverse actions have been
taken against Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc. by either Medicare or Medicaid, or
any State or Federal regulatory authority during the 3 years prior to the filing of the
Application with the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board; and

In regards to section III, A (3) of the Illinois Health Facitities Planning Board Application
for Certificate of Need; I do hereby authorize the State Board and Agency access to
information in order to verify any documentation or information submitted in response to
the requirements of this subsection or to obtain any documentation or information that the
State Board or Agency finds pertinent to this subsection.

ITS: Mark Fawcet ITS: Assistant Treasurer

IVice President & Asst. Treasurer

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and-sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me

this day of , 2012 this_ ¥  dayof Mdune ,2012

Signature of Notary Signature of Notary

Seal Seal “SUSAN H. CONSOLE |

Notery Public _
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS D)
UMY 2013
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Criterion 1110.230 — Purpose of Project

1.

The purpose of this project is to maintain access to life-sustaining dialysis services in
the Fairview Heights/O'Fallon market area of St. Clair County in rural southern
lllinois, by relocating the current RAI Lincoln Highway — Fairview Heights dialysis
facility two miles away in a new and spacious building. The facility is operating at
74% utilization, only 6 patients away from 80%.

The current faciiity in Fairview Heights and the proposed relocation site two miles
away in O'Fallon are both located in HSA 11, which is made up of Clinton, Madison,
Monroe and St. Clair counties.

The current Fairview Heights facility’s lease will expire in August 2012, however we
are negotiating a 9-month extension. This site has some significant repairs that will
be required to the HVAC system. The space is too small, with no staff conference
room and a patient waiting area that is cramped and difficult to navigate, especially
for wheelchairs. Physical access issues exist with difficulties turning in and out of
the site because of the street traffic patterns and there being no covered drop-off
area for patients in inclement weather. The home therapies department at the clinic
is minimal in size making it difficult to grow the home dialysis treatment options.

While the State Board rules consider this project a discontinuation/establishment of
an ESRD facility, it is simply a relocation of the existing Fairview Heights facility,
without the addition of any stations. The relocated facility will be in a new more
modern/spacious building which will offer patients a more comfortable and safe
environment to dialyze in and will also allow for easier patient access to the building.
The home therapies department, which shows improved patient outcomes, will be
expanded to0o.

Not Applicable

Relocating the 20-station Fairview Heights facility will offer patients a new, more
modern and spacious facility along with easier access to the building. its location will
also make it easier to access the site due to more favorable traffic patterns in the
area. There will be no interruption in service to the current patients of Fairview
Heights facility since the “relocation” of the facility will occur on a Sunday when there
are no patient treatments scheduled.

The goal of Fresenius Medical Care is to keep dialysis access available to this
patient population. There is no direct empirical evidence relating to this project other
than that when chronic care patients have adequate access to services, it tends to
reduce overall healthcare costs and results in less complications. It is expected that
this facility would continue to have similar guality outcomes after the relocation.
Currently the Fairview Heights patients have the quality values below:

o 91.55% of patients had a URR > 65%
o 93% of patients had a Kt/V > 1.2

Purpose
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Alternatives

1) All Alternatives
A. Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost.
The only alternative that would entail a lesser scope and cost than the project proposed
in this application would be to do nothing. This alternative was rejected because the
physical state of the current building requires significant repairs and the lease is expiring
in August 2012, with a 9-month extension being sought. The building is too small and
therefore the facility has no conference room and a cramped patient waiting area.
Physical access is difficult due to roadway traffic patterns and an inadequate patient
drop-off area with no awning. There is not cost to this alternative.

B. Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers of entities to

meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes’ developing alternative settings to
meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes.
Fresenius Medical Care always maintains control of the governance, assets and
operations of a facility it owns as a joint venture. This allows it to provide for financial
stability, Medicare Conditions of Coverage compliance, general legal compliance, quality
control and that all patients in Illinois are cared for regardless of ability to pay/payer
source. Fresenius financial situation and abundant liquidity ailow it to support the
development of dialysis facilities when physicians or physician groups cannot, and
allowing physician investment is a way to take advantage of Fresenius strength in the
industry while also providing for physician investment. Fresenius has more than
adequate capability to meet all of the expected financial obligations of the joint venture,
and does not require any additional funds to meet expected project costs. This facility is
currently not a joint venture and we see no need to turn it into one for relocation
purposes.

C. Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of the
population proposed to be served by the project
Discontinuing the Fairview Heights facility and sending all 89 patients to other area
providers is not an option. There are no facilities in the area with capacity to accept
these patients. DaVita Shiloh is not yet operational. This facility cannot accommodate all
of the Fairview Heights patients due to the fact that DaVita identified a completely
separate group of patients than those dialyzing at Fairview Heights to bring that facility to
80% by the second year of operation. Dr. Koch, who is the Medical Director of the
Fairview Heights facility, also admits patients to RAl North Main — Breese and to the
DaVita Metro East and Sauget facilities. There is no monetary cost to this alternative.

+ As discussed further in this application, the most desirable alternative to keep access to
dialysis services available in the St. Clair County area is to relocate the facility to a more
spacious and modern building. This alternative will address the problems of the current
building’s inadequate size and repair issues. The cost of this project is $3,474,627.
While this is the most costly alternative, it is the only feasible alternative and the expense
is to Fresenius Medical Care only, while the patients will benefit from improved access, a
more modern facility to dialyze in and additional access to home dialysis services.

Alternatives
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2) Comparison of Alternatives

Total Cost

Patient Access

Quality

Financial

Do Nothing

$0

Maintaining the status
quo, would also maintain
the current size and
repair issues at the
Fairview Heights site.

Patient clinical quality
would remain above
standards

No additional costs,

Utilize Area
Providers

$0

Would create
transportation prablems

Would create ripple effect
of raising utilization of
area providers to or
above capacity

Patient clinical quality
would remain the same.

No financial cost o
Fresenius Medical Care

Cost of patient’s
transportation would
increase with higher
travel times

Relocate RAI
Lincoln Highway —
Fairview Heights

$3.474,627

Improved and safer
physical access 1o
building and ample space
for patients and staff to
move through-out
building as well as added
access to home
therapies options.

Patient clinical quality
would remain above
standards

Patient satisfaction would
improve with easier access
and more modern facility.

The new site will not
require ongeing
structural maintenance.

3. Empirical evidence, including guantified outcome data that verifies improved
quality of care, as available.

There is no direct empirical evidence relating to this project other than that when chronic
care patients have adequate access to services, it tends to reduce overall healthcare

costs and results in less complications. RAI Lincoln Highway — Fairview Heights has had
above standard quality outcomes as listed below.

o 91.55% of patients had a URR > 65%
o 93% of patients had a KtV > 1.2

Alternatives
ATTACHMENT - 13




Criterion 1110.234, Size of Project

SIZE OF PROJECT
PROPOSED STATE MET
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE | BGSF/DGSF STANDARD DIFFERENCE STANDARD?
ESRD IN-CENTER 9,448 360-520
HEMODIALYSIS (20 Stations) DGSF NONE Yes

As seen in the chart above, the State Standard for ESRD is between 360-520
DGSF per station. This project is being accomplished in leased space with the
interior to be built out by the applicant therefore the standard being applied is
expressed in departmental gross square feet. The proposed 9,448 DGSF
amounts to 472 DGSF per station and falls within the State Standard.

Size
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Criterion 1110.234, Project Services Utilization

UTILIZATION
DEPT/SERVICE | HISTORICAL | PROJECTED STATE MET
UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?

Dec 31, IN-CENTER
2011 HEMODIALYSIS 74% 80% No

YEAR 1 IN-CENTER
HEMODIALYSIS N/A 76% 80% No

YEAR 2 IN-CENTER
HEMODIALYSIS N/A 84% 80% No

Dr. Koch has identified 38 pre-ESRD patients (after accounting for patient
attrition) living in the St. Clair County area who will require dialysis services in the
first two years after the relocation of the RAI Lincoln Highway — Fairview Heights
facility. This does not include any patients who present in the emergency roem

in kidney failure who might also be referred to the facility.

The facility is expected to reach target utilization in the second year of operation.
Utilization projected above has taken into account a 12% rate of those patients
who will no longer require dialysis services due to death or fransplant.

Project Services Utilization
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A. Planning Area Need - Formula Need Calculation:

The current RAI Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heights 20-station in-center hemodialysis
facility is located in HSA 11. The chosen relocation site, two miles away at 124
Regency Park Drive, O'Fallon is also in HSA 11. There is a need for 5 additional
stations in this HSA. This project is essentially a relocation of the 20 stations, and no
additional stations are being requested so there will be no change to the inventory.

Planning Area Need — Formula Need Calculation
68 ATTACHMENT - 26b-1




2. Planning Area Need — Service To Planning Area Residents:

A. The primary purpose of this project is to provide in-center hemodialysis services
to the residents of St. Clair County in HSA 11, more specificaily the Fairview
Heights/O’Fallon/Belleville market area. 99% of the current ESRD patients and
100% of the pre-ESRD patients identified for this project reside in HSA 11.

Pre-ESRD Patients Who Will Be Referred To Fresenius Regency Park
County HSA | #Patients % of Patients
8t. Clair 11 35 92%
Clinton 11 2 5%
Madison i1 1 3%
Total 38 100%

Current RAI Fairview Heights Patients Who Will Transfer to the
Relocated Fresenius Regency Park Facility
County HSA | #Patients % of Patients
St. Clair 11 83 93%
Clinton 11 1 1%
Madison 11 4 5%
Monroe County, MO N/A 1 1%
Total 89 100%

Pilanning Area Need - Service fo Planning Area Residents
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15 Park Place Ste 1A
Meworial Medical Group, LLC Swansen, Minois 62226
Phene: 618.234.6003

Specializing iu Kidoey Disease & Hypertension
Fax: 618.23¢4.6156

Dy, Mattheaw Kool & Cynthin Wiitcher A.PN-B.C

Junc 13, 2012

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson St., 2" Floor

Springfield, 11, 62761

Dear Ms. Avery,

I am a nephrologist practicing in rural southern Illinois, specifically the Bellville area of St. Clair County. Tam
the Medical Director of the RAI Lincoln Highway — Fairview Heights dialysis clinic. I also refer patients to
RAI North Main — Breese, DaVita Metro East and Sauget. | am writing in support of the relocation of the 20-
station Fairview Heights dialysis facility. The size of the cuurent building is inadequate causing patients and
staff to treat/work in cramped spaces. The building requires costly repairs that are not reasonable to accomplish
in a space that is not best suited for the clinic. [ am a strong proponent of home dialysis, especially in this rural
area, and our program is now up to almost 30 patients. The home training department also requires additional
space to be more effective. The new site in O’Fallon will meet this nced.

At RAI Fairview Heights and Breese, 1 was treating 36 hemodialysis patients at the end of 2009, 42 patients at
the end of 2010 and 40 patients at the end of 2011, as reported to The Renal Network. As of the most recent
quarter, [ had 70 hemodialysis patients in all four clinics I refer to. Over the past twelve months I have referved
21 patients for dialysis services to RAl North Main — Breese and Lincoln Highway — Fairview Heights. 1also
referred 11 patients to DaVita Metro East and Sauget. I expect that all 89 current patients of RAI Lincoln
Highway — Fairview Heights will relocate to the new site upon its opening. I currently have 129 patients in
different stages of chronic kidney disease in the St. Clair County area that wiil eventually require dialysis. Of
these there arc 38 that I cxpect to begin dialysis at the O’Fallon site in the first two years of operation. There
are also four other physicians who currently admit paticnts to the Fairview [eights facility. (Patient census
counts from previous years at the DaVita Metro East and Sauget clinics were unavailable and therefore are not
included. Also, I began my own practice in the past year and no longer have access to the former practice
historical records.)

Given the repair issues al our current site and the need to keep access available to the 89 dialysis patients as
well as pre-ESRD patients in this rural vegion, 1 respectfully ask the Board to approve the relocation if RAI
Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heights. Thank you for your consideration.

| attest to the fact that to the best of my knowledge, all the information contained in this letter is true and correct
and that the projected referrals in this document were not used to support any other CON application.

Sincerel Notarization:
" Y Subscribed and sworn efore me
.............. . this /Y1~ dayof ,2012
i 4 — e
SUSAN
Matthew Koch, M.D. . LLINCIS &
“a;mc; ",“ugg‘[%,fg,‘gﬁ?;mm 'E Signature of Notary

Seal




CURRENT FAIRVIEW HEIGHTS PATIENTS THAT WILL TRANSFER TO
THE NEW Q’FALLON LOCATION AT 124 REGENCY PARK DRIVE

Zip Code

Patients

62060

62090

62203

62204

62205

62206

62207

62208

o~ (| e |w|=]m

62220

62221

—h
—

62222

[=)) BN Y

62223

—
—

62226

62232

62234

62236

62243

62245

62254

62258

62260

—_

62269

-Lm_ll\)_l.—l._n_gmm

62286

[+-]
=]

Total

PRE-ESRD PATIENTS THAT WILL BEGIN DIALYSIS AT
THE O’FALLON LOCATION BY THE FIRST TWQO YEARS OF OPERATION

T2

Pre-ESRD
Zip Year Year
Code One Two
82208 4 2
62215 1
62220 3 2
62221 1 3
62226 4 4
62232 1 1
62234 1
62254 2
62258 1 2
62265 1
62269 5
Total 14 24
-3.

Service Demand — Physician Referral Letter
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DR. KOCH’S NEW REFERRALS FOR THE PAST TWELVE MONTHS

May 1, 2011 through April 30, 2012

Zp
Cade

Patients

62205

62206

62208

62220

62221

62223

62226

62232

62263

62269

62293

63128

Total

-4 (Y Y Y PR PR FCE PRI Y VY TR

DR. KOCH’S HEMODIALYSIS PATIENTS AS OF

DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2010, 2011 and MARCH 31, 2012

AT RAI - FAIRVIEW HEIGHTS AND BREESE

2009 ___ 2010 2011 Mar 31st 2011
Zip Zip Zip Zip
Code Patients Code | Patients Code | Patients Code | Patients
62201 1 62201 1 62022 1 62204 1
62204 2 62204 2 6221 1 62205 1
622086 1 62207 5 62204 2 62206 6
62207 2 62208 1 62205 1 62207 3
62208 3 62215 1 62206 1 62208 2
62215 1 62216 1 62207 3 62215 1
62220 2 62220 1 62208 2 62218 1
62221 3 62221 3 62215 1 62220 1
62223 2 62223 1 62216 1 62221 3
62230 1 62225 1 62218 1 62223 1
62231 2 62230 2 62220 1 62226 2
62234 1 62231 2 62221 3 62230 2
62243 1 62243 1 62226 1 62231 3
62245 1 62245 1 62230 2 62232 2
62246 1 62246 1 62231 3 62243 1
62249 2 62249 2 62232 1 62245 1
62253 2 62253 3 62243 1 62246 1
62254 1 62254 1 62245 1 62253 2
62269 4 52260 1 62246 1 62269 1
62275 1 62269 3] 62253 2 62271 3
62293 1 62275 1 62263 1 62275 1
63119 1 62293 2 62269 2 62293 1
Total 36 62801 1 62271 3 Total 40
63137 1 62275 1
Total 42 62293 2
62801 1
Total 40

93

Service Demand — Physician Referral Letter
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DR. KOCH’S CURRENT HEMODIALYSIS PATIENTS
AT DAVITA METRO EAST AND DAVITA SAUGET

DaVita Metro East
Zip Code | Patients

62203 2 DaVita Sauget
62204 1 | Zip Code | Patients
62205 1 38017 1
62207 1 62204 2
62221 1 62206 1
62223 2 62207 2
62226 4 62240 1
62232 1 62301 1
62236 1 Total 3
62243 1

62255 1

62258 1

62269 2

62282 1

Total 21

-5 - Service Demand — Physician Referral Letter
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Service Accessibility — Service Restrictions

The relocation of this facility is not going to add any stations to the inventory since
these are all existing stations. This is simply a relocation of the current facility.
While the facility is currently not operating above target utilization (it is not far at
74%), the only other operating facility serving the area, DaVita Metro East in
Belleville, is operating above 80% target utilization and could not accommodate the
patients from Fairview Heights if it were to close. DaVita Shiloh, which is not yet
operational, was established to serve a completely different patient population
identified by a different physician to bring that facility above 80% utilization.

Facilities Within 30 Mintues of Fresenius Medical Care Regency Park

Zip | MapQuest 1st QTR
Name Address City Code | Miles| Time | Stations | Utilization
RA! Lincoln Highway -

Fairview Heights* 821 Lincoln Highway Fairview Hgts | 62208 | 0 0 20 74.17%*
DaVita Shiloh 1095 N Green Mount Road |Shiloh 62269 186 3 12 0.00%
DaVita Mefro East 5105 W Main St Bellgville 62226| 844 [ 14 36 81.02%
DaVita Sauget 2061 Goose Lake Rd Sauget 62206(13.71| 16 16 82.29%
Davita Maryville 2130 Vadalabene Dr Maryville 62062| 189 | 22 12 69.44%
DaVita Granite City 9 American Village Granite City | 62040]21.29| 28 20 60.00%

*Current Site To Be Relocated ** Utilization as of May 31, 2012

Much of HSA 11 is rural with an elderly population. It is difficult for these patients to travel
long distances on country roads at night for treatment, therefore the 2 daytime shifts are
preferred. The Fairview Heights facility operates 3 shifts on M-W-F and 2 shifts on T-TH-S
utilizing 20 stations. The facility is only 6 patients away from reaching 80% utilization.
Many of the rural clinics do not operate all 6 shifts, which makes them appear
“underutilized” according to Board methodology.
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Demographics of the Current ESRD Patients & Pre-ESRD Patients Identified Who
Will Be Referred to Fresenius Medical Care Regency Park
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Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution

1{A-B-C} The ratio of ESRD stations to population in the zip codes within a 30-minute
radius of RAI Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heights (to be renamed Fresenius Medical

Zip Code| Population Stations Clinic

62024 9,775
62025 33,748 8 DaVita Edwardsville
62034 13,819
62040 43,735 20 DaVita Granite City
62048 1,459
52061 1,718
62062 7,658 12 DaVita Maryville
52084 1,606
62087 2,087
62095 11,237
62201 7,547
62203 8,209
62204 7,960
§2205 9,329
622086 16,509 16 DaVita Sauget
62207 8,750
62208 17,376
62215 1,872
62220 20,504
62221 27,858
62223 17,560
62225 5,381
62226 29,744 6 DaVita Metro East
62232 7,260
62234 33,430
62236 12,562
62239 4,854
62240 1,966
62243 5,910
62245 1,794
62249 15,971
62254 6,089
62258 9,199
62260 7,280
652264 3,338
62265 4,353
62269 31,348 12 DaVita Shiloh
62271 2,077
62281 2,155
62285 4,484
62293 4,748

| 62234 14,367
Totals 478,736 104 114,603

Care Regency Park) is 1 station
per 4,603 residents according to
the 2010 census (based on
478,736 residents and 104
stations. The State ratio is 1
station per 3,347 residents (based
on US Census 2010 of
12,830,632 lllinois residents and
May Board station inventory of
3,834). If the 20 Fairview Heights
stations are added to the
equation, the ratio of stations to
population would be 1/3,860,
which is comparable to the State
ratio.

2. The relocation of RAI Lincoln
Highway — Fairview Heights will
not create a maldistribution of
services in regard to there being
excess availability. There is
currently a need for an additional
5 stations in this HSA and the
applicant is not asking for any
additional stations beyond those
that already exist. The ratio of
stations to population in the area
vs the State ratio support keeping
the clinic in operation.

3A. The relocation of the
Fairview Heights clinic will not
have an adverse effect on any
other area ESRD provider in that
the patients identified for this
facilty are current Fairview
Heights hemodialysis patients and
are pre-ESRD patients of Dr.
Kochs's.  Other than the newly
approved DaVita Shiloh facility,

which identified patients in that application to bring the facility to 80% utilization, the two
closest facllities within a reasonable distance are operating above 80% utilization. The
relocation of the Fairview Heights clinic will maintain the status quo in the market, but
allow a more spacious modern facility for patients to dialyze in.

17
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B. Not applicable — applicant is not a hospital; however the utilization will not be lowered

below target utilization at any other ESRD facility due to the establishment/relocation of

the facility.

30-Minute Travel Zone of RAIl — Fairview Heights

. St.Chanes_l - unﬂm#
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Maryland #
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° K ucnnitcclty
MISSOURI
§t. Louis IJnH.';;rsIty CoNinevine tLtinons
ugy .......................................................................................................................
; St Louiso uf_mf"
né\'i%l;?_::r 5t L:ouls Cﬁ;ﬂm
firkwood iy DaVita Sauget
Ami X
uConcnfd
Mehdull
oskvite (@ - e h
Jefferaan
|Copyright @ end (F) 1938—"'2UJQ Microsoft Cgﬂgmgp& andk L= Mgr 5. Alrighisireserved, A
Zip | MapQuest 1st QTR
Name Address City Code [Miles| Time | Stations] Utilization
RAI Lincdn Highway -
Fairview Heights* 821 Lincoln Highway Fairview Hgts |62208| 0 0 20 74.17%"
DaVita Shiloh 1095 N Green Mount Road |Shiloh 62269| 1.96 3 12 0.00%
DaVita Metro East 5105 W Main St Belleville 62226| 844 | 14 36 81.02%
DaVita Sauget 2061 Goose Lake Rd Sauget 62206(13.71| 16 16 82.29%
DaVita Maryville 2130 Vadalabene Dr Maryville 62062| 189 | 22 12 69.44%
(DaVita Granite City g American Village Granite City |162040(21.29| 28 20 60.00%

*Current Site To Be Relocated **Utilization as of May 31, 2012

Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution

q g ATTACHMENT — 26¢-1 to3




Criterion 1110.1430 (e)(5) Medical Staff

| am the Area Manager of the Southern lllinois Area of the Missouri/Southern tllinois
Region of the South Division of Fresenius Medical Care North America. In accordance
with 77 li. Admin Code 1110.1430, and with regards to Fresenius Medical Care Regency

Park, 1 certify the following:

Fresenius Medical Care Regency Park (currently RAI Lincoln Highway — Fairview
Heights) will be an “open” unit with regards to medical staff. Any Board Licensed
nephrologist may apply for privileges at the relocated facility, just as they currently are
able to at all Fresenius Medica! Care clinics.

Joora todies Am

Signature

Tara Walker
Printed Name

Area Manager
Title

Subscribed and swotn to before me
this_{4!™ day of , 2012

f

Signatufe of Notary

s e A e

Seal SHARI LEXA

) Notary Public - Notary Seal

) STATE OF MISSOURI

) Jsfferson Gounty

4 My Commission Expires. May 1, 2014
. Commission # 10870609

Medical Staff Certification
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Criterion 1110.1430 (e)(1) — Staffing

2) A. Medical Director

Dr. Matthew Koch is currently the Medical Director for RAI Lincoln
Highway - Fairview Heights and will continue to be the Medical Director
after the relocation. Attached is his curriculum vitae.

B. Ali Other Personnel

Upon the discontinuation of the current facility and the establishment of
the new Fresenius Medical Care Regency Park facility, all staff will
transfer to the new location and resume their current position. There
will be no break in employment or work schedules as the facility will
relocate on a Sunday when there are no patient treatments scheduted.
This will include the following staff:

Clinic Manager who is a Registered Nurse
5 Full-time Registered Nurses

1 PRN Registered Nurse

2 Full-time Licensed Practical Nurses

6 Full-time Patient Care Technicians

2 PRN Patient Care Technicians

1 Full-time Registered Dietitian

1 Full-time Licensed Master level Social Worker
1 Full-time Equipment Technician

1 Fuli-time Secretary

1 Full-time Inventory Technician

» & & & & & & 5 & 8 ®

3) All patient care staff and licensed/registered professionals will meet the State
of lllinois requirements. Any additional staff hired must also meet these
requirements along with completing a 9 week orientation training program
through the Fresenius Medical Care staff education department.

Annually all clinical staff must complete OSHA training, Compliance training,
CPR Certification, Skills Competency, CVC Competency, Water Quality
training and pass the Competency Exam.

4) The above staffing model is required to maintain a 4 to 1 patient-staff ratio at
all times on the treatment floor. A RN will be on duty at all times when the
facility is in operation.

Staffing
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CURICULUM VITAE - MATTHEW JOHN KOCH

DATE OF BIRTH: February 20, 1967

PLACE OF BIRTH: Emporia, KS

CITIZENSHIP: "~ UsA

OFFICE: Washington University School of Medicine
Division of Nephrology
#1 Barnes-Jewish Hospital Plaza
Suite 4104 Queeny Tower

St. Louis, MO 63110

HOME:;

PRESENT POSITION:  Assistant Professor in Medicine
Washington University School of Medicine

Associate Director of Transplant Nephrology
Washington University School of Medicine

Director of High-Risk Renal Transplantation

Barnes-Jewish Transplant Center
EDUCATION:
8/87-5/90 B.S. Pharmacy, University of Wyoming, Laramie, WY

8/93.5/97 M.D., Creighton University, Omaha, NE

INTERNSHIPS AND RESIDENCIES:

7/97-6/98 Medicine Internship, Creighton University Med Center,
Omaha, NE

7/98-6/00 Medicine Residency, Creighton University Med Center,
Omaha, NE

7/00-6/02 Nephrology Fellowship, Washington University/Bames
Jewish Hospital, St. Louis, MO

7/02-6/03 Nephrology Transplantation Fellowship, Washington

University/Barnes Jewish Hospital, St. Louis, MO

Revised August 2008 Stafting - Physiciar‘ Curriculum Vitae
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LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATION:

2000 Board Certified Internal Medicine

2002 Board Certified Nephrology

OTHER:

2004 - present Consultant — Genzyme, Cambridge, MA

2005 Ultrasonography for Nephrologists Course, Emory
University School of Medicine, Atlanta, GA

2006 ASN Abstract Reviewer

2006 AST Kidney Pancreas Committee

AWARDS AND HONORS:

1997 Member Alpha Omega Alpha Medical Honor Society

2000 Internal Medicine Resident of the Year, Creighton
University

2003 - 2005 Recipient National Institutes of Health Loan Repayment
Program for Academic Medicine

2003 Recipient Buchanan Fund for Clinical Research

2003, 2006, 2008 Recipient Renal Fellows® Teaching Award

2005 - 2007 Recipient National Institutes of Health Loan Repayment
Program for Academic Medicine

EDITORIAL REVIEWS: _

2002 - present Ad hoc Reviewer, American Journal of Transpfantation

2005 - present Reviewer, Doody Publishing

2005 - present Ad hoc Reviewer, American Journal of Kidney Disease

MEMBERSHIPS IN PROFESSIONAL SOCIETIES:

2003 - present American Society of Nephrology
2003 - present American Socicty of Transplantation
2004 - present Chair, Scientific Advisory Board National Kidney

Foundation of Eastemn Missouri and Metro East

Revised August 2008 Staffing - Physiciar% Curriculum Vitae
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INVITED LECTURES TO PROFESSIONAL GROUPS:

June, 2004 Amgen Speaker Bureau, the Ritz, St. Louis, MO

November, 2004  Fujisawa Speaker Bureau, Argentina Steakhouse, Springfield, MO

March, 2005 Kidney Disease Management for the Primary Care Physician,
‘Washington University, St. Louis, MO

March, 2005 Fujisawa Speaker Bureau, Missouri Baptist Hospital, St. Louis,
MO

August, 2005 Astellas Speaker Bureau, Carbondale, IL

May, 2006 Transplant Evaluation, Management and Follow-up, ANNA Spring
Seminar, DePaul Hospital, St. Lowis, MO

August, 2006 NATCO, Chicago, IL

April, 2007 Nephrology Grand Rounds, University of Missouri, Columbia, MO

November, 2007 Medicine Grand Rounds, University of lllinois, Urbana-
Champaign, [L _

March, 2008 Update in Kidney Transplantation. National Kidney Foundation,
Gilen Echo, St. Louis, MO

April, 2008 Update in Kidney Transplantation. Quincy Medical Center,
Quincy, IL

BIBLIOGRAPHY:

BOOK/BOOK CHAPTERS

L.

Revised August 2008

Koch MJ, Gross ED: Approach to Hyperkalemia and Hypokalemia. In: The
Washington Manual of Subspecialty Consult. Xwch C, Buch E, Quartarolo J
(eds), Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, Philadelphia, PA, Chapter 18, 97-102,

2004,

Koch MJ, Kwoh C: Hyponatremia and Hypernatremija. In: The Washington
Manual of Subspecialty Consult. Kwoh C, Buch E, Quartarolo J (eds), Lippincott
Williams & Wilkins, Philadelphia, PA, Chapter 19, 103-108, 2004,

Koch MJ: Disorders of Water Balance: Hyponatremia and Hypernatremia. In:
The Washington Manual of Nephrology Subspecialty Consult. Aghal,
Bhattacharyya-Green G. (eds), Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, Philadelphia, PA,
Chapter 21, 167-178, 2004.

Koch MJ: Disorders of Potzssium Balance. In: The Washington Manual of
Nephrology Subspeciaity Consult. Agha I, Bhattacharyya-Green G. (eds),
Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, Philadelphia, PA, Chapter 22, 179-191, 2004.

Desai NM, Koch MJ: Complications of Immunosuppression. In: Complications
of Surgery. Mulholland MW, Doherty GM. (eds), Lippincott Williams &
Wilkins, Philadelphia, PA, Chapter 20, 212-224, 2605.

3
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10.

11.

Koch MJ, Brennan DC: Renal Disease and the Surgical Patient. In Current
Surgical Diagnosis & Treaiment, Twelfth Edition (a LANGE medical book).
Way LW, Doherty GM (eds), McGraw Hill, New York, NY, Chapter 5, 45-50,
2006.

Chawla N, Koch MJ: Metabolic Acid-Base Disorders. In: The Washington
Manual of Critical Care. Kollef MH, Bedient TJ, Isakow W, Witt CA. (eds),
Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, Philadelphia, PA, Chapter 24, 179-189, 2007.

Young D, Koech MJ: Chronic Kidney Disease Management. In: The Washington
Manual of Qutpatient Internal Medicine Therapeutics, 2™ Edition. Brisco M,
Lieu C, Mullur R (eds), Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, Philadelphia, PA, In
Press, 2008.

Siedlecki A, Koch MJ: Disorders of Water Balance: Hyponatremia and
Hypematremia, In: The Washington Manual of Nephrology Subspecialty
Consult. Windus D. (ed), Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, Philadelphia, PA, In
Press, 2008.

Koch MJ: Disorders of Potassium Balance, In: The Washington Manual of
Nephrology Subspecialty Consult. Windus D. (ed), Lippincott Williams &
Wilkins, Philadelphia, PA, In Press, 2008.

Siedlecki A, Koch MJ: Care of the Renal Transplant Patient. In: The
Washington Manual of Nepbrology Subspecialty Consult. Windus D. (ed),
Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, Philadelphia, PA, In Press, 2008.

JOURNALS
Original Reports

1.

Revised August 2008

Lund RJ, Koch MJ, Oldemeyer JB, Mears AJ, Dunlay RW: Extrapulmonary
tuberculosis in patients with end stage renal disease-two case reports and a brief
review. Int Urol Nephrol 32(2):181-183, 2000.

Oldemeyer B, Lund RJ, Koch MJ, Mears AJ, Dunlay RW: Rhabdomyolysis and
acute renal failure after changing statin-fibrate combinations. Cardiology
94(2):127-128, 2000.

Koch MJ, Lund RJ, Oldemeyer 1B, Mears AJ, Dunlay RW: Refeeding
hypophosphatemia in a chronically hyperphosphatemic hemodialysis patient.
Nephron 86(4):552, 2000,

Staffing - Physicia# Curriculum Vitae
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10.

11,

Koch MJ, Coyne DC, Hoppe-Bauer §, Vesely TM: Bacterial colonization of
chronic hemodialysis catheters: Evaluation of endoluminal brushing and heparin
aspirate. J Vasc Access 3(1):154-158, 2002.

Hardinger KL, Park JM, Schnitzler MA, Koch MJ, Miller B, Brennan DC:
Pharmacokinetics of tacrolimus in kidney transplant recipients: Twice daily
versus once daily dosing. Am J Transplantation 4:621-625, 2004.

Hardinger KL, Schritzler MA, Miller B, Lowell JA, Shenoy S, Koch MJ,
Enkvetchakul D, Ceriotti C, Brennan DC: Five-year follow up of Thymoglobulin
versus Atgam induction in adult renal transplantation. Transplantation 78(1): 136—
141, 2004,

Brennan DC, Shannon MB, Koch MJ, Polonsky XS, Desai N, Shapiro J: Portal
vein thrombosis complication islet transplantation in a recipient with the factor V
Leiden mutation. Transplantation 78(1): 172-3, 2004.

Hardinger KL, Schnitzler MA, Koch MJ, Enkvetchukal D, Desai N, Jendrisak M,
Lowell. JA, Miller B, Shenoy S, Brennan DC: Cyclosporine minimization and
cost reduction in renal transplant recipients receiving a C2 monitored,
cyclosporine based quadruple immunosuppressive regimen. Transplantation

78(8): 1198-1203, 2004.

Brown AJ, Koch MJ, Coyne DW: Oral feeding acutely down-regulates serum
PTH in hemodialysis patients. Nephron Clin Pract 103(3): c106-¢113, 2006.

Hardinger KL, Schnitzler MA, Koch MJ, Labile E. Stiemann P, Miller B,
Enkvetchukal D, Brennan DC: Thymoglobulin induction is safe and effective in
live-donor renal transplantation: A single center expenenoe Transplantation
81(9): 1285-1289, 2006.

Bohl, DL, Koch MJ, Brennan DC: Viral infections in renal transplantation: A
clue to excessive immunosuppression. J Bras Nefrol 29(3): 185-190, 2007.

Reviews and Educationally Relevant Publications

12.  Koch MJ, Brennan DC: IgA nephropathy: Recurrence after transplantation. In:
UpToDate, Rose, BD (Ed), UpToDate, Waltham, MA, Renal Transplantation
Section, through current.
13, Koch MJ, Brennan DC: Leflunomide: Is there a place for its use in
transplantation? Current Opinion in Organ Transplantation 8:317-322, 2003.
14.  Hardinger KL, Koch MJ, Brennan DC: Current and future immunosuppressive
strategies in renal transplantation. Pharmacotherapy 24(9):1159-1176, 2004.
iscd A 5
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.
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Koch MJ, Brennan DC: C4d staining in renal allografts and treatment of
antibody mediated rejection, In: UpToDate, Rose, BD (Ed), UpToDate,
Wal‘mam, MA, Renal Transplant Section, through current.

Koch MJ, Brennan DC: HLA and ABO sensitization and desensitization in renal
transplantation. In: UpToDate, Rose, BD (Ed), UpToDate, Waltham, MA, Renal
Transplant Section, through current.

Koch MJ, Brennan DC:  Acute renal allograft rejection: Treatment. In:
UpToDate, Rose, BD (Ed), UpToDate, Waltham, MA, Renal Transplant Section,
through current

Vella JP, Koch MJ, Brennan DC: Acute renal allograft rejection: Diagnosis. In:
UpToDate, Rose, BD (Ed), UpTaDate, Waltham, MA, Renal Transplant Section,
through current.

Koch M.J: Polyclonal antibodies and muromonab-CD3 in solid organ
trangplantation. European Journal of Hospital Pharmacy 10(5): 17-18, 2004.

Koch MJ: Use of induction agents in renal transplantation. Hospital Pharmacy of
Europe 18: 59-60, 2005.

Koch MJ: Developments in transplantation and immunosuppression. European
Journal of Hospital Pharmacy 10(6):56, 2004

Koch MJ, Brennan DC; Mcmbranoproﬁfmtive glomerulonephritis: Recurrence
after transplantation. In: UpToDate, Rose, BD (Ed), UpToDate, Waltham, MA,
Renal Trapsplant Section, through current.

Koch MJ, Brennan DC: Differential diagnosis of renal allograft dysfunction: In:
UpToDate, Rose, BD (Ed), UpToDate, Waltham, MA, Renal Transplant Section,
through current. '

Koch MJ: Considerations in retransplantation of the failed renal allograft
recipient. Adv Chronic Kidney Dis 13(1): 18-28, 2006.

Brennan DC, Koch MJ: Is Mycophenolate really necessary: Review of the
MYSS follow-up report. Nature Clinical Practice Nephrology, 3(11): 602-603,
2007. '
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Published Abstracts

26.  Koch MJ, Coyne D, Vesely T: A randomized trial assessing flow and survival of
three tunneled dialysis catheters in chronic hemodialysis patients. American
Society of Nephrology, Philadelphia, PA. JASN 13, Abstract #F-P0831, 2304,
2002. :

27.  Crowley KL, Hardinger KL, Koch MJ, Millet B, Mindel G, Brennan DC: A
single-center experience with sirolimus conversion therapy in renal allograft
recipients. American Transplant Congress, Washington, DC. Am J Transpl 5(3),
Abstract #786, 354, 2003.

28.  AghalIA, Hardinger KL, Bohl D, Ansari A, Dyk P, Koch MJ, Miller B, Jendrisak
M, Shenoy S, Desai N, Beffa D, Lowell JA, Schoitzler M, Storch G, Brennan DC:
Preemptive withdrawal of AZA or MMF prevents progression of BK viremia to
BK nephropathy: A prospective randomized controlled trial of BK virus infection
after renal transplantation. American Transplant Congress 2004, Boston, MA.
Am J Transplantation Suppl 8(4), Abstract #150 pp 200, 2004.

29.  Hardinger KL, Schnitzler MA, Miller B, Lowell, JA, Shenoy S, Desai N,
Jendrisek M, Koch MJ, Brennan DC: C2 monitoring allows a reduction in
cyclosporine dose and costs in renal transplant recipients receiving quadruple
immunosuppressive therapy with Thymoglobulin. American Transplant Congress
2004, Boston, MA. Am J Transplantation Suppl 8(4), Abstract #269 pp 232,
2004,

30.  Hardinger KL, Park JM, Schnitzler MA, Koch MJ, Miller B, Brennan DC:
Pharmacokinetics of tacrolimus in kidney transplant recipients: Twice daily
versus once daily dosing. American Transplant Congress 2004, Boston, MA. Am
J Transplantation Supp] 8(4), Abstract #291 pp 238, 2004. :

31.  Hardinger KL, Schnitzler MA, Koch M, Miller B, Lowell J, Shenoy §, Desai N,
Yendrisak M and Brennan DC: Cyclosporine based, C2 monitored quadruple
immunosuppressive regimen results in cyclosporine minimization and cost
reduction in renal transplant recipients, XX International Congress of the
Transplantation Society, 2004, Vienna, Austria, Supplement to Transplantation
78(2), Abstract #P880 pp 510, 2004,

32.  Breanan DC, Hardinger KL, Boh! DL, Lockwood M, Torrence S, Schuessler R,
Gaudreault M, Roby T, Koch MJ, Miller BW, Schnitzler MA, Storch GA:
Preemptive vs prophylactic valganciclovir for CMV in renal transplantation:
Early results from a randomized, prospective trial. American Society of
Nephrology 2004, St. Louis, MO. J Am Soc Nephrol 15, Abstract SA-FC009 pp
23A, 2004,
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33.  Hollands JM, Hardinger KL, Koch MJ, Miller BW, Brennan DC: Perioperative
pamidronate reduces fractures and delayed graft junction in renal ransplant
recipients. American Society of Nephrology 2004, St. Louis, MO. T Am Soc
Nephrol 15, Abstract SU-PO1012 pp 7514, 2004.

34,  Koch MJ, Hardinger KL, Schnitzler MA, Miller B, Enkvetchakul D, Brennan
DC: Thymoglobulin induction is safe and effective in live-donor renal
transplantation: A single center expetience. American Transplant Congress
2005, Seattle, WA, Am J Transplantation Suppl 11(5), Abstract 131 pp 189, 2005,

35,  Hardinger KL, Khoury JA, Storch GA, Bohl DL, Schuessler RM, Torrence SM,
O’Brien L, Gandreault-Keener M, Koch MJ, Miller BW, Schnitzler MA,
- Brepnan DC: A pharmacoeconomic analysis of prophylactic vs preemptive
valganciclovir for the management of CMV in renal transplant recipients. The
2006 World Transplant Congress, Boston, MA. July Supplementto AmJ
Transplant and Transplantation, Abstract #2904 pp 1011, 2006.

36. Koch MJ, Bohl DL, Miller BW, Mwintshi K, Lambert M, Brenman DC: Long
term (median 5-year) follow-up of preerptive immunosuppression reduction for
BK viremia. American Transplant Congress 2007, San Francisco, CA, Am J
Transplantation Suppl 2(7), Abstract #17 pp 151, 2007.

37.  Kedainis R, Koch MJ, Liapis H: Detection of C4d deposits in renal allografts:
Single center experience. American Society of Nephrology 2007, San Francisco,
CA, ] Am Soc Nephrol, 18, Abstract F-POG650 pp 2424, 2007.

38,  Ramachandran S, Fukami N, Simon G. Koch MJ. Shenoy S, Jendrisak M,
Chapman W, Mohanakumar T: Subsaturating concentrations of anti-HLA
antibody (Ab) activates the MAPK, hedgehog and Wnt signaling pathway in
endothelial cells (ECs) resulting in accommodation. American Transplant
Congress 2008, Toronto, Canada, Am J Transplantation Suppl 2(8), Abstract #344
pp 270, 2008. :

39.  Goldboldo-Brooks AJ, Schnitzler MA, Buchanan PM, Koch MJ, Miller BW,
Brennan DC: A novel methodology to determine and compare transplant costs
for renal recipients. American Transplant Congress 2008, Toronto, Canada, Am J
Transplantation Suppl 2(8), Abstract #802 pp 393, 2008.

40.  Hardinger KL, Buchanan P, Rhee S, Schnitzler MA, Koch MJ, Miller BW
Enkvetchakul D, Schuessier R, Brennan DC: A randomized, double-blinded
comparisor of Thymoglobulin versus Atgam for induction immunosuppressive
therapy in adult renal transplant recipients: 10 year results. American Transplant
Congress 2008, Toronto, Canada, Am J Transplantation Suppl 2(8), Abstract #9384
pr44l, 2008.
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41.

42,

Jendrisak M, Phelan D, Desai N, Shenoy S, Lowell J, Chapman W, Koch M,
Mohanakumar T: Low immunologic risk for graft loss in recipients of kidney
after previous extrarenal allotransplantation. American Transplant Congress
2008, Toronto, Canada, Am J Transplantation Suppl 2(8), Abstract #1255 pp 512,
2008,

Ramachandran S, Fukami N, Simon G, Steward N, Shenoy S, Koch M, Jendrisak
M, Chapman W, Mohanskumar T: Binding of endothelial cells by subsaturating
concentrations of anti-HLA inhibits lymphocyte migration and decreases
expression of TNF family of gene conferting protection against multiple
immunologic insults. American Transplant Congress 2008, Toronto, Canada, Am
J Transplantation Suppl 2(8), Abstract #1469 pp 568, 2008.

RESEARCH STUDIES:

1.

Revised August 2008

Folic acid for vascular outcome reduction in transplantation (FAVORIT) study.
Principal Investigator for Washington University Medical Center / Bames-Jewish
Hospital site in a multi-center NIH study. 3/02 — present

Randomized, open-label, comparative evaluation of conversion from calcineurin
inhibitors to sirolimus versus the continued use of calcineurin inhibitors in renal
allograft recipients. Sub-Investigator for Washington University Medical Center /
Bames-Jewish Hospital site in a multi-center study. 2002 —2004

Tslet transplantation in type I diabetic patients using the Edmonton Protocol of
steroid free immunosuppression. Protocol NISO1. DAIT/NIAID/NIH. Clinical
study at Washington University Center with (PI's) Kenneth Polonsky, M.D., and
Danie] C. Brennan, M.D. 2001 - 2012

MyTime Study - A three-month, open-label, two cohort study to investigate the
safety and tolersbility of Myfortic® in combination with Neoral® or Tacrolimus
in renal transplant recipients with GI intolerance. Principal investigator for
Washington University Medical Center / Barnes-Jewish Hospital site in a multi-
center study. 2004-2005

Single Dose Thymoglobulin for Induction in Adult Renal Allograft Recipients,
Principal investigator for Washington University Medical Center / Barnes-Jewish
Hospital in this single center, investigator initiated, Genzyme sponsored study.
2005-2006

Renal Transplantation with Immune Monitoring. Principal Investigator for
Whashington University Medical Center / Barnes-Jewish Hospital in this single
center, investigator initiated study. 2006-2008
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7. Belatacept evaluation of nephroprotection and efficacy as first-line
immunosuppression trial. Sub-investigator, Bristol-Myers Squibb, 2006-preseat

8. Belatacept evaluation of nephroprotection and efficacy as first-line
immunosuppression trial ~- extended criteria donors. Sub-investigator, Bristol-

Myers Squibb, 2006-present
J
Revised August 2008 10
Staffing — Physician Curriculum Vitae
1o ATTACHMENT — 26¢




Criterion 1110.1430 (f) ~ Support Services

| am the Area Manager of the Southern llinois Area of the Missouri/Southern
llinois Region of the South Division of Fresenius Medical Care North America. In
accordance with 77 Il. Admin Code 1110.1430, | certify to the following:

e Fresenius Medical Care utilizes a patient data tracking system in al} of its
new facilities.

¢ These support services are will be available at Fresenius Medical Care
Regency Park during ail shifts:
o Nutritional Counseling
Psychiatric/Social Services
o Home/self training
o Clinical Laboratory Services —~ provided by Spectra Laboratories

o]

s The following services are now provided via referral to Memorial Care
Center, Belleville, llinois and will continue to be the same after the
relocation:

o Blood Bank Services

o Rehabilitation Services
o Psychiatric Services

JVA Lk A

Signature

Tara Walker/Area Manager
Name/Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this_12¥~  day of Gt , 2012

S €

Signature of Notary

.....................

SHARILEXA
Notary Public - Notary Sea)
STATE OF MISSOUR! X
Jefferson County .

My Commission Expines: May 1, 2014
" Commission # 10870609

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

Seal

P A )

Chnnnnt Qarvirac
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Criterion 1110.1430 (g) — Minimum Number of Stations

Fresenius Medical Care — RAIl Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heights (to be
renamed Fresenius Medical Care Regency Park) is located in the St
Louis MO-IL Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). A minimum of eight
dialysis stations is required to establish an in-center hemodialysis center
in an MSA. Fresenius Medical Care Regency Park will have twenty
dialysis stations thereby meeting this requirement.

\ | Minimum Number of Stations
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PATIENT TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THIS PATIENT TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the
20™ day of December 2010, by and between RAI CARE CENTERS OF ILLINOIS I, LLC, 2
Delaware limited liability company (“RAT") for the benefit of its outpatient dialysis center
located at 821 Lincoln Highway, Fairview Heights, IL 62208 (the “Center”), and PMMCI d/b/a
MH and MEMORIAL CARE CENTER (“Hospital”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, RAI recognizes that medical services may not always be adegquate to
provide necessary care for some of its patients at the Center and, therefore, RAI desires to enter
into an agreement to facilitate the transfer of those patisnts to a facility that offers specialized
care;

WHEREAS, the Hospital is a medical center that has the capability to provide general
and specialized medical care to patients, and desires to enter into agreements with healthcare
providers within the region for accepting the transfer of patients to the Hospital;

WHEREAS, the Hospital and RAI desire that the transfer of patients from the Center to
the Hospital be in a coordinated and cooperative manner for the benefit of RAI's patients at the
Center; and

WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement desire to provide a full statement of their
respective covenants, agreements and responsibilities in connection with the foregoing during
the term of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual
covenants and agreements set forth herein, and of other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. RAI hereby agrees that prior to the transfer of any patient from the Center to the
Hospital, the Center will first determine that the Center does not have the appropriate medical
resources or personnel to adequately care for the patient. If the care needed by the patient
requires life saving measures, unless the patient has a "do not resuscitate” or similar order or
written instruction, the Center will implement such life saving measures in an effort to stabilize
the patient’s emergency medical condition before the transfer, if possible, unless immediate
transfer is required as determined by the patient, a person legally responsible for the patient, or
the patient’s attending physician. Except in the case of an emergency, the Center shall provide
the Hospital with sufficient notice of its desire to transfer the Center’s patient to the Hospital and
obtain acceptance by a physician at the Hospital for the transfer. The Center shall use reasonable
efforts to include information conceming the patient’s medical conditien together with a request
that the Hospital physician arrange for the admission of the Center’s patient.

2. The Center, where possible, shall obtain the request or consent to transfer from
the patient or the person legally responsible for the patient. A transfer may be affected without
conserit if the patient is not able to provide the consent or the persons legally responsible for the

Continuity of Care
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patient cannot be reached.

3. The Center shall send with the patient pertinent medical information and shall
make reasonable efforts to communicate medical information to the Hospital’s physician, If
there is an emergency situation, the Center will make reasonable efforts to provide the patient’s
medical information promptly.

4. The Center shall utilize the most appropriate means of transport available to
timely and safely transfer the patient to the Hospital.

5. If the Center is unable to provide adequate medical care on a temporary basis (as
a result of, for example, natural disaster, power outage or loss of water), the Center will attempt
to transfer its patients to another dislysis center. The attending physicians for the patients will
decide if a transfer to another dialysis center is appropriate or whether their patients should
receive dialysis services at the Hospital on au emergency basis.

6. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit either party from contracting with
any other hospital or health care facility on a limited or general basis while this Agreement is in
effect. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time and for any reason by providing to
the other party no less than thirty (30) days® written notice of such party’s intention to terminate
this Agreement.

7. When the patient is determined o be in a condition which would permit less
intensive or less specialized care and treatment, and such care and treatment is available at the
Center, the Center agrees to accept the transfer of the patient back from the Hospital. The Center
will arrange for a physician who is a member of the Center’s medical staff to accept the patient
upon transfer back to the Center once the transfer i3 deemed appropriate by the patient’s
attending physician. Upon the transfer back to the Center, the Hospital agrees to provide to the
Center all necessary medical information, including medical records, so that the Center may
provide care upen the patient’s transfer back to the Center.

8. The Hospital is responsible for the costs to transfer the patient to the Hospital only
if the Hospital s transport services are used or the Hospital elects to assume such responsibility.

9. When the patient arrives at the Hospital {or when the Hospital’s transport services
has responsibility for the patient), the Hospital shall assume responsibility for the patient’s
medical care and treatment.

10.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as allowing the Center to transfer a
patient to the Hospital for economic reasons, including the patient’s ability to pay for services.
This Agreement shall remain in effect beginning upon the execution of this Agreement by both
parties and shall remain in effect until either party to this Agreement gives no less than thirty
(30) days’ prior written notice to the other party of ils intention to terminate this Agreement, In
addition, either party may terminate this Agreement for cause by providing to the other party
written notice of the breach of this Agresment and upon failure of that party to cure the breach
within ten (10) days thereafter., This Agreement shall automatically terminate if either party has
its facility license revoked or suspended, or if sither party is excluded from pariicipation in a
governrert payor prograr, including Medicare or Medicaid.

1 L,‘ Continuity of Care
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12, This Apreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may only be amended in a writing signed by both
parties to this Agreement.

13.  The laws of the state in which the Hospital is located shall govern the terms and
provisions of this Agreement without regard to its conflicts of laws provisions.

14.  All notices, requests, and other communication to any party hereto shall be in
writing and shall be addressed to the receiving party’s address set forth below or to any other
address as a party may designate by notice hereunder, and shall either be (i) delivered by hand,
(ii) sent by recognized overnight courier, or (iii) by certified overnight mail, return recejpt
requested, postage prepaid.

If to RAIL RAI Care Centers of lllinois I, LLC
1550 W. McEwen Drive, Suite 500
Franklin, Tennessee 37067
Attention: Chief Opetating Officer

With copies to: Renal Advantage Inc.
1550 W. McEwen Drive, Suite 500
Franklin, Tennessee 37067
Attention: VP & General Counsel

If to Hospital: Memorial Hospital & Memarial Care Center
4500 Memorial Drive
Belleville, IL 62226
Attention: Vice President of Nursing

With copies to: Office of the General Counsel
4500 Memorial Drive
Belleville, IL 62226

All notices, requests, and other communication hereunder shall be deemed effective (i) if by
hand, at the time of the delivery thereof to the receiving party at the address of such party set
forth above, (ii) if sent by overnight courier, on the mext business day following the day such
notice is delivered to the courier service, or (iii) if sent by certified mail, five (5) business days
following the day such mailing is made.

{Signatures Appear on the Following Pagef

5— Continuity of Care
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed and

delivered as of the day and year first above written.

RAI CARE CENTERS OF fLLINOIS I, LLC:

By .A%WWVL /oo
Name: /’Beverly Meyy{ J] |
Title:  Center Director

PMMCI d/b/a MH and MEMORIAL CARE CENTER:

By:  Naney Wistord

Name: Nancy Weston

Title:  Vice President of Nursing

By:
Name;
Title: Gefieral Counsel

. 2D
Name:  Margaret J. Lovéry X—’
Title:  General Counsel, PMMCI =

Continuity of Care
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Criterion 1110.1430 (j) — Assurances

| am the Area Manager of the Southern lllinois Area of the Missouri/Southern
llinois of the South Division of Fresenius Medical Care North America. in
accordance with 77 Il. Admin Code 1110.1430, and with regards to Fresenius
Medical Care Regency Park (currently RAI Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heights), |
certify the following:

1. As supported in this application through expected referrals to
Fresenius Medical Care Regency Park, in the first two years of
operation, the applicant will reach and expects to maintain the Board's
80% utitization target.

2. Fresenius Medical Care —~ RAI Lincoln Highway - Fairview Heights
hemodialysis patients have achieved adequacy outcomes of:

o 91.55% of patients had a URR > 65%
o 93% of patients had a KtV > 1.2

and same is expected for the retocated Fresenius Medical Care
Regency Park facility.

Jora. Ubdrer, ¥

Signature

Tara Walker/Area Manager
Name/Title

to before me
, 2012

Subscribed and swo
this_|{ 2Z¥™ day of \

/ ]

Signat(ire of Notary

SHARI LEXA
Notary Public - Notary Seal
STATE OF MISSOURI

. Aetferson County
1 My Commission Expires: May 1, 2014
. Commission # 10870609

BT

Seal

© Assurances
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EXECUTION VERSION

LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of the date on which this Lease
is signed by the last of the parties hereto (the “Effective Date”), by and between SAVVI
INVESTMENT, INC., an Illinois corporation (hereinafier called “Lessor”), and RAI CARE
CENTERS OF ILLINOIS I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (hereinafter called
“Lessee’).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the said Lessor desires to demise, lease and rent unto the Lessee, and the
said Lessee desires to rent and lease from Lessor that approximately 9,448 rentable square foot
space in the building (the “Bullding”) focated on that certain parcel of land located at 124
Regency Park Drive, O’Fallon, lllinois 62269, as more particularly described as Tract A on the
Site Plan (the “Site Plan”) attached hercto as Exhibit A (the “Land”), and -all related
improvements, including parking areas, drive lanes s and ourb cutg, with all appurtenant rights
thereto (collectively, the “Premises™), pursuant to the terms of this Lease, .

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and
agreements herein contained, the Lessor does hereby demise, lease and rent unto the said Lessee
and the Lessee does hereby rent and lease from the Lessor the Premises, under and pursnant to
the following terms and conditions:

1. emise,

Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and .Lessec hereby leases from Lessor, the Premises for
the term and upon the rental and the covenants and agreements of the respsctive parties herein
get forth,

Lessee shall have the right in common with other tenants in the Building to use any
parking areas, driveways, sidewalks and other site improvements on the Land. - Lessee shall
always have sufficient access to the Premises and Lessor represents and warrants that ingress and
egress to the Premises shall be provided by Regency Park Drive, a public road, as ontlined on the
Site Plan. Lessor acknowledges and agrees that the Premises shall include (i) not less than
thirty-seven (37) parking spaces for Lessee’s exclusive use as shown on the Site Plan, with, at
Lessee’s election (a) signage installed by Lessee at its sole expense designating such exclusive
parking and (b) “RAI" stenciled in white paint by Lessor at is sole expense designating such
exclusive parking, (ii) all parking spaces not designated for Lessee’s exclusive use (not less than
ten (10) parking spaces) for Lessee’s non-exclusive use, as shown on the Site Plan and (iii) a
designated drop-off and pick-up area for patients in the location shown on the Site Plan, with -
signage installed by Lessee at its sole expense demgnating such area. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in the event Tract B on the Site Plan is developed to include additional parking
spaces, Lessee's exclusive parking area shall be increased (but in no event decreased) to include
not less than two (2) parking spaces for each dialysis station located within the Premises in a
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location mutually agreeable to Lessor and Lessee, with signage and stenciling as provided above.
Lessor represents and warrants that (i) there exists adequate ingress and egress to the Premises
supporting deliveries to the Premises by trucks up to fifty-three feet (53°) and (ii) the Building
can support a covered entryway attached to the Bu:ldmg, to be constructed by Lessee, as outlined
on the Site Plan. . oo _ .

Lessor hereby acknowledges and agrees that it has provided to Lessee prior to the date
hereof (a) a title search, (b) true and correct copies of all declarations, restrictive covenants,
master deeds and all other encumbrances and matters of record affecting the Land (each an
“Encumbrance”) In no event shall Lessor agree to any amendment or modification to any
present or future existing Encumbrance, or consent to any matter under any present or future
existing Encumbrance, that could adversely affect the rights, or increase the obligations, of
Lessee hereunder, including, without limitation, any action that (i) grants any easement that
could interfere with the operations of Lessee, or (ii) grants any access easements or other rights
of ingress or egress to third parties onto or through the Land. Lessor shall not alter or modify
any portion of the Land or Building, the parking area or the common areas associated with the
Building, or construct any improvements thereon, if such elteration, modification or
improvement could adversely affect Lessee's parking rights, use of or access to the Premises, or
visibility of the Premises from the public rights-of-way.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, Lessee shall have the right to
cause the Premises to be re-measured using the exterior face of the exterior walls and the center
line of demising walls, but otherwise in accordance with the definition of “rentable area” in the
BOMA Standard Method for Measuring Floor Area in Office Buildings, ANS/BOMA Z65.1-
1996 (the “BOMA Standard”). Such right shall be exercised, if at all, upon written notice by
Lessee to the Lessor given within sixty (60) days following the Lease-Commencement Date, and -
such re-measurement shall occur within sixty (60) days of the Lease Commencement Date (as
defined in Section 2(a) hereof. Following such re-measurement, the new number of rentable
square feet in the Premises shall become the rentable area of the Premises for all purposes
hereunder, Effective as of the date of such notice, Lessor and Lessee shall execute an agreement
confirming the same, and the amounts of Base Rent and any Additional Rent or other amounts
due hereunder that are based on the square footage or leasable area of the Premises shall be
established or revised accordingly subject to the following sentence. Notwithstanding anything
to the contrary in the foregoing, all rent, charges and allowances shall be reduced if the Premises
is measured smaller but not increased if the Premises is measured larger.

2. Lease Commencement.

(a) . The “Lease Commencement Date” shall mean the date on which all of the
following occurs or has occurred: (i) Lessor delivers exclusive possession of the Premises to
Lessee with Lessor’s Work (defined below) complete and in broom clean condition, free of
debris, with keys to the Premises and with all building systems in goad working order (the
“Delivery Date”); (ii) Lessor delivers final “as built” plans of the Premises with dimensions in
PDF, and CAD files for the Premises; (iii) Lessor has delivered a signed, recorded SNDA as
required by Section 22 hereof, and (iv) Lessee has recelved all necessary certificate of need
approvals from the applicable governtnental entity or entities to operate a dialysis clinic in the
Premises. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary,.in the event the Delivery

2 .
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Date has not occurred on or before the date that is One Hundred Twenty (120) days after the
Effective Date, Lessee shail have the right to terminate this Lease and Lessor shall immediately
refund the Prepaid Rent (defined below). Contemporaneously with the execution of this Lease,
Lessee shall deposit with Lessor the amount of $10,000 as prepeid rent (the “Prepaid Rent”), -
which amount shall be credited against the initial payments of Base Rent (defiried below) due
hereunder until such time as the Prepaid Rent is éxhausted, provided thet upon any default by.
Lessor in its obligations under this Lease prior to the Rent Commencement Date, the. Prepaid
Rent shall be immediately refunded to Lessee. In the event Lessee exercises- its right to
terminate this Lease due to Lessee’s failure to obtain any Consent (defined below) as provided
herein, and so long as Lessor is not otherwise in default of its obligations under this Lease, -
Lessor shall be entitled to retain the Prepaid Rent. '

(b)  Lessor shall complete, at its sole cost and cxﬁense', certain exterior and interior -
alterations and improvements to the Building and the Premises in accordance with the
specifications set forth on Exhibit B attached hcrcto (the “Lessor 5 Work")

(b)  Lessee’s acccpt&nce of the Premnscs upcn thc Leasc Commcnccmcnt Date shall
constitute Lessee’s acknowledgment that the Premises are iri the condition required by this Lease
and that the Premises are accepted by Lessee in AS-IS, “WHERE-IS condition, .subject only to
latent defects and punch-list items and subjcct to the rcprcecntatlcns and warranhcs of Lessor -
contained in this Lease. :

3. Lessee’s Work

(@)  Promptly aﬁer dchvery of the - Prennses on the Leasc Commencement Date,
Lessee shall proceed with diligence to construct and install the “Tenant Improvements" in the
Premiscs (“Lessee’s Work”) at its expense, in accordance with the plans and spetifications
prepared by Lessee’s architect (“Lessee’s Plans”). Lcssce s Plang shall be submitted for
Lessor’s approval within a reasonable time following the Lease Commericeient: Date, which'
approval by Lessor shall be provided within ten (10) days and shall not be unréasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed. If Lessor fails to provide’ approval within such ten (10) day
period, then Lessee’s Plans shall be deemed approved by Lessor, - No material deviation from
such approved Lessee’s Plans shall be made by Lessee without Lessor’s prior written consent,
which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; provided, however that such
consent shall not be required for changes (i) required by any governmental authority or utility,
(i1) that do not adversely affect Lessor, or advcrscly affect the structural integrity of the Building, -
the roof of the Building or any Bmldmg gystenis, or. (i) ‘which mérely. substitute matenals,'.'_
equipment, cabinets, fixtures, appliarices, and/or floor coveringd w:th items of similar or greater
quality, -utility, value, and/or color. * Lessor acknowledges &nd agrees that Lessce will have
complete discretion in ﬁmshmg details. - If Lessor. shall fail to respond to Lessee’s request for
approval to the changes in the plans for Lessee’s Work within five (5) businiess days following .
Lessor’s receipt thereof, said changes shall be deemed approved by Lessor.

{b)  Lessee shall be rcsponmblc for obtaining all applicable permits required for the
Lessee’s Work, Throughout. the process-of obtaining the necessary govemmental permits and -
approvals, Lessor shall act diligently and i in good faith and shall cooperate with Lessee and with
governmental agcncles in whatcver mannet may be reascnably required. The Lessee ;] Work.

Lease for Space

120 ATTACHMENT - 39




shall be constructed in compliance with all applicable Laws in effect as of the date of
construction of the Lessee’s Work, and with the terms and conditions of the permits by which
construction is authorized, If Lessor reasonably determines that the Lessee’s Work is not in full
compliance with applicable Laws and that remediation should occur as & result thereof, Lessee
shall use reasonable efforts to complete such remediation in a timely manner or as otherwise
required by appliceble Law related thereto, Wthh remedlatlon shall be at Lessee’s sole cost and
expense.

4, Teqn.

(a)  The initial term of this Lease (the “Initial Term™) shall commence on the Lease
Commencement Date and shall expire ten (10} years after the Lease Commencement Date,
unless extended pursuant to Section 4(b) below by Lessee (the “Expiration Date”). Should the
Lease Commencement Date occur on a daie other than the first day of the month, then the Term
shall be extended by the partial month and the Lease shall terminate on the last day of the month
following the Expiration Date. Each twelve (12) .month period beginning on the Lease
Commencement Date or any anniversary thereof shall hereinafier be called & “Lease Year.”

(b)  Lessee shall have the right and option to renew the Initial Term of this Lease for
three (3) additional periods of five (5) years each (each a “Renewal Term”), next immediately
ensuing after the expiration of the Initial Term and the subsequent Renewal Term by notifying
Lessor in writing not less than one hundred eighty (180) days before the expiration of the
immediately preceding Initial Term: or Renewal Term, as applicéble, of the Lessee’s intention to
exercise its option to renew, In the event that Lessee so elects to extend tliis Lease, then, for
such Renewal Term, all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease shall continue to be,
and shall be, in fiill force and effect during such Renewal Term, except for the Base Rent, which
shall be paid as set forth below, As.used herein, “Term” shall mean the Initial Term and any

Renewal Term(s).
5. Base Rent.

(8) Beginning on the date that is the earlier of (i) the date Lessee has completed
Lessee’s Work and received all occupancy and use permits necessary to operate a dialysis clinic
in the Premises or (ii) the date Lessee opens for business to the public in the Premises (the *Rent
Commencement Date”) and continuing for each month during each Lease Year thereafier,
Lessee shall pay monthly base rent (““Base Rent”) as follows:

() Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 5{a)(ii} below, monthly Base Rent
shall be Eight Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Three and 83/100 Dollars

($8,463.83) ($10.75 per square foot); and

(ii) At the commencement of the fifth (Sth) Lease Year of the Initial Term, and on the
first day of each five (5) year period of the Term thereafter, annual Base Rent for
the next succeeding five (5) year period shall be increased by ten percent (10%) of
the prior five (5) year period’s Base Rent.

()  All payments of Base Rent shall be paid in advance by no later than the tenth
(10th) day of each calendar month, such- monthly installment to be prorated for any partial

4
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calendar month in which the Rent Commencement Date or Termination Date shall occur. All
amounts {(unless otherwise provided herein), other than the Base Rent referred to above, owed by
Lessee to Lessor hereunder shall be deemed “Additional Rent”. As used hercin, “Rent” shall
mean Base Rent and all Additional Rent. Within five (5) days after Lessor’s or Lessee’s written
request to do so, Lessor and Lessee shall execute a written Rent Commencement Date
Agreement, in substantially the -form attached hereto as Exhibit C to memorialize the Rent
Commencement Date.

(¢}  Except as otherwise provided in this Lease, it is the intention of the parties that
the Lessor shall receive the Base Rent and Additional Rent in accordance with the terms of this
Lease without demand or setoff and free of all sales tax on rent, which sales taxes shall be paid
by Lessee if and when due under applicable law.

6. Use of Premises; Restricted Area, Lessee may occupy and use the Premises
during the Term for purposes of the operation of a dialysis facility and related healthcare uses
and any other legal use, including, without limitation, administrative offices (the “Permitted
Use”). Lessor represents and warrants to Lessee that there are no covenants or restrictions
(public or private, inchiding any zoning restrictions or any matter of record) which will prevent
Lessee from the use and enjoyment of the Premises for the Permitted Use, and that the Premises
are in compliance with all applicable laws, Lessor at any time during the Term of this Lease
shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist Lessee in obtaining any zoning variances,
conditional use permits or other governmental approvals reasonably necessary for Lessee’s use
of the Premises for the Permitted Use, Lessee may operate during such days and hours as Lessee
may determine, without the imposition of minimum or maximurm hours of operation by Lessor
and, subject to a Force Majeure Everit, Lessee shall have access to the Premises, and may
operate, up to twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week, three hundred sixty-five
(365) days per year. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary heréin, Lessee shall not be
obligated to conduct and carry on Lessee’s business in the Premises and shall not be obligated to
keep the Premises open for business or cause Lessee’s business to be conducted therein;
provided that, at the request of- Lessor, Lessee shall keep the ﬁ‘ont extetior lights on at nights,
weekends, and holidays.

Lessor agrees that neither Lessor nor any entity owned, operated, managed or
controlied by Lessor (a “Lessor Affiliate”), directly or indirectly, will own the realty or any
improvements thereon, or lease or permit the leasing, subleasing or occupancy of any premises
owned or controlled by Lessor or a Lessor Affiliate for the operation of a renal dialysis facility to
any party or entity or to any party or entity whose primary business is the provision of renal
dialysis services, within a radius of five (5) miles of the Premises. This covenant shall ran with
the Land and shall be binding upon Lessor and its ‘Affiliates, and their respective successors,
assigns and the successors in title to the Building. As used herein, “primary business is the
provision of renal dialysis services” means that the gross revenue generated by dialysis services
exceeds eighty percent (80%) of the gross revenue for such ent:ty

7. Asgignment/Subletting. (&) Except as otherwise provided below, Lcssee shall not
assign this Lease, or sublet the Premlses ot any part thereof (a “T'ransfer”’), without Lessor’s
prior written consent which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.
Prior to any proposed Transfer requiring consent, Lessee shall first request Lessor’s consent in
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writing of its proposed Transfer at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the proposed
Transfer. Lessor shall respond to Lessee's request for approval or disapproval of the Transfer
within ten (10) days after Lessor receives the request, Lessor’s failure to respond timely shall be
deemed an approval of the proposed Transfer.. Any assignment or subletting shall not release
Lessee of its liability under this Lease nor permit any subsequent assighment, subletting or other
prohibited act, unless specifically provided in such consent.

(b}  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no consent of Lessor is required for Lessee to
assign or otherwise transfer (by operation of law or otherwise) this Léase or any of its rights
hereunder, or sublease the Premises or any part thereof: (A) to any person, corporation,
partnership or other entity which acquires all or substantially all of the business or assets of
Lessee or membership interests in Lessee; or (B) to any person, corporation, partnership or other
entity which controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Lessee or any parent of
Lessee; or (C) to any affiliate (within the meaning of such term as set forth in Rule 501 of
Regulation D undet the Federal Securities Act of 1933) of Lessee. Lessce and Lessee’s
transferee or assignee shall provide notice of any transfer or assignment described in (A), (B), or
(C) of this subsection (b) (together with evidence that such transfer meets the above
requirements) within ten {10) days‘ after the effective date of such transfer or assignment. No .
such assignment or other transfer, in whole or in part, of any Lessee’s rights or obligations under
this Lease shall be or operate as a release of Lessee hereunder and Lessee shall remain
responsible for performing Lessee’s obligations hereunder Notwithstanding the anything
contained herein to the contrary, Lessée may sublease a portion of the Premises to a physician
for use for a medical practice or any other healthcare use without Lessor’s consent.

8. Operating Bxpenses and Utilities, .

(8)  As used herein, “Operating Expenses” include reasoneble costs incurred by
Lessor in connection with the operation, maintenance and repair of the Building and Land,
including Insurance Premiums (as defined below), -costs ‘of landscaping, utilities, painting,
striping, taxes, and lighting and a management fee not to exceed 2% of gross revenues for the
Building. Beginning on the Lease Commencement Date, Lessee shall pay its proportionate share
(based on square footage of the Premises compared to the square footage of the Building) of
Operating Bxpenses and Taxes (as defined below). Lessee shall pay such portion of Operating
Expenses and Taxes in equal monthly installments at the time of the payment of Base cht,
based on Lessor’s estimate of Taxes and excess Operating Expenses for the calendar year in

_question. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Operating Bxpenses shall not exceed $18,896.00
($2.00 per square foot) during the 2013 calendar year (the "Operating Expenses Cap"), and
thereafter Operating Expenses for each year shall not exceed the Operating Expenses Cap, as
increased by 3%-annually on a non-cumulative basis. As.used herein, “Taxes” means all real
property taxes and assessments which are levied against the Land and Building; provided that
Taxes shall not include any municipal, county, state or federal income tax, or any inheritance,
estate, succession, transfer, franchise, corporation, net income or profit tax or capital levy
imposed upon Lessor. As used herein, “Insurance Premiums” means the cost of Lessor's
commercial general liability and property insurance premiums for the Building that Lessor is
required to maintain hereunder. _
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(b)  Within ninety (90) days after the end of each calendar year, Lessor shall provide
Lessee with a statement of such actual Taxes and Operating Expenses for such calendar year,
which statement shall include all reasoriable supportmg documentation, and Lessee, within thirty
(30) days, shall pay to Lessor any deficiency, which obligation shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Lease for two (2) years. If such statement shows an overpayment by Lessee,
then any surplus paid by Lessee shall be pald by Lessor to Lessee within thirty (30) days
following the date of such statement.

Except as ofherwise specifically prowded in tlus Lease, the following items shall not be
included in Operating Expenses and Taxes, as applicable: (i) any expenses which under
generally accepted accounting principles would not be considered a maintenance, repair and/or
operating expense for a commercial office facility, (ii) costs associated with the operation of the
business of the entity which constitutes the “Landlord”, including, but not limited to, the legal
and accounting costs associated with the leasing, selling, syndicating, financing, mortgaging, or
hypothecating of any of Lessor’s interest in the Premises, (iii) costs of disputes between Lessor
and its employees, tenants or contractors, (iv) depreciation and/or amortization of the Premises,
(v) the cost of repairs or other work incurred by reason of fire, windstorm or other casualty paid
under insurance contracts, (vi) Lessor’s gross-receipts taxes, personal and corporate taxes,
inheritance and estate taxes, franchise, gift or transfer taxes (vii) fines; penalties and. other
government imposed charges inclusive of interest and attorney fees incurred solely as a result of
Lessor’s failure to comply with legal or regulatory requirements, (viii) costs relating to the
assessed valuation of the Premises including attorneys’ fees, except for any costs or expenses
incurred by Lessor in challenging tax assessments at the request of Lessee; (ix) capital
expenditures except to the extent such expenditures reduce other Operating Expenses (but only
to the extent of the reduction of Operating Expenses) or are required as a result of changes in
applicable govermmental requirements enacted after the Lease Commencement Date, in either
which case such capital expenditure costs shall be amortized by Lessor on a straight line bagis
over the useful life of the expenditures. and treated as Operating Expenses hereunder,
(x) construction defects or repairs due to the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Lessor or
its agents or others under its control, (xi) advertising or other promotional costs concerning the
Premises, (xii) ground lease payments, payments on mortgages or other debt obligations,
(xiii) any expense which is reimbursed by insurance, warranties or third parties; (xiv) wages,
salaries, or other compensation paid to any executive above the grade of building manager; (xv)
expenditures for compliance with any federal, state or local law, rule, ordinance or requirement
regarding the environment or hazardous waste and materials the violation of which existed at or
prior to the Lease Commencement Date hereof for which Lessee is not legally responsible; (xvi)
expenses of Lessor in curing defaults or performing work expressly provided in this Lease to be
bome at Lessor’s expense; (xvii) Lessor's general corporate overhead and administrative
expenses; (xiii) penalties for late payment, including, without limitation, penalties for late
payment of taxes, equipment leases, and other amourits owing by Lessor; (xix) wages, salaries,
benefits and expenses attributable to off-site personnel; (xx) except for emergencies, rentals and
other related expenses, if any, incurred in leasing air conditioning systems, elevators or other
equipment ordinarily considered to be of a capital nature except equipnient the costs of would
have been included in Operating Bxpenses had Lessor purchased such equipment, but not any
amounts in excess of the Operating Expenses that Lessor would have incurred had Lessor
purchased such equipment; (xxi) initial costs of constructing the Building, the other
improvements, the Tenant Improvements and the parking lots, driveways, sidewalks,
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landscaping, courtyard and any other 1mprovements on the- Prezmses, (xxii) the costs' of any
initial “‘tap fees” or one time lump sum gewer or water cormectlon fees for the Premises; (xxiii)
costs or fees relating to the defense of Lessor’s title to-or interest in. the-Premises, or any part
thereof, or any costs or expenses associated w1th any sale or, ﬁnance transactlon, (xxw) expenses
and costs of encapsulation, removal orF abatement of substanees located on the Premises prlor to
the Lease Commencement Date; (xxv) ¢osts or expenses, including ]udgments, incurred in
connection with. tort claims agdinst Lessor (mcludmg -the. cost. of investigating, defending, or -
settling the same), (xxvi) payments-to gubsidiaries or affiliates of Lessor for goods or services
which as a result of a non-competitive selection process matenal!y exceed the cost of such goods
or services if obtained by parties unaffiliated with Lessor; and (xxvii) costs for the acquisition of
sculpture, paintings or other objects of art unless Lessee expressly consents in writing, (xxiv) any
costs for insurance thaf are not considered Insurance Premiums, and (xxv) any charges otherwnse ,
_payable by Lessee under another prowslon of thlS Lease (1 €. no duphcatwe charges) '

Notwithstanding any termns of t}us Lease. to the contmy nothmg oontamed in this Sectlon '
8 or elsewhere in this Lease shall obligate Lessee to pay (i) any incorne, profit, franchise, excise, -
capital levy or similar taxes that may be imposed upon or assessed against. Lessor with respect to
the Premises, the Rent or income derived from this Lease, under any law now in force or
hereafter enacted, or (ii) to pay any inheritance, éstate, succession, gift or atty form of property
transfer tax or indebtedness tax which may be assessed or levied against Lessor or any
mortgagee of Lessor (excludmg any real estate assessments based on value after a transfer toa

third ‘party).

(©) Uaht:es Pnor fo the Lease Connnencement Date Lessor shall make avallable all
utilities necessary for operahng the Premlses for the Pemutted Use, mcludmg -gas,’ Water and
electricity, which shall b& separaely. metered to the . Pretmsen “The Lessee shall pay for-afl -
separately metered utilities, including, but not limited to, electnc, gas, sewer and ‘water (to the
extent such services are not Lessor’s obhgatlon heretmder) dn'ectly to,the utility or other service
provider, including, but not limited to, costs related to security. for the Premises. . In the event
that at any time during the Term " any utility or service ‘becomes unavailable dué to act or
omission of Lessor and causes closing of the Premises to the pubhc, all rent and additional rent
shall abate during the oonnnuance thereof, : - -

(&)  Permitted C‘ontas't.s'/Audzt Right. The Lessee inay contest the amount or validity
of any imposition described in this Section and paid by Lessee a3 an Operatmg Expense or Tax
by appropriate proceedmgs The Lessor; t the Lessee’s sole expense, .shall join in any such_ L
contestation proceedings if any Law ‘(a3 défined in ecgon 21 below) shall so require or as
reasonably requested by Lessee and ‘execute or join in the execution of &ny instruments or
documents necessary in connection- with such eontest or prooeedmgs Within two (2) vears of .
the issuance of any statement under this Sectlon, ‘Lessee or its authorlzed representatives may, at
any reasonable time, upon seven (7) days prior writtén ‘notice to Lessor, have the right to audit’
Lessor’s business records relating to-siich statement for the period covered by the statement. In
the event the audit discloses an over-billing; Lessor ghall pay such amount to Legsee, In addition,
if the audit discloses an over-billing of more than five percent.(5%), Lessor shall reimburse
Lessee for the cost of the audit. Lessee’s nght to ‘andit shall be Testricted to one (1) time per '
calendar year and shall be completed wnthm mnety (90) days aﬁer 1ts notice to Lessor e
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(e} Payment In case any person to whom any sum rs drreetly psyable by the Lessee
under any of the provisions of this- Leage shsll refuse to acoept payment of-such sum from the -
Lessee, the Lessee shall thereupon give wiitten notice of sach fact to the Lessor and shall pay
such sum directly to the Lessor, who shall thereupon pay sueh sum to such person.

9. Alteratlons/S1g age. (a) Except for the. Lessee s Work, Lessee shall not make
any material alterations, or additions or leasehold 1mprovements to the Premises (“Alterations”) '
without Lessor’s prior written consent, Such consent not A0, “be ‘unreasonably withheld,-
conditioned or delayed. Notwathstandmg the’ foregoing, -Lessee. shall have the Tight to make.
Alterations to'the Premises which do not.exceed ih cost:Fifty Thousand. Dollafs (850, 000. 00)
without. Lessor’s conisent as long as such Alterations eomply with applicable laws, and do not
adversely affoct the structural integrity of the Building ¢r-building.systems installed by Leéssor.
Lessec shail be entitled to remove from the. Premises’ during the Term all Alterations, tenant
improvements constructed or installed by Lessee ‘and any, and all furniture, removable trade
fixtures, specialized utilities installed by Lessee, equipment and personal property (“letures”)
installed or located on or in the Premises provrded that the Lessee substantially repair any and all
damage caused by the removal- of the Fixtures, Lessee must remove all of Lessee’s furniture,
removable tradé fixtures, equiprrent ‘and persmlal property upon. surrender of :the Premises.
Subject to Section 27 herem, all Alterations and Fixtimres that Lessee: :does not rémove, wrthm ten -
(10) days of the &xpiration of the Term “shall be’surrendéted with the Premises at th terrination
of this Lease. Nothing eontmned in the Lease or this Seetron 9 shall obligate Lesses in any way
to remove its Tenant Improvements orf Alteratlons from the Prermses aﬁer the explrauon of the ‘
Term. L \,. L s - i

(b) Lesse¢ shall have the rlght to afﬁx its standard slgnage, meludmg a sign on the
exterior of the Building and/or 8 monument sign on the Land and any other srgnage permitted by
applicable law. In addition, Lessee shall have the right to install replacement signage on the
Building or anywhere on the Land Lessor shall maintain all signage o the. Bmldmg and Land
in good condition and-repair,. All suoh signs shall eomply w1th all applreable zomng Isws and
shall be subject to City and/or County penmts if any N .

10.  Lessee’ s Property To the maxrmum extent permrtted by appheab]e lsws, Lessor
hereby waives any rights which Lessor may have_as;to any ‘of Lessee’s furniture, fixtures,
equipment, signs and ‘other personal property, and LeSSee § ‘Work and any Alicrations in the
nature of a Lessor’s lien, security interest or otherwise ‘and further waives the right to enforce
any such lien or security interest. All such property shall remain the property of Lessee.

11. Enﬂro pmental, (a) Lessee itg- agents, employees, eontraetors, 1nv1tees or
licensees (collectively, “‘Lessee Parties”) shall mot cause . or" permrt any. hazardous or foxic -
substances, materials -or ' waste; meludmg, . Wlthout lumtatlon, ashestos (“Hazardous
Substances”) to be used, generated, stored or drsposed of in; ofi: or under, or transported to or .
from the Premises except: in quantitles similar ‘o thoge. quanntres usually kept on similar
premises by others in the samé business or professron as Lessee’s and in accordance with the
Permitted Use; provided, however, Léesses shall at all timés and i all material respects eomply
with all local, state, and federal laws, ordinances, rules; regulations and orders, whether now in
existence or hereafter adopted relating to ‘Hazardous. Substancés or othérwise pertaining to the
environment (the “Environmental Laws”) and further - provided that, in the event any
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Enforcement Agency reqtures removal of any Hazardous Substance used, generated stored or
disposed of in, on or under, or transported to or from the Premises by Lessee or Lessee Partles,
then Lessee shall cause to be removed from" the Pren'nses ‘such ‘Hazardous Substances in .
accordance with good business practlces ‘and “Bnvifopmental Laws, such removal to be
performed by persons or entities duly qualified to handle and dispose of Hazardous Substances.
Without limiting the generality of the foregding, Lessor aclcnowledges that the following
Hazardous Substances, among others, are required for. Lessee’s business operations and agrees
that Lessee shall be pérmitted to store; use and dispose of the same in accordance with applicable
law: bleach, cidex, hibiclena, ‘metrocidé, hydrogen perox1de, and - formaldéhyde; Lessee shali
indemiify, defend, protect, and hold Lessor harmless, from and against: any and all claims,
liabilities, penalties, fines, Judgment, forfeitures; 10sses, . costs- (including clean-up costs) or
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees, consultant’s fees and expert’s fees) arising out of
Lessee's or Lessee’s Parties” breach of its obhgatlons under tlns Section or with respect to any -
Hazardous Substances located_on or about ihe Premises by Lessee.” The foregomg indemnity
shall survive the explratlon or earlier termination of thls Lease for.a period of twonty-four (24)
months. -

- {b)- Lessee shall promptly dehver to. Lessor oopxes of all notlces made by Lesseeto or., ..
--recewed by Lessee From; any: state; -eofirity; mumclpal 6t othier. agency’ hawng authohty CENC PN
enforce any environmental law or -from’ the Umted ;States Occupatlonal Safety and Health .- .-~ -
Administration (each ‘an “Enforcement - Agency *) conceming envirdnmental ' matters ‘or -
Hazardous Substances af the Premises, Lessor shall promptly deliver-to Lessee copies of all
notices received by Lessor from any Enforcement Agency ooncernmg env1ronmental matters or -
Hazardous Substances at the Premlses : . : :

- (¢) - Lessor represents and warrants to Lessee that to the best of Lessor 8 knowledge, ,
after due i mqmry there are no Hazardous Substances on, in or about the Land or the Premises as
of the Effective:Date, Lessor shall mdemmfy, ‘deferid, protect, and hold Lesiee harmless from
and against any ‘and all claims; ligbilities, penalties, ﬁnes, Judgrnent forfeltures losses, costs
(including clean-up. costs) or expenses (ricluding. Téasonable’ attorneys’ fees, consultant’s fees
and expert’s fees) arising out of any violation of -an. Environmental Law or the presence. of any’
Hazardous Substances on, in or about the Land or Premlses unless caused by Lessee or Lessee .
Parties. The foregoing 1ndemmty shall survlve the explranon or earher teammatlon of this Lease.
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12.  Damage to Building by Fire or Casualty. In the event the Building shall be

damaged by fire or other casualty during the Term, wheteby the same shall be rendered
untenantabie, then .

(a) if the damage to the Building is so substantial (“Substantial Damage”) that
either: (1) the repair, restoration or rehabilitation of the Building (excluding the Lessee’s Work)
cannot reasonably be expected to be substantially completed within one hundred eighty (180)
days from the date of such Substantial Damage,’ or-(2)-s0 much of the Building is destroyed or
rendered untenantable by such fire or other casualty as to make use of the Premises as a dialysis
facility operating at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the certified dialysis stations operating
prior to the fire or casualty impracticable for & period of one hundred twenty (120) days, then
Lessee may ¢lect to terminate this Lease by giving written notice to the other party within thirty
(30) days after the expiration of such one hundred twenty (120) day period, or

(b)  if not so terminated, subject to and to the extent of receipt and availability of
insurance proceeds, Lessor shall proceed with all due diligence to repair, restore or rehabilitate
the Premises (except for the Lessee’s Work), at Lessor’s expense and Lessee shall proceed with
all due diligence to restore the Lessee’s Work, at Lessee $ expense, in each case to substantially
its former condition immediately prior to such damage or destruction, in which event this Lease
shall not terminate; provided, however, if insurance proceeds are not sufficient to restore the
Building (except the Lessee’s Work) to their prior condition and Lessor does not contribute the
deficiency, then Lessee may terminate thJs Leage by wntten notice to Lessor.

If the Building is rendered whoI]y or partially untenantable by fire or other casualty, there
shall be an equitable abatement of Rent due the Lessor by the Lessee durmg the period (the
“Abatement Period”) from the date of fire or other casualty until the date that is the earlier of (i)
the date on which the Building is fully restored, or (ii) ninety (90) days after Lessor completes
restoration of the Building (except the Lessee s Work) such that Lessee s restoration work can
commence.

In the event that the Building is partlally damaged by fite or casualty, but such damage is
not Substantial Damnage, then Lessor, subject to and to the extent of receipt and availability of
insurance proceeds, shall immediately proceed with all due d1hgence to repair and restore the
Building (except the Lessee’s Work) and Rent shall abate in proportion to the untenantability of
the Premises during the- Abatement Period; provided, however, if insurance proceeds are not
sufficient to restore the Building (except the Lesses’s Work) to its prior condition and Lessor
does not contribute the deﬁclency, then Lessee may terminate this Lease by written notice to

Lessor.

Lessee’s insurance proceeds' related to any tenarit improvements (including.the Lessee’s
Work or other 1tems shall be used by Lessee solely to restore such tenant mlprovements or other
items.

13. . Eminent Domain, If the entire Premises shall be taken or condemned for any
public or quasi-public use or purpose, the Term shall end upon, and not before, the date of the
taking of possession by the condemning authority, and without apportionment of the award.
Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor, Lessee’s-interest in such award, if any. Lessee shall be entitled
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to pursue a separate award which compensates Lessee for the unamortized cost of the Lessee’s
improvements and relocation expenses. Rent shall be apportioned as of the date of such
termination. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, Lessee shall have no right to share in
the condemnation award or ini any judgment for damages caused by such taking or the change or
restriction of access. If there is a taking or condemnation of a Substantial Part of the Building
(as defined below) or permanent lack of access to the Premises, then Lessor or Lessee shall have
the right to terminate this Lease by piving the other party not less than thirty (30) days written
notice prior to the date of cancellation deslgnaiod in the notice but in any event not later than
sixty (60) days after the date such party is notified of such taking or condemnation or permanent
lack of access, in which event Rent shall be apportioned as of the date of such termination. A
taking or condemnation of a “Substantial Part” of the Building is defined as such a taking or
condemnation as renders impracticable the use of the Building as a dialysis facxllty gperating at
least seventy-five percent (75%) of the certified dialysis stations operating prior to such taking or
condemnation. No money or other consideration shall be paysble by Lessor to Lesses or Lessee
to Lessor for the right of cancellation. In the event of any taking or condemnation involving the
Building or lack of access to or from the Premises which does not result in the termination of this
Lease, Lessor shall, subject to and to the extent of receipt and availability of the condemnation
award, restore the Premises to substantiaily the condition prior to such taking with all due
diligence and Rent shall abate in proportion-to the untenantability of the Premises during the
period of restoration and, to the extent- appropriate, for the remainder of the Term; provided,
however, if condemnation proceeds are not sufficient fo restore the Premises to their prior
condition and Lessor does not contnbute to the deficiency,. then Lessee may tenmnate this Lease
by wntten notice to Lessor .

14, 'Right gf En’g: bx Lesso Tho Lcssor or any of its agents, shall have the nght to
enter said Premises upon reasonable and at least twenty-four (24) hotrs prior notice (except in
cases of emergency, in which case any reasonable notice is sufficient) to examine same and
perform any maintenance and repgirs as required herein or deemed necessary by Lessor, and
upon reasonable and at least twenty-four (24) hours prior notice to exhibit said Premises, and to
put or keep upon the doots or windaws thereof a notice “FOR RENT” at any time within one
hundred eighty (180) days before. the expiration of this Lease, and Lessor agrees to use
commercially reasonable efforts to~minimize interference with Lessee’s use of the Premises.

Any work done by Lessor to the Premises shall be performed dunng hours that Lessee is
not open for business (except in emergencies) unless Lessee, in the exercise of its reasonable
discretion, otherwise agrees. Any restoration work or alteration work at the Premises which is
necessitated by or results from Lessor’s entry shall be performed by Lessor at its expense.

Notwithstanding any of Lessor’s rights to enter the Premises pursuant to the terms of this
Lease, Lessor shall not cause Lessee to in any way violate any laws, regulations or ordinances
intended to protect the rights and privacy of Lessee’s patients, including those relating to any and
all patient records, which at any time, Lessee shall be able to secure in locked storage units or
remove from the Premlses

'15.  Indemn g Lessee hercby agrees'to mdemmfy and hold Lessor harmless from and
against any cost, damage, claim, liability or expense (including attomeys fees) incurred by or
claimed against Lessor as a result of any breach of this'Lease or negligent act of the Lessee in or
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on the Premises, Lessor ‘Thereby agrees to 1ndemmfy and hold Lessee ham:lless from and against
any cost, damage, claim, lisbility or expense (including attomeys fees) incurred by or claimed
against Lessee as a result of any breach of this Lease or neghgent act of the Lessor or its agents '_
or representatives in or on thé Premises. The mdemmty set forth in this Seetxon shall survwe the
expiration of the Term for a penod of twelve (12) months S :

" 16.
(8)

Lessee: .

@

)

(iif)

(b)

Defanit. snd Remedles R

Lessee Default The followmg shall be events of default (a “Default”) by the

Lessee fails to pay Rent hereunder when due and such Rent remains due and
unpaid for ten (10) days follomng Lessee S recelpt of written notice of such
default ﬁ'om Lessor to Lessee : 2t ,

Lessee defaults in the petformance of any other provlsmn of tlns Tease and such

. default is not cured within’ thirty’ (30) days follomng Lessée’s-receipt of written

notice frorn Leéssor Speelfymg such: default (unless such’ default is not réasonably .
capable of being cured within such thlrty (30) day penod and Lessee is dlhgently
proseeutmg such cure’to, cOmpletlon), N , L

:'r

should Lessee be ad]udged bankrupt, or shoiild the Lesses make an asmgnment
for the benefit of its etedltors, or should a receiver be appointed for the said
Lessee and such reeewer is not dlsmlsscd w1thm snxty (60) days of his
appointment. - , . " : . '

' _Lessor s Remedles I the event of Lessee s Default Lessor may take any or all By

of the following echons

Q@

(ii)‘

(iii)

perform on behalf of and at the expense of Lessee any obhgatlon of Lessee under
this Lease which Lessee has failed to perform, withott prior fiotive to Lessee, the

total cost of which, together with interest thereon at. the rate of interest equal to
the prime rate of interest as. published by ‘The Wall Street Journal from time to
time; plus- four percent (4%) pei annum, with each change in such- prime raté

being effective. on the date such change is publishéd (the “Default Rate”) ffom -
.- the date of such expendzture, shall -be- deemed Addltlonal Rent and shal] be
_payable by’] Lessee to Lessor upon demand '

_'i.

: with or W1thout tenmnatmg th1s Lease and the tensney created hereby, re-enter

the Premises. upon- court action or summary proceedings; remove Lessee and all -

- other persons and property from the Premisés; and storé any such property ini a’

pubhe warehouse of elsswhere at the costs of and for the.accotint of Lessee, all
without resort to legal process and without Lessor being deemed guilty of trespass
or beeommg llable for any loss or damage occasnoned thezeby,

with or without tennmatmg this Lease, relet the Premlses or any part thereof upon
such’ term or terms (whlch may be for'a term extendmg beyond ‘the tenn of this .
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Lease) at such rental or rentals and upon such other terms and conditions as
Lessor in its reasonable discretion may deem advisable;

(iv)  enforce any provision of this Lease or any other agreement between the parties by
injunction, temporary restraining order or other similar equitable remedy, to
which Lessee hereby cxpressly oonsents and agrees; and/or

(v)  exercige any other legal or equltable nght or remedy which 1t may have by Iaw

No reentry or takmg posaessnon of the Prem1ses by Lessor: shall be construed as an
election on its part to terminate this Lease unless a written notice of such intention be given to
Lessee or unless the termination theréof be decréed by a court of competent Junsdlctlon All of
Lessee’s obligations hereunder to pay Base Rent and/or Additional Rent shall survive any such
termination. Notwithstanding ‘that the Lessor may have re-leased the Premises without
termination, Lessor may at anytime thereafter elect to terminate this Lease for any previous
Default. If the Premises or any part thereof ig re-leased Lessor shall not be lisble for, nor shall
. Lessee’s obligations hersunder be diminished by reason of; any failure by Léssor to relet the
Premises or any failure by Lessor to collect any Rent due upon such reletting. No action taken
by Lessor under the provisions of this Section shall operate as a waiver of any right which Lessor
would otherwise have against Lessee for the Rent hereby reserved or otherwise, and Lessee shall
at all times remain responsible to Lessor for any loss and/or damage suffered by Lessor by
reason of any Default. Lessor shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate its damages due to a
Default. '

(© Damages. Upon any Default, Lesse¢ shall remain liable to Lessor for the
following amovunts: (1) any Rent of any kind whatsoever whxch may have become due with
respect to the period iri the Term which has already expired; (i), ‘all Rent which becomes due
during the remainder of the Term, less any rents obtained by Léssor ‘as a result of Lessor’s re-
letting the Premiges; and (jii) all costs; fees and expenses incurred by Lessor in pursuit of its
remedies hereunder, includinig but not limited to reasonsble attotneys’ fées and court costs. Alt’
such amounts shall be due and payable immediately upon demand by Lessor (and as to
subsection (i) above, as such Rent becomes due) arid shall bear interest at the Default Rate until
paid. Lessor shall affimatively list the Premises with its broker as available for lease (to the
extent Lessor’s contract with such broker does not already apply to all-vacant space at the
Building), and Lessee shall receive a reduction and reimbursement of all such amounts which is
equal to the amount of any rent actually received from others to whom. the Premises may be
rented during the remainder of the original Term, bat in no event shall Lessee be enntled to
amounts collected by Lessor in excess of the amounts due under this Lease. -

(d)  Lessor Defaylt and Lessee Remedies. SubJect to the terms and prowsnons herein
below, and in addition to any other remedy expressly available to Lessee pursnant to this Lease -
or at law or in equity, should Lessor fail to perform any term or covenant under this Lease (each
and any such failure being herein sometimes referred to as a “Lessor Default”) and if any such
Lessor Default shall not be cured and shall accordingly be continuing ten (10) days following
written notice by Lessee to Lessor of siich Lessor Default (in the event that such Lessor Default
consists of a breach or failure by Lessor to pay any monetary amount due and payable by Lessor
to Lessee) or thirty (30) days following written notlce by Lessec to Lessor of such Lessor Default
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(in the event such default consrsts ofa breach or fatlure by Lessor to comply w1th any oblrgatton
of Lessor other than one 1nvclv1ng the payment of a monetary amount payable: by.Léssor to
Lessee hereunder), then, in’ either ‘such .event, Lessee shell have the option of reasombly
remedying such Lessor Default and, in. eonnectton therewith, mcurrmg ‘reasonable expenses for
the accouint of Lessor, and: atiy and all Sich’ sums expended ot obhgattons incurred by Leéssee in
connection therewith shall be paid by Lessor 16; Lessee within thitty (30) days following receipt
of invoice from’ Lessee -with copies of:fully paid recelpts provided, that if the non-monetary -
Lessor Default in question i$ not reasonably-capable of bemg cured within the tlurty (30) day
period set forth above, such thirty (30) day period shall be éxtended for an additional period not
to exceed a total of sixty (60) days as long a8 Lessor contmues 1o use drllgent and commercially
reasonable eﬂ‘orts to cure such Lessor Default ' o . .

17. lnsmance (8) Lessee’s: Insurance Lessee shall keep its personal property,
equipment, trade fixtures arnd the Tenant Improvements insured: for - full ‘replacoment value
- against loss by fire and. casualty, under am all risk pohcy wrth cxtended coverage endorsements.
In addition thereto, Lessee shall: obtain and: keep in: force Wllh Tespect- to <the Premises S
commercial general- hab111ty insurafice ‘in. 4 minimum amount ot‘ One'. Million . Pollars ©
($1,000,000) per claim and Three Million Dollars (33, 000 000) in'the: aggregate ‘fot both bodily -
injury- and property damage, 'Lessee may cary any insurance required by this, Lease under a .
blanket policy as long as such blanket polrcy provrdea for coverage ‘of not less than $50 000, 000 ;
in the aggregate. " . , . . -

Each ltabrl:ty msurance pohcy described above (except employer 5 lrab1hty pohcles)-

. shall name Lessor as an addlttonal insured. . All such pohcres shall (i) be issied by insurers .
licensed to- do busmess in.the state in. whlch the: Prenuses i8- Iocated and (11) be wntten on an’
occurrence (and not clatms-made) basis.: Upon Lessor’s request, Tesges. shall deliver to Lessor
‘certificates of ingurarice: reaSonably satxsfactcrx fo Léssor. for each such pohcy requrred above.
Within fifteen (1 5) days} prior to the: date any. such pohey explres, Lessee shall deliver to' Lessora
certificate of renowal evrdencmg replacement of the policy.: The lithits of insurance required by
this Lease or as othetwise carried by Lessee shiall -not liniit the ltabrhty of Lessee:or relieve .
Lessee of any cbllgauons under this Lease, except to the ‘extent piovided in any waiver of
subrogation contained in this Lease. Lessee shall have sole responsibility for payment of all
deductibles, except where tho insured event is caused by the ncgltgence or wrllful mxsconduct of .-
Lessor or Lessor 5 agents or representatwes . - PR

(b) Lessor s Insurance Lessor covenants and agrees to keep the Buxldmg, lncludmg
the Premises, insured against loss by ﬁre and. casualty, under a'special form property insurance
policy for full replacemeiit value. In addltlon thercto, Leséot shall obtainand keep in: force with -
respect to the Building,. mcludmg the: Prelmses, commercial general llablllty insuranice in a -
minimum amount of One: Miltion. Dollars (81, 000 000) per claim and- Three Mrlllon Dollars :

($3,000 000) in thc aggregate for both bodrly mjury and property damage

Each lrabihty msurance polrcy descnbed ibove (except employer '8 llabthty policies)
shall name Lessee ds addrtlonal insured, Al sueh policies shall (i) be issued by insurers licénsed
to do business in the' staté i in-which the Prermses is located (11) be written on’ an oceurrence (end
not claims-made)- basis’ and (i) be at. compe’atr\re rates Upon Lessce’ § request, Lessor shall’
deliver to Lessce eertlﬁcates cf msurance reasonably satlsfactory to Lessee for each such polxcy -
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required above. Within fifteen (15) days prior to the date any such policy expires, Lessor shall
deliver to Lessee a certificate of renewal evidencing replacement of the policy. The limits of
insurance required by this Lease or'as otherwise carried by Lessor shall niot limit the liability of
Lessor or relieve Lessor of any obhgatmns under this Lease, except to the éxtent otherwise
provided herein.

18.  Subrogation. Each of the parties hereto hereby releases the other and the other’s
partners, agents and employees, to the extent of each party’s insurance coverage required
hereunder, from any and all liability for any loss or damage which may be inflicted upon the
property of such party even if such loss ot damage shell be brought about by the fault or . - |
negligence of the other party, ‘its partners, agents or employees; provided, however, that this
release shall be effective only with respect to loss or damagé occurring during such time as the
appropriate policy of insurance shall contain a clause to the effect that this release shall not affect
said policy or the right of the insured to recover thereunder. If any policy does not permit such a
waiver, and.if the party to benefit therefrom requests ‘that such a waiver be obtained, the other
party agrees to obtain an eridorsement, to its insurance. pohc1es permitting such waiver of
subrogation if it is commerclally available and if such policies do not provide therefor. If an
additional premium is charged for such waiver, the party benefiting therefrom, if it desires to
have the waiver, agrees to pay to the other the amount of such addmonal premium promptly
upon being billed therefor.” : :

19.  Repairs and Mamtenénc Lessor, at its sole cost and expense, shall maintain and
keep in good order and repait and make any necessary replacements to' the parking areas,
landscaping and any irrigation system(s) related to the Premises, and also all structural elements,
including, without limitation, the roof, roof membrane, roof covering, concrete slab, footings,
imbedded utility lines' (including electrical wiring and plumbing) of the Building, windows,
exterior doors, exterior walls of the Building, foundation and structural components of the
Building, the sprinkler sysiem in the Building, and all ¢lectrical, gas, water, HVAC and all other
plumbmg and mechanical equipment servicing the Building and any apphances furnished by
Lessor in the Building and all common dreas on the Land. .

In the event Lessor fails to promptly make-or commence and diligently prosecute any
repairs or replacements or maintenance required to be made by Lessor under thig Lease, Lessee
at its option, after Lessor’s failure to cure such default on or before thirty (30) days after notice
to Lessor or, if such default carinot be cured within sich thirty (30) day period, Lessor shall fail
to commence to cure such default with all due diligence before the explra’non of such thirty (30)
days and diligently pursue the same to .completion, may make the repairs or replacements and
perform the maintenance for and on' bchalf of Lessor, and may offset the cost thereof against
Base Rent coming due. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if an emergency exists, Lessee may take
reasonable steps to protect its property, and make the repairs and replacements and perform the
maintenance for and on behalf of Lessor without notice to Lessor.

Except for Lessor’s obligations set forth above, Lessee agrees to maintain and repair all
interior portions of the Premises (mcludmg ‘interior doors and interior plate glass and any
specialized utilities installed by Lessee) in good and. clean condition, order and. repair, as
reasonably determined by Lessee, excepting only reasonable wear and tear arising from the use
thereof and damage by fire or other casualty; provided, that Lessor shall be responsible for
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repairing and replacing any dérriﬁge to the Premises ceused by the willf‘ul acts or negligence of
Lessor or its agents, subject to the provisions of Section 18 above.

Lessee shall (a) use commerciaily reasonable efforts to bond or have released any
mechanics’, materialman’s or other lien filed or claimed against any or all of the Land or the
Premises or any other property owned or leased by Lessor by reason of labor or materials
provided for Lessee or any of its contractors or subcontractors, or otherwise arising out of
Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises; and (b) defend, indemnify and hold harmless Lessor
against and from any and all liability or expense (including but not hmltcd t6 attorneys’ fees)
incurred by Lessor on account of any such lien or claim. .

In the event Lessee fails to use oommem;ally :casonable efforts to make or commence
and diligently prosecute any repairs or replacements, or perform any alteration or maintenance
required to be made by Lessee under this Lease, Lessor at its option and at Lessee’s expense,
except as otherwise provided herein, after Lessee’s failure to cure such defanit on or before thirty
(30) days after notice to Lessee or, if such default cannot be cured within such thirty (30) day
period, Lessee shall fail to commence to cure such default with all, due diligence before the
expiration of such thirty (30) days.and diligently pursue the same to completion, may make the
repairs or replacemenits and perform the maintenance for and on behalf of Lessee, and Lessee
shall, on or before ten (10) days after receipt of niotice, pay to Lessor all reasonable cost and
expense. incurred by Lessor.in making such repairs and replacements and performing such
maintenance. Notwithstanding- the foregoing, if an emergency exists, Lessor may make the
repeirs and replacements and perform the maintenance f'or and on behalf of Lessee without
notice to Lessce

20, Brokers. Lessor and Lessee each represent to the other that it has had no dealings
with any real estate broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this Lease, ‘other than
OGA Realty, LLC, as Lessee’s representat;ve (“Lessee’s Broker™)- and BARBER/Mutphy
Group Inc., as Lessor’s representative. (“Lessor’s Broker”). Any and all payments due to
Lessee’s Broker and Lessor’s Broker in connection with the negotiation and execution. of this
Lease shall be paid in.full by Lessor in accordance with a séparate agreement between the
parties. Each party hercto shall indemnify- the other agamst any maccm'acy in such party’s
representation contained in this Sect:on

.21, Compliance with Laws Lessee hereby agrees to comply with all -applicable
federal, state and local laws, ordmanccs tules and regulations (“Laws”) with respect to Lessee’s
manner of use of the Premises throughout the Term; provided, however, that Lessee shall only be
responsible for the cost and experige of such compliance to the extent it relates to the interior of
the Premises, and in all events, Lessee shall not be responsible for comphance thet requires
structural changes, which are the responmblhty of Lessor

Lessor shall cause the Prermses to comply w:th all applicable Laws, -including the
Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”) Léssor represents and warranis to Lessee that (i)
the Base Rent was determined in arms’ length negotiations and is within fair market value; (ii}
the terms and conditions of this Lease are on commercially reasonable terms; and (iii) to
Lessor’s knowledge, the Land is in compliance with all applicable Laws, including the ADA, as
of the Bffective Date. Notwithstanding that the foregoing representation is limited to Lessor’s
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knowledge, if after the Effective Date, Lessee reasonably determines that the Land is not in
compliance with applicable Laws and that remediation of the Land should occur as a result
thereof, Lessor shall use reasonable efforts to complete such remediation in a timely manner or
as otherwise required by applicable Law related thereto, which remediation shall be at Lessor’s
solc cost and expense, . L

22.  Subordination; Leasehold Mortgag "This Lease shall be subject and subordinate
to the lien, operation and effect of each morigage, deed of trust, ground lease and/or other similar
instrument’ covering ary or all of the Premises or the Land, and each renewal, modification or
extension thereof (each of which referred to as a “Mortgage”), all automatically and without the
necessity of any further action by either party hereto, provided, however, that Lessor delivers to
Lessee a customary, Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit D (“SNDA™), executed by Lessor and the beneficiary under any such
Mortgage (referred to as a “Mortgagee”). In the event the Mortgagee or a purchaser at
foreclosure succeeds to the interest of Lessor hereunder through foreclosure or otherwise, such
Mortgagee or a purchaser shall honor this Lease and not disturb Lessee in its possession of the
Premises except upon Lessee’s Default and such Mortgagee or purchaser and Lessee shall enter
into an agreement consistent with the foregoing, in substance reasonably acceptable to Lesses.
Without limitation, Lessor shall deliver to Lessee.a SNDA in. the form ‘attached hereto from
National Bank, as Lessor’s lender. In addition, Lessee shall attom to any such Mortgagee and
agrees that such Mortgagee shall not be liable to Lessec for-any defaults by Lessor under this
Lease or for any other event occurring prior to such Mortgagee's succeeding to the interest of
Lessor hereunder. Lessee shall, within ten (10) days after request by Lessor of any Mortgagee,
execute, acknowledge and deliver such-further instrument as is reasonably requested by Lessor
or any Mortgagee and is acceptable to Lessee, to- acknowledge the rights of the parties described
in this Section and providing such other information and certifications as is reasonably requested.
Any Mortgagee may at any time subordinate the lien of its Mortgagc to the operation and effect
of this Lease without obtaining Lessee’s consent thereto, in which event this Lease shall be
" deemed to be senior to such Mortgage ‘without: regard to. their respective dates. of execution,
delivery and/or recordation among the lanid records of the jurisdiction in which the Property is
located. Lessor hereby represents’ that the only mortgage currently encumbering the Building or
the Land is in favor of Natlonal Bank and that the Land is not currently subject to any ground
lease. :

Lessor consents to the grant by Lessee of & mortgagc or deed of trust or other proper
instrument (a “Leasehold Mortgage” , as security for any debt, in favor of an unaffiliated third
party lender, on Lessee’s interest in this Lease, ‘and Lessee’s interest in any 1mprovements or
equipment located on the Premises. Any transfer of the Lease or the Lessee’s interest in the
Premises to the leasehold mortgagee or its nominee through exercise of the-power of sale or ’
similar remedy under the Leasehold Mortgage shall be deemed to be consented to by Lessor.
Lessor shall accept performance by such leaschold mortgagee of this Lease with the same force
and effect as though timely performed by Lessee. Upon Lessee’s request, Lessor shall execute -
an agreement in favor of such leasehold mortgagee consenting to a leaschold mortgage, prov1ded
that such consent isin a form reasonably sahsfactory to Lessor.

23. QMet Enioymen: Lessee, upon paying the Rent and pcrfonnmg all of the terms
and covenants of this Lease on Lessqe g part to be kept, observed, and performed, shall quietly
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have and enjoy the Premises during the Term, and Lessee’s use and enjoyment of the Premises
shall not be disturbed by any Mortgagee as provided for in Section 22 above. .

24,  Memorandum of Lease ‘At Lessee’s” request; Lessor shall enter into a
memorandum or notice of this Lease in customary form and substance and in recordable form
and reasonably satisfactory to Lessor and Lessee, and’. Lessor shall be responsible for the
preparatmn thereof and the cost and obhgatlon of recordmg the same :

25.  Notices. All notlc&e demands and requests whlch may be ot are requlred to be
given by either party to the other shall be in writing and shal! be either () sent by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (b} delivered, by hand, or (c) sent by
overnight courier such as Federal Express. . All notices to Lessor should be addressed to Lessor
at Savvi Investment, Inc,, 2020 Formosa Drive, Troy, Illinois 62294, or at such other place as
Lessor may from time to time designate in written notice to Lessee. All notices to Lessee shall
be addressed to Lessee at o/o Renal’ Advantage Inc;, 1550 W."McEwen Drive, Suite 500,
Franklin, Tennessee 37067, Atin: Jon Sundock, with a copy to Bass, Berry & Sims PLC, 150
Third Avenue South, Suite 2800, Nashville, Tennessee, 37201, Attn: John'S. Seehomn, or to any
such other place as Lessee may from time to time designate in written notice to Lessor. All
notices, demands and requests which shall be served upon Lessor and Lessee in the menner
aforesaid shall be deemed sufficiently served or given for all purposes hergunde'r. :

26. Estgp_pel Certificate, Lessor and Lessee shall from time'to_time; but in no event
more than twice in any twelve (12) month period, within teri (10) business days after request by .
the other party or any mortgagee or either party, execute, acknowlcdge and deliver to the
_ requesting party (or, at request, to any ex1stmg or prospectlve purchaser, assignee or mortgagec)
a written certification (a) that this Lease is unmodified ‘and in full force and effect (or, if there
has been any modification, stating the nature of. such modification); (b) as to the dates to which
the Base Rent and any Additional Rent have been paid; (c) as to the amount of any prepaid Rent
or any credit due to Lessee hereunder; (d) that-Lessee has accepted possession of the Premises
and all improvements thereto are as.reqiired hereunder, and the date on which the Term
commenced; and (e) as to whether, to the best k:nowledge, information and belief of such party,
Lessor or Lessee is then in default in performing any of its obligations heteunder (and, if so,
specifying the nature of each such default). Any such certificate miay be relied upon by Lessor or
Lessee, as applicable, and any such other party to whom the certificate is directed.

27.  Holding Over, Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, Lessee
shall have the right to remain in possession of the Premises for up to three (3} months after the
Expiration Date upon the same terms and conditions of the Lease and without the occurrence of
an Bvent of Default. In the event Lessee remains in possession of the Premises for more than
three (3) months after the expiration of the Term without the written consent of Lessor, Lessee
shall then be a tenant on a month to month basis and shall be obligated fo pay Base Rent at one
hundred twenty-five percent (125%).of the then current rate (including all adjustments) and all
other sums then payable hereunder prorated on a daily basis for each day that Lessor is kept out
of possession of the Premises,
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28.  Binding Effect. All covenants, agreements, stipulations, provisions, conditions
and obligations herein expressed and sét forth shall extend to, bind and inure to the benefit of, as
the case may require, the successors and assigns of Lessor and Léssee respectively, as fully as if
such words were written wherever reference to Lessor or Lessee occurs in this Lease.

29.  Severability. If any term, covenant or condition of this Lease or the application
thereof to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Lease, or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, 'shall.not be
affected thereby and each term, covenant or condition of this- Lease shall be valid - and be
enforced to the fullest extent penmtted by law. '

30.  Applicable Law. The Iaws of the State of Illmms shall govern the validity,
performance and enforcement .of this Lease, wuhout regard to such State’s conflict-of-law

principles.

31.  Force Ma]m If either party hereto shali be delayed or hindered in or prevented
from the performance of any obligation required hereunder by reason of sirikes, lock-outs, labor
troubles, inability to procure materials; failure of power, restrictive ‘governmental laws or
regulations, riots, insurrection, war, acts of terrorism, military or usurped power, sabotage, =
unusually severe weather, fire or other casualty.or othet. reason (but excluding inadequacy of
insurance proceeds, financial inability or the lack of suitable financing) of a like nature beyond
the reasonable control of the party delayed in performing its obligations under this Legse (“Force .
Majeure Event”), the time for perfonnance of such obhgat:on shall be extended for the period
of the dclay ‘ _ _

32.  Amendment. This Lease and the exhibits attached hereto and forming a part
hereof set forth all the covenants, promises, agreements, conditions and understandings between
Lessor and Lessee concerning the Premises, and there are no covenants, promises, agreements,
conditions or understandings, either oral-or written, between them other then are herein set forth.
No subsequent alferation, amendment, change or addition to this Lease shall be bmdmg upon
Lessor or Lcssee unless reduced to vmtmg and signed by both of them. _ _

33,  Lessor's Transfer Lessor shall have the unrestricted right to assxgn or transfer
its interest in this Lease to purchasers of the Land and/or the Premises, to a Mortgagee, or to any
other party, other than to a pérson or entlty whlch directly or indirectly, will or does own,
operate or manage dialysis cenfers, in which event such transferee shall assume all of Lessor’s
obhgatlons hereunder and Lessor shall be reléased from .all duties, obligations and liabilities
arising hereunder after the assignment or tranisfer becomes. eﬂ'ectlve, including but not limited to
the transfer of any security deposit hereunder. Lessor must obtain the prior written corisent of
Lessee with respect to any proposed transfer to a person or entity which, directly or indirectly,
that owns, operates or manages dialysis centers; provided that no consent shall be required as to
any transfer to a real estate investor that- merely owns land and improvements in which a dialysis
center is located and does not dxrectiy or indirectly, through itself or an affiliate thereof, own,
operate or manage such dialysis center; provided, however, the foregoing does not relieve the
transferee of the restrictions contamed in Section 6 above. .
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34, 1abrlrt1 errtatro Nerther Lessor hor any trustee, drrector, fﬂcer, employee,
representative, asset manager, investment advisor or agent of Lessor, nor any.of their respective
successors and assigns, shall be personally liable in connection with this Lease, and Lessee shall
resort solely to the Lessor’s interest in the Land and the. Prermses, and rents and income
therefrom or proceeds from the sale thereof for the payment to Lessee of any clarm or for any
- performance by Lessor hereunder Ty . Mmoo i TR SR -

35, Not an Offer Submrsswn of tlns Lease to Lessee is not an offer or agreement byh :
Lessor to reserve the Premises; - Lessor. shall not’ bound by the terms hereof untrl Lessee and _
Lessor have executed thrs Lease . Soo s .

36, ongg Bach party represents and warrants to the other party hereto that the
execution, dehvery and performance’ of this Lease have been duly authonzed by all required
corporate, partnership or other actton on the part of suchpaity, and this Lease constitutes the
valid and binding oblrgatron of each party enforceable agamst such party. in accordance wrth its -
terms. ' : : AT AL B _;-'.,, . -Trg'-r_l.l “-_:‘, " e‘ 'f ) ": .

37, - Waiver of Jm Trlal AH partres hereto hereby release and" warve any i and all
rrghts provided by law'to a trial by jury in any .court or. othér legal proceedmg rmtrated to enforce
the terms of this Lease, 1nvolv1ng any. guch prties, or connected in any-other manner: “with this
Lease. Lessee shall not 1nterpose any g counterclarm of any kmd in. any: actron or proceedmg by.
Lessor to recover possession of the Premisés based on. non-payrnent of Rent. In the evént of a .
dispute between Lessor and Lessee, Lessee shall pay Rent into the regxstry of the court havrng
jurisdiction over such dispute: , -

. 38. Waiver Nerther party shall be deemed to have wawed the, exerctse of any nght -'
which it holds hereunder unless. such waiver is made expressly and in wntrng, and no delay or
omission by 4 party. in exerclsmg any ‘such right’ shall be deemed to be o waiver of its future
exercise. No such waiver ag- to’any 1nstance mvolvmg the: exércise of any’such right shall be
deemed a waiver as to any other su¢h instance or any.other such nght No payment by Lessee or -
receipt by Léssor ‘of a- lésset’ arnount than the monthly Rent strpulated in this Lease shall be
deemed to be other than on account- of the earhest strpulated Rent, nor shall any endorsement of -
any check be an ack:nowledge and satrsfactron O

39. - Trme of Ess@c Tlme shall he of the essence of thrs Lease

40, H d" ings; - The headrngs of the artrcles, subsecttons paragraphs and
subparagraphs hereof are: provrded herem only for convemenee of referenee and shal] not be ’
considered i in construmg therr contents '; Sl o0 f : ’

: ;41. ‘ __QCMM_ Thrs Lease may be executed srmultaneously in oneor -
more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an origlnal hut all of whrch together shall .
constitute one and the same 1nstrument

42, ntmgencz Lessor and Lessee acknowledge that due to the nature of Lessee ;]
operations, certain consents, regulatory licenses, permits and/or approvals may be necéssary in
order for Lessee to commenceé and maintain its buginess operations, at the Prémises forthe .
Permitted. Use mcludtng, wrthout 11m1tatron, thrrd party consents (mcludmg, wrthout hmrtatron,
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necessary architect’s certlﬁeates) and federal state and local govenunental and regulatory _
licenses, certificates of occupancy; penmts and approvals neeﬂed by Lessee iri its sole reasonable
discretion for the operatlon of the Premises for the Pétiitted Use (oolleetlvely, “,Consents”)
Lessor agrees to cooperate w1th Lessee in obtammg such Consents Notmthstandmg anythmg to
the contrary herein, Lessee shall have the'right t6 terminate thls Leage if Légsee hag not received: .
all such Consents at any time aﬁer the executlon of thls Lease byeprowdmg wntten notlce to .-
Lessor. Co e : : L

43, RoofRights. Lessee shall have the rxght to.install; at its sole cost and expense and
using the contractor of its choice, communications equlpment on the roof of the Building at no
additional fee. Lessee shiall obtain Lessor’s. prior- written' approval which approval shall not be
unreasonably- -withheld, ‘conditioned, or delayed prior to. any. penetrsuOns to the roof ' Lessee -
ghall be solely responmble for the repair of any and all damages caused by installation, removal, -
or the presence of, or in any way connected. with-stich equlpment Upon explratlon or earlier -
termination of this Lease, Lessee shall femove such ‘equipment and shall repair and restore the .
roof to the condition existing at the Lease Commencement Date of thls Lease, normal wear ‘and
tear and casualty excepted " : -

. 44, B ight of FIl’St Refusal. Lessee shall have a- contmmng ﬁrst ‘refusal (“Right of
'Refusal”) to lease any space in the Building adjacent to the Premises as hereinafter set forth. If .
at any time during the Term, Lessor shall:receive & ‘bona fide offer from an unefﬁhated third .
party to lease space adjacent to the Prennses (the “Offer”), which Offer Lessor shall desire to _
accept, Lessor. shall promiptly deliver: o’ Lessee 'a copy of the. Offer ‘and Lésseé. may, within
thirty (30) days thereafier, elect to leage suchi-space on the i same fermis as those sét Torth'in the
Offer; provided that if Lessor doés not execiite a lease W1th such third party on’ the same terms as
the Offer (or terms. less favorable 10 sueh thu'd psrty) w1thm “three [6)] tonths after first -
delivering a copy of such Offer to I.essee, Lessor must agam present such Oifer to Lessee
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF the Lessor and Lcssee have caused this Lease to be
executed asa sealed instrument, as of the Effectwe Date

T I‘-I-‘ ,- . \I{ESSOR‘:.‘ . -» - .

o ts Doy P Pm pT
---'.:..:J_-;_Date r/l K/JL "

g LESSEE‘ L3

" RALCARE CENTERS OF
. FBLINOIS I, LLC

e '-BY'f'

. L

{"DO
I- \'-”If-:Date //3’f/’9-
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- -[Léégaé*s ‘w_ohc]*;
On or before the Lease Cmnmeneement Date, Lessor shall de]lver the Prermses in broom-
clean condition with interior walls in good condition and'1 Teépair and all, building and mechanical
systéms in good workmg ofder.. Lessor's ‘Wark:shall be done in.a good and: worlcmarﬂdce manner :
and in comphance with alI apphcable laws Lessot‘s Work shall mclude the follewmg '

() Lessor understands that Lessee 5 water supply hne’ reqwrement is'a dedlcated 2
inch water supply line with a minimum of 40 psi operatmg pressure However, since Lessorhasa
2 inch water supply line currently supplying water to the entire buﬂdmg, and as long a8. Legsor.
and Lessee are in compliance.with local codes, and as long a5 Leéssee’s engineers indicate that a
water supply line for the Lessee’s space connected to ‘the main 2.inch water supply’ line will be
sufficient for the Lessée, Lessee will allow the currént water supply lme oonﬁguratlon to satisfy
this requirement. However, Lessee will requiré-written assm'ance from Ledsor that if the water
demands of the other Lessee in. the bulldmg (cluropractor or any another tenant.in. the future) -
were to increase, that Lessee would get dedicated aecess 10, the 2, inch water line “and .the, other"
tenant- would then have to be put on another water lme (518 or a' 1 meh) at- the Lessor s sole
expense ‘L Co AR

(11) Lessor understands that Lessee s sewer lme reqmrement is for Lassor to supply a
dedicated 4 inch sewer line for Lesseéé’s space. However, since Lessor has a6 inch sewer line
currently serving the entire buﬂdmg, and as Tong as Lessor and Lessee’ ‘are in compliance with |
local codes, and as lorig as Lessee’s engineers indicate that a 4 inch sewer line for the Lessee’s
space connected to-the main 6 inch sewer line will be sufficient for the Lessee, Lessee will allow -
the current sewer oonﬁgurat:on to satisfy this reqmrement Aceordmgly, Lessee will connect into
the existing 6 inch service. that ‘currently is- located within: 5 0" -of tie- penmeter of Lessée’s -
space. However, if Lessee 8 engmeers and local eodes determme thls eonﬁguratwn is msufﬁclenf
Lessor will bring a dedrcated 4 meh sewer dram lme to wrthm 5'-0" of Lcssee s spaee at Lessor 8
soleexpense T T e . SR S s

(iii) Gas service will be rated to have 6 1nch water column pressure and shall supply at
least 800, 000 B’I‘Us : T ‘ e

“(iv) HVAC umts shall be ir place, operatlonal in good workmg order and be. able to
provide a. normal range of heatmg and eoolmg for 8 medlcal use New RTUs are already in-
place, T

(v)  Three-phase 1,000Al208ve1ecm<: sefsiee." L

'.._'2_
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(vi)  Provide drywall sufficient in quattity to cover gl existing perimeter walls.
(vii)- -aniire the existihé estei‘iof:fss'eilsfha}se- st‘-iéiist' ﬁ-i-9 'i'nsolstioni in'pléoe._ o
(viii) Dedlcated entrances on the bmldmg in the locat:ous u1d1cated on the Slte Plan

(ix) .City approved trash enclosure Wlth vandal proof blohazard waste section and
appropriate concrete approach area. The trash area to. accommiodate 8 minimum of two 4 ysrd
containers {one trash, one recycle), exelus:vely for Lessee use In addltlon, a metal roof shall be
installed over the blohazard sectlon L . : - -

(x) Full comphanco wﬂh ADA and all. looal ]unsdlchon $ handlcsp requlrements
Lessor shall comply with all ADA regulatlons affee'tir’j‘g the Bmldmg 1noludmg, but not limited -
to, exterior and interiot doors, concreté curb, cuts, famps and walk approaches to / from the
parking lot, parking lot stripmg for gix. (6) dedlcated handlcap stalls (4 dlrectly in front of. *
building (including one van stall); and 2:0on oppos1te slde of. drive. a:sle) inclusive of pavement .
markings and stall sxgns with current IocaI prov1s10ns for handleap parlong stalls dehvery areas -
and walkways. : : S '

(xi) Inspeotlon of roof systom and lf neodod repalr ‘of & any deﬁclone1es Roof system
is to inciude all gutters faselas, downspouts and ice control measures PR .

(xii) - Inspectlon of parkmg lot and repa1r of any dramage 1ssues and holes

(xm) Lessor shall rounburse Lessee for the eost of concrete materlals towards ‘
completion of concrete slab floor: along back of mtenor space promptly upon dehvery of mvmces
from Lessee to Lessor for such work s , o S

r R
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.- EXHIBITC.

'RENT COMMENCEMENT DATE AGREEMENT -

fr . A

a0

Re: ;Lease Agreement (the “Lg ’) dated e .
- betiveen :Savvi Investment, Inc:; (“Lessot"), and RAI Cate Centers of L
IllmomI LLC (“Less ") SRR :

. -'\' -". 4‘ -
. .

Lessor and Lessee agree as foIioWsi o -

1. Deﬁned Terms CapztahZecl terms used herem but not deﬁned shall be gwen the
meanings ass1gned to thern in the Lease o y

: 2.. on@tlon of Prem1ses Lessee has aeeepted possessmn of the Premlses pursuant' o
to the Lease. All of the, oondmon of the Prermses is satlsfactory to Lessee in all respeets sub]ect ‘
to the completlon of any punch-hst 1tems o v - .

201

4. Exmrg_on Date -The': _Iﬁitial Term of - the ..Lease. will “expire on

5. Rent Commen ent D t TheRent Commencement Daté,(éfamle:Lease- is

6. Rentgble Area. The measured Rentable Area of the Prermses 18
rentable square feet. KR IR \fl,;. .._.._‘,,/ L AT

7. Ratification, Lessor and LeSSee further conﬁrm that as of the date hereof (a) the -
Lease in good standing andin full force and- effect, and (b) neither. of them has. any known
clainis, counterclalms set-offs or defenses agamst the other party ansmg out of the Lease

T e . i,
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_ 8.. Blndln&Eﬁem GOVemmE Laﬂ Bxcept as modlﬁed hereby, the Lease shall

" remain in full effect and this letter shall ‘be bmdmg upon Lessor anid Lessee ‘and their respectwe

successors-and assigns. If any inconsistency exists or arises between the termsof this letter and

the terms of the Léase, the terms of thxs letter shall prevall ThlS letter shall be govemed by the'
laws of the state in which the Prennses are iocated PRt . .

9, Counterparts. . This’ letter may be eicecuted in counterparts, each of whmh shall
constitute and ongmal and whlch together shall constttute one and the same. mstrument '

[SIGNATURBS ON FOLLOWI'NG PAGE]
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Executed by Lessor and Lessee on the dates set forth below to be effective as of the Rent

Commencement Date set forth above.

Witness:

Witness:

Witness:

Witness:

LESSOR:
SAVVI INVESTMENT, INC.

By:

Date;

LESSEE:

RAI CARE CENTERS OF
ILLINOIS }, LL.C

By

Date:

Lease for Space
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EXHIBIT 1
LEASE SCHEOULE NO. FES.0000505-015
(True Lewse)
LEBSOR: BIEMENS FINANCIAL BERVICER, INC. LEBSEENATIONAL MEDICAL CARE, (NG,
{'Lesin)} 2 Dulawam somoraton
¢Losnee”)
Addrexs: 170 Wood Ave South Addrassy: 920 Winler Street
1eslin, MJ 036830 Wathem, bAA 02485

1, Leasor and Lestas hove ontered into a Fastyr Equipment Loase Agresment dated as of Margh 10, 2004 {Hasder
Lense™), indixiing this Schadule (logether, e ‘Legse®), pursuant 1o which Laosor o7c Lessss have agroed 1 lzase ho
equipmen) descibed in XA herelo {Ba “Equipment). Letses snd Lyssor each reaffimn all of s respectve
represandalions, wartentins and coveranis cet forth in the hazier Leass, sl of the temr and provizions of which are
Icerporated hetein by raferencn, as of the dale haresl. Lassos further cortites ia Leasor that Lexses hes seiocied the
Equipiment and pried i the sxeoulicn of Cvs Schedids ey recaived snd spproved b purchase oxder, puiciacs sgrazment of
wpply contracd umder which e Equipment wii be moquired for purposss of Lnks Lease.

2, The Acquisition Cosl of the Equipmentfs: $ 3,673 370,04

3. The Equipmont wil be logated at the localion spacified In EXBRAA harets, criess e Equipment is of the typs
normardy used at more than ons kcation {such ss vohicular equipmant, constuction mathinery of e fice), Invhikh case the
Equipment «ll e used tn the area tpotihnd on Exhiph A heretd, .

4, TERM OF LEASE: ‘The term for which The Equipmen! shali be lessad byl be for 72 months (the sl Laase
Tam’), commencing on the Lezss Teem Commencemant Date os st forth In the Accepianoa Coadihicaie to this Schedifs, and
expring DAV30/204E, uniess rentived, extendad, of sooner tmminaled in socomssnce vAh (e leme of the Lease.

8. RENT: {a) Paynble in moniMy instalments on the 26th day of pach month during the laifisl Leass Toms s Bliows:

Rental Nurrher of Amount of
Paymant Ronlal Esch: Renlal
Humpers Paynenis Bgymenl
1.72 T2 $57,954.97

. Lessor will invoive t2ssee Tor sl yabes, ups sndior pessonal proparty 2xes a3 and whan dus and pyabie in
seoentance whh applicabio [, ks Lessoe delivons fo Lessne o valld exemplion cartificile Wil reapect lo guch faves,
Do¥very of such verbficals shall conninls Lossaa's representalion and waranty that no such e shad becoms dus end paystla
Wit respact to the EgUipmant amd Lesses shalt Indemally and hals hamilass Lassor from and ageinst any end all Exbility of
damzges, Inciuding lala charges wrd Intarest which Lessor mey kisur by reason of the assessment of suek tax

8. OTHER PAYMENTS:
{3 Lasser sgroes 15 pay Renls] Paympals It scvancs,

GIS Fxkibin | 2 doc
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7. EARLY TERMINATION OPTEON: Sa fong oy né Event of Defoult under the Laase, nor any svent which upon nolioe
of impse ot (e of both wouks constitute euch &n Event of Defautl has cocumed and I contnulng, Lessan shafl have (e option
I forminale the Leasa for 81, but nol eas than afl, of tha Cquipment on the renfal payment dala for the tronty-fonth {248)
monihty resisl pxyment {Tha Teminaton Data™). Létsee shall notly Lessor imwiiSng of Lesvos's infantion & sxeccis
such torminallon oplion at lasl ninety (50) days prior to the Exdy Tomination Oate of such Loase. Lasare shafl pay b Lessor
on (e Eady Yerroiaslion Date an aggreawts srmount {the "Temuination Amount’) equad ts: {i) sl reatal payments, fats charges
and ofher amounts dus snd owing tmdar the Losss, Inthiding the remat paymant due on the Eady Termination Date; ples () any
urd nk {axes, nssesamants and ather cherges duo b copnction with the tannlastion of the Leaee; plra () 64% of e orighal
Aczputiitor Coml of tha Equiptient 23 eet forth ke,

i addiion 1o the paymont of the Yemiinalon Amoorst, Lozzon shat retumm h of o Equipment to Lessor on U Eady
Temninaton Date pursuant o and in (e condition raquired by tho temns of the Lease,

In (he ayent Lessae shall nol pay the Tenmination Amount on the Eady Teminalion Date and ritum the Equloment to
Lakear pursuant to, end in B condiion requined by the Laase, then the Leass Tem for tho Equipment ehal continue i
Torce 349 sffect and this Exrly Termination Optlon shasi e rul and vold pnd of no furfher foros or effecl. .

&, EARLY PUACHASE OPTION: 5o king as a0 Evant of Dafaul under the Leas, nor aity evenl which upon nolice of
lapse of tima or bath would consiitute such an Event of Dafautl has occurred nd s corfinulng. Leesss shall havs (re oplion Yo
termingte the Lezss end purchase &1, bt not less than afl, of te Equipment o tha mnt payment date kor the sbdialh (601}
menthly centat paymen (the "Eanty Pyrchase Opion Date™) Lorveo shall oty Leseor In wilting of Lessed's intantion to
mewiss such early plrchase ontion at least ninely (90) days prlor to the Earty Purchasa Option Dat of suth Lease. Losses
thal pey 1 Lessor on tha Early Purchese Option Date gn apgregats amount {ihe “Purchese Prcs™) equsl fo: (] o8 rented
payments, itlo chergas end other snounts dun and owky under B Laaes, trdduding the ronlsl payment dua ci the Eady
Puschase Option Date; phs (F) tny and 55 laxes, assessments #nd othor charges due in connackn with the lazminalion of the
Leass anc the purchass of the Equipment; plus (%) 28.02% of the onginal Acquisition Coxt of the Equtpment rs st forth harein,

Provided [hat 1.essor shall hava cocolved the Purchase Price on the Eardy Purchase Option Date, Leesar shaki convey
at of s right, 1ita and Rierestin and to B Equipment to Lestes on the Eary Rurchase Option Bale, on on "AS-13%,
“WHEAES3" BASIS WITHOUT REFRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 5nd wilhoul (ocourss o
Lozsor; provikiad however, that nobsithsianding anything slse hergin to the contrary, Lessor shatl wartant that the Equipenentis
fres and dear of 2 fons, charges and encumbrances crated by, Uirough or Under Lessor, sad thet Lessor hus gaod end lwéha
ight, povasr and Emhodty to sell sald Equipment jo Lesass.

tr the aven! Lestes shellnot pay the Purchase Prica o the Early Puichase Option Date then the Initie Lezse Temor
20y renmwil temm Tt the Eguipment shall continus (n ful foroe aad alfsct and thia Early Purchass Cplion ehal ba nui and vo'd
el g ng Eurther foros or effact.

8. PURCHASE OPTION: Solong as 1o Evenl of Detauk, nor soy event which tpon nofios o Tapss of time or bals vedd
consilule and Event of Dalgoll, oy oocurrad md 18 continulng Under [ L=ase, and tha Leass has rot been catlsr tenminated,
ond Upah not less thats ninety (B0} days peior wiilien naliot, Lesaes shalt have the oplion, upon expiration of the infal Leaso
Tosm, ranowe] tefm or Extonded Torm, to puechase af, but n0t ey hatn a1, of Lesser's dght, £50 and Interasl tn and to the
Equipanl at the nd of (he Lasa Temn for & Purchase Optica Prion {hereiafier duficed), on the last day of the Lease Tenn, in
trunadiatety avalable funds.

The Purchase Option Price shall ba equal fo the Falr Market Vadue of te Equipment (ereinafier defined) plus any esics,
uxe, property or 8xcite taxds on or messursd by such sals, any pthes Amounts secrued snd unpald undor the Leass ond 20y
other expenses of tranafer including UCC temmination Tues.

The "Fax Market Valug® of tha Equipmant, chat ba ditemuned on the basta of, #ad shall e &qual in amaunt (o tha valve
which would be obtained In, an amisdength transaciion betemen an nformed end witing buyer-c34r (ol (i2n & lessee
ourreally is p 1on of 9 i80¢ equipmant deaied and an informed and willing sallor undar no comouleion To ack and, h such
detsrminason, costs of comaval fom ihe loclion of currenl use shel not be 1 geduption from euch valys. For purpotas of
datecminiog Fair Market Vietus X wil ba Assuimad hat a3 o e 021 of detemminetion (el fre Equipment b in ot 2 B
oordition required by the Leasa, A durng or altar the pario of thirty {30) days from Lessor's recelpt of (e aforasakd wition
notion from Lesses 6f Lessou’s intenten ko axerdes said purchacs oplion, Levsor and Lessee determing thal they canne! agres
uin such fak markel valua, then cich valus shalt bo dotermined bn accordance wilh [he foregolng definkiion by & quakiied
Iy 1 wppy s seiected by mutual By A b Lesyor and Lesses, oc falEag such pgreemenl, by & pane) ol
1hren indopendant appraisers, ane of whom shafl bo seieded by Lovyor, the second by Lesses ahd the tird desipnaled by the
first two piocied, i any carty refuagy or fala to appolnl an appralser of & third sppraiser ceinol be sgrasd upon by e other
two mppralsers, suth appralser or eppiatsers shal be ssjaded i xotord w17 Bha fnes Tor comymenci] aftftraion of the

015 Exhibhr 12,60t
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Americon Arbitration Association. Tha appraisars thafl be Instracked 10 Mthe stch datarminaiion within a parksd of twanly (20)
Shys tobgraing o iment, and shat eomglly commuicats such daterination in weling lo Lessor and Lasses. The
determinwtion of Falr Market Vaiue 80 maco by the scie appralaar oc by 4 majorfly of tho sppraisess, If fere is mora than enn,
£hal ba contiusivaly binding upon both Lassor end [osses. AR appralial costy, et and expersms shafl bt sayabis by (e13se.
The stls of the Equipment by Lexsor o Lesase shaT ba on en AS-19, VAHERE-IS basls, wirt raooume 1o, of wamenty by,
Lessoq providad however, it notwillistanding anylhing else horeln 16 the contrary, Lexsor ehall worrant that the Equipment Is
{roe and cloar of 21 Tkre, thaiges snd encumbeances creatad by, tough or witky Lestot, wnd {had Lessor bas pood and lewid
Highi, power 2nd authortty lo sall sald Caulpmant 19 Lesana.

Lexsas shak bo deamed to hitva waived thls Purchase Option sinkess t providos [essor wiitien notios of B Emsvocabie
electlon (o exercive this cpbion wilhin fsen {15] days afier Logasa is advised of the Fair Market Vakie of the Equigment.

Lasste may shact [0 rotum gk, but nof less than o3, of the Equipmant at the and of the (nal Laas2 Term of &y nonewal
term, provided that euch retm wil only be Med M i) the Lassaz provides tha Lessor with vaitten natioa of is intention 1o
eahum Py Equipment rod iass than ninsty (80} days pior 1o Do end of Lhe ke Yam, #nd (1) the ratum of tha Equipment s in
sccandance with the tenms of {he Leaso and any Bchedutas, Acoeptance Gerificalo, ftiders, Cxnitits 2ad Addends thoreto,

If, for eny reason whateoeves, the Lessee dots ool purchese the Equipment ot the ond of (he Infs! Leass Temn o any
renewil tam in accomtance with the loregomng, o everdise thelr oplion to refum tha Equipnaonl as zel firth abod, (he feasa
tamn of the Equiprent shipll end wihou! further acthon 60 1 pant of Lexses be extended on & month-io month basks with menlaks
paryabie monthly catculaied 81 one hundred five prrcent (105%) of fe highest manhly rantal payable durtng the Inifsl Lazse
Tam (ihs "Exterdod Tonmi*}. Althe erd of such Extended Term, the Lessee shall hava (s oplion 10 siiber: {1 ratym the
Equipmenl to tha Leasor In amxidancs with e tems of U Lease; o (1) purchasa the Equipment far #s then Fak Maket Vaise
35 Satamined In accordznod wity the provisions eol forth abova. The Extendedt Term shialt conBinus unll! {a) Lessen provides
Lesror with ot lass e nivety (80} day prive wrillen nollos of the aticipated date Lessos vil ratomn (he EqUpmet and
Lessan rebyms tha Equlprant {n aocordence vith the relum provisions of this Leass, of (b} Lesyes provides Loastr with act less
Ihan ninaty (80} days prior writien nollon of Lasses's exorcise of s Fak Markel Valus pirchese oplion with respect lo the
Equipment

0STIPULATED LOSS VALUES:
. | Percantage of s Percentage of
o1 Pa | AcygionCost | gy
1 10147 r 60,22
2 100.61 a8 bB.od4
3 95.65 ap 5766
4 98.56 40 56.37
& pr.55 41 65.08
6 08.53 £ 53.78
T 85.48 4 52.47
2 04.41 4 51ﬂﬁ,
2 93.33 43 4884
10 92.25 % __ABE]
1 81,15 Fid 47.18
12 90.05 48 45.84
13 86.95 49 44.50
14 87.83 50 4315
15 86.71 & 41,79
16 B5.68 52 40.43
i7 B4.44 83 35,68
18 83.29 54 37.89
19 8214 3831
013 Exblbhy 128500
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s
Fasoentags of | Perreriag of
| BoniwiPavmandd | AoqulienCost | ReotalPaymentd |
7 80.87 56 34,52
21 719.61 & 33.63
n 78.63 58 32.13
2 7745 59 3072
2 76.26 & .29‘.:ﬂ
. 2 76.08 1 27.69
28 73.88 62 2647
2r 72.66 25.04
7% 7144 8 23.61
2 70.22 &5 22.17
30 80.89 g6 20.12
3y 87.76 &7 19.27
32 66.52 8 17.82
aa 65.27 Iy 16.35
3 34 84.01 70 14.88 |
35 62.76 T 13.40
35 B1.49 72 11.82 |

Stputalad Loss Vahsas meo dus i addion to the Renlal Papnent due on [ sams date,

N WITNESS WHEREOF, tho partios harels onrliy fat they have reed, sctepled #nd caussd Il Individus] Leasing
Record to be uly exessiad by thelr respeciive offcers thereunto duly authortzed.

Date: __ 7
LESSOR:

3

Stement Fingnchaf Services, Ing,

Brnest Brrigo
B Trisiction Coordinntor

5
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DELL

Date: 4/22/09 12:33:14 PM

BEE 1 UL £

QUOTATION

QUOTE #: 485293558
Customer #: 84405601
Contract #: 70137

CustomerAgreement #: Dell Std Terms

Quote Date: 4/22/09
Customer Name: FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARENA

TOTAL QUOTE AMOUNT:

$975.02

Product Subtotal:

$864.59

Tax: $46.43

Shipping & Handling: $64.00

Shipping Method:

Ground Total Number of System Groups: 1

GRAUP: 1 |QUANTITY: 1

SYSTEM PRICE: $584.51 GRCUP TOTAL: $584.61

Base Unit: OptiPlex 760 Small Form FactorBase Standard PSU (224-2218)

Processor: OptiPlex 760,Core 2 Duo ETA00/2.66GHz, IM,1066FSB {311-9514)

Memory; 2GB,Non-ECC,800MH2z DDR2,2X1GB Optiflex {311-7374}

Keyboard: Dell USB Keyboard No Hot Keys English,Black,Qptiplex (330-1987}

Monitor: Dell UltraSharp 1708FP BLK wiAdjStn,17 inch,ix08FPBLK OptiPlex,Precision and Latltude {320-
7682)

Video Card: Integrated Video, GMA 4500,DellOptiPlex 760 and 964 (320-7407})

Hard Drive; 80GB SATA 3.0Gbfs and 8MB DataBurst Cache,Dell OptiPlox {341.8006)

Floppy Disk Drive:

No Floppy Drive with Optical Filter Panel,Dell OptiPlex Small Form Factor {341-4609)

Cperating System:

Windows XP PRO SP3 with Windows Vista Business LicenssEnglish,Dell Optiplex {420-9570)

Mouse:

Deil USE 2 Button QOptical Mouse with Scroff Black OptiPlex (330-2733}

NIC:

ASF Basic Hardware Enabled Systemns Management {130-2901)

CD-ROM or DVD-ROM Drive:

24X24 CORW/DVD Combo,with Cyberlink Power DVD,No Media Media,Dell OptiPiex 960 Small
Form Factor (313-7071)

CD-ROM or DVD-RCM Drive:

Cybherlink Power DVD 8.1,with Medla,Dell OptiPlex/Pracision (420-9178)

Sound Card: Heat Sink, Mainstream, Doll Optiplex Small Form Factor (311-9520)

Speakers: Dol AX510 black Sound Bar forUltraSharp Flat Pane! DisplaysDelf Optiplex/Precision! Latitude
{313-6414}

Cable: OptiPlex 780 Small Form FactorStandard Power Supply (310-1924)

Documentation Diskette:

Documentation,English,Dell OptiPlex (330-1710)

Documentation Diskette:

Power Cord,125V,2M,C13,Del OptiPlex (338-1711)

Factory Installed Software:

No Dell Energy Smart Power Management Settings,OptiPlex {467-3564)

Resource DVD contains Dlagnostics and Drivers for Dell QptiPlex 760 Vista {330-2019)

Feature

Service; ProSuppaort for |T; Noxt Business Day Parts and Labor Onsite Response Initlal Year (991-6370)

Service: ProSupport for IT: Next Businpss Day Parts and Labor Onsite Response 2 Year Extonded {981-
3642}

Service: bell Hardware Limited Warranty Plus Onsite Service Initial Year {992-6507)

Servict: Doll Hardware Limited Warranty Plus Onsite Service Extended Year(s} {592-6508)

Service: ProSupport for I': 7x24 Technlcat Support for certiffed IT Staff, Initial {884-6840)

Servica: ProSupport for iT: 7x24 Technlcal Support for certified IT Staff, 2 Year Extended {984-0002)

S>3 )
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Thank you choosing Delt ProSupport. For tech support, visit http:itsupport.del.com/PreSupport
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Service: or call 1-866-516-31 (989-3449}

instalfation: Standard On-Site Instatlatlon Deciined (900-9987)

Installation: Standard On-Site nstatlation Declined {(900-5987)

Misc: Shipping Matarial for Syatem Cypher Small Form Factor,Dell OptiPlex {330-2193)

Vista Premlum Downgrade Relationship Desktop {310-3161)

C¥I Routing SKU {365-0257)

CFLRoHup integration Service,Image Load {366-1416)

CFl,Rolup,Custom Project,Feo for ESLH {186-1551)

CFl,Rollup,integration Services BIOS Setting (366-1656})

CFlInformatlon,Vista To WXFP ONLY Factory Install {372-6272)

CFl,Software Image, Quick Image,Titan,Factory Install (372-8740)

CF1,BIQS, Across Line Of Business Wakeup-on-tan, Enable,Factory Install (3744558}
CFi,infarmatlon, Optiptex 768 QOnly,Factory install (374-8402}

SOFTWARE & ACCESSORIES

Product Quantity | Unit Price | Totai
Office 2007 Sngt C 021-07777 (AD748570) 1 $259.68 | $259.68
Windows Server CAL 2008 Sngl MVL Device CAL C R18-02830 (A1511502) 1 $2040| $20.40
Number of § & A items: 2 S&A Total Amount: $280.08
SALES REP: | PHIL CLINTON PHONE: | 1800-274-3355
Email Address: | Phil_Clinton@Dell.com Phone Ext: | 723-3128

For your convenience, your sales representative, quote number and customer number have been
included to provide you with faster service when you are ready to place your order. Orders may be
faxed to the attention of your saies representative to 1-866-230-4217. You may also

place your order online at www.dell.com/qto

This quote is subject to the terms of the agreement signed by you and Dell, or absent such agreement,
to Dell's Terms of Sale.

Prices and tax rates are valid in the U.S. only and are subject to change.

*Sales/use tax Is a destination charge, i.e. based on the "ship to” address on your purchase order.
Please indicate your taxability status_on your PO, If exempt, please fax exemption certificate to

Dell Tax Dapartment at 868-863-8778, referencing your customer number.

If you have any questions regarding tax please call 800-433-3019 or email Tax_Department@dell.com.

ik

Ali product and pricing information is based on latest information available. Subject to change without
notice or obligation.

LCD panels in Deli products contain mercury, piease dispose properly. _ ]
Please contact Defl Financial Services’ Asset Recovery Services group for EPA compliant disposal
options at US_Dell_ARS_Requests@dell.com. Minimum quantities may apply.

Shipments to California: For certain products, a State Environmental Fee Of Up to §10 per item may be
applied to your involce as early as Jan 1, 2005. Prices in your cart do not reflect this fee. More info: or
refer to URL www.dell.com/environmentalfee

\ 5 "f Dell Computer Quote
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Criterion 1120.310 Financial Viability

Financial Viability Waiver

This project is being funded entirely through cash and securities
thereby meeting the criteria for the financial waiver.

Financial Waiver
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Fresenius Medical Care

To: linois CON

August 31,2011

Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc (the Company or FMCH) summary of discussion points with Illinois
CON for the meeting in early August, 2011. We discussed several points related to the rating and credit quality

of the Company as follows:

1. Most ratings of the Company are higher than the ratings for our Senior Notes. Our Senior Secured
ratings are investment grade and our Accounts Receivable Commercial Paper Facility is structured to a

AA rating. Sce ratings summary below:

StandardMeoody's|Fitch
& Poor's
Corporate Credit |BB Bal BB+
Rating
Outlook Positive [stable table
Secured Debt  |BBB-  [Baa3 BBB
Unsccured Debt (BB Ba2 BB+

2. The market’s evaluation of the Company’s bonds is far more positive than the rating agencies
assessment would indicate. The Company’s yields trade in line with BBB investment grade rated
companies and much lower than the index for BB rated companies. That chart was on Page 7 of our

presentation,

3. Moody’s has published its standards for investment grade ratings. Of the six criteria, the Company

meets or exceeds four of the criteria.

4. ‘The company has substantial liquidity (over a billion $’s} to meet all of its obligations in lllinois and

elsewhere,

Additionally, in the discussion following our presentation, the topic of the company’s size was brought up as a
negative, We did not have the opportunity to address that issue during the meeting, so we will address it here.
During the credit crisis, many of the physician practices and related health care businesscs in our industry (and
others) had difficulty growing and raising capital. The financial markets wete closed to many heaith care
businesses, both for profit and not for profit. However, duc to our size and strength of our credit, the banking
and capital markets were still open to us, allowing us to continuc to grow to meet the needs of end stage renal
diseasc patients in our clinjc setting and fo invest in the pharmaceulical and medical equipment industries
necessary to serve this patient population. We have been a strong and committed business in iltinois, willing to

confinue to invest ca}}ita provide acce

Mark Fawcett
Vice President, Treasurer
Fresenius Medical Care NA

Fresenius Medical Care North America

to care, add jobs and grow in the State.

Corpornie Meadoiriers: 920 Winger 53 ‘J"J:liill-‘ll:'[ f§ [l;'ir:'i (78 1) BO0R68
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Two Financial Center
60 South Street
Boston, MA 02111

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Sharcholders
Frescnius Medical Care Holdings, Inc..

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc.
and subsidiaries (thc Company} as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements
of operations, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is 10 express an opinion on these conselidated financial statcments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cifectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We belicve that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statcments referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their
operattons and their cash flows for the years then ¢nded in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

KPMe P

Boston, Massachusetts
May 11, 2012

32"‘&.”;’4;.‘&'::‘"";;"52‘;" AR b 2011 Audited Financial Statement
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FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC.,
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheels
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets 2011 2010
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 204,142 163.292
Trade accounis reccivable, less allowances of $222.524 in 2011 and $209,791 in 2010 1,188,700 1,176,849
Receivables lrom afTiliates 1,448,895 322,676
Inventories 409,831 335,103
Deferred income taxes 233,272 291,074
QOther current asscts 580,058 464,688
Total current assets 4,064 898 2,753,682
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,397,813 1,384,114
Other asscts:
Goodwill 7,677.810 7,162,623
Other intangible asscls, net 497,678 497,792
Investment in equity method investecs 85,542 27,946
Other assets and deferred charges 140,798 191,461
Total other assets 8,401,828 7.879.822
Total asscls $ 13,864,539 12,017,618

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities:

Short-iesm borrowings 5 17.445 546,612
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 1,148,034 107,967
Current portion of borrowings from affiliales 13,040 231,974
Accounts payable 309.345 223,901
Accrued liabilities R62,567 774,154
Accrued special charge for legal matters 115.694 115,828
Accounis payable to affiliates 1,218 43,669
Accrucd meome taxes 132,675 140,456
Total current liabilities 2,600,118 2,184,561
Long-term debt 973,580 1,363,138
Noncurrent barrawings from affiliates 416,133 494,231
Capital lease obligations 1,794 2,001
Long-term mandatorily redeemable preferred scourities 665,500 665,5()
Ieferred income laxes 533,487 467,135
Other liabilities 286,000 279,423
Tolal liabilities 5,476,512 5,455,989
Noncontrolling inlerests subject 1o pul provisions 404015 273,022
Equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par value 2.524.622 1.379.916
Common stock, $1 par value 90,000 90,004
Additional paid-in capilal 1,840,621 1,906,036
Retained earnings 3,530,707 2.909,317
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (104,624) (82.678)
Total Fresenius Medical Care Holdings Inc. equity 7,881,326 6,202,591
Noncontrolling interesls nol subject 1o put provisions 102,686 86,016
Total equity 7.984.012 6,288,607
"Total liabilities and equily £ 13,864,539 12,017,618

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

L%

2011 Audited Financial Statement
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FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Staiements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

2011 2010
Net revenucs: .
Hcalth care services $ 7,271,998 7,248,628
Medical supplics 753,386 774,958
8,025,384 8,023,586
Expcnses:
Cost of health ¢care services 4,394,822 4,568,136
Cost of medical supplies 605,487 529,610
General and administrative expenses 1,220,477 1,106,513
Provision for doubtlul accounts 223,822 209,001
Depreciation and amortization 304,778 285,481
Research and development 37,782 30,879
Equity investment income (5,055) (6,737)
Interest cxpense, net, and related financing costs (including
$83,570 and $170,956 of interest with affiliates, respectively) 102,421 210,871
6,884,534 6,933,754
Income before income taxecs 1,140,850 1,089,832
Provision for income taxcs 422,427 407,535
Net income 718,423 682,297
Less net income atiributable to noncontrolling interests 97,204 76,767
Net income attributable 1o Fresenius Mcdical Care
Holdings, Inc. $ 621,219 605,530
See accompanying notes 1o consolidated {inancial statements.
3 2011 Audited Financial Statement
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FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statcments of Comprehensive Income
Ycars ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

{(Dollars in thousands)

2011 2010
Net income $ 718,423 H82,297
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation adjustments (1,245) 2,492
Pension liability adjustments, (nct of deferred ax
of $29,600 and $8,377, respectively) (45,320) (12,883)
Derivative instruments, (net of deferred tax
of ($15,990) and ($26,779), respectively) 24,619 41,187
Tota) other comprehensive (loss) income (21,946) 30,796
Total comprehensive income 696,477 713,093
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 97,204 76,767
Comprehensive income attributable (o
Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc. $ 599,273 636,326

Sec accompanying notes o consolidated financial statements.

4 2011 Audited Financial Statement
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FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC,
AND SHBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Yeurs ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Dollars in thousands. except share data)

Accumuplated Total Noncontralling
other FMCH, Inc. interests not
Prefereed stock Commen stack Additinnal Retnined comprehensive shareholders” subject to
Shares Amaount Shares Amount _paid-in capital earnings income (loss) equity pui prosisions Totrl equity
Balance, December 31, 2009 5000000 § 1487731 ano0nonn  § 90,000 1,905 976 2304412 f113,474) 5,678,645 86,791 5,765,436
Nt income —_ _— -_ — —_ 605,530 —_ 605,530 41929 653,459
Other comprehensive income — _ — — —_ — 30,796 30,796 —_ 30,79
Exercise of sinck options and relaied wax efTects — —-= - — 5618 —_ — 5618 —_ 5618
Compensation expense related to stock options — — — — 20,330 — —_ 20,330 — 20,330
Series € Prefemred Stock — marked 10 market — {107,815 — — —_ — —_ (107.815) —_ (107.315)
Crsh contributions roncontrolling interests — — — —_ — —_ — —_ 3,700 3,700
I3ividends paid noncontrolling interests — _ —_ — —_ — —_ — (53,7213 {53,721)
Purthase {sale) of noncontrellmg interests — — — — (5.669) — — (5.669) 1,305 (4,364)
Changes in fair valee of noncootrolling
interests subject (o put provisions — — — — {24,223} — —_ (24,223) — (24,223}
{nher reclnssifications — —_ — — 4 {623) —_ (621) 12 (609}
Ralance, December 31, 2010 5 000 000 1319916 50,000,000 90,000 1,906,036 2,909,317 (B2.678) 6,202,501 56,016 6,268,607
Net income — —_ —_ —_ —_ 621,219 —_ 621,219 54348 675,567
Other comprehensive income —_ — — — — — (21,946} 21,946 - [21,946)
Exercise of stoch options and relmed 1ax {Tects — —_ — —_ 6,025 _ _ 6,025 —_— 6,025
Compensation expense related to stock options — — —_ _ 20,767 — - 20,767 — 20,767
Series C Preferred Stock - marked 1o market _ (43,684) — — _— — —_ (43,680 —_ (43,684)
Issuanee of Series E Preferred Stock 2,653,560 663,390 — — —_ —_ —_ 661,350 — 663,390
Issuance of Senes F Preferred Stoch 2,100,000 525000 - — —_ — —_ 525,000 — 525,000
“ash contrib nong Mg i — —_ — — —_ — —_ - 1,354 1,354
Dy idends pawd nonconuolling inlerests — — - —_ - —_ —- — {52,033) {32,033}
Purchase (sale) of noncontrolling interests - — —_ — {5.928) — - {5.428) 12,994 7.066
Changes in [air value of noncontrelling
imezests subject to purl provisions — —_ —_ — (B5,233) — - (RE,233) — 86,233)
Onher reclnssifications — — — — {dé) 171 — 125 7 132
Balance, December 31, 2011 5753560 % 2,524,622 50,000,000 $ 90,000 1840621 3,530,707 [104.624) 7,881,326 102686 7984012
See nocompanying notes ke consolidared financial stuements,
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FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidaled Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Nel income b 718,423 682,297
Adjusiments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating aclivities:

Depreciation and amortization 304,778 285,481

Provision for doubiful accounts 223,822 209,001

Deferred income (axes 132,396 44,481

Gain on sale of interest in invesiments and divestitures (4.550) (1,694)
Amertization of discount on Scnior Note 1,607 887
Equitly investment income (5.055) (6,737
Loss on disposal of properties and equipment 4,055 3,129
Compensation expense related to stock options 20,767 20,330
Amortization of discount on investments 322 587
Loss on forward sale and currency exchange agreements 67,586 20,267

Changes in operaling assels and liabilities, net of effects of
purchase acquisitions:

Increase in trade accounts receivable (220,541) (316,706)
(Increase) decrease in inventories {(70,721) 17,588
Increasc in other current assets (32914) (19,037)
Decrease in other assets and deferred charges 203,506 6,993
Increase in accounts payable 74,340 36,807
Increase (decrease) in accrued income taxes 2,204 (17.627)
(Pecrease) increase in accrued liabilities (25,093) 15,571
Decrease in accrued special charge for legal matters (142) (142}
Decrease in other long-lerm liabilities (13,998) (12,345)
Net changes due to/lrom alfiliales (58,350) (81,908)
Distributions received on equity investments 4,590 6,000
Onher, net 6,220 7,974
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,333,342 001,197
Cash Mows from investing activities:
Capital expendiiures, net of proceeds (283,929) (278,399)
Acquisitions and investments, net of cash acquired (755,874) (125,921)
Proceeds from sale of interests and divestitures 8,159 10,288
Equity contributions (60,922) {1,800)
Net cash used in investing aclivities (1.092,566) (395,832)
Cash flows from financing activilies:
Net (decrease) increase in horrowings from affiliates (1,391,042} 5,448
Net increase from receivable financing facility 24,500 296,000
Net increase (decrease) on debt and capital leases 80,897 (714,429)
Distributions 1o noncontrolling interesls (95,138) (92,685)
Deht issuance costs (13,856) (21,815)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 1,188,350 —
Contributions from noncontrelling interests 8,575 8,989
Proceeds from sale of noncontrolling interests 19,334 17,384
Purchases of noncontrolling interests {21,281} {10,366)
Tax henefit on slock options (47) 13313
Net cash used in financing activities (199,668) {498,161
Effects of changes in forcign exchange rates (258) 2,785
Change in cash and cash equivalents 40,850 9,989
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of year 163,292 153,303
Cash and cash equivalents al end of year $ 204,142 163,252
6 2011 Audited Fif8RERFSratement
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FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC,
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

2011 2010
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 141,585 233,073
Interest on mandatorily redeemable preferrcd securities 23,938 50,884
Income taxes, net 314,209 389,912
Details for acquisitions:
Assels acquired $ (615,711) (166,328)
Liabilitics assumed 20,112 5,050
Noncontrolling Interests 47,666 17,782
Notes assumed in connection with acquisition (15,494) 15,606
Cash paid {554,427) {127,890)
Less cash acquired 32,555 1,969
Net cash paid for acquisitions $ (521,872) (125,921)
Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
7 2011 Audited Financial Statement
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FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consotlidated Financial Statemenis
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

(1) The Company

Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc., a New York corporation (the Company or FMCH) is a subsidiary
ol Fresenius Medical Care AG & Co. KGaA, a German partnership limited by shares (FMCAG & KGaA
or the Parent Company). The Company conducts its operations through five principal subsidiarics,
National Medical Care, Inc. (NMC), Fresenius USA Marketing, Inc., Fresenius USA Manufacturing, Inc.
and SRC Holding Company, Inc., all Delaware corporations and Fresenius USA, Inc., a Massachusetts
corporation.

The consolidatcd financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries and those f{inancial stalements where the Company controls professional corporations in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 810, Consolidation. The consolidated {inancial statements include all companies in which the
Company has legal or effcctive control. Noncontrolling interest represents the proportionate equity interest
of ownecrs in the Company’s consolidated entities that arc not wholly owned.

The Company is primarily engaged in (i} providing kidney dialysis services and clinical laboratory testing
(11) manuvfacturing and distributing products and cquipment for kidney dialysis treatment and (iii) providing
other medical ancillary services,

{a})  Basis of Presentation

Certain items in the prior years’ consolidated financial statements may have been reclassificd to
conform with the current year’s presentation. Net operating results have not been affected by the
reclassifications.

The Company has evaluated subscquent events through May 11, 2012, which is the date these
consolidaled financial statcmenis were issued. Sec note 2(u).

(b)  Basis of Consolidation

The censolidated financial statements in this report at December 31, 2011 and 20110 and for the ycars
then ended have been prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Aceepled Accounting Principles
(U.S. GAAP). These consolidated linancial statements reflect all adjustments that, in the opinion of
management, are nccessary for the fair presemtation of the consolidated results for all periods
presented.

In accordance with current accounting principles, the Company consolidates certain clinics that it
manages and financially controls. The cquity method of accounting is used for investments in
associated companies over which the Company has significant exercisable influence, even when the
Company holds less than 50% ownership. Noncontrolling interests represent the proportionate equity
interests of owners in the Company’s consolidated entitics that are nolt wholly owned.
Noncontrolling interests of recenily acquired entities are valuated at fair value. All significant
intcrcompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

8 2011 Audited Kfrartrtathtement
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FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC,
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalemens
December 31, 2011 and 2010

{Dollars in thousands)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise cash funds and all short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of up to three months.

(b) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Estimates for allowances for accounts receivable are based on an analysis of collection expericnce,
recognizing the diffcrence between payors and aging of accounts receivable. From time to time,
accounts receivable arc reviewed for changes from the historic collection experience to cnsure the
appropriateness of the allowances.

{c) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (determined by using the average or first-in, first-out
method) or market value (sce note 4).

(d)  Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant, and cquipment arc stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (sce note 10).
Signiflicant improvements are capitalized; repairs and mainienance costs that do not exiend the uscful
lives of the assets arc charged 1o expense as incurred. Properiy, plant and equipment under capital
lcases are stated at the present value of future minimum [ease paymenis al the inception of the lease,
less accumulated depreciation. The cost and accumulated depreciation of asscts sold or otherwisc
disposcd of are removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss is included in income when the
assets arc disposed.

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated over estimated uscful lives on a straight-line
basis as follows: buildings — 20 to 40 years, equipment and furniture — 3 to 10 years, equipment
under capital leases and leaschold improvements — the shorter of the lease term or useful life of the
asscl. Por income tax purposes, depreciation is calculated using accelerated methods Lo the extent

permitted.

The Company capitalizes interest on borrowed funds during construction periods. Interest capitalized
during 2011 and 2010 was $3,245 and $4,854, respectively.

(e) Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible asscis such as noncompete agreements, lease agreements, tradenames, certain qualilicd
management contracts, technology, patents, distribution rights, software, acute care agreements and
licenses acquired in a purchase method business combination arc recognized and reported apart from

goodwill.

Goodwill and identifiable intangibles with indefinite uscful lives are not amortized but icsted for
impairment annually or when an c¢vent becomes known that could trigger an impairment. The

9 2011 Audited KirantiRGthtement
b} ATTACHMENT — 40




FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Doliars in thousands)

Company identified tradenames and certain qualificd management contracts as intangible asscts with
indefinite useful lives because, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which those asscts are expected to generate net cash inflows for
the Company. Intangible assets with finite useful lives arc amortized over their respective useful
lives to their residual values. The Company amortizes noncompete agreements over their average
uselul life of 8 years, Technology is amortized over its uscfut life of 15 years. The iron products
distribution and manufacturing agreemenl is amortized over its ten-ycar contractual license period
based upon the annual estimated units of sale of the licensed produci. All other intangible assels arc
amortized over their individual estimated useful lives between 3 and 25 years. Intangiblc asscts with
finitc usclul lives arc evaluated Tor impairment when events have occurred that may give rise to an
impairment.

To perform the annual impairment test of goodwill, the Company identifies its reporting units and
determincs their carrying value by assigning the assets and liabilities, including the existing goodwill
and intangible assets, 1o those reporting units. A reporling unit is defined onc level below the
segment level based on regions or legal entities. In prior years, two reporting units were identified. In
2011, as a result of the magnitude of the impacl that the Medicare bundled reimbursement
cnvironment has on the Company’s business components, the business is fully integrated and the
Company deemed il appropriate 1o aggregate the components into onc reporting unil. As a result, for
2011, only on¢ reporting unit was identificd.

[n a first step, the Company compares its fair valuc to its carrying amount. Fair value is determined
using cstimaled future cash flows discounted by an afier-tax weighted average cost of capital
(WACC). Estimating the discounted future cash flows involves significant assumptions, cspecially
regarding future reimbursement rates and sales prices, number of trcatments, sales volumes and
costs. In determining discounted cash flows, the Company ulilizes its three-year budget, projections
for years 4 1o 10 and a representative growth rate for all remaining years. Projections for up 1o
len years are possible due to the stability of the Company’s business which, results from the
nondiscretionary nalure of the healthcare services we provide, the need for products wiilized to
provide such services and the availability of government reimbursement for a substantial portion of
our services. The expected growth rate for the period beyond ten years was 1%. The discount lactor
is determined by the Company’s WACC. The Company’s WACC consists of a basic rate of 6.29%
for 2011.

In the casc that the fair value is lcss than its book valuc, a sccond step is performed which compares
the fair value of goodwill to the carrying value of its goodwill. If the fair value of the goodwill is less
than the book value, the difference is recorded as an impairment.

To evalualc the recoverability of intangible asscts with indefinite uscful lives, the Company
compares the fair valucs of intangible asscts with their carrying values. An intangible assct’s fair
value is determined using a discounted cash flow approach or other methods, if appropriate.
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In connection with its annual impairment tests, the Company dctermined that there was no
impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets. Accordingly the Company did not record any
impairment charges during 2011 and 2010.

(i  Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company accounts for derivatives and hedging activitics by recognizing all derivative
instrumenis as either asscis or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets at their respective fair
values. For derivatives designated as hedges, changes in the fair value are cither offset against the
change in fair valuc of the assets and liabilities through earnings, or recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings.

For all hedging relationships the Company formally documents the hedging relationship and its
risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the
hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged, how the hedging instrument’s cifectiveness in
offsctting the hedged risk will be assessed prospectively and retrospectively, and a description of the
method of measuring incffectiveness. The Company also formally asscsses, both at the hedge’s
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsctting cash flows of hedged items. Changes in the fair value of a derivative
that is highly effective and that is designated and qualifics as a cash-flow hedge are recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income to the extent that the derivative is cifective as a hedge,
until earnings arc affected by the variability in cash flows of the designated hedged item. The
ineffcctive portion of the change in fair value of a derivative instrument that qualifies as a cash-flow
hedge is reported in carnings.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it is determined that the derivative
is no longer effective in offsetting cash flows of the hedged item, the derivative expires or is sold,
lerminated, or exercised, the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, because it is unlikely
that a forecasted transaction will occur, or management determines that designation of the derivative
as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate.

In all situations in which hedge accounting is discontinucd and the derivative is rctained, the
Company continues to carry the derivative at its fair value on the consolidated balance sheets and
recognizes any subsequent changes in its fair value in carnings. When it is probable that a hedged
forecasted transaction will not occur, the Company discontinues hedge accounting and recognizes
immediately in earnings gains and losscs that were accumulated in other comprehensive income.

(g) Foreign Currency Translation

For purposcs of these consolidated financial statements, the U.S. dollar is the reporting currency.
Substantially all assets and liabilities of the¢ Company’s non-U.S. subsidiarics are translated at
year-end exchange rates, while revenuc and expenses are translated at exchange rates prevailing
during the year. Adjustments for foreign currency translation fluctuations are excluded from nct
income and are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). In addition, the
translation of certain intercompany borrowings denominated in forcign currencics, which are
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considered foreign cquity investments, are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss).

Gains and losses resulting from the tramslation of revenues and expenses and intcrcompany
borrowings, which are not considered cquity investments, are included in the consolidated statements
ol operations within gencral and administrative expenscs. Foreign exchange (losses) and gains
amountced to ($3,495) and $4,773 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

(h) Revenue Recognition

Dialysis care revenucs are recognized on the date services and related products are provided and are
rccorded at amounts estimated to be received under reimbursement arrangements with third-party
payors, including Mcdicare and Medicaid. The Company cstablishes appropriate allowances based
upon flactors surrounding credit risks of specific third-party payors, historical trends and other
information. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related
services arc rendercd and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Dialysis product revenues are recognized when title to the product passes to the customers either at
the time of shipment, upon receipt by the customer or upon terms that €learly define passage of title.
As product returns are not typical, no return allowances are established. In the event a return is
rcquired, the appropriate reductions to sales, accounts receivables and cost of sales are made. Sales
are stated net of discounts and rebatcs.

Net revenues from machines sales for 2011 and 2010 include $87.2 million and $80.0 million,
respectively, of net revenues for machines sold to a third-party leasing company which are utilized
by the Fresenius Medical Services division to provide services to customers. The profits on these
salcs arc deferred and amortized to carnings over the lease terms.

Any tax assessed by a governmental authority that is incurred as a resull of a revenuc transaction
(c.g., salcs 1ax) is excluded from revenues and reported on a net basis.

()  Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

() Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred 1ax assets and liabilitics for future consequences attributable 10
temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of cxisting asscts and
liabilities and their respective tax basis as well as on consclidation procedures affecting net income
and tax loss carryforwards which are more likely than not 1o be utilized. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using cnacted tax rates cxpectled to apply 1o taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is
recorded to reduce the carrying amount of the deferred tax assets unless it is more likely than not that
such assets will be realized (sce note 9).
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It is the Company’s policy 10 recognize intcrest and penalties related 1o its tax pogitions as income
tax expcnse.

(k) Impairment

The Company reviews the carrying value of its long-lived assets or asset groups with definitc useful
lives to be held and used for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of these assets is measured
by a comparison of the carrying valuc of an asset to the [uture nct cash flow directly associated with
the asset. If assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment recognized is the amount by which
the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. The Company uscs a discounted cash {Tow
approach or other methods, il appropriate, to assess fair value,

Long-lived assets 1o be disposed of by sale are reported at the lower of carrying valuc or fair value
less cost to sell and depreciation is ceased. Long-lived assets to he disposcd of other than by sale are
considered to be held and used until disposal. No impairment charges were taken during the year.

() Debt Issuance Costs

Costs related to the issuance of debt are amortized over the term of the related obligation (see
note 6).

(m) Self-Insurance Programs

The Company is partially self-insured for professional, product and general liability, auto liability
and worker's compensation claims under which the Company assumes responsibility for incurred
claims up to predetermined amounis above which third-party insurance applics. Reported balances
for ithe year include estimates of the anticipated expense for claims incurred (both reported and
incurred but not reported) based on historical experience and existing claim activity. This cxperience
includes both the rate of claims incidence {number) and claim severity (cost) and is combincd with
individual claim expectations to estimate the reported amounts.

(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated f{inancial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP rcquires
management to make cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilitics and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reporied amounts of revenues and ¢xpenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(o) Concentratfion of Credit Risk
The Company is cngaged in providing kidney dialysis scrvices, clinical laboratory 1esting, and other
medical ancillary services, and in the manufacture and sale of products for all forms of kidney
dialysis, principally to healthcare providers. The Company performs ongoing evaluations ol its
customers’ financial condition and, generally, requires no collateral.
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Approximalcly 47% in 2011 and 48% in 2010 of the Company’s revenues were carned and subject
to regulations under governmental healthcare programs, Medicare and Medicaid, administered by
various states and the United States government.

{p} Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income, foreign currency translation adjustments, pension
liability adjustments and changes in derivative instruments and is presented in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.

(g9) Employee Benefit Plans

The Company recognizes the underfunded status of its defined benefit plans, measured as the
difference between plan assets at fair value and the bencfit obligation, as a liability. Changes in the
funded status of a plan, net of tax, resulting from actuarial gains or losses and prior service ¢osls or
credits that are nol recognized as components of the net periodic benefit cost will be recognized
through accumulated other comprehensive income in the year in which they occur. Actuarial gains or
losses and prior service costs are subsequently recognized as components of net periodic benclit cost
pursuant to the recognition and amortization provisions of thosc standards. The Company uses
Dccember 31 as the measurement date when measuring the funded status of all plans.

(r)  Stock Option Plans

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of the accounting standards for
sharc-based payments using the modificd prospective transition method. Under this transition
method, compensation cost recognized in 2006 includes applicable amounts of: (a) compensation
cost of all stock-based payments granted prior to, hut not yet vested as of January 1, 2006 and
(b) compensation cosl for all stock-based payments subsequent 1o January 1, 2006 based on the
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of thesc standards.

(s) Legal Contingencies

From time to time, during the ordinary course of the Company's operations, the Company is party 1o
litigation and arbitration and is subject 1o investigations relating 1o various aspects of its busincss
(see note 17). The Company regularly analyzes current information about such claims for probable
losses and provides accruals for such matters, including the estimated legal expenses and consulting
services in conneclion with these matters, as appropriatc. The Company utilizes its internal legal
department as well as external resources for these assessments. In making the decision regarding the
need for loss accrual, the Company considers the degree of probability of an unfavorable cutcome
and its ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of loss.

The filing of a suit or formal assertion of a claim or assessment, or the disclosure of any such suit or
asscrtion, does not nccessarily indicate that accrual of a loss is appropriatc.

14 2011 Audited FirdHERIShtement
17 ATTACHMENT — 40




FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notcs to Consolidated Financial Stalements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

()  Recent Pronouncements
Recently Implemented Accounting Statements

In July 2011, the FASB issucd Accounting Standards Update 2011-07 (ASU 2011-07), Health Care
Entities (Topic 954): Presentation and Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision lor Bad
Debts and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health Care Entitics in order to provide
financial statement uscrs with greater transparency aboutl a healthcarc cntity’s net patient scrvice
revenue and the related allowance for doubtful accounts. The amendments require healthcare entities
that recognize significant amounts of patient service revenue at the time the services are rendered
cven though they do not assess the patient’s ability to pay to present the provision for bad debts
related to patient service revenuc as a deduction from patient scrvice revenue (net of contractual
allowances and discounts) on their statement of operations. The provision for bad debts must be
reclassified from an operating expense to a deduction from patient service revenue. Additionally,
these healthcare entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about their policies for
recognizing revenue and assessing bad debts. The amendments also require disclosurcs of patient
scrvice revenue (net of contractual allowances and discounts) as well as qualitative and quaniitative
information about changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts.

For public entities, the disclosures requircd under ASU 2011-07 are cffective for fiscal years and
interim periods within those liscal years beginning after December 15, 2011, with early adoption
permiticd. The amendments to the presentation of the provision for bad debts relaled 1o patient
service revenuc in the statement of operations should be applied retrospectively 1o all prior periods
presented. The Company adopted the provisions of ASU 2011-07 as of January 1, 2012. Had the
Company adopted ASU 2011-07 as of January 1, 2011, this would have resulted in a reduction of its
2011 revenue by approximately $224,000 with a corresponding reduction to the provision for
doubtful accounts expense. At December 31, 2012, the Company will restate its 2011 Revenuc to
$7,800,839 and its provision for doubiful accounts expense to ($723) to reflect the retrospective
adoption of this Standard in 2012.

In December 2011, the FASBissucd Accounting Standards Update 2011-11 (ASU 2011-11),
Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures abour Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. This amendment
requires disclosing and reconciling gross and net amounts for financial instruments that arc offset in
the balance sheet, and amounts for {inancial instruments that are subject to master nelting
arrangements and other similar clearing and repurchasc arrangements. ASU 2011-11 is elfective for
annual rcporting periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2013, and interim periods within those
annual periods. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of AUS 2011-11 on its consolidated
linancial statcments.

Also in August 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-24, Heaith Care Entities (Topic 954):
Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries (ASU 2010-24), which
climinates the practice of netting claim liabilities with cxpected related insurance recoveries for
balance sheet presentation. Claim labilities are to he determined with no regard for recoveries and
presenicd gross. Expected recoverics arc presented separately. ASU 2010-24 is effective for the
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Company's fiscal year beginning January 1, 2011 and resulted in an increase of $82,090 in other
current asscis and accrued liabilitics in the consalidated balance sheet as of December 31, 20117,

(u) Subsequent Events
Currency Exchange Agreements

On January 26, 2012, the Company entered into three currency ¢xchange agreements with Fresenius
Medica] Care US Finance I1, Inc. (US Finance I). The notional principal amounts of the currency
cxchange agreements are $800,000, $700,000 and $105,000 respectively, and a Euro amount with an
cqual market value applying the market foreign cxchange rate at the time of the cxchange
agreements were entered inlo. The currency exchange agreements require that at each periodic
sctilement date, the Company is obligated to pay US Finance I1, Euro interest on the Euro equivalent
of $800,000, $700,000 and $105,000, respectively. Conversely, at the periodic settlement date,
US Finance II is obligated to pay the Company, the interest on the $800,000, $700,000 and
$105,000.

Upon maturity (July 2019 and January 2022) the Company is obligated 10 pay to US Finance 11, the
Euro equivalent of cach exchange agreement converted at a spot rate and US Finance II will pay to
the Company the f{inal settlement amount of $800,000, $700,000 and $105,000 (plus any outstanding
inlcrest payments). Thesce instruments will be reflected in the consolidated balance sheets at fair
value as derivate assets at the reporting date with changes in fair value recognized in earnings.

Acquisition of Liberty Dialysis Holdings

On February 28, 2012, the Company acquired 100% of the equity of Liberty Dialysis Holdings, Inc.
{LD Holdings), the owner ol Liberty Dialysis and owner of a 51% stake in Renal Advaniage
Partners, LLC (the Liberty Acquisition} and accounted for this transaction as a business combination,
subject to finalization of the acquisition accounting which will be finalized when certain information
arranged to be obtaincd has been received. LD Holdings mainly provides dialysis services in the
United States through the 263 clinics it owns (the Acquired Clinics).

Total consideration for the Liberty Acquisition was approximately $2,161,000. Prior to the Liberty
Acquisition, the Company had a 49% equity investment in Renal Advantage Partners, LLC (RAI). In
addition to the Company’s investment, it also had a Joan receivable of approximately $279,000
compriscd of principle and interest, which was retired as part of the transaction. The note was
originally issued in 2011 when the Company made its initial 49% investment in RAL

Divestitures

In accordance with a consent order issued by the United States Federal Trade Commission in
connection with its clearance of the Liberty Acquisition, the Company was required to divest 62
clinics. In March 2012, 49 clinics were sold of which 15 were legacy clinics, The remaining 13
clinics are expected 10 be sold during 2012 and 20413 once the necessary approvals for change of
ownership by state regulatory authorities have been obtained.
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The Company received cash consideration of approximately $176,000 for all centers divested. The
sale of the legacy clinics resulied in a pre-tax gain of approximately $9,200. The Company incurred
an income tax ¢xpense related to the sale of the legacy clinics of approximately $6,600 resulting in a
net gain of $2,600. The sale of 34 Acquired Clinics will not have any profit or loss impact for the
Company.

(3) Acquisitions

During 2011, the Company made acquisitions of dialysis centers, vascular access centers and a medical
device company totaling $521,872.

Within the 2011 acquisitions, the Company purchased American Access Care Holdings, Inc. LLC, which
opcratcs vascular access ceniers and Hemo Mcirics, Inc. which is a medical dcvu,:, company with a base of
patents in optical {echnology.

During 2010, the Company made acquisitions mainly of dialysis centers totaling $125,921.

The assets and liabilitics of all acquisitions were recorded at their cstimated fair values at the dates of the
acquisitions and arc included in thc Company’s consolidaled financial statements and operating results
from the effective dale of acquisition,

(4) Other Balance Sheet Items
{a) Inventories

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, inveniories consisted of the following:

2011 2010
Inventories:

Raw materials 3 93,557 100,878
Manufactured goods in process 16,069 14,018
Manufactured and purchased inventory available for sale 197,760 130,450
3017,386 245,346
Health care supplies 102,445 89,757
Total $ 409,831 335,103

Under the terms of certain unconditional purchasc commitments, the Company is obligated to
purchase raw materials and healthcare supplies of $2,330,056 of which $384,800 is commitied at
December 31, 2011 for fiscal year 2012. The terms of these agreements run 1 to 14 years.

Inventories as ol December 31, 2011 and 2010 include $47,654 and $32,987, respeclively, of
Erythropoietin (EPO), which is supplied by a single source supplier.
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()  Related Party Services

Related-party {ransactions pertaining {o services performed and products purchased/sold between
affiliates are recorded as net accounts payable to affiliates on the consolidated balance sheets.

(5) Sale of Accounts Receivable

The Company has an asset sccuritization facility (the A/R Facility) which was most recently rencwed on
August 18, 2011 for a term expiring on July 31, 2014 and with the available borrowings increasing from
$700,000 10 $800,000. As the A/R Facility was renewed annually in the past, it has historically been
classificd as a short-term borrowing. Since the recent renewal cxtended the duc date to 2014, the A/R
Facility has been reclassificd into long-term debt. At December 31, 2011 there are outstanding borrowings

under the A/R Facility of $534,500.

Under the A/R Facility, cerlain receivables are sold to NMC Funding Corporation (NMC Funding), a
wholly owned subsidiary. NMC Funding then assigns percentage owncrship interests in the accounts
receivable to certain bank invesiors. Under the terms of the A/R Facility, NMC Funding retains the right, at
any time, to recall all the then outstanding transferred interests in the accounts receivable. Conscquenily,
the receivables remain on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet and the proceeds from the transfer
of percentage ownership interests are recorded as long-term debt.

NMC Funding pays interest 1o the bank investors calculated bascd on the commercial paper raies for the
particular tranches selected. The average interest rate during 2011 and 2010 was 1.29% and 1.86%
respectively. Refinancing fees, which include legal costs and bank fees, are amortized over the term of the
Tacility.

(6) Short Term Borrowings and Long-Term Debt

Short-Term Borrowings

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, short-term borrowings consisted of the following:

December 31
2011 2010
AR Fucility $ — 510,000
Commercial paper 9,627 10,985
Other 7,818 25,627
Total short-lerm borrowings b 17,445 546,612

Long-Term Debt
{a} Amended 2006 Senior Credit Agreement

FMCAG & KGaA, FMCH, and certain other subsidiaries of the Company that are borrowers and/or
guaraniors thereunder, including Fresenius Medical Care Deutschland GmbH (D-GmbH), entered
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into a $4,600,000 syndicated credit facility (the 2006 Senior Credit Agreement) with Bank of
America, N.A.; Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch; The Bank of Nova Scotia, Credit Suisse,
Cayman Islands Branch; JPMorgan Chasc Bank, National Association; and certain other lenders
{colleciively, the Lenders) on March 31, 2006 which replaced its prior credit agrecment.

Since entering into the 2006 Scrior Credit Agreement, the Company arranged several amendments
with the Lenders and effected voluntary prepayments of the term loans, which led 10 a change in the
total amount available under this facility. Pursuant to an amendment together with an extension
arranged on September 29, 2010 the revolving facility was increased from $1,000,000 to $1,200,000
and the Term Loan A facility by $50,000 to $1,365,000. The maiurity for both tranches was
cxiended from March 31, 2011 to March 31, 2013.

In addition, this amendment and subsequent amendments have included increases in certain types of
permitted borrowings outside of the Amended 2006 Senior Credit Agreement, provide further
flexibility for certain types of invesiments and acquisitions and included changes in the definition of
the Parent Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio, which is used to determine the applicable
margin.

As of Deccember 31, 2011, after consideration of all amendmenis and repayments to date, the
Amended 2006 Senior Credit Agreement consists of:

. a $1,200,000 revolving credit facility (with specified sub-facilitics for lctiers of credit,
borrowings in certain non-U.S. currencies, and swing line loans in U.S. dollars and certain
non-U.S. currencics, with the total outstanding under those sub-facilities nol exceeding
$1,200,000) which will be du¢ and payable on March 31, 2013,

. a term loan facility (Term Loan A) of $1,215,000 also scheduled 1o mature on March 31,
2013, Quarterly repayments of 330,000 are required at the end of cach quarter with the
remaining balance oulstanding duc on March 31, 2013.

. a term loan facility (Term Loan B) of $1,521,619 scheduled to maturc on March 31, 2013 with
1 quarterly repayment of $4,036 followed by 4 quarterly repayments of $379,396 cach due at
the end of its respective quarter.

Inierest on these facilities will be, at the Parent Company’s option, depending on the interest periods
chosen, at a rate equal to either (i) LIBOR plus an applicable margin or (ii) the higher of (a) Bank of
America’s prime rate or (b} the U.S. Federal Funds rate plus 0.5%, plus an applicable margin.

The applicable margin is variable and depends on the Parent Company’s Consolidated Leverage
Ratio which is a ratio of its Consolidated Funded Debt less all cash and cash equivalents 1o
Consolidated EBITDA (as these terms are defined in the Amended 2006 Senior Credit Agreement).

In addition to scheduled principal payments, indebtedness outstanding under the Amended 2006
Scnior Credit Agreement will be reduced by mandatory prepayments utilizing portions of the net
cash procecds from certain sales ol asscts, securitization transactions other than the Company’s
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existing A/R Facility, the issuance of subordinated debt other than ceriain intercompany transactions,
certain issuances of equity and excess cash flow.

Obligations under the Amended 2006 Sentor Credit Agrecment are secured by pledges of capital
stock of cerlain material subsidiaries in favor of the Lenders. The Amended 2006 Senior Credit
Agrecment contains affirmative and ncgative covenants with respect to the Parent Company and its
subsidiarics and other payment restrictions. Certain of the covenants limit indebledness of the Parent
Company and investments by the Parent Company, and require the Parent Company to maintain
certain {inancial ratios defined in the agreement. As of December 31, 2011, the Parent Company is in
compliance with all covenants under the Amended 2006 Senior Crediy Agreement.

The Parent Company incurred fees of approximately $85,828 in conjunction with the 2006 Senior
Credit Agreement and fees of approximately $21,115 in conjunction with the Amended 2006 Senior
Credit Agreement which are being amortized over the life of this agreement,

The following table shows the outstanding amounts of the Company under the Amended 2006
Senior Credit Agreement at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Balance outstanding
December 31
2011 2010
Revolving credit facility $ 58,970 81,126
Loan A — 85,000
Loan B 1,521,619 1,292,764
3 1,580,589 1,458,890

In addition, at December 31, 2011 and 2010, $180,766 and $121,518, respectively, were utilized as
letters of credit which are not included as part of the balances outstanding at those dates.

In conjunction with the Amended 2006 Senior Credit Agreement and the related variable rale based
interest payments, the Company entered into additional interest rate swaps in the notional amount of
$1,215,000 with FMCAG & KGaA. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company had total
interest rates swaps in the notional amount of $1,150,000 and $900,000, respectively. These
instruments, designated as cash flow hedges, elfectively converl forccasted LIBOR-based interest
payments into fixed rate based intercst payments which fix the intcrest rate on $1,150,000 of the
financing under the Amended 2006 Senior Credit Agreement at a weighted average rate of 4.66%
plus an applicable margin. These swaps are denominated in U.S. dollars and ¢xpire at various dates
between 2011 and 2013.

The weighted average interest rate for all Company debt outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and
2010 was approximately 4,71% and 4.91%, respectively, including the effects of interest rale swaps
in effect during the period.
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(b} Long-Term Debt
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, long-lerm debt consisted of the following:

December 31

2011 2010

Amended 2006 Senior Credit Agreement $ 1,580,589 1,458,890
AR Facility 534,500 —
Iron License Agreement (see note 7(a)) 5,485 11,830
Other 715 124
2,121,289 1,470,844

Less amounts classified as current 1,147,709 107,706
$ 973,580 1,363,138

(¢) (Receivables)Borrowings from Affiliates

The Company has various outstanding borrowings with KGaA and affiliates. The funds were used
for general corporate purposes. The loans are due at various maturities.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, (receivables) borrowings from affiliates consisted of the following:

December 31
2011 - 2010

(Reccivables) borrowings from affiliates consists of:
Fresenius Medical Care AG & Co. KGaA
borrowings (reccivables) primarily at intcrest rates
approximating 0.76% and 0.0%, respectively $ (800,000) 298
RTC Holdings International, Inc. borrowings at a
fixed interest rate of 0.77% and 0.97%,
respectively
Fresenius Medical Care Trust Finance S.a.r.l.
borrowings at fixed interest rale of 8.25%
FMC Finance Il S.A. borrowings,
net of discounts at a fixed rate of 7.019% —
FMC US Finance horrowings, nel of discounts at
a fixed rate of 1.39% 6,752
FMC Finance II borrowings, net of discounts at
a fixed rate of 7.00% 408,942 —
FMC Finance II borrowings, net of discounts at
a rate of LIBOR plus 1.125% 438

13,040 12,961
— 218,715

494,231
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December 31
2011 2010
Fresenius Medical Care North America Holdings
Limited Partnership receivables at a rate of
LIBOR plus 1% $ (616,686) (322,676)
(987,514) 403,529
Less amounts classified as current (1,403,647) (90,702)
Total $ 416,133 494,231

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt and borrowings (receivables) from affiliates arc as follows:

2012 $ (255,938)
2013 439,080
2014 534,500
2015 —
2016 —
2017 and thereafter 416,133
Total $ 1,133,775

(7)  Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying value and accumulated amortization of other intangible
assets consisted of the following:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Gross Gross
carrying Accumulated Carrying carrying Accumulated Carrying
value amortization value value amoriizalion value
Amortizable intangible assets:
Noncompete agreements 5 241.046 {181,289 59,757 228663 (163.951) 64,712
Acuie care agreemenis 139,349 {132,400) 7.443 140,190 {130,334) 8856
License and distribution
agreements 54,984 {15,819) 39,165 52.984 . (11.033) 41,951
Technology 65,536 (21,960) 23,576 65,535 (17,640) 47,89
Other intangihles 109,523 (34,327) 75,596 92,501 (22,635) 69,866
Construction in progress 60,212 — 6,212 50,894 — 50,894
671,550 {385,801) 285,749 630,768 {345,593) 285,175
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December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Gross -~ Gross.
carrying Accumulated Carrying currying Accumulated Carrying
value amortization value value amaortization value
Nonamorizable inlangible assels:
Tradename $ 208,766 — 208,766 209,454 —_ 209,454
Management contracts 3,163 — 3,163 3,163 — 3.163
211,92¢ — 211,929 212,617 — 212,617

Nel intangibles $ 883,479 (385,801) 497,678 843,385 (345,593) 497,792

Amortization expensc for amortizable intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
was $41,328 and $37,200, respeciively. Amortization expense is estimated to be $41,000 for 2012, $42,000
for 2013, §43,000 for 2014, $44,000 for 2015 and $45,000 for 2016.

(a) License and Distribution Agreement

In July 2008, the Pareni Company, cntered into 1wo scparate and independent license and
distribution agrecments, one for the United States and one for ccrtain countries in Europe and the
Middle East, 1o market and distributec Galenica’s intravenous iron preducts, such as Venofer® and
Ferinject® for dialysis trecatment. In North America, the license agrecment among FMCH, Luitpotd
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., American Regent, and Vifor (International), Inc. provides FMCH with
exclusive rights to manulacture and distribule Venofer® to {reestanding (nonhospital based)
U.S. dialysis facilities. In addition, it grants FMCH similar rights for Injectafer® (ferric
carboxymaltosc), a proposed new IV iron medication currently under clinical study in the U.S. The
U.S. license agreement has a term of ten years, includes FMCH exiension options, and requircs
paymeni by FMCH over the ten-year term of aggregate royaltics of approximately $2,000,000 which
the Company will expense as incurred (based upon the annual estimated units of sale of the licensed
product), subject to certain carly termination provisions. In addition {o these payments, thc Company
will pay a tolal of approximately $47,000 over a four-year period of which $41,444 has been paid as
of December 31, 2011, The Company has a liability for the balance. The cost of the agreement and
rclated transaction costs of $5,947 are being amortized over the 10-year cxpected usetul life (bascd
upon annual estimatcd units of sale of the licensed product).

(b))  Goodwill

A change in New York state regulations allowed for the direct ownership of facilitics in that siatc,
which had previously been prohibited by state law. Due 1o this prohibition, the Company had
historically uscd a combination of administrative service contracts, stock oplion agreements, and
assel acquisitions to qualify for consolidation of such facilitics under guidance originaltly issued as
Emerging Issues Task Force 97-2, Application of FASB Statement No. 94 and APB Opinion No. 16
to Physicians Practice Management Entities and Certain Other Entities with Contractual
Management Arrangements, which is now included within FASB Accounting Standards Cedification
Topic 810-10, Consolidation: Overall. In such qualifying transactions, a portion of the purchasc
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pricc was allocated to identifiable intangible assets with the remainder classificd as an
“Administrative Services Agreement” intangible assct that was accounted for in the same manner as
goodwill and was shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009, under the
category Management Contracts within Intangible Assets. With the regulatory approval gained on
April 1, 2010, the Company obtained the full ownership of these facilities and reclassified the
$214,706 of Administrative Scrvices Agreemeni intangible asset to goodwill clfective April 1, 2010,
to be consistent with other clinic acquisitions where the Company obtained control via legal
ownership.

Changes in the reporting unit’s carrying amount of goodwill for the ycars ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 are as follows:

December 31
2011 2010
Carrying value as of beginning of ycar $ 7,162,623 6,832,695
Goodwill acquired 513,552 118,650
Other reclassifications : 1,635 211,278
Carrying value as of end of year $ 7,677,810 7,162,623

(8) Special Charge for Legal Matters

In 2001, thc Company recorded a $258,159 special charge to address legal matters relating to transactions
pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated as of February 4, 1996 by and between W, R,
Grace & Co. and Frescnius AG (the Merger), estimated liabilitics and legal expenscs arising in connection
with the W. R. Grace & Co. Chapter 11 proceedings (the Grace Chapter 11 Proceedings) and the cost of
resolving pending litigation and other disputes with certain commercial insurers. During the second quarter
of 2003, the court supervising the Grace Chapter 11 Proccedings approved a definitive settlement
agreemeni entered into among the Company, the commitiee representing the asbestos creditors and W. R,
Grace & Co. Under the settlement agreement, the Company will pay $115,000, without interest, upon plan
confirmation (see note 17¢). With the exception of the proposed $115,000 payment under the Scitlement
Agreement, all other matters included in the special charge have been resolved.

At December 31, 2011, there is a remaining balance of $115,694 for the accrual for the special charge for
legal maticrs. During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, $134 and $142, respectively, in
charges were applied against the accrucd special charge for legal matters.
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(9 Income Taxes
Income before income taxes is as follows:

Year ended December 31

2011 2010
Domestic $ 1,134,194 1,090,111
Foreign 6,656 (279)
Total income before income taxes $ 1,140,850 _ 1,089,832

The provisions for income taxes are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2011 2010
Current lax expensc:
Federal h) 230,650 304,737
State 57,872 57,330
Forcign 1,509 987
Total current 290,031 363,054
Deferred 1ax expense (benelit):
Federal 128,834 28,243
State 2,735 15,043
Foreign 827 1,195
Total deferred tax expense 132,396 44 481
Total provision $ 422,427 407,535
25 2011 Audited l{ﬁﬁ'ﬁag}’%ﬂ;temem
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The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 differed from the amount
of income taxes determined by applying the applicable statutory [ederal income tax rate to pre-tax earnings
as a result of the following differences:

Year ended December 31

2011 2010

Statutory federal tax rate 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax bencfit 4.2 4.1
Provision for tax audit liability 0.9 0.7
Noncontrolling partnership interests (3.0) 2.5
Foreign losses and taxes — 0.1
Manufacturing deduction 0.2) 0.2)
Other 0.1 0.2

Effective tax rate 37.0% 37.4%
Deferred tax liabilities (assets) arc comprised of the following:

December 31
2011 2010

Reserves and other accrued liabililies $ (128,172) (188,555)
Depreciation and amortization 565,637 486,898
Special charge not currently deductible (44,030 (44.,030)
Derivatives (7,523) (23,513)
Pension valuation (64,281) (34,681)
Stock based compensation expense (21,267) (20,058)
Other (149) —

Net deferred 1ax liabilities $ 300,215 176,061

The Company has established valuation allowances for deferred tax assets of $22,847 and $15,209 at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The net increase (decrease) in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was $7,638 and $3,470 for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 respectively. The changes aforementioned relate to activities
incurred in foreign jurisdictions.

It is the Company’s expectation that it is more likely than not to generate fulure taxable income to utilize
its remaining deferred tax assets,

At December 31, 2011, there is a federal net operating loss carryover of $11,964 the majority of which will
begin to expire in 2021. In addition, there is a Federal Tax Credit of $1,270 which will begin to expirc in
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2020. State net operating loss carryovers are $250,927 with varying expiration dates and foreign net
operaling losses are $22,792, the majority of which expire within scven years.

Provision has not becn made for additional federal, state, or foreign taxes on $38,216 of undistributed
earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Prior to a decision on the evaluation discussed below, those earnings have
been and will continue to be reinvested. The earnings could be subject to additional tax if they werc
remitied as dividends, if foreign earnings were loancd to the Company or a U.S. affiliate or if the Company
should scll its stock in these subsidiarics. The Company estimates that the distribution of these earnings
would result in $14,320 of additional foreign withholding tax and U.S. federal income taxcs.

The Company adopted ASC 740, Income Taxes (ASC 740), formerly FASB Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, as of
January 1, 2007. ASC 740 prescribes a (wo-step approach to the recognition and measurement of all tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The enterprisc must determine whether it is
more-likely than-not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any
related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. If the threshold is met,
the tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely ol being
realized upon ultimate settlement and is recognized in the financial statements.

The Company filed claims for refunds contesting the Intcrnal Revenue Service’s (IRS) disallowance of
FMCH’s civil settlement payment deductions taken by FMCH in prior year tax returns. As a resull of a
settlement agreement with the IRS, the Company reccived a partial refund in September 2008 of $37,000,
inclusive of interest and preserved the right to continue 1o pursue claims in the United States Courts for
refunds of all other disallowed deductions. On Dccember 22, 2008, we filed a complaint for a complete
refund in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts, styled as FMCH v. United
States. The court has denied motions for summary judgment by both parties and the litigation is proceeding
towards trial. The unrecognized tax bencfit relating to these deductions is included in the total
unrecognized tax benefit noted below.

The IRS tax audits of FMCH for the ycars 2002 through 2008 have been completed. On January 23, 2012,
the Company executed a closing agreement with the IRS with respect 1o the 2007-2008 tax audit. The
agreement reflected a full allowance of interest deductions on intercompany mandatorily redcemable
preferred shares for the 2007-2008 tax years. In addition, on February 16, 2012, the Company cxecuted a
closing agreement with IRS Appeals that reflects the full allowance of interest deductions associated with,
mandatorily redeemable shares for the years 2002-2006. All other IRS proposcd other adjustments for the
2007-2008 tax audit have been recognized in the consolidated financial siatements.

In the U.S., fiscal years 2009, 2010 and 2011 are open to audit. FMCH is also subject to audit in various
state jurisdictions. A number of thesc audits arc in progress and various years are open 1o audit in various
staic jurisdictions,
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The following table shows the reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax

benefits:
2011 2010
Unrecognized tax benefits (net of interest):
Balance at January 1 $ 70,725 100,928
Increascs in unrecognized tax benefits prior periods 11,016 11,346
Dccreases in unrecognized tax benefits prior periods (5,932) (9,880)
Increascs in unrccognized tax benefits current periods 3,198 1,510
Changes related to seltlements with tax authoritics (9,883) (33,051)
Reductions due 1o statute of limitations (3,100 (128)
Balance at December 31 $ 66,024 70,725

Included in the balance at December 31, 2011 is $43,205 of unrecognized tax benelits which would affect
the effective tax rate if recognized. The Company is currently not in a position to forecasi the timing and
magnitude of changes in the unrecognized tax benefits.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company recognized $7,922 in interest and penaltics. The
Company paid $17,464 in interest and penalties during 2011,

(10) Property, Plant and Equipment
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31

2011 2010

Land and improvements $ 12,145 12,034
Buildings 185,366 181,233
Capital leasc property 3,587 363
Leaschold improvements 1,115,402 1,039,337
Equipment and {urniture 1,227,023 1,149,540
Construction in progress 146,246 156,470
2,689,769 2,538,977

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,291,956) (1,154,863)
Praperty, plant and equipment, net $ 1,397,813 1,384,114

Depreciation expense relating 10 property, plant and equipment amounted to $263,450 and $248,281 for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Included in property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 were $100,474 and $81,477,
respectively, of peritoneal dialysis cycler machines which the Company leasces to customers with end-slage
renal discasc on a month-to-month basis. Rental income for the peritoneal dialysis cycler machines was
$7,357 and $8,202, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Leases

The Company fcascs buildings and machinery and equipment under various leasc agreements expiring on
dates through 2019. Rental expense for operating leases was $419,117 and $400,626 for the ycars cnded
December 31, 2011 and 2014, respectively. Amortization of properties under capital leases amounted 1o
$2,090 and 32 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Future minimum payments under noncancelable leases (principally for clinics, offices and equipment) for
the live years succeeding December 31, 2011 and thereafler are as follows:

Operating Capital
Ieases leases Total
2012 3 383,658 568 384,226
2013 348,853 579 349,432
2014 296,828 591 297,419
2015 253,640 441 254,081
2016 205,074 184 205,258
2017 and beyond 496,482 310 496,792
Total minimum payments $ 1,984,535 2,673 % 1,987,208
Less intcrest and operating costs 554
Present value of minimum
lease payments ($325
payable in 2012) $ 2,119

Lease agreements frequently include renewal options and require that the Company pay for ufilities, taxes,
insurance and maintenance expenses. Options to purchase are also included in some lease agreements,

particularly capital lcascs,

(11) Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities

FMCAG & KGaA issucd Trust Preferred Sccurities through Fresenius Medical Care Capital Trusts,
statutory trusts organized under the laws of the state of Delaware. FMCAG & KGaA owns all of the
common securities ol these trusts. The sole asset of each trust is a senior subordinated note of FMCAG &
KGaA or a wholly owned subsidiary of FMCAG & KGaA, FMCAG & KGaA, Fresenius Mcdical Care
Deutschland GmbH (D-GmbH) and FMCH bave guarantecd payment and performance of the senior
subordinated notes to the Fresenius Medical Care Capital Trusts. The Trust Preferred Securities are
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guaranteed by FMCAG & KGaA through Series of undertakings by FMCAG & KGaA and FMCH and
D-GmbH.

The table below provides information for the remaining Redeemable Preferred Securities for the periods
indicated:

December 31
2011 2010
Mandatorily redeemable preferred securitics:
Series A preferred stock, 100 shares h) 665,500 665,500
Total mandatorily redeemable 665,500 665,500
Less amounts classified as current — —
Long-term mandatorily redecmable $ 665,500 665,500

These securities are similar in substance except for the order of preference both as to dividends and
liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of thce subsidiary. In addition, the holders of the Redeemable
Preferred Securities are entitled to receive dividends in an amount of dollars per share that varies from
approximately 3% to 5% of the purchase price depending on the Series. The dividends will be declared and
paid in cash at least annually. All the Redeemable Preferred Securitics have a par value of $0.01 per share.

Upon liguidation or dissolution or winding up of the issucr of the Redeemable Preferred Securities, the
holders of the Redeemable Preferred Sceurities are entitled 1o an amount equal to the liquidation preference
for each share of stock plus an amouni equal to all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon through the date
of distribution. The liquidation preference is the sum of the issuance price plus, for cach year or portion
thercof, an amount equal 1o one-hall of onc percent of the issue price, not 1o exceed 5% of the issuc price
in the aggregatc.

The Series A Redeemable Preferred Sccurities plus any accrued and unpaid dividends will be sold back to
the Company. Scries A was offered in March 2007 and has a redemption date in March 2013.

Dividends accrued were recorded and classified as part of interest expense in the consolidated stalcments
of operations in the amounts of $23,390 and $31,253, for the ycars ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, cash dividend payments were made
totaling $23,938 and $40,543, respectively.

The holders of the Redeemable Preferred Sceuritics have the same participation rights as the holders of all
other classes of capital stock of the issuing subsidiary.
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(12} Pension and Other Post Retirement Benefits
{a) National Medical Care, Inc. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Company has a noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan (NMC plan). Each year the
Company contributes at least the minimum required by the Employce Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974, as amended. Plan assets consist primarily of publicly traded common stock, fixed
income securities and cash equivalents.

Prior to 2010, the Company curtailed its defined benefit and supplemental executive retircment
plans. Under the curtailment amendment for substantially all employees cligible to participate in the
plan, benefits have been frozen as of the curlailment date and no additional defined benefits for
futurc scrvices will be earncd. The Company has retained all employce benelit obligations as of the
curtailment date. There was no minimum funding requirement for FMCH for the defined bencfit plan
in 2011 and 2010. The Company did not contribute any amounts for the ycars ended December 31,
2011 and 2010. Expected funding for 2012 is $11,000.

The following table shows the changes in bencfit obligations, the changes in plan assets, and the
funded status of the NMC plan:

Year ended December 31

2011 2010
Change in benefit obligation:
Benelit obligation at beginning of year 8 271,873 251,147
Service cost 1,782 1,625
Interest cost 16,006 15,086
Acluarial loss 58,765 11,586
Benefits paid (9,161) (7,571)
Benefit obligation at end of year 339,265 271,873
Change in plan asscts:
Fair valuc of plan assets at beginning of year 232,325 236,633
Actua! return on plan assets (4,174) 3,191
Employer contribution — 72
Benefits paid (9,161) (7,571)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 218,990 232,325
Funded status at year-cnd $ (120,275) _ (39,548)

The pension liability recognized as of December 31, 2011, is equal to the amount shown as 2011
funded status at end of ycar in the table above. The funded status of $120,275 is recorded as other

liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
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The accumulaied benefit obligation for the NMC plan was $336,137 and $269,212 at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. The accumulated bencfit obligation for the NMC plan with an
obligation in cxcess of plan assets was $117,147 and $36,887 at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The related plan assets had a fair value of $218,990 and $232,325 at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

The pre-tax changes in the fable below for 2011 and 2010 reflect actuarial losses in other
comprehensive income relating to pension liabilitics. As of December 31, 2011 therc are no
cumulative effccts of prior service costs included in other comprehensive income.

Actuarial
losses

Adjustments related to pensions at

January 1, 2010 $ 63,184
Additions 25,848
Releases {5,032)
Adjustments related to pensions at

December 31, 2010 84,000
Additions 80,688
Releases (7,261)
Adjustments related to pensions at

December 31, 2011 $ 157,427

The actuarial loss expected 10 be amortized from other comprehensive income into net periodic
pension cost over the next year is $16,092,

The following weighted average assumptions were utilized in determining benefit obligations as of
December 31:

2011 2010
Discount rate 5.03% 5.80%
Rate of compensation incrcase 4.00 4.50
32 2011 Audited franimithtement
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The NMC plan net periodic benelit costs are comprised of the following components:

2011 2010
Components of net periodic benefit cost:

Service cost $ 1,782 1,625
Interest cost 16,006 15,086
Expected return on plan asscts (17,750) (17,453)
Settlement _ _
Amortization of unrealized losses 7,263 5,032

Net periodic benefit cost ) 7,301 4290

The discount rates for the plan arc derived from an analysis and comparison of yields of portiolios of
equity and highly rated debt instruments with maturities that mirror the plan’s benefit obligation. The
Company’s discount rate is the weighted average of these plans based upon their benefit obligations
al December 31, 2011, The following weighted average assumptions were used in determining net
periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31:

2011 2010
Discount rate 5.80% 6.00%
Expected return on plan assets 7.50 7.50
Rate of compensation increase 4.50 4.50

Expected benefit payments for the NMC plan for the next five years and in the aggregate lor the
five years thereafter are as follows:

2012 $ 11,742
2013 12,541
2014 13,600
2015 14,684
2016 15,669
2017 through 2021 94,649
33 2011 Audited RfaantiebSihtement
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Plan Assets

The following table presents the fair values of the Company’s pension plan asscts at December 31,
2011 and 2010:

Fair value measuremenis al Fair value measurements at
December 21, 2011 December 21, 2010
Quoted prices Quoted prices
in active in aclive
markets for Significant markets for Significant
identical ohservable identical observahle
assets inputs 0855015 inputs
Total Level 1 Jevel 3 Totsl Level ] Level 2
Asset category:
Equity investmenis:
Common stocks ] — — — 2.565 2,563 —
Index funds ' 55,538 - 55538 65,621 - 65,623
Fixed income investments:
Government sccurities * 6,612 5,025 1,587 4,479 1,967 2512
Corporate bonds ™ 143,782 — 143,782 152,564 — 152,564
Other honds * 483 — 483 2,442 - 2,442
U.5. Treasury money
market funds ® 6,600 6,600 — 4,232 4,232 —
Other 1ypes of investments:
Cash, money market
and mulual funds ® 5975 5,975 — 422 422 —
Twlal b 218,990 17,600 201,390 232,323 9,186 223,139
1 This category comprises low-cost equity index funds not actively managed that track the

S&P 500, S&P 400, Russcll 2000, MSCI Emerging Markets Index and the Morgan Stanlcy
International EAFE Index.

2 This category comprises f{ixed income investments by the U.S. Government and government
sponsored entities.

3 This category represents investment grade bonds of U.S. issuers from diverse industries.
4 This category comprises private placement bonds as well as collaleralized morigage
obligations.

5 This category represcnts funds that invest in treasury obligations directly or in treasury-backed
obligations.

6 This catcgory represents cash, money market funds as well as mutual funds comprised of high
grade corporate bonds.
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The methods and inputs used to measure the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Common stocks and index funds are valued at their market prices as of the balance sheet date.
Index funds are valued based on market quotes.

Government bonds are valued based on market quotcs.

Corporate bonds and other bonds are valued based on market quotes as of the balance sheet date.
Cash is stated at nominal valuc which cquals the fair value.

U.S. Treasury money market funds as well as other money markel and mutual funds are valued at
their market price.

Plan Investment Policy and Strategy

The Company periodically reviews the assumption for long-term expected return on pension plan
assets. As part of the assumplions review, independent consulting actuaries determine a range of
reasonable expected investment returns for the pension plan as a whole based on their analysis of
expected future returns for cach asset class weighied by the allocation of the assets. The range of
returns developed relies both on forecasts, which include (he actvarial firm’s expected long-term
rates of return for cach significant asset class or economic indicator, and on broad-market historical
benchmarks for expected return, corrclation, and volatility for each asset class. As a result, the
Company’s cxpected rate of return on pension plan assets was 7.50% for 2011 and 2010.

The Company's overall investment strategy is to achieve a mix of approximately 96% of investments
for long-term growth and 4% for near-lerm benclit payments with a wide diversification of assci
types, fund strategics and fund managers.

The investment policy, utilizing a revised target investment atlocatian of 35% equity and 65%
long-term U.S. bonds, considers that there will be a time horizon for invested funds of more than
5 years. The total portfolio will be measured against a policy index that reflects the assel class
benchmarks and the farget asset allocation. The NMC Plan policy does not allow investments in
securitics of the Company or other rclated-parly securitics. The performance benchmarks for the
scparate asset classes include: S&P 500 Index, S&P 400 Index, Russell 2000 Growth Index, MSCI
EAFE Index, MSCI Emerging Markets Index, Barclays Capital Long Term Government Index and
Barclays Capital 20 Year U.S. Treasury Strip Index.

()  Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

The Company's supplemental exccutive retircment plan provides certain key executives with
benefits in excess of normai pension benefits. This plan was also curtailed prior to 2010. The
projected benefit obligation was $13,031 and $10,919 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Pcnsion expense for this plan, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $1,173 and
$876, respectively. The Company has rccorded $5,097 and $3,604 to accumulated other
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comprehensive income 10 recognize the additional liability for this plan at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. The Company contributed $556 and $528 to this plan during 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Expecied funding for 2012 is $790,

The pension liability recognized as of December 31, 2011 of $13,031, includes a current portion of
$771 which is recognized as a current liability in the line item “accrued liabilitics” within the
consolidated balance sheets. The noncurrent portion of $12,260 is recorded as noncurrent pension
liability in “other liabilities™ within the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company does not provide any post retirement benefils to its employees other than those
provided under its pension plan and supplemental exccutive retirement plan.

(¢) Defined Contribution Plans

Most of the Company’s employees are cligible to join a 401(k) savings plan. Employees can deposit
up to 75% of their pay up to a maximum of $16.5 if under 50 years old ($22.0 if 50 or over) under
this savings plan. The Company will match 50% of the employee deposit up to a maximum
Company contribution of 3% of the employee’s pay. The Company’s {otal cxpense under this
defined contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $33,741 and
$31,583, respectively.

(13) Noncontrolling Interests Subject to Put Provisions

The Company has potential obligations to purchase the noncontrolling interests held by third parties in
certain of its consolidated subsidiaries. These obligations are in the form of put provisions and are
excrcisable at the third-party owners’ discretion within specified periods as outlined in cach specific put
provision. If these put provisions were exercised, the Company would be required to purchase all or part of
third-party owners’ noncontrolling interests at the appraised fair valuc at the time of cxercise. The
methodology the Company uses to estimate the fair values of the noncontrolling interest subject to put
provisions assumes the greater of net book value or a mulliple of earnings, based on historical carnings,
development stage of the underlying business and other factors. The estimated fair values of the
noncontrolling inierests subject to these putl provisions can also fluctuate and the implicit multipie of
carnings at which these noncontrolling interest obligations may ultimaiely be setiled could vary
significantly from our current estimates depending upon market conditions.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company’s poiential obligations under these put options arc
$404,015 and $273,022, respectively, of which, at December 31, 2011, $107,318 were cxcrcisable. In the
last two fiscal years ending December 31, 2011 one put has been exercised for a total consideration of $99.
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Following is a rollforward of noncontrolling inferests subject to put provisions for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Beginning balance $ 273,022 231,303
Dividends paid (43,104) (38,964)
Purchase/sale of noncontrolling interests 37,786 22,333
Contributions from noncontrolling interests 7222 5,289
Changes in fair value of noncontrolling interests 86,233 24,223
Net income 42 856 28,838
Ending balance $ 404,015 273,022

(14) Equity
(a) Preferred Stock $1.00 Par Value

During 2006, the Company issued 1o Fresenius Medical Care North America Holdings Limited
Partnership (DLP), 5,000,000 shares at $1.00 par value of Serics C Preferred Stock. The Company
reccived proceeds of $1,250,000. Simultancous to the issuance of the sccurities, the Company
entcred into a conditional forward sale contract on the sharcs with DLP (sce note 16 (d)). At cach
reporting period, the securitics are marked (o market at the Euro spot rate. Changes in the fair value
arc recognized in carnings.

During the {irst quarter of 2011, the Company issued to Fresenius Medical Care North America
Holdings Limited Partnership (DLP), 2,653,560 shares at $1.00 par value of Scries E Preferred stock.
The Company reccived proceeds of $663,390.

During the second quarter of 2011, the Company issued to Fresenius Medical Carc North America
Holdings Limited Partnership (DLP), 2,100,000 shares at $1.00 par value of Scrics F Preferred stock.
The Company received proceeds of $525,000.
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At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the components of the Company’s preferred stocks as presented in
the consolidated balance sheets consisted of the following:

December 31
2011 2010
Preferred stock $1.00 par value:
Class C; 5,000,000 sharcs authorized, issucd
and outstanding. $ 1,336,232 1,379,916
Class E; 2,653,560 sharcs authorized, issued
and outstanding. 663,390 —
Class F; 2,100,000 shares authorized, issued
and outstanding. 525,000 —
Total Preferred Stock h 2,524,622 ___ 1,379,916

(b} Stock Options

In connection with its stock option program, the Company incurred compensation expense of
$20,767 and $20,330 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. There were no
capitalized compensation costs in any of the two years presented. The Company also recorded a
related deferred income tax of $8,193 and $8,020 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,

respectively.

On May 12, 2011, the Fresenius Medical Care AG & Co. KGaA Stock Option Plan 2011
(2011 SOP) was established by resolution of the Parent Company’s annual general meeting (AGM).
The 2011 SOP, together with the Phantom Stock Plan 2011, which was established by resolution of
the General Pariner’s Management and Supervisory Boards, forms the Parent Company’s Long Term
Incentive Program 2011 (2011 Incentive Program). Under the 2011 Incentive Program, parlicipants
may bc granicd awards, which will consist of a combination of stock options and phantom stock.
Awards under the 2011 Incentive Program will be granted over a five year period and can be granted
on the last Monday in July and/or the [irst Monday in December cach year. Prior (o the respective
grant, the participants will be able to choose how much of the granted value is granted in the form of
stock options and phantom stock in a predefined range of 75:25 to 50:50, stock options vs. phantom
stock. The number of phantom shares that plan participanis may choose to receive instcad of stock
options within the aforementioned predefined range is determined on the basis of a fair value
assessment pursuant to a binomial model. With respect to grants made in July, this fair value
assessment will be conducted on the day following the Parent Company’s AGM and with respect to
the grants made in December, on the first Monday in October.

The awards under the 2011 Incentive Program are subject to a four-year vesting period. The vesting
of the awards granted is subject to achievement of performance targets measured over a four-ycar
period beginning with the first day of the year of the grant. For each such year, the performance
target is achicved if the Parent Company’s adjusied basic income per ordinary share (Adjusted EPS),
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as calculated in accordance with the 2011 Incentive Program, increases by at least 8% year over year
during the vesting period or, if this is not the case, the compounded annual growth rate of the
Adjusted EPS reflects an increase of at least 8% per year of the Adjusted EPS during the four-year
vesting period. At the cnd of the vesting period, one-fourth of the awards granted is forfeited for each
year in which the performance target is not achieved. All awards arc considered vested if the
compounded annual growth rate of the Adjusted EPS reflects an increasc of at least 8% per year
during the four-year vesting period. Vesting of the portion or portions of a grant for a year or years in
which the performance target is met docs not occur until completion of the four-year vesting period.

The excrcise price of stock options granted under the 2011 Incentive Program shall be the average
stock exchange price on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange of the Parent Company’s ordinary sharcs
during the 30 calendar days immediately prior to cach grant date. Stock options granted under the
2017 Incentive Program have an eight-ycar lerm and can be excrcised only after a four-year vesting
periad. Stock options granted under the 2011 Incentive Program to US participants arc nonqualificd
stock options under the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Options under the
2011 Incentive Program are not transferable by a participant or a participant’s heirs, and may not be
pledged, assigned, or disposed of otherwise.

In 1996, FMCAG adopted a stock incentive plan (the FMCAG Plan) under which the Parcnt
Company and the Company’s key management and executive employees are cligible, Under the
FMCAG Plan, cligible employees will have the right to acquire preference shares of FMCAG.
Options granted under the FMCAG Plan will be cvidenced by a nontransferable convertible bond
and corresponding nonrecourse loan 10 the employee, secured solely by the bond with which it was
made. The bonds mature in ten years and are generally fully convertible after three 1o five years,
Each convertible bond, which is deutsche mark (DM) denominated, eniitles the holder thercof to
convert the bond in preference shares cqual to the face amount of the bond divided by the preference
sharc’s nominal valuc.

During 1998, FMCAG adopted a new stock incentive plan (FMCAG 98 Plan) under which the
Parent Company and the Company’s key management and exccutive employees are cligible. Under
the FMCAG 98 Plan, cligible employces will have the right to acquirc Prefercnce Shares of
FMCAG. Options granted under th¢ FMCAG 98 Plan will be evidenced by a nontransferable
convertible bond and a corresponding nonrecourse loan to the employee, secured solely by the bond
with which it was made. Each convertible bond, which is DM denominated, will entitle the holder
thereof to convert the bond in Preference Shares equal to the face amount of the bond divided by the
preference share's nominal value. Effective September 2001, no additianal grants or options will be
awarded under the FMCAG 98 Plan.

On May 23, 2001, by resolution of the FMCAG shareholders, the FMCAG 98 Plan was replaced by
a new plan (FMCAG International Plan). Under the FMCAG International Plan, options in the form
of convertible bonds with a principal of up to 10,240 Euros were issucd 1o the members of the
FMCAG Management Board and other employees of the Company representing granis for up to
4 million nonvoting preference shares. The convertible bonds originally had a par value of 2.56
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Euros and bear interest at a rate of 5.5%. In connection wish the share split effected in 2007, the
principal amount was adjusted in the same proporlion as the share capital out of the capital increase
and the par value of the convertible bonds was adjusted to 0.85 Euros without alfecting the interest
raic. Except for the members of the FMCAG Management Board, eligible employces may purchase
the bonds by issuing a nonrecourse note with terms corresponding to the terms of and sccured by the
bond. The Paren! Company has the right to offset its obligation on a bond against the cmployee’s
obligation on the related note; therefore, the convertible bond obligations and employee note
receivables represent stock options issued by the Parent Company and are not reflected in the Parent
Company's consolidated [inancial statements. The options expire ten years from issuance and can be
exercised beginning two, three or four years afler issuance.

Upon issuance of the option, the cmployees had the right to choose options with or without a stock
price target. The conversion price of options subject 1o a stock price target corresponds Lo the stock
cxchange quoted price of the preference shares upon the first time the stock exchange quoted price
exceeds the initial value by at least 25%. The initial value (Initial Value) is the average price of the
preference shares during the last 30 trading days prior {o the date of grant. In the case of options not
subjcct to a stock price target, the number of convertible bonds awarded to the eligible employce
would be 15% less than if the employce elected options subject to the stock price targel. The
conversion price of the options without a stock price targel is the Initial Value. Each oplion entitles
the holder thereof, upon payment of the respective conversion price, to acquire one preference share.
Effective May 2006, no further granis can be issued under the FMCAG International Plan and no
options were granted under the FMCAG International Plan after 2003.

On May 9, 2006 as amended on May 15, 2007 the FMCAG & KGaA Stock Option Plan 2006
(the 2006 Amcnded Plan) was established by resolution of the FMCAG & KGaA annual gencral
meeting with a conditional capital increase up to 15,000 Euros subject to the issue of up to
filteen million no par value bearer ordinary shares with a nominal value of 1.00 curos cach. Under
the 2006 Amended Plan, up te 15 million options can be issued to members of the management
board and to other employees of FMCAG and the Company.

Options under the 2006 Amended Plan can be granted the last Monday in July and/or the first
Monday in December. The exercise price of the options granted under the 2006 Amendcd Plan shall
be the average closing price on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange of FMCAG & KGaA ordinary shares
during the 30 calendar days immediately prior to each grant date. Options granted undcr the 2006
Amended Plan have a scven-year ierm but can be excrcised only after a three-year vesting period.
The vesting of options granted is subject to satisfaction of performance targets measured over a
three-year period from the grant date. The performance targets for 2011 and 2010 were met. Vesling
of a portion or portions of a grant for a year in which the performance target is met docs not occur
until completion of the cntire three-ycar vesting period. Upon the exercise of vested options,
FMCAG & KGaA has the right 1o issuc ordinary shares it owns or that it purchases on the market in
placc of increasing capital by the issuance of ncw shares.
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Options granted under the 2006 Amended Plan to U.S. participants are nonqualificd stock options
under the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Options under the 2006
Amendced Plan are not transferable by a participant or a participant’s heirs, and may not be pledged,
assigned, or otherwise disposed ol.

The table below provides reconciliations for options vutstanding at December 31, 2011, as compared
to Deccmber 31, 2010.

Weighted
Options average
(In thousands) exercise price

Ordinary shares:

Balance at December 31, 2010 7,766 § 45.21

Granted 1,338 67.87

Exercised (1,336) 42.24

Forfeited (149) 44.74

Balance at December 31, 2011 7,619 49,73
Preference shares:

Balance at December 31, 2010 59 § 2483

Exercised 9 29.14

Forfcited (1) 23.56

Balance at December 31, 2011 49 2412

e ——

The following 1able provides a summary of fully vested options outstanding and exercisable for both
preference and ordinary shares at December 31, 2011

Fully vested outstanding and exercisable options

Weighted
average Weighted
remaining average Aggregate
Number contractoal exercise intrinsic
of options life in years price value
(In thousands)

Options for ordinary shares 2,498 291 % 41.56 65,861
Options for preference shares 49 2.80 24,11 1,538

At December 31, 2011, there is $37,472 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to
nonvested options granted under all plans. These costs ar¢ expecied to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 1.9 years.
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During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company rcceived cash of $60,972 and
$70,638, respectively, from the exercise of stock options. The intrinsic valuc of options exercised for
the ycars ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were $32,978 and $33,746, respectively. The
Company recorded a related tax benefit of $6,025 and $3,618 for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

(¢) Fair Value Information

The Company used a binomial option-pricing model in delermining the fair value of the awards
under the 2011 SOP and the 2006 Plan. Option valuation modcls reguire the input of subjective
assumptions including expected stock price volatility. The Company’s assumptions ar¢ based upon
its past experiences, market trends and the cxperiences of other entities of the same size and in
similar industries. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of the Company’s shares. To
incorporale the effects of expecied early exercise in the model, an carly cxercise of vested options
was assumcd as soon as the share price exceeds 155% of he exercise price. The Company’s stock
options have characteristics that vary significantly from traded oplions and changes in subjective
assumptions can materially affect the fair value of the option.

The assumptions used to determine the fair value of the 2011 and 2010 grants arc as follows:

2011 2010
Expected dividend yield 1.62% 1.98%
Risk-free interest rate 2.55 2.28
Expected volatility 22.22 22.92
Expected life of options 8 years 7 years
Weighted average cxercise price b 67.87 57.07

Financial Instfruments

As a supplier of dialysis services and products, the Company is faced with a concentration of credit risks
due to the nature of the reimbursement system which are often provided by the governments of the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Changes in reimbursement rates or scope of coverage could
have a material adversc effect on the Company's business, financial condition and results of operattons and
thus on its capacity to generate cash {low. In the past the Company cxperienced and also expects in the
future generally stable reimbursements for its dialysis services. This includes the balancing of favorable
and unfavorable reimbursement changes. Due 1o the fact that a large portion of the Company’s
reimbursement is provided by public healthcare organizations and private insurcrs, the Company expects
that most of its accounts receivables will be collectable.
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Nonderivative Financial Instruments

The following tablc presents the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s nonderivative
financial instruments at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
Nonderivatives:
Assets:
Cash and cash equivaleats $ 204,142 204,142 163,292 163,292
Accounts receivables 1,188,700 1,188,700 1,176.849 1,176,849
Receivables from affiliales 1,448,895 1,448,895 322,676 322,676
Long {erm notes receivahle 234,490 233,514
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 309,345 309,345 267,570 267,570
Shori-term borrowings 17,445 17,445 546,612 546,612
Long-icrm debt and capital
lease obligations, excluding
Amended 2006 Senior Credit
Agreement 542,819 542 819 14,216 14,216
Amended 2006 Senior Credit
Agreement 1,580,589 1,572,957 1,458,890 1,448,390
Mandaiorily redeemable
preferred securities 665,500 665,500 665,500 665,500
Borrowings from affiliates 429.173 429,173 726,205 726,205
Noncontrolling interests subject to
put provisions $ 404,015 404,015 273,022 273,022

The carrying amounts in the table are included in the consolidated balance shects under the indicated
captions.

The significant methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments are as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents arc stated at nominal value which equals the fair value.

Short-term financial instruments such as accounts receivable, accounts payable and short-tcrm borrowings
arc valued at their carrying amounts, which are reasonable estimates of the fair value duc to the rclatively
short period 1o maturity of these instruments.
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The valuation of the long-term notes receivable is determined using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3). It is valued using a constructed index bascd upon similar instruments with comparable credit
ralings, lerms, tenor, interest rates and that are within the Company’s industry. The Company tracked the
prices of the constructed index from the note issuance date to the reporling date to determine fair value.

The fair values of the long-term debt and capital lease obligations are calculated on the basis of market
information. Instruments for which market quotes are available are measured using these quotes. The fair
values of the other long-term financial liabilities are calculated at the present value of the respective future
cash flows. To determine these present values, the prevailing intercst rates and credit spreads for the
Company as of the balunce sheet date are used.

The valuation of the norconirolling interests subject to put provisions is determined using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3). Sce note 13 for a discussion of the Company’s methodology for estimating
the fair value of thesc noncontrolling interests subject to put abligations.

Currently, there is no indication that a decrease in the value of the Company’s financing receivables is
probable. Therefore, the allowances on credit lossces of {inancing receivables are immaterial.

(16) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in intercst rates and foreign exchange rates. In order
to manage the risk of interest rate and currency exchange rate flucluations, the Company enters into
various hedging transactions with highly rated financial institutions as authorized by the Parcnt Company.
On a quarterly basis an assessment of the Company counterparty credit risk is performed, which the
Company considers 10 be low. The Company docs not use financial instruments for trading purposes.

The Company established guidelines for risk asscssment procedures and controls for the usc of financial
instruments. They include a clear segregation of duties with regard 10 execulion on one side and
administration, accounting and controlling on the other.
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The 1able below summarizes the derivative financial instruments pre-lax and after-tax ecffect on
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in equity for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010:

Year ended December 31
2011 2010
{Dollars in millions)

[nterest rate swaps:

Pre-tax (gain) $ (49.9) (57.0)
Afler-tax {gain) (30.2) (34.6)
Forecasted raw material product purchases and other
obligations:
Pre-tax lossf(gain) $ 9.2 (0.2)
Aflter-tax loss/(gain) 5.6 (0.1)
Euro denominated mandatorily redecmable preferred stock:
Pre-tax (gain) $ — (10.7)
After-lax (gain) — (6.5)

The intcrest rate swaps arc designated as cash flow hedges effectively converting certain variable interest
rale payments into fixed inlerest rale paymenis. After-tax gains and losses were deferred in other
comprechensive income and subscquently reclassified 10 earnings when the hedged item also affects
carnings. Interest payable and receivable under the swap terms are accrucd and recorded as adjustments 10
interest expense at each reporting date.

The Company enters into forward rate agreements that are designated and effective as hedges of forccasted
raw maicrial purchases and other obligations. After-tax gains and losses were deferred in other
comprehensive income and will be reclassified into cost of sales in the peried during which the hedged
transactions affect earnings. All deferred amounts will be reclassified into earnings within the next twelve
months.

The Company entered into a forward sale agreement related to preference shares (Preferred Stock) of
FMCH issucd to Fresenius Medical Care North America Holdings Limited Partnership (DLP). This
instrument is reflected in the consolidated balance shects at fair value as part of Preferred Stock with
changes in fair value recognized in carnings. Pre-tax gains and (losses) recorded in the consolidated
statcments of operations for the ycars cnded December 31, 2011 and 2010 were $43.7 million and
$107.8 million, respectively. Alfter-lax gains and (losses) recorded in the consolidated statements of
operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 werc $27.4 million and $68.1 million,
respectively.

Upon maturity (March 31, 2013) or termination of the exchange agreement, DLP is obligated to pay 1o
FMCH, the Euro equivalent of $1.25 billion converted at spot rate and FMCH will pay to DLP the final
scttlement amount of $1.25 billion (plus any outstanding period interest payments). This imstrument is
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reflected in the consolidated balance sheels at fair valuc as a derivative asset at the reporting date with
changes in fair value recognized in earnings. Pre-tax (losses) and gains recorded in the consolidated
stalements of opcrations for the ycars ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were (§96.4) million and
($104.8) miliion, vespectively. After-tax (losses) and gains recorded in the consolidated statements of
operations for the ycars ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were ($60.8) million and ($66.2) miltion,
respectively.

Periodically, the Company enters into derivative instruments with related partics to form a natural hedge
lor currency exchange rate exposures on intercompany obligations. These instruments are reflected in the
consolidated balance sheets at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in carnings. Pre-lax gains
and (losses) recorded in the consolidated statemenits of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 were $1.1 million and ($1.1) million, respectively.

(a) Foreign Currency Coniracts

The Company uscs foreign exchange contracts as a hedge against forcign exchange risks associated
with the scttlement of foreign currency denominated payables and firm commitmenis. Al
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had outstanding foreign currency contracts for the
purchase of Euros (EUR) totaling 78,171 and 53,783, respectively, contracts for the purchasc ol
279,000 and 225,860 Mexican pesos, respectively, and contracts for the sale of 6,323 and 12,856
Canadian dollars, respectively. The conlracts outstanding al December 31, 2011 include forward
coniracts for purchasc of EUR at rates ranging from $1.282 to $1.408 per EUR, forward contracts for
the purchasc of Mexican Pesos at rates ranging from $11.834 to $12.266 per U.S. dollar, and outright
sale contracts lor Canadian dollars at rates ranging from $1.050 10 $0.948 per Canadian dollar. All
contracis are for periods between January 2012 and May 2013.

The fair valuc of currency contracts are the estimated amounts that the Company would receive or
pay to {erminalc the agreements at the reporting dalte, taking into account the current exchange rales
and the current creditworthiness of the counterparties in addition to the Company’s own
nonperformance risk. At December 31, 2011, the Company would have paid approximately $7,267
to terminatc these contracts and al December 31, 2010, the Company would have received
approximately $715 to terminate these contracts.

(&) Interest Rate Agreements

The Company cnters into derivatives, particularly interest ratc swaps lo hedge interest exposures
arising from long-term debt at floating rates by effcclively swapping them into fixed rates.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had interest rate swaps outstanding with various commercial
banks for notional amounts totaling $1,150,000. All of these agreements were solely cntered inlo for
interest rate hedging purposes.

For a notional amount of $1,150,000, the intcrest rate swaps effectively change the Company’s
interest rate exposure on its variable-rate loans under the FMCH Credit Agreement (drawn as of
June 30, 2011: $1,150,000 Loan B) to fixcd rates of interest approximating 4.66%.
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The fair value of the interest rate swaps and options is the estimated amount that the Company would
reccive of pay to icrminate the agreements at the reporting date, taking into account the current
cxchange rates and the current creditworthiness of the counterparties in addition to the Company’s
own nonperformance risk. The fair value of these agreements at December 31, 2011 and 2010 would
gencrate a negative cash flow of $11,725 and $61,582, respectively. These estimates arc subjective
in nature and involve uncertaintics and maiters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions significantly affect the estimates.

(c) Credit Risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk to the extent of potential nonperformance by counterparties
on financial instruments. As of December 31, 2011, the Company’s credit exposure was insignificant
and limited 1o the fair value stated above; the Company believes the risk of incurring losscs due to
credit risk is remote. Also, the Company does nol require collateral or other security to support
financial instruments subject to credit risk. The Company’s standard contracts do not contain
credit-risk-related contingent featurcs whereby the Company would be required to post cash
collatcral as a result of a credit event,

(d) Forward Sale and Currency Exchange Agreements

The Company cntered into a conditional forward salc agreement related to prefercnce shares
(Preferred Stock) issued to DLP. The conditional aspects of the contract are not certain 10 occur and
ar¢ related to dissolution or reorganization of DLP. However, if the conditions were to occur, the
forward sale agrcement requires that the Company redeem the securitics at the same Euro value that
was used 10 acquire the shares when initially issued plus any accumulated and declarced but unpaid
dividends at the spot rate in effect on the settlemeni date.

The Company also cntered into a currency exchange agreement with DLP. The notional principal
amount of the currency exchange agreement is $1.25 billion and a Euro amount with cqual market
value applying the market foreign exchange rate at the time the cxchange agreement was cntered
into. The currency cxchange agrcement requires that at each periodic settlement date, DLP is
obligated 1o pay to FMCH, Euro intcrest on the Euro equivalent of $1.25 billion. Conversely, at the
periodic settlement date, FMCH is obligated to pay DLP, the interest on $1.25 billion in U.S. dollars.

Upon maturity (March 31, 2013) or e¢xecution of the currency exchange agreement, DLP is obligated
lo pay to FMCH, the Euro equivalent of $1.25 billion converted at the spot rate and FMCH will pay
10 DLP the final settlement amount of $1.25 billion (plus any outstanding period interest payments).

This instrument is reflected in other assets and deferred charges within the consolidated balance
sheets at fair value as a derivative assct at the reporting date with changes in fair value recognized in
carnings. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair value of the derivative assel was $184 million
and $130 million, respectively.
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The following table shows the Company’s derivatives at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Assets (2) Liabilities (2) Assets (2) Liabilities (2)

Dertvatives in cash flow
hedging relationships (1)

Current:
Foreign currency
contracts $ 494 (6,186) 2,256 (2,167)
Dollar interest rate
hedges — (11,725) — (1,372)
Noncurrent:
Foreign currency
contracts 57 (185,471) 130,533 (49)
Dollar interest rate
hedges — — — (60,211)
Total 3 551 (203,382) 132,789 (63,799)

(1) As of December 31, 2017 and 2010, the valuation of the Company's derivatives was
determined using Significant Other Observable inputs (Level 2) in accordance with the fair
value hicrarchy Ievels established in U.S. GAAP.

(2) Derivative instruments are marked to market cach reporting period resulting in carrying
amounts being cqual to fair values at cach reporiing date.

The carrying amounts for the current portion of derivatives indicated as assets in the table above are
included in other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets while the current portion of those
indicated as liabilities arc included in other current liabilities. The noncurrent portions indicated as
asscis or liabilitics are included in the consolidated balance sheets in other assets or other liabilities,

respectively.

The significant mcthods and assumptions uscd in estimating the fair values of derivative financial
instruments are as follows:

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated by discounting the future cash flows on the basis of
the market interest rates applicable for the remaining term of the contract as of the balance sheet
datc. To determine the fair value of foreign cxchange forward contracts, the contracted forward rate
is compared to the current forward rate for the remaining term of the contract as of the balance sheet
date. The result is then discounted on the basis ol the market interest rates prevailing at the balance

sheet date for the applicable currency.

The Company includes its own credit risk when measuring the fair value of derivative financial
instruments.
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The Effect of Derivatives on the Consolidated Financia) Statements

Amount of gain or (loss)
recognized in OCI on
derivatives (effective portion)

Location of gain {loss)
reclassified from

Amount of gain {loss)
reclassified from OCl in
income {effective portion)
for the twelve months ended

December 31 OCI in income December 31
2011 2010 {cffective portion) 2011 2010
Dollar interest rate hedges $ (12.326) (41,077)  Interesl incomefexpense  $ 62,184 98,124
Foreign currency contracls (6,975) (11,849)  General and
administrative expenses — 18,232
Cost of medical supplies {2,274) 4,536
$ 59,910 120,892

3 {19,301) {52,926)

The Company cxpects to recognize $11,878 of losses deferred in accumulated other comprehensive
income at December 31, 2011, in earnings during the next twelve months.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had foreign currency contracts with maturities of up 1o 17
months and dollar inlerest rate hedges with maturities of up to 3 months.

(17) Legal Proceedings

(@)

Commercial Litigation

The Company was originally formed as a result of a scries of transactions it completed pursuant 1o
the Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated as of February 4, 1996, by and between W.R. Grace
& Co. and Frescnius SE (the Merger). Al the time of the Merger, a W.R. Grace & Co. subsidiary
known as W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn. had, and continues to have, significant liabilities arising out of
product-liability related litigation (including asbestos-related actions), pre-Merger tax claims and
other claims unrclated to National Medical Care, Inc. (NMC), which was W.R. Grace & Co.’s
dialysis business prior to the Merger. In conncction with the Merger, W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn.
agreed to indemnify the Company, FMCH, and NMC against all liabilities of W.R. Grace & Co,,
whether relating to events occurring before or after the Merger, other than liabilities arising from or
relating 10 NMC's operations. W.R. Grace & Co. and certain of its subsidiaries filed {or
rcorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankrupicy Code (the Grace Chapter 11 Procecdings)
on April 2, 2001.

Prior to and after the commencement of the Grace Chapter 11 Proceedings, class action complaints
were filed against W.R. Grace & Co. and FMCH by plaintiffs claiming to be creditors of W.R. Grace
& Co.-Conn., and by the asbestos creditors’ committees on behalf of the W.R. Grace & Co.
bankruptcy estate in the Grace Chapter 11 Proceedings, alleging among other things that thc Merger
was a fraudulent conveyance, violaled the uniform fraudulent transfer act and constituted a
conspiracy. All such cascs have been stayed and transferred to or are pending before the U.S. District
Court as part of the Grace Chapter 11 Proceedings.
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In 2003, the Company reached agreement with the asbestos creditors’ committees on behalf of the
W.R. Grace & Co. bankrupicy estatc and W.R. Grace & Co. in the matters pending in the Grace
Chapter 11 Proceedings for the settlement of all fraudulent conveyance and tax claims against it and
other claims rclated to the Company that arise out of the bankruptcy of W.R. Grace & Co. Under the
terms of the scttlement agreement as amended (the Settlement Agreement), fraudulent conveyance
and other claims raised on behalf of asbestos claimants will be dismisscd with prejudice and the
Company will receive proteclion against existing and potential future W.R. Grace & Co. rclated
claims, including fraudulent conveyance and asbestos claims, and indemnification against income
tax claims related to the non-NMC members of the W.R. Grace & Co. consolidated tax group upon
conlirmation of a W.R. Grace & Co. bankruptcy rcorganization plan that contains such provisions.
Under the Seitlement Agreement, the Company will pay a total of $115,000 without interest to the
W.R. Grace & Co. bankruptcy estate, or as otherwisc directed by the Court, upon plan confirmation.
No admission of liability has been or will be made. The Setilement Agreement has been approved by
the U.S. District Court. In January and February 2011, the U.S. Bankrupicy Court cntered orders
confirming the joint plan of reorganization and the confirmation orders were affirmed by the
U.S. District Court on January 31, 2012,

Subscquent to the Merger, W.R. Grace & Co. was involved in a multi-step transaction involving
Scaled Air Corporation (Secaled Air, formerly known as Grace Holding, Inc¢.). The Company is
engaged in litigation with Scaled Air to confirm its entitlement to indemnification from Sealed Air
for all losses and expenses incurred by the Company relating to pre-Merger tax liabilities and
Mecrger-related claims. Under the Scttlement Agreement, upon final confirmation of a plan of
reorganization that satisfies the conditions of the Company’s payment abligation, this litigation will
be dismissed with prejudice.

On April 4, 2003, FMCH filed a suil in the U. 8. District Court for the Northern District of
California, stylcd Fresenius USA, Inc., ct al., v. Baxtcr International Inc., ¢t al., Case No. C03-1431,
secking a declaratory judgment that FMCH docs not infringe patents held by Baxter International
Inc. and its subsidiaries and affiliates (Baxter), thal the patents arc invalid, and that Baxter is without
right or authority to threatcn or maintain suit against FMCH for alleged infringement of Baxter’s
paients. In gencral, the asserled patents concern the use of touch screen interfaces for hemodialysis
machines. Baxter filed counterclaims against FMCH secking more than $140,000 in monctary
damages and injunctive relief, and alleging that FMCH willfully infringed on Baxter's patents. On
July 17, 2006, the court entered judgment on a jury verdict in favor of FMCH finding that all the
asserted claims of the Baxter patenls arc invalid as obvious and/or anticipaled in light of prior art,

On February 13, 2007, the court granted Baxter's motion to sct aside the jury’s verdict in favor of
FMCH and reinstated the patents and entered judgment of infringement. Following a trial on
damages, the court entered judgment on November 6, 2007 in favor of Baxter on a jury award of
$14,300. On April 4, 2008, the court denied Baxter’s motion for a new trial, established a royalty
payable to Baxter of 10% of the sales price for continuing sales of FMCH’s 2008K hemodialysis
machines and 7% of the sales price of related disposables, parts and service beginning November 7,
2007, and enjoincd sales of the touchscreen-equipped 2008K machine cifective January 1, 2009. The
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Company appealed the court’s rulings to the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit
(Federal Circuit). In October 2008, the Company completed design modifications to the 2008K
machine that climinate any incremental hemodialysis machine royalty payment exposure under the
original District Court order. On September 10, 2009, the Federal Circuit reversed the district court’s
decision and determined that the asseried claims in two of the three patents at issue arc invalid. As to
the third patent, the Federal Circuit alfirmed the district court’s decision; however, the Court also
vacated the injunction and award of damages. Thesc issues were remandced to the District Court for
reconsideration in light of the invalidity ruling on most of the claims. As a result, FMCH is no longer
required to fund the court-approved escrow account sct up to hold the royalty payments ordered by
the district court. Funds of $70,000 were contributed 1o the escrow fund. In the parallel
reexamination of the last surviving patent, the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (USPTOQ) and the
Board of Patent Appeals and Interferences ruled that the remaining Baxter patent is invalid. Baxier
appcaled the Board’s ruling to the Federal Circuit.

On October 17, 2006, Baxter and DEKA Products Limited Parincrship (DEKA) filed suit in the
U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas which was subscquently transferred to the
Northern District of California, styled Baxter Healthcare Corporation and DEKA Products Limited
Partnership v. Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc. d/b/a Fresenius Medical Care North America
and Fresenius USA, Inc., Casc No. CV 438 TIW. The complaint alleged that FMCH’s Liberty™
cycler infringes nine patents owned by or licensed to Baxter. During and after discovery, seven of
the asserted patents were dropped from the svit. On July 28, 2010, at the conclusion of the trial, the
Jury returned a verdict in favor of FMCH finding that the Liberty™ cycler does not infringe any of
the asserted claims of the Baxter patents. The District Court denied Baxter's request 1o overturn the
jury verdict and Baxter appealed the verdict and resulting judgment to the United States Court of
Appeals for the Federal Circuit. On Fcbruary 13, 2012, the Federal Circuit affirmed the District
Courl’s noninfringcment verdict,

(b) Qther Litigation and Potential Exposures

Renal Care Group, Inc. (RCG), which the Company acquired in 2006, is named as a nominal
defendant in a complaint originally filed September 13, 2006 in the Chancery Court for the Staic of
Tennessee Twentieth Judicial District at Nashville styled Indiana State District Council of Laborers
and Hod Carriers Pension Fund v. Gary Brukardt ct al. Following the trial court’s dismissal of the
complaint, plaintiff's appeal in part, and reversal in part by the appellate court, the cause of action
purports to be a class action on behalf of former shareholders of RCG and sceks monctary damages
only against the individual former directors of RCG. The individual defendants, however, may have
claims for indemnification and reimbursement of expenses against the Company. The Company
expects to continue as a defendant in the litigation, which is proceeding toward trial in the Chancery
Court, and belicves that delendants will prevail.

On July 17, 2007, resulting from an investigation begun in 2005, the United States Attorney filed a
civil complaint in the Uniled States District Court for the Eastern District of Missourt (St. Louis)
against RCG, its subsidiary RCG Supply Company, and FMCH in its capacity as RCG’s current
corporate parcnt, The complaint secks monetary damages and penalties with respect (0 issues arising
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out of the operation of RCG’s Method Il supply company through 2005, prior to FMCH’s
acquisition of RCG in 2006. The complaint is styled United States of America ex rel. Julic Williams
et al. vs. Renal Care Group, Renal Care Group Supply Company and FMCH. On August 11, 2009,
the Missouri District Court granted RCG’s motion 1o transfer venue te the United Siates District
Court for the Middle District of Tennessee (Nashville). On March 22, 2010, the Tennessee District
Court entercd judgment against defendants for approximately $23,000 in damages and intercst under
the unjust enrichment count of the complaint but denied all relicf under the six False Claims Act
counts of the complaint. On June 17, 2011, the District Court entered summary judgment against
RCG for $82,643 on one of the Falsc Claims Act counts of the complaint. On June 23, 2011, the
Company appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit. Although the
Company cannot provide any assurance of the outcome, the Company believes that RCG’s operation
of its Mcthod I supply company was in compliance with applicable taw, that no relicf is due to the
United States, that the decisions made by the District Court on March 22, 2010 and June 17, 2011
will be reversed, and that its position in the litigation will ultimately be sustained.

On November 27, 2007, the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas (El Paso)
unsealed and permitted service of two complaints previously filed under seal by a qui tam relator, a
former FMCH local clinic employce. The first complaint alleged that a nephrologist unlawfully
employed in his practicc an assistant 1o perform paticnt care tasks that the assistant was not licensed
to perform and that Medicare billings by the nephrologist and FMCH therefore violated the False
Claims Act. The second complaint alleged that FMCH unlawfully retaliated against the rclator by
constructively discharging her from employment. The United States Attorney for the Western
District of Texas declined to intervene and to prosecute on behalf of the United States. On March 30,
2010, the District Court issued final judgment in favor of the defendants on all counts based on a jury
verdict rendered on February 25, 2010) and on rulings of law made by the Court during the trial. The
plaintiff has appealced the District Court judgment.

On February 15, 2011, a qui tam relator’s complaint under the False Claims Act against FMCH was
unscaled by order of the United States District Court for the District of Massachusctts and served by
the relator. The United States has not intervencd in the case United States ex rel. Chris Drennen v,
Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc., 2009 Civ. 10179 (D. Mass.). The relator’s complaint, which
was first filed under seal in Fcbruary 2009, alleges that the Company sccks and receives
reimbursement from government payors for serum ferritin and hepatitis B laboratory tests that are
medically unnecessary or not properly ordered by a physician. FMCH has filed a motion to dismiss
the complaint. On March 6, 2011, the United States Attorney for the District of Massachusetts issued
a Civil Investigative Demand seeking the production of documenis related Lo the same laboratory
tests that are the subject of the relator’s complaint. FMCH is cooperating fully in responding 10 the
additional Civil Investigative Demand, and will vigorously coniest the relator’s complaint.

On June 29, 2011, FMCH received a subpoena from the Uniled States Attorney for the Eastern
District of New York (E.D.N.Y.). On December 6, 2011, a single Company facility in New York
reccived a subpoena from the OIG that was substantially similar to the one issued by the
U.S. Attarney for the E.D.N.Y. These subpoenas are part of a criminal and civil investigation into
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relationships between retail pharmacies and outpaticnt dialysis facilities in the State of New York
and into the reimbursement under government payor programs in New York for medications
provided to patients with ESRD. Among the issues cncompassed by the investigation is whether
retail pharmacies may have provided or received compensation {rom the New York Medicaid
program for pharmaccutical products that should be provided by the dialysis facilitics in cxchange
for the New York Medicaid payment to the dialysis facilities. The Company is cooperating in the
investigation.

The Company filed claims for refunds contesting the Internal Revenue Service’s (IRS} disallowance
of FMCH’s civil settlement payment deductions taken by FMCH in prior year tax returns. As a result
of a settlement agrecment with the IRS, the Company received a partial refund in September 2008 of
$37,000, inclusive of interest and preserved our right to pursue claims in the United States Courts for
refunds of all other disallowed deductions. On December 22, 2008, the Company filed a complaint
for complete refund in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts, styled as
Fresenius Mecdical Carc Holdings, Inc. v. United States. The court has denied motions for summary
judgment by both parties and the litigation is procceding towards trial.

From time to time, the Company is a party to or may be threatened with other litigation or
arbitration, claims or assessments arising in the ordinary course of its busincss. Management
regularly analyzes current information including, as applicable, the Company’s defenscs and
insurance coverage and, as necessary, provides accruals for probable liabilitics for the cventual
disposition of these mattcrs.

The Company, like other healthcare providers, conducts its operations under intense government
regulation and scrutiny. It must comply with regulations which relate 1o or govern the safety and
efficacy of medical products and supplics, the operation of manufacturing facilitics, laboratorics and
dialysis clinics, and environmental and occupational hecalth and safety. The Company must also
comply with the Anti-Kickback Statute, the False Claims Act, the Stark Law, and other {cderal and
state fraud and abuse laws. Applicable laws or regulations may be amended, or enforcement agencies
or courls may make interpretations that differ from the Company’s interpretations or the manner in
which it conducts its business. Enforcement has become a high priority for the federal government
and some stalcs.

In addition, the provisions of the False Claims Act authorizing payment of a portion of any recovery
10 the party bringing the suit encourage private plaintiffs to commence “qui tam” or “whistle blower”™
actions. In May 2009, the scope of the False Claims Act was expanded and additional protections for
whistle blowers and procedural provisions to aid whistle blowers” ability 1o proceed in a False
Claims Act case were added. By virtue of this regulatory environment, the Company’s business
activitics and practices are subject to extensive review by regulatory authorities and private parties,
and continuing audits, investigative demands, subpoenas, other inquiries, claims and litigation
relating to the Company’s compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Company may not
always be aware that an inquiry or action has begun, particularly in the case of “whistle blower”
actions, which are initially filed under court seal.

53 2011 Audited H%?—.\ lé%‘g?atement
IART ATTACHMENT — 40




FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE HOLDINGS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

The Company operates many facilities throughout the United States and other parts of the world. In
such a decentralized system, it is often difficult to maintain the desired level of oversight and control
over the thousands of individuals cmployed by many affiliated companics. The Company relies upon
its management siructure, rcgulatory and legal resources, and the effective operation of its
compliance program to direct, manage and monitor the activitics of these employces. On occasion,
thc Company may identify instances where employees or other agents deliberately, recklessly or
inadvertently coniravene the Company’s policics or violate applicable law. The actions of such
persons may subject the Company and its subsidiaries to liability under the Anti-Kickback Statute,
the Stark Law and the Falsc Claims Act, among other laws, and comparable laws of other countrics.

Physicians, hospitals and other participants in the healthcare indusiry are also subject to a large
number of lawsuits alleging professional negligence, malpractice, product liability, worker’s
compensation or related claims, many of which involve large claims and significant defense costs.
The Company has been and is currently subject to these suits duc to the nature of its business and
cxpects that those lypes of lawsuils may continue. Although the Company maintains insurance at a
level which it believes to be prudent, it cannot assurc that the coverage limits will be adequate or that
insurance will cover all asserted claims. A successful claim against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries in excess of insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect upon it and the
resulis ol ifs operations. Any claims, regardless of their merit or eventual outcome, could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s reputation and business.

The Company has also had claims asserted against it and has had lawsuits filed against it relating to
allcged patent infringements or busincsses that it has acquired or divested. These claims and suils
relate both 1o operation of the businesses and to the acquisition and divestiture transactions. The
Company has, when appropriate, asserted its own claims, and claims for indemnification. A
successful claim against the Company or any of its subsidiarics could have a material adverse effect
upon its business, financial condition, and the results of ils operations. Any claims, regardless of
their merit or eventual outcome, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s reputation
and busincss.

(c) Accrued Special Charge for Legai Matters

At December 31, 2001, the Company rccorded a pre-tax special charge of $258,159 to rellect
anlicipated cxpenses associated with the defense and resolution of pre-Merger tax claims,
Merger-related claims, and commercial insurer claims. The cosis associated with the Settlement
Agreement and setilements with insurers have been charged against this accrual. With the exception
of the proposed $115,000 payment under the Scttlement Agreement, all other matters included in the
special charge have been resolved, While the Company believes that its remaining accrual
reasonably estimates its currently anticipated costs related to the continued defense and resolution of
this matter, no assurances can be given that its actual costs incurred will not cxceed the amount of

this accrual (scc note 8).
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Criterion 1120.310(a) Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

RAI Care Centers of Illinois I, LL.C

The applicant is paying for the project with cash on hand, and not borrowing any funds for the
project. However, per the Board’s rules the entering of a lease is treated as borrowing. As such,
we are attesting that the entering into of a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of
existing investments which would be required for the applicant to buy the property and build a
structure itself to house a dialysis clinic. Further, should the applicant be required to pay off the
lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could be converted to cash or used to
retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60} day period.
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Criterion 1120.310(a) Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc.

The applicant is paying for the project with cash on hand, and not borrowing any funds for the
project, However, per the Board’s rules the entering of a lease is treated as borrowing. As such,
we are attesting that the entering into of a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of
existing investments which would be required for the applicant to buy the property and build a
structure itself to house a dialysis clinic. Further, should the applicant be required to pay off the
lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could be converted io cash or used to
retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day period.
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this ay of , 2012 this._ ¢  dayof Jyne 2012
juaaﬂ 1 Coeool,

Signaturc of Notary Signature of Notary

Seal Seal ™"SUSAN H. CONSOLE |

Natary Public
OOMMONWEALTH OF
My Commission Expires
Fobruary 1, 2013

Ecenomic Feasibility

ATTACHMENT_ -42

QM




Criterion 1120.318(b) Conditions of Debt Financing

RAI Care Centers of Hlinois I, LLC

In accordance with 77 ILL. ADM Code 1120, Subpart D, Section 1120.310, of the
-~ llinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board Application for Certificate of Need; |
do hereby atiest to the fact that:

There ts no debt financing. The project will be funded with cash and leasing
arrangements; and

The expenses incurred with leasing the proposed facility and cost of leasing the
equipment is less costly than constructing a new facility or purchasing new
equipment.

Zm/éﬁ

Mark Fawcett ITS: Bryan Mewnu
Vice presttent gctreasurer $Si feasurc.
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and swoerfl to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me
this of , 2012 this. §  dayof Jupe 2012
ﬁu.oow Y Cnoob.
Signature of Notary Signature of Notary
Seal Seal ™R SUSANH.CONSOLE |

Notary Public

BOMMOIWEALTH OF MASSACHISETTS §
My Commission Expires
FRbuay L2018
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Criterion 1120.310(b) Conditions of Debt Financing

Fresenius Medical Care Holdings, Inc.

In accordance with 77 ILL. ADM Code 1120, Subpart D, Section 1120.310, of the
HNlinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board Application for Certificate of Need; 1
do hereby attest to the fact that;

There is no debt financing. The project will be funded with cash and leasing
arrangements; and

The expenses incurred with leasing the proposed facility and cost of leasing the
equipment is less costly than constructing a new facility or purchasing new
equipment.

By: - By ; M
ITS: Mark Fawcett ITS: L Bryan Mellu
.V'Oe President & Asst. Treasurer AS% er

Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and-$worn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me
this day of , 2012 this ¥  dayofdune 2012
] Sesem B Corpote
Signature of Notary Signature of Notary
Seal Seal SUSAN H, CONSOLE i
Notary Publlc
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSE
My Commission Expiras

Fabmary 1,2013
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Criterion 1120.310 (c) Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impactad by the proposed project and
provide a cost and square footage allocation for new construction andfor
modernization using the following format (insert after this page)}.

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A B C D E F G H
Department Total Cost
(list below) | Cost/Square Foot | Gross Sq. Ft. | Gross Sq. Ft. | Const. $ Mod. $ (G +H)
New Mod. New Mod. (AxQ) (B x E)
Circ.* Circ.*

ESRD $142.00 9,448 $1,341,616 | $1,341,616
Contingency 15.61 9,448 147,483 147,483
TOTALS 157.61 9,448 1,489,099 | 1,489,099

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

Criterion 1120.310 (d) — Projected Operating Costs

Year 2016

Salaries
Benefits
Supplies
Total

Annual Treatments

$720,860
180,215
173.074
$1,074,149

15,725

Cost Per Treatment $68.00

Criterion 1120.310 (e) — Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

Year 2016

Depreciation/Amortization

Interest

CAPITAL COSTS

Treatments:

Capital Cost per treatment

$163,252

0

$163,252

I\

15,725

$10.38

Economic Feasibility

ATTACHMENT - 42




Safety Net Impact Statement

The establishment (relocation) of the Fresenius Medical Care Fairview Heights dialysis
facility will not have any impact on safety net services in the Fairview Heights area of St.
Clair County. Qutpatient dialysis services are not typically considered "safety net"
services, to the best of our knowledge. However, we do provide care for patients in the
community who are economically challenged and/or who are undocumented aliens, who
do not qualify for Medicare/Medicaid. We assist patients who do not have insurance in
enrolling when possible in Medicaid and/or Medicaid as applicable, and also our social
services department assists patients who have issues regarding transportation and/or
who are wheel chair bound or have other disabilities which require assistance with
respect to dialysis services and transport to and from the unit.

This particular application will not have an impact on any other safety net provider in the
area, as no hospital within the area provides dialysis services on an gutpatient basis.

Fresenius Medical Care is a for-profit publicly traded company and is not required to
provide charity care, nor does it do so according to the Board's definition. However,
Fresenius Medical Care provides care to all patients regardless of their ability to pay.
There are patients treated by Fresenius who either do not qualify for or will not seek any
type of coverage for dialysis services. These patients are considered “self-pay”
patients. These patients are invoiced as all patients are invoiced, however payment is
not expected and Fresenius does not initiate any collections activity on these accounts.
These unpaid invoices are written off as bad debt. Fresenius notes that as a for profit
entity, it does pay sales, real estate and income taxes. It also does provide community
benefit by supporting various medical education activities and associations, such as the
Renal Network and National Kidney Foundation.

The table below shows the amount of “self-pay” care provided for the 3 fiscal years prior
to submission of the application for all Fresenius Medical Care facilities in lllinois and
the amount of care provided to Medicaid patients for the three fiscal years prior to
subrnission of the application for all Fresenius Medical Care facilities in Illinois.

SAFETY NET INFORMATION

CHARITY CARE (Uncompensated Care)

2008 2009 2010
Charity (# Uncomp patients) 282 243 143
Charity (# Uncomp treatments) 14,557 15,457 7,047
Charity (Uncomp) Cost 3,402,665 | 3,489213 | 1,307,433
MEDICAID - T

2008 2009 2010
Medicaid (Patients) 1,561 1,723 1,808
|Medicaid (Treatments) 122615 132,658 154,581
Medicaid {(Revenue) 36,159,588 | 39,748,886 | 43,795,183

There is no other information directly relevant to safety net services.

(See attachment 44 for Uncompensated and Medicaid Care by facility)

. Safety Net Impact Statement
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Uncompensated care #'s listed in the previous chart have gone down substantially
over the past three years. This is due to an aggressive effort on our clinics part to
obtain coverage for every patient. All ESRD patients can qualify for some type of

coverage as is explained in Attachment 44.

While it may appear that the uncompensated numbers went down at a much higher
rate than the rate the Medicaid numbers rose, one has to look at the percentage of
the total number of patients/treatments for accurate comparison because the volume
of Medicaid patients is significantly higher than that of uncompensated patients. For
example in 2010 vs 2009 the percentage of the total for Medicaid was 13.4% and
12.0% respectively. In the same comparison for uncompensated care there was
1.2% vs .4% of the total. The Medicaid numbers increased 1.4% and the
uncompensated care numbers decreased .8% as they relate to the total.

Safety Net Impact Statement
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Charity Care Information

The applicant(s} do not provide charity care at any of their facilities per the
Board's definition. They do provide uncompensated care. The applicant(s) are
for profit corporations and do not receive the benefits of not for profit entities,
such as sales tax and/or real estate exemptions, or charitable donations. The
applicants are not required, by any State or Federal law, including the lllinois
Healthcare Facilities Planning Act, to provide charity care. The applicant(s} are
prohibited by Federal law from advising patients that they will not be invoiced for
care, as this type of representation could be an inducement for patients to seek
care prior to qualifying for Medicaid, Medicare or other available benefits.

The applicants do provide access to care at all of its clinics regardless of payer
source or whether a patient is likely to receive treatments for which the applicants
are not compensated. Uncompensated care occurs when a patient is not eligible
for any type of insurance coverage (whether private or governmental) and
receives treatment at our facilities. 1t is rare in Hlinois for patients to have no
coverage as patients who are not Medicare eligible are Medicaid eligible. This
represents a small number of patients, as Medicare covers all dialysis services
as long as an individual is entitled to receive Medicare benefits (i.e. has worked
and paid into the social security system as a result) regardless of age. In
addition, in lllinois Medicaid covers patients who are undocumented and/for who
do not qualify for Medicare, and who otherwise qualify for public assistance.
Also, the American Kidney Fund provides low cost insurance coverage for
patients who meet the AKF’s financial parameters and who suffer from end stage
renal disease (see uncompensated care attachment). The applicants work with
patients to procure coverage for them as possible whether it be Medicaid,
Medicare and/or coverage through the AKF. The applicants donate to the AKF to
support its initiatives.

If a patient has no available insurance coverage, they are billed for services
rendered, and after three statement reminders the charges are written off as bad
debt. Collection actions are not initiated unless the applicants are aware that the
patient has substantial financial resources available and/or the patient has
received reimbursement from an insurer for services we have rendered, and has
not submitted the payment for same to the applicants

Charity Care Information
SOPARS ATTACHMENT — 44




Uncompensated Care By Facility

| Uncompensated Treatments Uncompensated Costs
|Facility _ 2008 2009 2010 2008 2009 2010
Fresenius Alsip 33 0 0 9,960 0 0
Fresenius Antioch 73 102 0 21,689 28,682 0
Fresenius Aurora 314 83 87 67,864 18,818 21,087
Fresenius Austin Community 26 140 0 8,284 40,504 0
Fresenius Berwyn 713 715 228 199,885 | 163,817 52,363
Fresenius Blue Island 77 174 80 21,901 49,341 22,611
Fresenius Bolingbrook 143 48 21 31,451 12,317 5,081
Fresenius Bridgeport 395 528 45 99,428 118,493 10,991
Fresenius Burbank 248 721 49 63,286 185,201 12,587
Fresenius Carbondale 10 79 42 2,500 20,723 11,262
Fresenius Chicago 243 328 45 66,732 88,872 14,202
Fresenius Chicago Westside 162 146 0 77,512 46,548 0
Fresenius Congress Parkway 237 176 14 63,900 46,511 3,760
Fresenius Crestwood 219 67 320 59,373 17,034 84,179
Fresenius Decatur 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fresenius Deerfield N/A N/A 0 N/A N/A 0
Fresenius Downers Grove 137 20 233 31,380 4,878 56,124
Fresenius Du Page West 196 76 34 43,409 18,336 9,290
Fresenius Du Quoin 0 37 10 0 10,433 2,756
Fresenius East Peoria 217 52 0 55,285 12,238 0
Fresenius Elk Grove 343 127 53 75105 29,711 12,642
Fresenius Evanston 214 194 215 58,821 49,319 63,059
Fresenius Evergreen Park a3 510 197 23,541 140,975 52,782
Fresenius Garfield 311 177 54 97,761 45903 14915
Fresenius Glendale Heights 365 159 15 81,125 35,089 3,681
Fresenius Glenview 83 87 48 18,692 19,974 10,095
Fresenius Greenwood 190 251 179 46,374 62,205 42 481
Fresenius Gurnee 285 122 35 67,702 29,403 8,329
Fresenius Hazel Crest 198 34 22 53,440 9,226 6,303
Fresenius Hoffman Estates B7 33 17 19,789 7,418 4,037
Fresenius Jackson Park 454 528 3 115,160 | 125,578 681
Fresenius Kewanee 0 0 72 0 0 20619
Fresenius Lake Bluff 212 65 5 54,948 17.317 1,112
Fresenius Lakeview 207 27 13 61,074 7,377 3,217
Fresenius Macomb 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fresenius Marquette Park 148 362 0 39,118 100,681 o
Fresenius McHenry 89 186 5 26,941 57 202 1,332
Fresenius McLean County 115 67 19 31,715 17,291 4,152
Fresenius Melrose Park 0 19 0 0 5,156 0
Fresenius Merrionette Park 0 105 41 0 28,882 9,936
Fresenius Midway N/A N/A 0 N/A N/A 0
Fresenius Mokena 1 44 3 544 16,250 1,012
Fresenius Morris 0 42 104 0 11,267 29,076
Fresenius Naperville 19 301 100 41,182 67,077 22 565
Fresenius Naperville North 57 183 0 18,437 48,627 0
Fresenius Niles 213 152 26 55,817 37,442 6,096
Continued...
Charity Care Information
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Continued Uncompensated Care by Facility

""" Uncompensated Treatments Uncompensated Costs
Facility 2008 2009 2010 2008 2008 2010
Fresenius Norridge 13 6 3 3,002 1,506 747
Fresenius North Avenue 0 94 74 0 23,669 18,189
Fresenius North Kilpatrick 48 0 64 11,290 1] 14,200
Fresenius Northcenter 118 j21 78 30,407 34,727 22117
Fresenius Northwestern 3 226 77 89528 58,416 21,695
Fresenius Qak Park 165 126 6 40,346 32,752 1,487
Fresenius Orland Park 188 121 0 43,222 30,148 8]
Fresenius Osweqo 89 12 1 25,307 3,389 305
Fresenius Ottawa 117 8 2 32,866 2,357 454
Fresenius Pekin 0 0 20 0 0 4,721
Fresenius Peoria Downtown 57 46 45 13,789 10,880 11,3019
Fresenius Peoria North 115 54 13 27,782 13,179 3,245
Fresenius Plainfield N/A N/A 8 N/A N/A 6,165
Fresenius Polk 212 231 104 51,467 60,738 26,376
Fresaniug Pontiac 40 19 0 9,732 4,801 0
Fresenius Prarie 83 114 54 25,383 32357 15,634
Fresenius Randolph County 0 4 32 o _1,218 8,913
Fresenius Rockford 70 74 24 18,003 24,267 6,946
Fresenius Rodgers Park 143 328 224 44,464 85,647 60,351
Fresenius Rolling Meadows 228 0 204 55,625 8] £3,516
Fresenius Roseland 132 164 99 108,043 61,632 31,345
Fresenius Ross Dialysis Englewood 150 184 8 55077 56,239 2,132
Fresenius Round Lake 225 182 1 57,640 44,165 255
Fresenius Saline County 13 21 11 3,645 5,583 2,952
Fresenius Sandwich N/A 18 3 N/A 8,161 985
Fresenius Skokie 4] 18 10 0 4,508 2,698
Fresenius South Chicago 424 747 278 115,038 | 205,488 | 70,577
Fresenius South Holland g0 127 104 22191 31,917 26,731
Fresenius South Shore 75 110 8 20,591 30,066 2,086
Fresenius South Suburban 329 566 241 92,140 148,380 64,049
Fresenius Southside 3 483 137 209,871 129,554 34,459
Fresenius Southwestern llinois 1 0 0 242 0 0
Fresenius Spoon River 66 38 35 14,971 9,033 8,835
Fresenius Spring Valley 1 1 H 238 233 6,422
Fresenius Streator 4] 0 0 0 0 0
Fresenius Uptown 50 134 110 35,291 44,148 3331
Fresenius Villa Park 128 369 27 35,003 95,048 7,258
Fresenius West Belmont 106 191 70 26,984 51,980 18,896
Fresenius West Chicago 0 44 0 0 24,152 0
Fresenius West Mefro 241 880 237 54,133 187,505 49677
Fresenius West Suburban 144 273 146 34,283 65,129 34,504
Fresenius Westchester 207 0 0 56,641 0 0
Fresenius Williamson County 8 0 28 1,812 0 7,468
Fresenius Willowbrook o8 45 0 23,477 10,815 0
Totals| 14,557 15,457 7,047 |3,402,665 |3,489,213 | 1,307,433

Charity Care Information
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Medicaid Treatments/Costs By Facility

o - 1L Medicald Txts IL Medicaid Costs
Facility Name 2008 2009 2010 2008 2009 2010
Fresenius Alsip 726 624 749 219,121 188,700 218,389
Fresenius Antioch 38 148 937 11,398 41,617 257,229
Fresenius Aurora 954 1,230 1,521 206,456 277862 367,439
Fresenius Austin Community 1,050 1,674 2,111 334,543 455377 548,468
Fresenius Berwyn 3,466 3,618 4102 971,630 828,527 941,816
Fresenius Blue Island 1,816 1,901 1,937 516,518 538,138 550,355
Fresenius Baolingbrook 1,481 1,246 1,628 325,729 319,725 393,058
Fresenius Bridgeport 3,928 4,570 5610 988,745 1,025015 | 1,377,275
Fresenius Burbank 2,314 2142 2,046 590,498 550,210 531,285
Fresenius Carbondale 1,119 1,214 1,650 279,802 318,454 442 445
Fresenius Chicago Dialysis Center 5,862 5,466 5,279 1,609,814 | 1,499358 [ 1,666,001
Fresenius Chicago Westside 2,396 3,509 3,807 1,146,416 | 1,118,745 | 1,169,530
Fresenius Congress Parkway 3.663 3,685 4,197 987611 §73822 [ 1,127,227
Fresenius Crestwood 1,045 1,166 | 1,072 283,308 296,443 282439
Fresenius Decatur 33 1 136 8,220 226 36,359
Fresenius Deerfield 0 0 100 0 0 67,104
Fresenius Downers Grove 771 1,010 955 176,600 246416 239,552
Fresenius DuQuoin 302 318 203 78,555 89,666 55,954
Fresenius DuPage West 1,529 2,086 2,725 338,547 502,413 739,997
Fresenius East Peoria 672 607 1,083 171,254 142,462 258,654
Fresenius Elk Grove 950 1,414 1,996 208,018 330,794 480,506
Fresenius Evanston 1,025 1,513 1,535 281,738 384,635 450,064
Fresenius Evergreen Park 3,484 2,284 3,231 881,879 631,675 863,821
Fresenius Macomb 12 212 116 4123 57,485 36,414
Fresenius Garfied 2,365 2,684 3,299 743,422 696,063 810,918
Fresenius Glendale Heights 1,886 2,085 2332 421,403 460,132 572,130
Fresenius Glenview 1,001 984 992 245700 225914 219,975
Fresenius Mormis 30 119 200 8814 31,923 55,776
Fresenius Greenwood 3,055 3,349 3,712 746,786 830,023 880,965
Fresenius Gurnee 1,614 1,859 | 2143 383,406 448,037 517,361
Fresenius Hazel Crest 878 979 6857 235,780 265643 192,621
Fresenius Hoffman Estates 1,406 1,726 2513 319,804 387,981 596,772
Fresenius Jackson Park 5,402 5,444 5,972 1,370,257 | 1,294,789 | 1,626,081
Fresenius Kewanee 81 182 146 27,752 51,043 41,812
Fresenius Lake Bluff 1,002 1,541 1,354 259,707 410,556 334,530
Fresenius Lakeview 1,144 1,398 1516 337,530 381,943 375,228
Fresenius Marquette Park 2,447 2,339 2473 646,774 650,535 722,642
Fresenius Melean County 1,147 1,225 | 1,044 316,325 316,139 228,138
Fresenius McHenry 57 457 546 17,254 140,859 161,482
Fresenius Melrose Park 884 1,015 1,390 243,039 275,447 360,787
Fresenius Merrionegtte Park 407 1,001 749 114,511 275,340 183,623
Fresenius Midway 0 0 28 0 0 35,887
Fresenius Mokena 0 0 125 0 O 42,189
Fresenius Naperville 318 512 544 65,867 114,163 123,223
Fresenius Napervile North 236 494 854 76,334 131,265 159,418
Fresenius Niles 1,637 1,675 1,914 427 287 412,508 457 523
Continued...
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Continued Medicaid Treatments/Costs By Facility

T " |L Medicaid Txts ™ IL Medicatd Costs

Facility Name 2008 2009 2010 _2008 2009 2010
Fresenius Norridge 391 858 1,037 80,276 215,349 257,928
Fresenius North Avenue 1,663 1,818 1,854 399,039 457,777 455,682
Fresenius North Kilpatrick 1,969 2,323 2,504 463,144 537,567 555,449
Fresenius Northcenter 1,236 1,803 1,981 318,505 460,061 565,347
Fresenius Northwestern 3,102 3,103 2954 830,405 802,076 835,999
Fresenius Qak Park 2,385 1,972 2,142 586,131 512,598 530,585
Fresenius Orland Park 553 734 774 127,136 182,882 213,816
Fresenius Oswego 380 454 482 110,896 128,218 147,203
Fresenius Otftawa 187 141 70 52,529 41,542 21,192
Fresenius Pekin 83 24 136 19,043 5,483 32,924
Fresenius Peoria Downtown 1,297 1,238 1,283 313,988 285,509 325,686
Fresenius Pearia North 511 374 265 123,449 90,842 66,112
Fresenius Plainfield 0 0 390 0 0 128,173
Fresenius Palk 3,502 3,151 3,509 850,172 829,908 891,647
Fresenius Pontiac 157 185 284 38,199 46,749 69,911
Fresenius Prarie 1,513 1,067 1,108 462,703 302,851 323,637
Fresenius Randolph County 188 180 251 59,360 57,884 69,909
Fresenius Rockford 2585 540 747 65,584 178,073 216,191
Fresenius Rogers Park 1,706 1,433 1,756 530,142 374,183 473,109
Fresenius Rolling Meadows 1,032 1,543 2,100 251,777 368,801 550,765
Fresenius Roseland 114 641 1,506 93,309 240,891 476,665
Fresenius Ross Dialysis-Englewood 715 814 1,936 262,534 248,798 515,780
Fresenius Roundlake 1,690 1,909 2,661 432,943 463,250 679,000
Fresenius Saline County 485 676 441 136,002 179,725 123,927
Fresenius Sandwich 0 60 145 0 33,384 47,603
Fresenius Skokie 648 850 1,096 178,781 212,937 205,651
Fresenius South Chicago 3,511 3,895 5,002 952588 | 1,099,016 | 1,269,883
Fresenius South Holland 1,318 1,304 1,603 324973 327,718 412,017
Fresenius South Shore 2,548 2,143 1,800 699,533 585,749 528,209
Fresenius South Suburban 1,317 1,392 1,804 368,844 364,920 479,436
Fresenius Southside 5,108 5,249 6,248 1,460,523 | 1,407,923 | 1,577,162
Fresenius Southwastern lllinois 160 296 428 38,702 75,763 115,684
Fresenius Spoon River 0 11 30 0 2615 7,573
Fresenius Spring Valley 0 39 267 D 9087 56.218
Fresenius Streator 0 7 34 0 2,757 11,288
Fresenius Uptown 0 701 1,037 0 230,851 315,316
Fresenius Villa Park 970 9p2 1,037 265,255 237,306 278,881
Fresenius West Belmont 2,240 2,495 3,388 575,654 679,000 921,006
Fresenius West Chicago 0 8 429 0 4,391 151,682
Fresenius Waest Metro 6,168 | 6,331 7,147 1,383,891 | 1,348,204 | 1,497,052
Fresenius West Suburban 6,355 5,951 5,841 1,512,880 [ 1,419,713 | 1,385,026
Fresenius Westchester 504 669 429 137,809 171,821 118,436
Fresenius Wiliamson County 442 363 435 100,123 89,706 118,125
Fresenius Willowbrook 459 474 1,065 109,960 113,315 256,960

Tatals| 122,615 | 132,658 | 154,591 | 32,355,267 | 34,055,958 | 40,270,371

It is noted in the above charts, that the number of patients receiving uncompensated

care has declined.

This is not because of any policy or admissions changes at

Fresenius Medical Care. We still accept any patient regardless of ability to pay. The
reduction is due to an aggressive approach within our facilities to obtain insurance
coverage for all patients, thus the rise in Medicaid treatments/costs. Nearly all dialysis
patients in Illinois will qualify for some type of coverage. Our Financial Coordinators
work with patients to assist in finding the right coverage for each patient's particular

situation.

This coverage applies not only to dialysis services, but all health care

services this chronically ill patient population may receive. Therefore, while assisting the
patient to obtain coverage benefits the patient and Fresenius, it also assists other health
care providers. Mainly though, it relieves patients of the stress of not having coverage or
affordable coverage for health care. (see following page for patient coverage options)

22y
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Fresenius Medical Care North America
Community Care

Fresenius Medical Care North America (FMCNAY) assists all of our patients in securing
and maintaining insurance coverage when possible. However, even if for whatever reason
insurance (governmental or otherwise) is not available FMCNA does not deny admission
for treatment due to lack of insurance coverage.

American Kidney Fund

FMCNA works with the American Kidney Fund {AKF) to help patients with insurance
premiums at no cost to the patient.

Applicants must be dialyzed in the US or its territories and referred to AKF by a renal
professional and/or nephrologist The Health Insurance Premium Program is a “last
resort”™ program. It is restricted to patients who have no means of paying health insurance
premiums and who would forego coverage without the benefit of HIPP. Alternative
programs that pay for primary or secondary health coverage, and for which the patient is
eligible, such as Medicaid, state renal programs, etc. must be utilized. Applicants must
demonstrate to the AKF that they cannot afford health coverage and related expenses
(deductible ctc.).

Qur team of Financial Coordinators and Social Workers connect patients who cannot
afford to pay their insurance premiums, with AKF, which provides financial assistance to
the patients for this purpose. FMCNA’s North Division currently has 2986 patients with
primary insurance coverage and 7469 patients with secondary insurance coverage for a
total of 10,455 patients recetving AKF assistance. For the state of Illinois we have 632
primary and 1503 secondary patients receiving AKF assistance. The benefit of working
with the AKF is the insurance coverage which AKF facilities applies to all of the
patient’s insurance needs, not just coverage for dialysis services.

Indigent Waiver Program

FMCNA has established an indigent waiver program to assist patients who are unable to
obtain insurance coverage or who lack the financial resources to pay for medical services.
In order to qualify for an indigent waiver, a patient must satisfy eligibility criteria for
both annual income and net worth.

Annual Income: A patient (including immediate family members who reside with, or are
legally responsible for, the patient) may not have an annual income in excess of two (2)
times the Federal Poverty Standard in effect at the time. Patients whose annual income is
greater than two (2) times the Federal Poverty Standard may qualify for a partial indigent
waiver based upon a sliding scale schedule approved by the Office of Business Practices
and Corporate Compliance.

1 Uncompensated Care
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Net Worth: A patient (including immediate family members who reside with, or are
legally responsible for, the patient) may not have a net worth in excess of $75,000 (or
such other amount as may be established by the Office of Business Practices and
Corporate Compliance based on changes in the Consumer Price Index

The Company recognizes the financial burdens associated with ESRD and wishes to
ensure that patients are not denied access to medically necessary care for financial
reasons. At the same time, the Company also recognizes the limitations imposed by
federal law on offering “free” or “discounted” medical items or services to Medicare and
other government supported patients for the purpose of inducing such paticnts to receive
ESRD-related items and services from FMCNA. An indigent waiver excuses a patient’s
obligation to pay for items and services furnished by FMCNA. Patients may have dual
coverage of AKF assistance and an Indigent Waiver if their financial status qualifies
them for both programs.

FMCNA North Division currently has 718 active Indigent Waivers. 21 cover primary
balances which means the patient has no insurance coverage, and 697 cover patient
balances where there is no supplemental insurance.

Illinois currently has 5 active Indigent Waivers that cover the supplemental balances after
the primary insurance pays. There isn’t a high volume of Indigent Waivers issued in
Illinois because patients are entitled to Medicaid coverage in Jllinois.

1L Medicaid and Undocumented patients

FMCNA has a bi-lingual Regional Insurance Coordinator who works directly with
Illinois Medicaid to assist patients with Medicaid applications. An immigrant who is
unable to produce proper documentation will not be eligible for Medicaid uniess there is
a medical emergency. ESRD is considered a medical emergency.

The Regional Insurance Coordinator will petition Medicaid if patients are denied and
assist undocumented patients through the application process to get them Illinois
Medicaid coverage. This role is actively involved with the Medicaid offices and attends
appeals to help patients secure and maintain their Medicaid coverage for all of their
healthcare needs, including transportation to their appointments.

FMCNA Collection policy

FMCNA'’s collection policy is designed to comply with federal law while not penalizing
patients who are unable to pay for services.

FMCNA does not use a collection agency for patient collections unless the patient
receives direct insurance payment and does not forward the payment to FMCNA.

Q 2.52 “a Uncompensated Care
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Medicare and Medicaid Eligibility

Medicare: Patients are eligible for Medicare when they meet the following criteria: age
65 or older, under age 65 with certain disabilities, and people of all ages with End-Stage
Renal Disease (permanent kidney failure requiring dialysis or a kidney transplant).

There are three insurance programs offered by Medicare, Part A for hospital coverage,
Part B for medical coverage and Part D for pharmacy coverage. Most people don’t have
to pay a monthty premium, for Part A. This is because they or a spouse paid Medicare
taxes while working. If a beneficiary doesn't get premium-free Part A, they may be able
to buy it if they (or their spouse) aren’t entitled to Social Security, because they didn’t
work or didn’t pay enough Medicare taxes while working, are age 65 or older, or are
disabled but no longer get free Part A because they returned to work. Part B and Part D
both have monthly premiums. Patients must have Part B coverage for dialysis services.

Medicare does allow members to enroll in Health Plans for supplemental coverage.
Supplemental coverage (secondary) is any policy that pays balances after the primary
pays reducing any out of pocket expenses incurred by the member.

Medicare will pay 80% of what is allowed by a set fee schedule. The patient would be
responsible for the remaining 20% not paid by Medicare. The supplemental (secondary)
policy covers the cost of co-pays, deductibles and the remaining 20% of charges.

Medicaid: Low-income Illinois residents who can't afford health insurance may be
eligible for Medicaid. In addition to meeting federal guidelines, individuals must also
meet the state criteria to qualify for Medicaid coverage in lllinois.

Self-Pay

A self-pay patient would not have any type of insurance coverage (un-insured). They
may be un-insured because they do not meet the eligibility requirements for Medicare or
Medicaid and can not afford a commercial insurance policy.

In addition, a patient balance becomes self-pay after their primary insurance pays, but the
patient does not have a supplemental insurance policy to cover the remaining balance.
The AKF assistance referenced earlier may or may not be available to these patients,
dependent on whether or not they meet AKF eligibility requirements.

Uncompensated Care
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

MAPQUEST. YT C

TO DAVITA SHILOH

Trip to 1095 N Green Mount Rd

Belleville, IL. 62221-3303
1.96 miles - about 3 minutes ;

ﬁ 124 Regency Park, O Fallon, IL 62269-1994

m 1. Start out going southeast on Regency Park toward CR- o 1.1 mi
A18/ N Green Mount Rd. 9o 1.

@ 2. Turn right onto N Green Mount Rd / CR-R18 S. go 0.9 mi

o | 3. 1095 N GREEN MOUNT RD is on the right. go 0.0 mi

e it ——— - cam e- o —i———

€Y 1095 N Green Mount Rd, Belleville, IL 62221-3303
Total Travel Estimate : 1.96 miies - about 3 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subiect to License/Copyright | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. Wa make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, read conditicns or route usability or
expaditiousnass. You assume all risk of use. MapQuast and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

MapQuest Travel Times
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

Notes

MAPQU EST. 10 DAVITA METRO EAST N

Trip to 5105 W Main St

Belleville, IL 62226-4728
8.44 miles - about 14 minutes

(=
ﬁ 124 Regency Park, O Fallon, IL 62269-1994
m 1. Stan out going southeast on Regency Park toward CR- 6 1.4 mi
R18/ N Green Mount Rd. go i
@ 2. Turn right onto N Green Mount Rd / CR-R18 5. go 0.6 mi
® 3. Turn right onto Frank Scott Pky E. go 6.4 mi
@) 4, Turn left onto W Main St. ga 0.3 mi
= 5.5105 W MAIN ST is on the left. go 0.0 mi

€Y 5105 W Main St, Belleville, IL 62226-4728

Total Travel Estimate : 8.44 miles - about 14 minutes

i rights rese e subject {o License L | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liabla to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Lise

MapQuest Travel Times
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

Notes

MAPQUEST‘ TO DAVITA SAUGET I 2

Trip to 2061 Goose Lake Rd

Sauget, Il 62206-2822
13.71 miles - about 16 minutes

L id
ﬂ 124 Regency Park, 0__l'-:'allon, Il. 62269-1994

m é A ﬁ;a: tzolétr{?:;oing northeast on Regency P;rk toward 90;2 mi
@ 2. Turn left onto W US-50. _ go 0.2 mi
@ @_ 3 Merge o_;o I;64 W/ US-S;W toward East St Louis. go 6.6 mi
@ :ﬂ ehgf;.%;‘%s_o;t;;S S/ US-5{..‘J-V_¢-V|a EXIT 7;;.‘ard B go ;_? mi
- - e— _ _

e 5. Take the Mousette Lane exit, EXIT 15. go 0.3 mi
@ - 6. Turn right onto Mousette Ln, go 0.1 mi
@ 7. Turn left or_1-to Goose Lake Rd. go 0.6 mi
[eno) 8. 2061 G;JSE LAKE RD is on the right. go 0.0 mi

X 2061 Goose Lake Rd, Sauget, IL 62206-2822
Total Trave! Estimate : 13.71 miles - about 16 minutes

ingh rved. Use subj Licensa/Copyri | Map Legend
Directicns and maps are informaticnal only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or

expediliousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liabla to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

MapQuest Travel Times
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

Notes

MAPQUEST' TODAVITAMARYVILLE BN

Trip to 2130 Vadalabene Dr

Maryville, IL 62062-5632
18.90 miles - about 22 minutes

——— ——— -- - —_— —— e —r

c 124 Regency Park, O Fallon, IL 62269-1994

ﬁ 1. Start out going northeast on Regency Park toward 00.2 mi
Schantz Dr. go &
@ 2. Turn left onto W US-50. g0 0.2 mi
@ &GP 3 Merge onto1-64 W/ US-50 W toward East St Louis, go 6.6 mi
G il ]
@ 4. Merge onto [-255 N via EXIT 7 toward Chicago. go 4.7 mi
% 5. Merge onto 55 N/ I-70 E / US-40 E via EXIT 25A 05.0mi
toward Chicago / Indianapolis. 9o o.
58 . . . .
6. Merge onto IL~159 N via EXIT 15B toward Maryville. go 1.9 mi
@ 7. Turn right onto Vadalabene Dr. go 0.3 mi
[exo 8. 2130 VADALABENE DR is on the right. go 0.0 mi

X 2130 vadalabene Dr, Maryville, IL 62062-5632
Total Travel Estimate : 18.80 miles - about 22 minutes
All rlghts reserved. ubi icense/Copyrighl | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any foss or defay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

MapQuest Travel Times
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

Notes

MAPQUEST.

Trip to 9 American Vig

Granite City, IL 62040-3706
21.29 miles - about 28 minutes

e— [ —— —

a 124 Regency Park, O Fallon, IL 62269-1994

m 1. Start cut going northeast on Regency Park toward
Schantz Dr.
@ 2. Turn left onto W US-50.

@ @ 3. Merge onto 1-64 W [ US-50 W toward East St Louis.

7"
&Y ¢ Merge onto 1255 N via EXIT 7 toward Chicago.

76
t‘;ﬁ* 5. Take the Horseshoe Lake Road exit, EXIT 26.
@P 6. Turn right onto Horseshoe 1.ake Rd.

@ 7. Turn left onto IL-162 W / Edwardsville Rd.

’ 8. Turn right onto Nameoki Rd / [IL-203.
@ o) g

@ 9. Turn left onto American Vig.

[ eno | 10, 9 AMERICAN VLG is on the right.

TO DAVITA GRANITE CITY

<X 9 American Vig, Granite City, IL 62040-3706
Total Travel Estimate : 21.29 mlles - about 28 minutes

Il tights rosgrved bigct to Li ht | Map Legend

go 0.2 mi

go 0.2 mi

go 6.6 mi

9o 6.3 mi

go 0.5 mi

g0 3.9 mi

go 1.8 mi

go 1.9 mi

go 0.0 mi

go 0.0 mi

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road canditions or route usability or
expeditiousnass. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not bo liable 10 you for any loss or delay resulting from

your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuesl means you agree 10 our Tarms of Use

Page 1 of 1, ;5D~

MapQuest Travel Times
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

Notes

MAPQUESI TO DAVITA EDWARDSVILLE T Al

Trip to 235 S Buchanan St

Edwardsville, IL 62025-2108
26.66 miles - about 32 minutes

PR e T =z m.m‘l[
ﬁ 124 Regency Park, O Fallon, IL 62269-1994

1. Start out going northeast on Regency Park toward ;
w Schantz Dr. go0.2mi
@ 2. Turn left onto W US-50. go 0.2 mi
@ @ 3. Merge onto I-64 W / US-50 W toward East St Louis. go 6.6 mi
_
@ 4. Merge onto I-255 N via EXIT 7 toward Chicago. go 11.7 mi
@ 5. 1-255 N becomes IL-255 N. go2.1 mi
‘:-3 .
f&?"r 6. Take the New Poag Rd. exit, EXIT 3. go 0.5 mi
[mr: 7. Keep right to take the ramp toward Edwardsville. go 0.0 mi
{E} 8. Turn right onto New Poag Rd. go 3.9 mi
@ 9. New Poag Rd becomes St Louis St. go 1.0 mi
{fﬂ 10. Stay straight to go onto W Vandalia St / IL-157. go 0.3 mi
@ 11. Turn right onto S Buchanan St. go 0.1 mi

12. 235 S BUCHANAN ST is on the right. go 0.0 mi

MapQuest Travel Times

APPENDIX - 1
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

Notes
MAPQUEST. omems o one 7
SOUTHWESTERN ILLINOIS

Trip to 75 Eastgate Plz

East Alton, (. 62024-1057
30.11 miles - about 34 minutes i

ﬁ 124 Regency Park, O Fallon, IL 62269-1994

1. Start out going northeast on Regency Park toward ;
m Schantz Dr. go 0.2 mi
@ 2. Turn left onto W US-50. ge 0.2 mi
@ &P 3 Merge onto 1-64 W / US-50 W toward East St Louiis. go 6.6 mi
)
(£ @ 4. Merge onto I-255 N via EXIT 7 toward Chicago. go 11.7 mi
N
(f) 2l 5.1-255 N becomes IL-255 N. go 2.1 mi
l-'-—‘3" .
'E}ﬁ 8. Take the New Poag Rd. exit, EXIT 3. go 0.5 mi
[ma 7. Keep ieft to take the ramp toward Illinois. go 0.0 mi
@ 8. Turn left onto New Poag Rd. g0 3.3 mi
,\"' .
) Pf™ o Tum right onto IL-3 N. go 5.5 mi
@ 10. Turn {eft onto E Gateway Dr, go 0.0 mi
= 11. 75 EASTGATE PLZ. go 0.0 mi

tan

75 Eastgate Plz, East Alton, Il 62024-1057
MapQuest Travel Times

APPENDIX - 1
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

Total Travel Estimate : 30.11 miles - about 34 minutes

Il rights resery se subi License ight | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use, MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resufting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agrea 1o our Termg of Lsg

MapQuest Travel Times
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

Notes

MAPQUEST— TO FRESENIUS MEDICAL CARE BREESE ]

Trip to 160 N Main St

Breese, IL 62230-1630
24.73 miles - about 35 minutes i

b e - - —— T . - I S

= TTee—— W TE—— — s—rera

ﬁ 124 Regency Park, O Fallon, IL 62269-1994

m 1. Stant out going hortheast on Regency Park toward
Schantz Dr.

@ 2. Turn right onto US-50 E. go 8.1 mi

@ “ 3-ST_gr0n Eﬁsm onto E St Louis St/ US-50. Continue to foil;:tw g0 15.2 mi
E 4. Take the ran;up toward Breese / Sl_Rose. go 0.3 mi
@ a 5_ Turn right on;—N-\;;lwnut St_f CR-11 S‘m _ : _- go 0.7;
®  svemmeonwsosss oo
&  crsmonwams geoen
mm N _8: 60 N I';I_AIN_S_T i; ;m—t;we ;n. ) o g; 0.0 rn:

X 160 N Main St, Breese, IL 62230-1630
Total Travel Estimate : 24.73 miles - about 35 minutes

Al right rv se Subj jcens i | Mag Legend
Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or routs usability or

expediliousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

MapQuest Travel Times
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

{X 235 S Buchanan St, Edwardsville, IL 62025-2108
Taotal Travel Estimate : 26.66 miles - about 32 minutes

i righ et to L right | Map Legend

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road canditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuest and its suppliers shall not be liable t¢ you for any loss or delay resulting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

MapQuest Travel Times
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Wednesday, May 30}, 2012,

Notes

MAPQUEST. TODAVITAALTON | =

Trip to 3511 College Ave

Alton, IL 62002-5008
32.52 miles - about 36 minutes

&

&

. - I
124 Regen;:; Pérk_,g Fallon, IL 62269-1994 - -
m ;éi?:tzotgrg';oing northeast 0;2 Regency ;ark toward 900.2 mi
@ 2. Turn left onto W US-50. . go 0.2 mi
@ MM@_ 3. Merge onto 1-64 W/ U;S; ;tow;rd E;st St_Louis. go G.B_mi
- e - ) I
4. Merge onto I-255 N via EXIT 7 toward Chicago. go 11.7 mi

@ 5. 1-255 N becomes IL-255 N, go 9.7 mi

—_— - —— e L e [— . m——

L. 6. Take the IL-111 / IL-140 exit, EXIT 10, toward Alton / .

i Bethaito. go 0.3 mi

[mﬁ 7. Keep left to take the ramp toward Alton. go 0.0 mi

@ 8. Turn left onto E MacArthur Dr / IL-111 / [L-140, o 3.8 mi
Continue to follow IL-140 W, go 3

O D D

9. Turn left onto Crossroads Ci. go 0.0 mi
10. Turn right ontc College Ave. go 0.0 mi
11. 3511 COLLEGE AVE is on the left. go 0.0 mi

N

3511 College Ave, Alton, IL 62002-5009

MapQuest Travel Times

Page 1 of 2, 0)\38
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Wednesday, May 30, 2012,

Total Travel Estimate : 32.52 miles - about 36 minutes

All rights reserved. Use subject to License/Copyricht | Map Legen

Directions and maps are informational only. We make no warranties on the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability or
expeditiousness. You assume all risk of use. MapQuast and its suppliers shall not be liable to you for any loss or delay resutting from
your use of MapQuest. Your use of MapQuest means you agree to our Terms of Use

MapQuest Travel Times
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15 Park Place Ste 1A
Mentoriad Medical Group, LLC Swansen, fllineis 62226
Phose: 618.234.6003
Fax: 618,234.6156

Specislizing in Kidwey Disewse & Mypertension
Dr, Matthero Koch & Cynthin Whitcher APN-B.C

June 13, 2012

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

IHinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson St., 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery,

I am a nephrologist practicing in rural southern Illinois, specifically the Bellville area of St. Clair County. [am
the Medical Dircctor of the RAI Lincoln Highway — Fairview Heights dialysis clinic. 1 also refer patients to
RAI North Main - Breese, DaVita Metro East and Sauget. [ am writing in support of the relocation of the 20-
station Fairview Heights dialysis facility. The size of the current building is inadequate causing patients and
staff to treat/work in cramped spaces. The building requires costly repairs that are not reasonable to accomplish
in a space that is not best suited for the clinic. [ am a strong proponent of home dialysis, especially in this rural
area, and our program is now up to almost 30 patients. The home training department also requires additional
space to be more effective. The new site in O'Fallon will meet this need.

At RAI Fairview Heights and Breese, I was treating 36 hemodialysis patients at the end of 2009, 42 patients at
the end of 2010 and 40 patients at the end of 2011, as reported to The Renal Network. As of the most recent
quarter, I had 70 hemodialysis patients in all four clinics I refer to. Over the past telve months I have referred
21 patients for dialysis services to RAI North Main ~ Breese and Lincoln Highway — Fairview Heights. T also
referred 11 patients to DaVite Metro East and Sauget. I expect that all 89 current patients of RAI Lincoln
Highway — Fairview Heights will rclocate to the new site upon its opening. 1 currently have 129 patients in
different stages of chronic kidney disease in the St. Clair County area that will eventually require dialysis. Of
these there arc 38 that I expect to begin diatysis at the O’Fallon site in the first two years of operation. There
are also four other physicians who currently admit paticnts to the Fairview Heights facility, (Patient census
counts from previous years af the DaVita Metro East and Sauget clinics were unavailable and thercfore arc not
included. Also, I began my own practice in the past year and no longer bave access to the former practice
historical records.)

Given the repair issues at our current site and the need to keep access available to the 89 dialysis patients as
well as pre-ESRD patients in this rural region, I respectfully ask the Board to approve the relocation if RAI
Lincoln Highway — Fairview Heights, Thank you for your consideration.

[ attest to the [act that to the best of my knowledge, all the information contained in this letter is true and corect
and that the projected referrals in this document were not used to support any other CON application.

Notarization:

Sincerely, Subscribed and sworn efore me
/7 ___________________________ o this_/Y{_ dayof , 2012

OFFlclALMsE?é.S

SAN K

Matthew Koch, M.D. ' ' NOTARYsFHJBLIC - STATE OF ILUNOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:08/01/1%

e g RN
WA

Signature of Notary

Physician Referral Letter
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CURRENT FAIRVIEW HEIGHTS PATIENTS THAT WILL TRANSFER TO
THE NEW O’FALLON LOCATION AT 124 REGENCY PARK DRIVE

Zip Code | Patients
62060
62090
62203
62204
62205
62206
62207
62208
g2220
62221
62222
62223
62226
62232
62234
62236
62243
62245
62254
62258
62260
62269
62286
Total

PRE-ESRD PATIENTS THAT WILL BEGIN DIALYSIS AT
THE O’FALLON LOCATION BY THE FIRST TWO YEARS OF OPERATION

—

=izl =[x |o|=]|Z oo |~ [w| sl =1

—

1]
L7«

Pre-ESRD
Zip Year Year
Code One Two
62208 4 2
62215 1
62220 3 2
62221 1 3
62226 4 4
62232 1 1
62234 1
62254 2
62258 1 2
62265 1
62269 5
Total 14 24
-3- Physician Referral Letter
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DR. KOCH’S NEW REFERRALS FOR THE PAST TWELVE MONTHS
May 1, 2011 through April 30, 2012

Zp
Code
62205
62206
62208
62220
62221
62223
62226
62232
62263
62269
62293
63128
Total

Patients

= | = I = WO W N = NN =

N
-

DR. KOCH’S HEMODIALYSIS PATIENTS AS OF
DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2010, 2011 and MARCH 31, 2012
AT RAI - FAIRVIEW HEIGHTS AND BREESE

2009 2010 _ 2011 Mar 31st 2011
Zip Zip Zip Zip
Code Patients Code Patients Code Patients Code | Patients
6221 1 62201 1 62022 i 62204 i
62204 2 62204 2 62201 1 62205 1
62206 1 62207 5 62204 2 62206 6
62207 2 62208 1 62205 1 62207 3
62208 3 62215 1 62206 i 62208 2
62215 1 62216 1 62207 3 2215 1
62220 2 62220 1 62208 2 62218 1
62221 3 62221 3 62215 1 62220 1
62223 2 62223 1 62216 1 62221 3
62230 1 62225 1 62218 1 62223 1
62231 2 62230 2 62220 1 62226 2
652234 1 62231 2 62221 3 62230 2
62243 1 62243 1 62226 1 62231 3
62245 1 62245 1 62230 2 62232 2
62246 1 62246 1 62231 3 62243 1
62249 2 62249 2 62232 1 62245 1
62253 2 62253 3 62243 1 62246 1
62254 1 62254 1 62245 1 62253 P
62269 4 62260 1 62246 1 62269 1
62275 1 62269 3 62253 2 62271 3
62293 1 62275 1 62263 1 62275 1
63119 1 62293 2 62269 2 62293 1
Total 36 62801 1 62271 3 Total 40
63137 1 62275 1
Total 42 62293 P
62801 1
Total 40

-4-
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DR. KOCH’S CURRENT HEMODIALYSIS PATIENTS
AT DAVITA METRO EAST AND DAVITA SAUGET

DaVita Metro East

Zip Code | Patients
62203 2 DaVita Sauget
62204 1 Zip Code | Patients
62205 1 38017 1
62207 1 62204 )
62221 1 62206 1
62223 2 62207 2
62226 4 62240 1
62232 1 62301 1
62236 1 Total 8
62243 1
62255 1
62258 1
62269 2
52282 1
Total 21

Physician Referral Letter
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